O

216698 IR

04042

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September __, 2004

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 1-A

REGULATION A OFFERING STATEMENT
Under
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP

(Exact name of Issuer as specified in its charter)

OREGON 6712 77-0587795
(State or other jurisdiction of (Primary standard industrial (I.R.S. employer identification no.)
incorporation or organization) classification code number)

314 East Main St., P.O. Box 725, Hillsboro, Oregon 97123 (503) 693-7500
(Address and telephone number of principal executive offices and principal place of business)

Rick A. Roby
President and Chief Executive Officer
314 East Main St., P.O. Box 725
Hillsboro, Oregon 97123
(503) 693-7500

(Name, address, and telephone number of agent for service) PR@GFQ@ [EE:})
Copies of communications to: SEP { 3 2604
Gordon E. Crim, Esq. THOWIS . .\
Foster Pepper Tooze LLP : FINANCIAL

601 S. W, Second Ave., Suite 1800
Portland, Oregon 97204

This offering statement shall only be qualified upon order of the Commission, unless a subsequent
amendment is filed indicating the intention to become qualified by operation of the terms of Regulation A.

Exhibit Index is on page 81 Page 1 of 273

N



PART 1 - NOTIFICATION
Item 1. Significant Parties
(a) Directors. The directors of Columbia Commercial Bancorp (“the Issuer”) are listed below.
The business address of each such person is 314 East Main St., P.O. Box 725, Hillsboro, Oregon 97123.

The residence addresses of such persons are provided below.

Name Residence Address

Rick A. Roby 600 SE 26 Ave.
Hillsboro, OR 97123

Donald B. Kane 14239 NW Mason Hill
North Plains, OR 97133

Anita M. Sharman 4000 NE 109 Ave., #187
Vancouver, WA 98682

Patrick J. Culligan 5910 SW Snowberry Crt.
Hillsboro, OR 97123

John M. Godsey, Jr. 3076 SE Oak St.
Hillsboro, OR 97123

Martin D. Quandt 8328 SW Chevy Pl
Beaverton, OR 97008

John C. Richards 15250 SW Heron Crt.
Beaverton, OR 97007

Joseph (Ted ) Rose 16255 SW Holly Hill Rd.
Hillsboro, OR 97123

James (Ed) Wagenblast 22344 NW Gillihan Rd.
Portland, OR 97231

(b) Executive Officers. The executive officers of Columbia Commercial Bancorp and it
subsidiary, Columbia Commercial Bank, are listed below. The business address of each such person is
314 East Main St., P.O. Box 725, Hillsboro, Oregon 97123. The residence addresses of such persons are
provided below.

Name Residence Address
Rick A. Roby 600 SE 26 Ave.

President and CEO Hillsboro, OR 97123
Randy V. Blake 6285 SW Timberland Place
Vice President, CFO Beaverton, OR 97007-7831
Frederick S. Johnson 1520 NE Grant Street

Executive Vice President,  Hillsboro, OR 97124
Senior Loan Officer
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(c) Issuer’s General Partners. Not Applicable.

(d) and (e) Principal Shareholders. The full names, business and residential addresses of the
record and beneficial owners of 5 percent or more of the Issuer’s equity securities are listed below:

Name

Beverly Quandt

James (Ed) Wagenblast

Rick A. Roby

Residence Address

6029 NW Alfalfa Drive
Portland, OR 97229

22344 NW Gillihan Rd.
Portland, OR 97231

600 SE 26 Ave.
Hillsboro, OR 97123

® Promotors of the Issuer. Not Applicable.

Business Address

N/A

P.O. Box 5187 Aloha, OR 97006

314 East Main St., P.O. Box 723
Hillsboro, OR 97123

() Affiliates of the Issuer. Columbia Community Bank and Columbia Commercial
Statutory Trust I are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Columbia Commercial Bancorp.

(h) Legal Counsel. Foster Pepper Tooze LLP, 601 S.W. Second Avenue, Portland, Oregon
97204, has advised the Issuer in connection with certain banking and securities aspects of the offering.

)] The Underwriter with Respect to Offering. D. A. Davidson & Co. will act as
placement agent on a best efforts basis with respect to the offering within the meaning of Section
2(a)(11) of the Securities Act of 1933, as it will offer or sell for the Issuer in connection with the

distribution of securities.

) The Underwriter’s Directors. The directors of D. A. Davidson & Co. are as follows.
The business and residence addresses of such persons of are provided below.

Name

Brenda Berg

Andrew Davidson

Ian Davidson

Arvid J. Grier

William Johnstone

Kreg Jones

Residence Address

10416 SE 22™ Street
Bellevue, WA 98004

2725 Ivy Drive
Great Falls, MT 59404

325 Flood Road
Great Falls, MT 59404

4687 225% Avenue SE
Sammamish, WA 98075

219 Third Avenue North
Great Falls, MT 59404

1120 23" Avenue SW
Great Falls, MT 59404

Business Address

7530 164" Avenue, Ste A215
Redmond, WA 98052

8 Third Street North
Great Falls, MT 59401

8 Third Street North
Great Falls, MT 59401

701 5% Avenue, Ste. 3100
Seattle, WA 98104

8 Third Street North
Great Falls, MT 59401

8 Third Street North
Great Falls, MT 59401
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Name Residence Address Business Address

Bob Magnuson 5800 145™ Avenue SE 701 5™ Avenue, Ste. 3100
Bellevue, WA 98006 Seattle, WA 98104

Gerald Meyer 415 Riverview Ct. 8 Third Street North
Great Falls, MT 59404 Great Falls, MT 59401

Thomas Nelson 6 Spring Ridge Drive 8 Third Street North
Great Falls, MT 59404 Great Falls, MT 59401

Doug Nichols 5126 NE 42™ Street 701 5™ Avenue, Ste. 3100
Seattle, WA 98105 Seattle, WA 98104

John Rogers 4214 SW 34™ Avenue Two Centerpointe Drive, Ste. 400
Portland, OR 97201 Lake Oswego, OR 97035

Daren Shaw 2115 Peregrin Court Two Centerpointe Drive, Ste. 400
West Linn, OR 97068 Lake Oswego, OR 97035

Garry Shea 2015 E. Pinecrest Rd. 221 N. Wall Street, Ste. 400
Spokane, WA 99203 Spokane, WA 99201

Tracy Swanson P.O.Box 154 2 North Main St., Ste. 102
Big Horn, WY 82833 Sheridan, WY 82801

Ronald Tschetter 300 40™ Avenue South, #28 8 Third Street North
Great Falls, MT 59404 Great Falls, MT 59401

Arlene Wilson 1-16" Avenue South 8 Third Street North
Great Falls, MT 59405 Great Falls, MT 59401

(k) The Underwriter’s Officers. The executive officers of D. A. Davidson & Co. are as
follows. The business address of each such person is 8 Third Street North, Great Falls, MT 59401. The
residence addresses of such persons are provided below.

Name Residence Address

Ronald Tschetter 300 40" Avenue South, #28
Great Falls, MT 59404

Mary L. Brennan-Dutro 3009 Fourth Avenue North
Great Falls, MT 59405

Lawrence T. Martinez 80 Gannon Drive
Great Falls, MT 59404

() Underwriter’s general partners. Not Applicable.
(m)  Counsel to the Underwriter. Lawrence T. Martinez, Esq., General Counsel to

Davidson Companies, 8 Third Street North, Great Falls, Montana 59401, will serve as counsel to D. A.
Davidson & Co.
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Item 2. Application of Rule 262

(a) None of the persons identified in the response to Item 1 is subject to the disqualification
provisions set forth in Rule 262.

(b) Not Applicable.
Item 3. Affiliate Sales
Not Applicable.
Item 4. Jurisdictions in Which Securities Are to be Offered

() D.A. Davidson & Co., as placement agent, will offer and sell shares on a best efforts
basis pursuant to a Placement Agent Agreement dated as of September __, 2004. Subject to the Issuer’s
discretion to limit the jurisdictions in which offers and sales will be made as described in Item 4(b), D.A.
Davidson & Co. intends to offer and sell shares in the states of Arizona, California, Colorado, Idaho,
Minnesota, Montana, North Dakota, Oregon, Utah, Washington and Wyoming.

(b) The Issuer will offer and sell shares to its shareholders and designated members of the
general public. Shareholders of the Issuer reside in the following states: Arizona, California, Colorado,
Florida, Louisiana, Missouri, Nevada, New Jersey, Ohio, Oregon, Texas and Washington. The Issuer has
discretion not to offer shares to existing or new shareholders who reside in states in which regulatory
compliance would, in the judgment of the Issuer, be unduly burdensome. The Issuer will also offer shares
to persons who are not currently shareholders, who may reside in the listed states or other states. The
shares will be offered by the Issuer’s directors and executive officers on a best-efforts basis. None of
these individuals will receive any bonus, commissions or other compensation directly or indirectly in
connection with such sales.

Item 5. Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year

(2) During the 12 months preceding the filing of this Form 1-A Offering Statement, the Issuer
has not sold any shares of its common stock. No stock options have been exercised.

The Issuer has issued within the past 12 months an aggregate of 1,880 shares of common stock
pursuant to the Issuer’s 2004 Stock Incentive Plan. These shares were issued to directors of the Issuer in
lieu of an annual retainer for service as directors. The fair market value of each share of the common
stock as of the date of issuance was $15.00, based on the most recent sale. The following individuals
received shares pursuant to the plan, each of whom is a director of the Issuer:

Donald B. Kane Martin D. Quandt
Anita M. Sharman John C. Richards
Patrick J. Culligan Joseph (Ted) Rose
John M. Godsey, Jr. James (Ed) Wagenblast
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(b) Within the past 12 months, no shares of the Issuer’s common stock were sold by or for
the account of any person who was a director, officer, promoter or principal security holder of the Issuer
or was an underwriter of any securities of the Issuer,

(©) The shares issued as described in (a) above were issued pursuant to Rule 701 under the
Securities Act of 1933.

Item 6. Other Present or Proposed Offerings
There are no other present or proposed offerings at the current time.
Item 7. Marketing Arrangements

There is no arrangement known to the Issuer or to any person named in response to Item 1 above
for any of the purposes set forth in Item 7, Form 1-A.

Item 8. Relationship with Issuer of Experts Named in Offering Statement

No expert named in the offering statement as having prepared or certified any part thereof was
employed for such purpose on a contingent basis or, at the time of such preparation or certification or at
any time thereafter, had a material interest in the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries or was connected with
the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries as a promoter, underwriter, voting trustee, director, officer or
employee.

Item 9. Use of a Solicitation of Interest Document

On July 9, 2004, the Issuer distributed a letter to its shareholders and a separate letter to other
persons who are customers of Issuer, indicating Issuer’s contemplation of conducting an offering of
securities and soliciting indications of interest. Such letters were substantially in compliance with Rule
254. Copies of such letters were submitted to the Commission on August 9, 2004 following discussion
with the Commission staff.
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OFFERING CIRCULAR

COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP
P.O. Box 725, 314 E. Main St.
Hillsboro, Oregon 97123-0725

(503) 693-7500

A Maximum of $5,000,000 (250,000 Shares of Common Stock at $20.00 Per Share)
(No Minimum Offering Amount)

COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP is offering 250,000 shares of its common stock to existing
shareholders and the public at $20.00 per share. The offering will commence on , and expire on
, 2004, unless we terminate it earlier or extend it, for up to two additional 30-day periods.

The minimum purchase for new shareholders is 1,000 shares. There is no minimum purchase amount
for existing shareholders and employees of Columbia Commercial Bancorp and Columbia Community Bank. The
maximum investment limit is a number of shares equal to five percent of shares outstanding prior to the offering.
These minimum and maximum restrictions are subject to the Board’s discretion.

In addition to other matters discussed in this document, you should also be aware of the following:

o  There is no minimum offering amount, and we may receive less than $5,000,000 in gross proceeds;

¢ Because there is no minimum offering amount, we will have immediate access to subscription
funds once we have accepted a subscription;

¢  Once submitted, the subscription may not be revoked by the investor;

e  We are selling a portion of the offered shares directly, and no commissions will be paid in
connection with such sales;

¢ A portion of the offered shares will be sold by our placement agent, and a commission will be paid
in connection with such sales;

o  There is a limited trading market for our shares, and there is very limited trading activity; and

e  We have subjectively established the offering price of $20.00 per share based on a recent
independent professional evaluation and the sales prices in the limited recent trading of our stock.

An investment in these securities involves risk, including the possible loss of principal. See “RISK
FACTORS?” on page 4 of this Offering Circular.

THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT
PASS UPON THE MERITS OR GIVE ITS APPROVAL TO ANY SECURITIES OFFERED OR
THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, NOR DOES IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACY OR
COMPLETENESS OF ANY OFFERING CIRCULAR OR OTHER SELLING LITERATURE.
THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION WITH THE COMMISSION; HOWEVER, THE COMMISSION HAS NOT
MADE AN INDEPENDENT DETERMINATION THAT THE SECURITIES OFFERED
HEREUNDER ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION.

Underwriting Discounts Proceeds to

Price to Public and Commissions” Issuer®

Per Common Share $20.00 $0.70 $19.30
Maximum Offering $5,000,000 $175,000 $4,825,000

(1) D.A. Davidson & Co., acting as placement agent on a best efforts basis, will receive a 7% commission in connection with
shares sold by it in the offering. This table reflects the assumption that D.A. Davidson & Co. will sell 125,000 of the shares
offered. The actual number of shares sold cannot be accurately predicted.

(2) Proceeds are calculated before deducting estimated expenses of the offering of approximately $150,000, including filing
fees, legal and accounting fees, printing and other miscellaneous expenses payable by Columbia Community Bancorp.

The date of this Offering Circular is , 2004,
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THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY ARE NOT DEPOSITS OR SAVINGS
ACCOUNTS. THESE SECURITIES ARE NOT INSURED BY THE FDIC OR ANY OTHER
AGENCY. THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE
FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION NOR HAS THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT
INSURANCE CORPORATION OR ANY OTHER FEDERAL OR STATE AGENCY PASSED
ON THE ADEQUACY OR ACCURACY OF THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR. ANY
REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS UNLAWFUL.

No agent or officer of the Columbia Commercial Bancorp or Columbia Community Bank,
or any other person, has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations
other than those contained in this Offering Circular and, if given or made, such information and
representations should not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Issuer.

This Offering Circular does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy
any of the securities offered hereby in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to
make such offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction. Neither the delivery of this Offering Circular
nor any sale hereunder shall under any circumstances create an implication that there has been no
change in the affairs of the Issuer since the date hereof.

In deciding whether or not to invest in the securities offered, you should rely on your own
examination of the Issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved.

THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY ANY
FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR OTHER REGULATORY
AUTHORITY. ALSO, NO SUCH AGENCY HAS DETERMINED IF THIS DOCUMENT IS
TRUTHFUL OR COMPLETE. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A
CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

We reserve the right not to offer or sell shares to any person if, in our determination, the

costs and regulatory requirements of complying with applicable state securities laws are unduly
burdensome.
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OFFERING CIRCULAR SUMMARY

The following summary explains the significant aspects of our stock offering. The summary is
qualified by the more detailed information and the financial statements appearing elsewhere in this
Offering Circular. Prospective purchasers are urged to carefully read the entire Offering Circular

before making a decision to purchase our common stock.

The Offering

Common Stock Offered .................

Common Stock to be Outstanding After the Offering....

Minimum SubsCription.........cccveeiirverrconineiresercrre e

Maximum Subscription..................

How to Subscribe from Columbia Commercial Bancorp..

How to Subscribe from D.A. Davidson & Co. ...............

Expiration of Offering...................

Use of Proceeds.....c.ovcovveevveeeennnnnn,

250,000 shares
$20.00 per share

722,784 shares (assuming all shares offered are sold
and no stock options are exercised)

New shareholders must subscribe for a minimum
of 1,000 shares, subject to our discretion to accept
subscriptions for lesser amounts.

Existing shareholders and employees of Columbia
Commercial Bancorp or Columbia Community
Bank do not have a minimum subscription amount.

Subject to our discretion, no subscription will be
accepted to the extent that it causes the subscriber to
own or control, following the offering, more than
23,639 shares (an amount equal to 5% of our
outstanding shares prior to the offering). See
“TERMS OF THE OFFERING.”

To purchase shares in the offering directly through
us, you must complete, date and execute the
Subscription Agreement provided with this Offering
Circular and return it, along with a check made
payable to “Columbia Commercial Bancorp” for the
full subscription amount to us at the address listed
on the front page of the Offering Circular.
Important: Payment of the full subscription
price for shares must be included with the
Subscription Agreement.

To purchase shares in the offering through D.A.
Davidson & Co., you must complete, date and
execute the Subscription Agreement provided with
this Offering Circular and return it to D. A.
Davidson in the pre-addressed envelope.

The offering will expire on , 2004, unless
we terminate it earlier or extend it.

To payoff existing debt, support our growth and for
general working capital purposes. See “USE OF
PROCEEDS.”

An investment in our shares involves certain risks.
See “RISK FACTORS.”
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Plan of Distribution

The offering will commence on , 2004 and will continue until , 2004
unless we determine in our sole discretion to terminate the offering earlier or to extend it, for up to two
periods of 30 days each.

We will offer and sell shares directly to our existing shareholders and to other designated persons
including customers and other persons residing or working in our market area. The shares in the offering
that we offer and sell directly (the “Company Offered Shares”) will be marketed and sold through certain
of our executive officers and directors, none of whom will receive any commission or other form of
compensation in connection with such efforts.

As described below under “TERMS OF THE OFFERING - Placement Agent Agreement — D.A.
Davidson,” a portion of the shares in the offering will be offered and sold to the general public by D.A.
Davidson & Co. (“Davidson™), acting as placement agent, on a best efforts basis. Davidson will receive a
commission of 7% of the purchase price on the shares that it sells in the offering (the “Davidson Offered
Shares”). We will have the exclusive right to offer and sell up to 125,000 Company Offered Shares until

, 2004, after which date, any of such shares that remain unsold may be sold by Davidson.

Although we will provide offering materials to our existing shareholders, they will not have
priority in the offering. The offering will be conducted on a “first-come-first-serve” basis, subject to our
discretion to reject subscriptions.

New shareholders must purchase a minimum of 1,000 shares ($20,000). We reserve the right in
our discretion to accept subscriptions for lesser amounts. There is no minimum purchase requirement for

our existing shareholders or employees of Columbia Commercial Bancorp or Columbia Community
Bank.

We do not intend to accept subscriptions to the extent that it would cause the subscriber
beneficially to own, following the offering, more than 23,639 shares (5% of shares outstanding as of
commencement of the offering). We reserve the right in our discretion to accept subscriptions for larger
amounts. See “TERMS OF THE OFFERING — Maximum Subscription Amount.”

We reserve broad discretion in detemﬁning whether to sell shares to any particular person,
whether an existing shareholder or a new shareholder. See “TERMS OF THE OFFERING — Company
Discretion to Accept or Reject Subscriptions.”

Conditions of the Offering

Completion of the offering is not conditioned upon our receiving a minimum total offering
amount. There are no escrow arrangements with respect to this offering. Accordingly, subscription
funds that we receive and accept will be available for our immediate use.

We may accept or reject subscriptions in whole or in part for any reason. A subscription is
irrevocable. Once you have submitted a subscription, you cannot withdraw it. Any rejected

subscriptions will be promptly returned.

While no modification of the terms of the offering are anticipated, if there are any material
changes, subscribers will be resolicited and will be given an opportunity to rescind their investment.

See “TERMS OF THE OFFERING” for a more complete description of the offering.

2 Page 11



)

About Columbia Commercial Bancorp and Columbia Community Bank

Columbia Commercial Bancorp is an Oregon corporation formed in February 2002 for the
purpose of being a holding company of Columbia Community Bank, an Oregon state chartered bank that
commenced operations in April 1999. Columbia Commercial Bancorp is headquartered in Hillsboro,
Oregon at the main office of the bank, and conducts all of its operations through the bank. Columbia
Community Bank also has branch offices in Forest Grove and Beaverton, Oregon.

At June 30, 2004, we had consolidated total assets of approximately $120.8 million, liabilities of
approximately $114.3 million, net loans of approximately $93.6 million, deposits of approximately $81.7
million, and shareholders’ equity of approximately $6.5 million.

We offer a variety of financial products to small and medium-sized businesses, professionals and
individual customers. QOur strategy is to operate with low overhead expenses by focusing on those
financial products most commonly demanded by customers, thereby offering products and services at
competitive rates. We offer checking, savings and money market accounts, Individual Retirement
Accounts, time certificates of deposit, and commercial and consumer loans. We also offer variable-rate
real estate loans for commercial and residential properties, and fixed-rate residential real estate loans,
including first mortgage loans and home equity loans, through a third-party mortgage lender.

Columbia Community Bank maintains a web site at www.columbiacommunitybank.com which
contains additional information about the products and services offered, and which allows bank
customers to conduct Internet banking transactions. Information contained on or that can be accessed
through a website does not constitute a part of this Offering Circular.

See “BUSINESS” for a more complete description of our business.
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in our shares involves certain risks. In addition to the other information
contained in this Offering Circular, anyone considering investing in our shares should read and
carefully consider the following:

We have subjectively set the offering price, and the price may not reflect the actual value of the
shares. As a result, the price in this offering may be greater than the actual value of the shares.

We have established the offering price of $20.00 per share based on an independent professional
evaluation and the price of recent, though sporadic, trades in the stock. For a description of the factors
considered by our board in establishing the offering price, see “TERMS OF THE OFFERING — The
Offering Price.” There can be no assurance that the offering price indicates the actual market value of the
stock, or that shareholders will be able to sell their shares at or above the offering price.

There is no minimum offering amount, and we may raise substantially less than the maximum
amount being offered, which could affect our future growth.

We have not set a minimum number of shares that must be sold in order for the offering to close.
No escrow arrangements have been made with respect to the offering. Thus, subject to the acceptance of
subscriptions (see “TERMS OF THE OFFERING -~ Company Discretion”), subscription funds will be
immediately available to us regardless of the number of shares sold in the offering to such date or in the
completed offering. There can be no assurance that the maximum 250,000 shares will be sold, or that
any particular number of shares will be sold. If the offering is subscribed at significantly less than the
maximum, our ability to support our future growth (see “USE OF PROCEEDS”) will be affected.

You may have difficulty selling your shares because of limited trading and restrictions on
ownership.

Our shares are not listed on any stock exchange and there is very little market activity in the
stock. Following completion of the offering, Davidson is expected to post quotes for our stock on the
OTC Bulletin Board maintained by the NASD (the “OTCBB”). We cannot make any assurances as to
when or if such quotes will be available. Isolated transactions between individuals occur from time to
time. We do not know whether significant trading activity will take place for several years, if at all. We
cannot assure you that private sales can be negotiated at acceptable prices. Our bylaws limit the number
of shareholders of record to less than 500. This limitation may prevent a market for the stock from
developing. Accordingly, you should consider this as a long-term investment and be prepared to hold the
shares for an indefinite period of time.

You will likely not receive cash dividends on the shares.

We have never paid a cash dividend and do not anticipate paying a cash dividend in the
foreseeable future. We expect to retain all earnings to provide capital for operation and expansion of the
bank. Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend primarily upon the bank’s earnings and its
ability to pay dividends to Columbia Commercial Bancorp. See “SUPERVISION AND REGULATION
— Federal and State Bank Regulation - Dividends.” We are currently subject to a covenant associated
with a line of credit we have with US Bank which restricts our ability to pay dividends. Although we
anticipate paying off the line of credit with the proceeds from this offering (see “USE OF PROCEEDS”),
we may not receive sufficient proceeds to do so, in which case our ability to pay dividends will continue
to be restricted.
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Our marketing is focused on small businesses, which involve special risks.

Our focus on small- and medium-sized businesses involves special risks to the extent that smaller
companies may have shorter operating histories, less sophisticated internal record keeping and financial
planning capabilities, and greater debt-to-equity ratios than larger companies. These factors increase the
difficulty in accurately assessing credit risks. Such borrowers are more susceptible to economic declines,
with the result that loans to such borrowers may be riskier than loans to larger commercial borrowers.

We compete with many other financial institutions that have greater resources.

Our business operates in a highly competitive banking environment, competing with a number of
banks, savings and loan associations, credit unions and other financial institutions which possess greater
financial resources than we do, some of which have offices in the immediate vicinity of the bank. By
virtue of their capital, such institutions have substantially greater lending limits than we do and perform
certain functions for their customers which we do not offer. Moreover, most depositors and loan
customers currently have established banking relationships with other financial institutions. We cannot
be certain that we will continue to be able to attract and retain customers from other financial institutions.
Further, many non-bank competitors, such as credit unions, mutual funds and investment brokers, are not
subject to the same regulatory burdens as banks. Credit unions, for example, are not subject to corporate
income taxation, and are not required to comply with Community Reinvestment Act requirements, which
increase the costs of operations of banks.

Columbia Community Bank utilizes certain non-retail funding sources that can result in higher
interest expenses and increased volatility.

We utilize several funding sources, including certificates of deposits issued through brokers and
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings to support asset growth. The use of these so-called “non-core”
deposits and borrowings can result in higher interest expenses and increased volatility in our liquidity
position.

Due to our high concentration of loans secured by real estate, a downturn in the real estate market,
for any reason, could hurt our business.

At June 30, 2004, 70% of our loan portfolio was comprised of loans secured by real estate. These
real estate-secured loans are concentrated in the Washington County, Oregon, area, which includes
Hillsboro and Beaverton. A downturn in the local economy could have a material adverse effect on a
borrower’s ability to repay these loans due to either loss of borrower’s employment or a reduction in
borrower’s business. Further, such reduction in the local economy could severely impair the value of the
real property held as collateral. As a result, the value of real estate collateral securing our loans could be
reduced. Our ability to recover on defaulted loans by foreclosing and selling the real estate collateral
would then be diminished and we would be more likely to suffer losses on defaulted loans.

If we cannot attract deposits, our growth may be inhibited.

We plan to increase significantly the level of our assets, including our loan portfolio. Our ability
to increase our assets depends in large part on our ability to attract additional deposits at competitive
rates. At June 30, 2004 we had a loan-to-deposit ratio of 114%. We intend to seek additional deposits by
offering deposit products that are competitive with those offered by other financial institutions in our
markets and by establishing personal relationships with our customers. We cannot assure you that these
efforts will be successful. Our inability to attract additional deposits at competitive rates could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
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Regulatory changes may cause the bank’s capital to fall below requirements for “well-capitalized”
status.

Recent changes in generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) have raised the issue of
whether trust preferred securities should be included in calculating the bank’s Tier 1 capital for bank
regulatory purposes. See “SUPERVISION AND REGULATION - Capital Adequacy” for information
on capital ratios. Under proposed rules by the Federal Reserve, trust preferred securities would continue
to be included as Tier 1 capital, but would be limited to 25% of Tier 1 capital. If different rules are
adopted which do not permit trust preferred securities to be included in Tier 1 capital, we may no longer
be deemed “well capitalized” for regulatory purposes and could be subject to increased FDIC insurance
rates and regulatory restrictions.

TERMS OF THE OFFERING
General

We are offering up to 250,000 shares of Columbia Commercial Bancorp common stock at a price
of $20.00 per share. The offering is being conducted by subscriptions through designated officers and
directors of Columbia Commercial Bancorp and through D. A. Davidson & Co. (“Davidson”), a
registered broker-dealer and investment banking firm, acting as placement agent on a best efforts basis.

The offering will commence on , 2004 and will terminate on ,2004. In our
sole discretion, we may decide to terminate the offering earlier, or to extend it, for up to two additional
periods of 30 days each.

Unless you are an existing shareholder of Columbia Commercial Bancorp or an employee of
Columbia Commercial Bancorp or Columbia Community Bank, you must subscribe for a minimum of
1,000 shares ($20,000), subject to our discretion to accept subscriptions for lesser amounts. There i1s no
minimum subscription amount for existing shareholders or for employees of Columbia Commercial
Bancorp or Columbia Community Bank.

The maximum permitted investment is described below under “—Maximum Subscription
Amount.”

We will offer and sell a portion of the shares in the offering (the “Company Offered Shares”) to
our current shareholders, employees, and other persons, including current or former customers of the
bank through certain of our officers and directors. No commission, fee, or other compensation will be
paid to our officers, directors, or any other person in connection with the offer and sale of the Company
Offered Shares. Until , 2004, we will have the exclusive right to offer and sell up to 125,000
shares, after which date any of those shares that remain unsold may be offered and sold by Davidson and
will be subject to Davidson’s commission.

As described immediately below, Davidson will also offer and sell shares in the offering (the
“Davidson Offered Shares”) and will receive a commission in connection with such sales.

Placement Agent Agreement — D.A. Davidson

We have entered into a Placement Agent Agreement with Davidson with respect to a portion of
the shares to be offered and sold in the offering. Davidson will offer and sell shares to its customers and
the general public on a “best efforts” basis. Davidson has the right to sell up to 125,000 shares on an
exclusive basis, and to sell, on a first-come-first-serve basis, additional shares offered but not sold by the
Company after , 2004. Neither the number of Davidson Offered Shares that will be sold in
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the offering, nor the percentage of Davidson Offered Shares that will be sold relative to the number of
Company Offered Shares that will be sold, can be accurately predicted. Davidson will receive a
commission equal to seven percent (7%) of the gross proceeds of all sales that it generates through the
sale of Davidson Offered Shares. Davidson will also be reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses, which
are anticipated to be approximately $10,000. Davidson will not receive a retainer, and it will receive no
commission or other compensation in connection with shares sold directly by Columbia Commercial
Bancorp. The Placement Agent Agreement also provides that Davidson will have the right to act as our
selling agent in the event we participate in an offering of trust preferred securities at any time within two
years following the offering.

The Placement Agent Agreement requires us to obtain Davidson’s permission before selling any
other securities of the Company (except for issuing stock or options pursuant to our stock option plan or
stock incentive plan) within 180 days after the date of the Placement Agent Agreement.

Davidson, a full service investment bank founded in 1935, has over 700 employees, $12.5 billion
in client assets under management, and $70 million in equity capital. Davidson has 36 retail brokerage
offices with over 225 brokers in Oregon, Washington, Idaho, Montana, Wyoming, Utah and Colorado.

The Offering Price

In determining that the shares should be offered at a price of $20.00 per share, our board of
directors considered prices at which shares were traded in recent, though sporadic transactions of which
we are aware, and the results of an evaluation performed by an independent consultant. The independent
consultant’s evaluation considered the following factors: Columbia Community Bank’s historical
earnings since its opening; the bank’s future prospects; the book value per share of outstanding common
stock; and the trading prices of stock of other similarly situated financial institutions.

How to Subscribe

A subscription constitutes a continuing offer by the subscriber to purchase the indicated shares at
the offering price until such time as the subscription is accepted or a notice of rejection is given by the
Company. A subscription is irrevocable once made and for up to one year thereafter.

If subscribing directly with Columbia Commercial Bancorp:
If you are subscribing for shares offered to you directly by Columbia Commercial Bancorp,

complete and sign the enclosed Columbia Commercial Bancorp Subscription Agreement and send it with
full payment for the shares subscribed to us in the enclosed envelope that is pre-addressed to us.

We will hold subscription funds, pending acceptance, in a segregated, noninterest-bearing
account at Columbia Community Bank. If a subscription is rejected for any reason, subscription funds
will be promptly returned to the subscriber, without charge or deduction.

If subscribing through D.A. Davidson & Co:

If you are subscribing for shares offered to you by Davidson, complete and sign the enclosed
Davidson Subscription Agreement and send it in the enclosed pre-addressed envelope to Davidson.
Davidson will remit subscription funds on the day following its receipt of such funds to Columbia
Commercial Bancorp, which will hold such funds, pending acceptance, in a segregated, noninterest-
bearing account at Columbia Community Bank. If a subscription is rejected for any reason, subscription
funds will be promptly returned to the subscriber, without charge or deduction.
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Company Discretion to Accept or Reject Subscriptions

Subscribers should be aware that we are entitled to exercise broad discretion in determining
whether to sell shares to them. We may, in our absolute and sole discretion, reject the subscription
of any person, whether such person is currently a Columbia Commercial Bancorp shareholder or
not.

In exercising our discretion we may consider, among other things:
e Whether or not the subscriber is a Columbia Community Bank customer;
¢ Whether or not the subscriber is a resident of our primary marketing area;

¢  Whether or not the subscriber is a resident of the State of Oregon, and if not, whether the
subscriber’s state of residence imposes any restrictions on, or costs in connection with, the
sale of securities to its residents and whether, in our sole discretion, compliance with any
such restrictions or payment of any such costs is unduly burdensome; and

o The number of shares for which the subscriber has subscribed. The minimum purchase
requirement of 1,000 shares has been established, among other reasons, in order to avoid the
administrative, printing and related costs associated with maintaining a shareholder base
consisting of shareholders with small individual holdings. Additionally, we may consider
this factor due to the current requirement in our bylaws to limit the number of our
shareholders to less than 500, so that we are not subject to the periodic reporting and certain
other requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. We also may reject
subscriptions, in whole or in part, to prevent a shareholder from acquiring an ownership
position of more than 5% of the outstanding shares.

Subject to our absolute discretion, and the factors described above, we will attempt to honor
subscriptions on a “first come, first serve” basis.

Minimum Purchase Requirements for New Shareholders

We have established the minimum purchase requirement of 1,000 shares for new shareholders
for the reasons described above under “Company Discretion to Accept or Reject Subscriptions.” We
reserve the right, however, in our sole discretion, to accept subscriptions from new shareholders in
amounts less than 1,000 shares per subscriber.

Maximum Subscription Amount

We do not intend to accept a subscription to the extent that the amount subscribed for would
cause the subscriber to own, following the completion of the offering, more than 23,639 shares. This
number of shares equals 5% of the total number of outstanding shares prior to the offering (472,784
shares). If we receive a subscription that would, if accepted, cause the subscriber to exceed 23,639
shares, we intend to accept the subscription only to the extent that such limit is not exceeded, and any
excess subscription funds will be returned, without interest, to the subscriber. We retain the right to
accept subscriptions that would exceed the limits described above, in our sole discretion.

Offering Expiration Date

We must receive at our offices, completed and executed subscriptions, together with full
payment for the shares subscribed, not later than 5:00 p.m. on , 2004, unless the offer is
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terminated earlier or extended, for up to two additional periods of 30 days each, by us in our sole
discretion.

Subscription Funds

We will hold subscription funds (whether received in connection with Company Offered Shares
or Davidson Offered Shares), pending acceptance, in a segregated, noninterest-bearing account at
Columbia Community Bank. We may accept subscriptions at any time and from time to time, following
which the funds will be transferred from the segregated account to our general funds.

If a subscription is rejected for any reason, subscription funds will be promptly returned by us to
the subscriber, without charge or deduction. Once you have delivered your subscription to us (or to
Davidson, in the case of the Davidson Offered Shares), you cannot revoke it.

Commissions

As described above, no commissions, fees, or other remuneration will be paid to any of our
directors, officers or employees, or to any other persons or entities, for selling the Company Offered
Shares in this offering. Also as described above, Davidson will receive a commission in connection with
Davidson Offered Shares sold in the offering.

Delivery of Stock Certificates

We will issue certificates for Company offered shares which are duly subscribed, paid for and
accepted as soon as practicable after completion of the offering. Davidson Offered Shares will, unless
otherwise requested by the subscriber, be held by Davidson in street name; therefore, no certificates will
be issued to the individual subscribers for these shares. Davidson will send you acknowledgment of your
beneficial ownership as soon as practicable after completion of the offering.

Purchase Intentions of Directors and Executive Officers

Our directors and executive officers are eligible to participate in this offering on the same terms
being offered to all other existing shareholders and employees. As a group, our directors and executive
officers currently beneficially own 143,965 outstanding shares (30.45% of the currently outstanding
shares). Our directors and executive officers have indicated that they plan to purchase, in the aggregate,
approximately 35,000 shares, subject to availability. Assuming that they purchase this number of shares,
they will own in the aggregate 24.76% of the then-outstanding shares (assuming full subscription of this
offering and not including shares that such persons could purchase upon the exercise of stock options).
See “MANAGEMENT.”
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DILUTION

Our net book value at June 30, 2004 was $6.45 million, or $13.65 per share. Net book value per
share is determined by dividing our stockholders’ equity by the number of shares outstanding. Without
taking into account any changes in such net book value after June 30, 2004, other than to give effect to
the sale of 250,000 shares offered by us in this offering (after deducting estimated offering expenses
payable by us), the pro forma net book value of the outstanding shares at June 30, 2004 would have been
$11.13 million or $15.39 per share. This represents an immediate increase in net book value to present
shareholders of $1.74 per share and an immediate dilution to new investors of $4.61 per share. The
following tables illustrate the dilution on a per-share basis, assuming 100% and 50% of the offering is
subscribed:

(1) Assumes Davidson sells half of the total shares sold in the offering.

Assumed 100% of Assumed 50% of
maximum offering maximum offering
proceeds (1) proceeds (1)
- Number of Shares offered or assumed to be sold 250,000 125,000
Gross proceeds $ 5,000,000 $2,500,000
Expenses and commissions $325.000 $237.500
Net proceeds from the stock offering 4,675,000 2,262,500
Net tangible book value at June 30, 2004 $6,452,000 $6,452,000
Net proceeds from the stock offering $4.675.000 $2,262.500
Pro forma net tangible book value at June 30, 2004 $11,127,000 38,714,500
Number of shares outstanding at June 30, 2004 472,784 472,784
Pro forma number of shares outstanding at June 30, 2004 722,784 597,784
Offering price per share $20.00 $20.00
Net tangible book value per share prior to offering $13.65 $13.65
Increase in net tangible book value per share attributable $1.74 $0.92
to new investors

Pro forma net tangible book value per share after $15.39 14.5
Offering

Dilution per share to new investors $ 4.61 $ 543

Although existing shareholders will not experience net book value dilution of their shares as a
result of the offering, they will experience a dilution in their respective ownership percentages of
Columbia Commercial Bancorp to the extent that such persons do not purchase shares in the offering,
and to the extent of the sale of Columbia Commercial Bancorp shares to new shareholders.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the sale of shares offered by Columbia Commercial Bancorp (assuming
that (1) all 250,000 shares offered by means of this Offering Circular are sold, and (ii) that of such
amount, 125,000 shares are sold by Davidson) are estimated to be $4,675,000 after deducting estimated
commissions and expenses of the offering of approximately $325,000. As this offering is not
conditioned on the sale of a minimum number of shares, the net proceeds to us will be reduced to the
extent that the maximum number of shares is not subscribed in this offering. As a consequence, there can
be no assurance that the maximum gross proceeds of $5 million, or any other amount, will be attained.

If the offering is subscribed at the maximum amount, we anticipate that $1.5 million will be
utilized to fully repay the current indebtedness under an existing line of credit facility. The credit
facility’s interest is at the Prime Rate and it matures on March 31, 2009. If the offering is not fully
subscribed, we may in our sole discretion fully repay or repay only a portion of the indebtedness
outstanding under the line of credit.

We also anticipate that approximately $100,000 will be retained by Columbia Commercial
Bancorp for general working capital purposes. We anticipate that the remainder of the proceeds of the
offering will be contributed to Columbia Community Bank, to support recent and anticipated future
growth, to assure that Columbia Community Bank remains well capitalized, to allow Columbia
Community Bank to increase its legal lending limits, and for general corporate purposes. With regard to
Columbia Community Bank’s legal lending limits, see “BUSINESS — Columbia Community Bank -
Lending Activities.”
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CAUTIONARY NOTE: FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

The following discussion includes forward-looking statements that implicitly and explicitly
include information concerning our plans, expectations, possible or assumed future results of operations,
trends, financial results and business plans. Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and
uncertainties that are subject to change based on various important factors, many of which are beyond
our control. Such factors include, but are not limited to, those included in the “Risk Factors” section
starting on page 4 of this Offering Circular. We caution you that a number of important factors could
cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statement. You
should not place undue reliance on our forward-looking information and statements. The forward-looking
statements are made as of the date of this prospectus, and we do not intend, and assume no obligation, to
update the forward-looking statements or to update the reasons why actual results could differ from those
projected in the forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements contained in this prospectus
are expressly qualified by these cautionary statements.

BUSINESS

Columbia Commercial Bancorp

Overview

Columbia Commercial Bancorp was incorporated on February 15, 2002 to be a holding company
for Columbia Community Bank, an Oregon state-chartered bank that commenced operations in 1999. We
had consolidated total assets of approximately $120.8 million at June 30, 2004. The company’s office is
located at the bank’s main office in Hillsboro, Oregon. The company does not engage in any substantial
activities other than acting as a bank holding company for Columbia Community Bank. As a community
bank with local ownership, local decision-making and other personalized services, the bank offers an
alternative to large financial institutions. The holding company structure provides flexibility for
expansion of our banking business through acquisition of other financial institutions and allows us to
engage in permissible non-bank activities that a traditional commercial bank may not be able to provide.
See “SUPERVISION AND REGULATION.” We have a business trust subsidiary, the sole purpose of
which is to hold subordinated debentures issued by the holding company for financing purposes. The
trust, in turn, has issued equity securities (known as trust preferred securities) to other investors, the
proceeds of which qualify for regulatory purposes as primary capital.

Market for Commeon Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

There is a limited trading market for our shares. Our shares are not listed on any national
exchange or quoted on the Nasdaq Stock Market. Upon completion of the offering, Davidson is expected
to make a market in our shares and post quotes on the OTCBB maintained by the NASD. We do not
anticipate that an active market will develop in the foreseeable future.

The stock transfer records that we maintain indicate that there have been limited transactions
involving Columbia Commercial Bancorp stock since its formation in 2002, and prior to that, there were
limited transactions in Columbia Community Bank stock. The price information shown in the following
table is information provided informally by the parties to the transactions to management. In view of our
brief operating history and the limited trading market of the shares, no assurance can be given that such
prices are representative of the actual market value of the shares. All information for periods prior to
July 2002 is for Columbia Community Bank.
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Summary of Stock Transactions

Period No. of shares Traded Price Range
2001
First QUArer ....ccccoveveirivceimecreecenccnene v 0
Second QUATTET......ccommrveeircrmmrs e 700 $10.00
Third QUAIET......ccovivirverienricrie et 500 $10.00-512.00
Fourth Quarter.......ccoveeevccinninnie e 0
2002
First Quarter..........ooooviiiieiiicin 0
Second QUATter.......co.covveverreenmeir e 11,000 $11.00-512.00
Third QUArTEr.......coevevrerrrirvcrnreccrreereenrces 1,000 $11.00-812.00
Fourth Quarter...........cccovmvevincieinnieccn 0
2003
First QUarter.........ocoovveerniniiieieieiesreenns 500 $14.75
Second QUATTET.......covvvivireerrrcr e ne 6,500 $15.00
Third QUAarter......c..coceevrvererrer e 0
Fourth QUarter.......ooevcevevinrieriinciernncees 10,500 $15.00-816.00
2004
First Quarter.........ccoovvvvrnenririnicinireicnns 1,000 $16.00
Second QUATET.....ccoveviivieeririrr e e 1,000 $16.00
Third Quarter (through August 20, 2004) ..... 0

To the best of our knowledge, the most recent transaction in the shares was on April 23, 2004,
involving 1,000 shares at $16.00 per share.

Shares Outstanding and Number of Equity Holders

At June 30, 2004, there were 472,784 shares outstanding and options to purchase 69,500 shares
outstanding. As of June 30, 2004, there were 262 holders of record of Columbia Commercial Bancorp
shares.

Reports to Shareholders

We deliver to each shareholder of record a quarterly consolidated summary financial statement
(unaudited) and an annual report including audited consolidated financial statements for the year then
ended and other periods described in such financial statements. We are not subject to the reporting
requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and therefore do not file periodic reports, proxy
statements or other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Cash Dividends

We have never paid a cash dividend, and we do not anticipate paying a cash dividend in the
foreseeable future. We expect to retain all earnings to provide capital for operations and expansion.
Dividends, when and if paid, will be subject to determination and declaration by the board of directors,
which will take into account our financial condition, results of operations, tax considerations, industry
standards, economic conditions and other factors. We are currently subject to a restriction on the
payment of dividends pursuant to the terms of our revolving credit line with US Bank. We anticipate
paying off the credit line with the proceeds of this offering. See “USE OF PROCEEDS.” OQur ability to
pay dividends in the future will depend primarily upon the bank’s earnings and its ability to pay
dividends to us. Columbia Community Bank’s ability to pay dividends is also governed by various
statutes. See “SUPERVISION AND REGULATION — Federal and State Bank Regulation — Dividends.”
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Columbia Commercial Bancorp Selected Financial Information as of June 30, 2004

The following table present financial information regarding Columbia Commercial Bancorp and
Columbia Community Bank updated through June 30, 2004. This summary is qualified in its entirety by
the detailed financial information and financial statements appearing elsewhere in this Offering Circular.

{In thousands, except per  Six months ended (unaudited) Twelve months ended (audited)
share data) June 30 December 31
2004 2003 2003 2002 2001(1)
INCOME
STATEMENT
Interest Income $3,661 $2,529 $5,681 $4,406 $3,091
Interest Expense 1,029 768 1,692 1,505 1,235
Net Interest Income 2,632 1,761 3,989 2,901 1,856
Provision for loan
losses (300) (140) (574) (288) (150)
Noninterest Income 77 118 201 156 70
Noninterest Expense (1,590) (1,180) (2,523) (1,922) (1,280)
Income before
income taxes 820 559 1,093 847 497
Income Tax Expense
(351) (209) (438) (326) (192)
Net Income $469 $350 $655 $521 $305
Earnings per share
- Basic $0.99 $0.74 $1.39 $1.11 $0.70
- Diluted $0.94 $0.71 $1.33 $1.09 $0.70
(In thousands, except per Six months ended Twelve months ended
share data) June 30 December 31
2004 2003 2003 2002 2001
BALANCE SHEET
Cash and balances
due from banks $2,232 $2,364 $2,185 $3,103 $1,918
Federal Funds Sold 6,455 125 0 860 1,535
Investment Securities 16,568 15,690 16,448 11,746 7,344
Net Loans 93,581 70,321 86,071 53,061 37,782
Other Assets 1,963 1,617 1,859 1,297 786
Total Assets $120,800 390,117 $106,564 $70,066 $49,365
Total Deposits $81,742 $59,185 $69,794 $51,645 $38,224
Federal Funds
Borrowed 0 3,785 2,715 0 0
FHLB Borrowing
/Repurchase Accts 27,583 18,047 24,726 12,526 6,079
Long Term Debt 4,500 3,000 3,000 0 0
Other Liabilities 523 281 317 388 224
Total Liabilities 114,348 84,298 100,552 64,559 44,527
Shareholders’ Equity 6,452 5,819 6,012 5,507 4,838
Total Liabilities and
Shareholders’ Equity ~ $120,800 $90,117 $106,564 $70,066 $49,365
Book Value per share $13.65 $12.35 $12.77 $11.69 $10.33

(1) Prior to bank holding company formation, reflects bank only.
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Columbia Community Bank

Columbia Community Bank primarily serves professionals, small and medium-sized businesses
and individuals located in its principal market area of Washington County, Oregon. The bank offers its
customers the full range of deposit services that are typically available in most financial institutions,
including checking accounts, savings accounts and other deposits of various types, ranging from money
market accounts to certificates of deposit. Transaction accounts and time certificates are tailored to the
principal market areas at rates competitive in the area. In addition, retirement accounts such as IRAs
(Individual Retirement Accounts) are available. The bank attracts deposits primarily from individuals,
merchants, small and medium-sized businesses, and professionals. All our deposit accounts are insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) up to the maximum amount (currently $100,000
per depositor).

The bank’s principal sources of revenues are: (i) interest and fees on loans; (ii) interest on
investments (principally government securities); (iii) interest on federal funds sold (funds loaned on a
short-term basis to other banks); and (iv) deposit service charges. The bank’s lending activity consists of
short-to-medium-term real estate and construction commercial loans, operating loans and lines,
equipment loans, real estate loans, personal loans or lines of credit, and home improvement loans. It also
offers safe deposit boxes, direct deposit of payroll checks, and automatic drafts for various accounts.

Employees

The bank had a total of 25 full-time-equivalent employees at June 30, 2004. There are no
separate employees of Columbia Commercial Bancorp. We believe our relationship with our employees
is good.

Properties

The bank conducts its business through its office at 314 E. Main Street in Hillsboro, Oregon, in
space leased from an affiliated party. See “Management — Related Party Transactions.” The building
encompasses approximately 6,900 square feet of office space and provides ample parking, a drive-up
window and a night depository. The lease is at a monthly rate of $9,700. The lease expires in 2008 but
provides for an option to extend the term for up to an additional five years, which will expire in 2013.

The bank has a branch office in Forest Grove, Oregon, at 2811 19™ Avenue, Suite A, Forest
Grove, Oregon 97016. The office encompasses 1,100 square feet, and is leased from an unaffiliated
party at a monthly rate of $1,630. The lease expires on March 31, 2005, but can be renewed for two
additional three-year terms, which will expire in 2011.

The bank also has a branch office in the Tanasbourne area of Beaverton, Oregon. The office
encompasses 5,000 square feet, and is leased from an unaffiliated party at a monthly rate of $10,351.
The lease expires in August 2007 but can be renewed for up to two additional five-year terms, which will
expire in 2012.

The bank is currently negotiating a lease for a new branch office in Durham, Oregon, which the
bank anticipates opening in December 2004.

Market Area and Competition

The bank competes with other commercial banks, savings and loan associations, credit unions
and finance companies operating in its market area, which consists of the cities of Hillsboro, Forest
Grove and Beaverton, Oregon. The bank’s main office is in downtown Hillsboro, Oregon. Hillsboro is
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the county seat of Washington County, one of the three counties comprising the Portland, Oregon
metropolitan area, and home of much of Oregon’s high-tech industry. Hillsboro is located approximately 18
miles west of Portland. Hillsboro and its environs have experienced significant growth in population over
the last decade, primarily in the 25 to 44 year age group as a result of the growth in technology-oriented
business. There has also been a significant growth in the number of small-to-medium sized businesses in
the primary market area.

The bank is subject to substantial competition in all aspects of its business. Intense competition
for loans and deposits comes from other financial institutions in the market area. Some of the bank’s
competitors, such as credit unions, are not subject to the same degree of regulation and restriction, and
some have financial resources greater than Columbia Community Bank. The bank’s future success will
depend primarily on the difference between the cost of its borrowing (primarily interest paid on deposits)
and income from operations (primarily interest or fees earned on loans, sales of loans and investments).
The bank also receives non-interest income from service charges and other miscellaneous fees. Although
the bank’s competitors often are larger, sometimes significantly larger, we believe the bank can compete
due to our quality service and competitive rates of interest.

Growth Strategy

Our strategic objective for the next five years is to continue to grow the bank in its market area of
Washington County. Our goal is to continue a double-digit asset growth rate which would result in assets
in excess of $272 million by year-end 2008. We hope to grow a return on average assets from 0.74% in
2003 to 1.45% in 2008 and a return on equity from 11.48% in 2003 to 20% by 2008.

Our growth strategy involves continuing to develop programs that focus on professional groups
(dentists, physicians, attorneys, etc.) and small to medium sized businesses, hiring competent, well
respected bankers and strategically locating branches to support our customer base. Our desired core
customer base provides opportunities to finance term equipment loans and operating loans in a range of
$250,000 to $2 million. In addition, the bank continues to realize opportunities in real estate financing.
The bank finances acquisition and development, residential construction, and commercial property
acquisition and refinancing (both owner-occupied and for investment purposes) up to $4 million. We do
not plan to commit resources to growing the consumer business, which is outside of our core
competency.

We will evaluate and utilize technology to keep our operations efficient and effective. New
products will be added as needed that provide value to our customers and strengthen our relationships.
Most importantly, we will continue to give customers the personalized service they expect and
appreciate.

Washington County is a significant economic engine for Oregon and we are positioned and
staffed to take advantage of the opportunities available in the area. We are planning two new branch
expansions within Washington County in the next two years. We are currently negotiating a lease for a
new office in Durham, Oregon, scheduled to open in December 2004. A staff of five talented and
experienced bankers who will operate from the Durham branch is currently promoting and acquiring
business out of our Tanasbourne and Hillsboro offices. In addition, we are considering opening an office
in the eastern part of the Beaverton market in late 2005 or early 2006.

Our directors may consider an acquisition of other financial institutions if economically feasible
but currently do not have any target institutions.
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Products and Services

In conjunction with the growth of its asset base, the bank has introduced various products and
services to position us to compete in our highly competitive market. The bank’s customers demand not
only a wide range of financial products but also efficient and convenient service. In response to these
demands, the bank has developed a mix of products and services tailored to our market. Deposit
accounts include certificates of deposit, individual retirement accounts and other time deposits, checking
and other demand deposit accounts, interest-bearing checking accounts, savings accounts and money
market accounts. Loans include real estate construction and development, commercial, installment and
consumer loans. Other products and services include electronic funds transfers, electronic tax payment,
and safe deposit boxes. The bank offers access to general bank information as well as online banking
through its website at www.columbiacommunitybank.com. Online banking provides customers the
ability to review and download transaction detail and to transfer funds between accounts.

Litigation

There are no material pending legal proceedings to which the company or the bank are a party or
to which any of our properties is subject; nor do we know of any material proceedings contemplated by
any governmental authority; nor do we know of any material proceedings, pending or contemplated, in
which any director, officer or affiliate of the company or the bank, or any associate of any of the
foregoing, is a party or has an interest adverse to us.

Lending Activities

Lending activities are conducted under a written loan policy that has been adopted by the bank’s
board of directors. Each loan officer has a defined lending authority. Regardless of lending authority,
individual secured and unsecured loans over $500,000 are approved by the bank’s Loan Committee.

In general, the bank is permitted by law to make loans to single borrowers in aggregate amounts
of up to 15% of its capital. Capital, for purposes of determining lending limits, consists of Tier 1 and
Tier 2 capital, as defined under FDIC regulations. See “SUPERVISION AND REGULATION.” As of
June 30, 2004, the bank’s legal lending limit was approximately $1.79 million. Assuming that all of the
shares offered in this offering are purchased, and that net proceeds of the offering are contributed in the
manner described under “USE OF PROCEEDS,” the bank’s legal lending limit will be approximately
$2.26 million. The legal lending limits are higher if the loan is collateralized by property with a
discernable market value.

On occasion, the bank sells participations in loans when necessary to stay within lending limits
or to otherwise limit its exposure. A “participation” means that the bank sells a portion of a loan that it
has originated to one or more other banks. This sale is on a non-recourse basis, thus limiting the bank’s
exposure to the amount that it does not sell through a participation. Loan participations are customary in
the banking industry, and the terms of the agreements between Columbia Community Bank and the banks
to which it sells participations contain customary terms and conditions.

At June 30, 2004, the bank had a concentration of loans secured by real estate representing
34.8% of the loan portfolio. The bank also had a concentration of commercial loans not primarily
secured by real estate representing 27.9% of the loan portfolio. Due to the diversity of its borrowers, the
bank does not believe these loan concentrations represent a significant risk, although a downturn in the
market areas’ real estate or business segments could have an adverse effect on the bank and its
operations.
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In the normal course of business there are various commitments outstanding and commitments to
extend credit that are not reflected in our financial statements. A “commitment” is an agreement by the
bank to loan money in the future, subject to certain conditions being met. These commitments generally
require the customers to maintain certain credit standards and have fixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses. The bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments as it does for loans.
At June 30, 2004, the bank had commitments to loan funds totaling approximately $27.1 million. Of this
amount, approximately $14.9 million (61%) is secured by real estate. Commercial and other loan
commitments total approximately $10.6 million (39%) of total commitments. Management does not
expect that all such commitments will be fully utilized. Similar to the loan participations discussed
above, the bank on occasion enters into agreements with other banks to participate in certain of its
commitments to extend credit.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The purpose of this discussion and analysis is to provide the reader with a description of the
financial condition and changes to financial condition and results of operations for Columbia
Commercial Bancorp and Columbia Community Bank for the six months ended June 30, 2004 and June
30, 2003, and for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002.

Financial Highlights
For the Six Months % For the years ended %
Ended June 30, Change December 31, Change
2004 2003 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)
Income Statement Data
Interest Income $3,661 $2,529 44.8% $5,681 $4,406 28.9%
Interest Expense 1,029 768 34.0% 1,692 1,505 12.4%
Net Interest Income 2,632 1,761 49.4% 3,989 2,901 37.5%
Provision for Loan Losses 300 140 114.3% 574 288 99.3%
Non-interest Income 78 61 27.9% 128 95 34.7%
Gain (loss) on sale of
investment securities (1) 57 101.8% 73 61 19.7%
Non-interest Expense 1,590 1,180 34.8% 2,524 1,922 31.3%
Net income before taxes 820 559 46.7% 1,093 847 29.0%
Income tax 351 209 67.9% 438 326 34.4%
Net income 469 350 34.0% 655 521 25.7%
Balance Sheet Data
Total loans (net) $93,581 $70,321 33.1% $86,071 $53,061 62.2%
Allowance for Loan Losses $(1,082) $(866) 24.9% $(988) $(725) 36.3%
Allowance as a percentage of
total loans 1.14% 1.22% 1.13% 1.35%
Total Assets $120,825 $90,117 34.1% $106,564 $70,066 52.1%
Total Deposits £81,742 $59,166 38.2% $69,794 $51,645 35.1%
Shareholders’ equity $6,483 $5,819 11.4% $6,012 $5,507 9.2%
Ratios
Six Months Ended Year Ended
June 30 December 31
2004 2003 2003 2002
Return on average assets _
(annualized) 0.83% 0.90% 0.74% 0.84%
Return on average equity
(annualized) 15.13% 12.48% 11.48% 10.11%
Dividend payout ratio 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Average equity to average
assets 5.46% 7.23% 6.44% 8.30%
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Results of Operations

For the six months ended June 30, 2004 and 2003

Columbia Commercial Bancorp had net income of $469,000 or $0.94 per diluted share for the
first six months of 2004, compared to net income of $350,000 or $0.71 per diluted share for the first six
months of 2003. Annualized returns on average assets and average equity for the first six months of 2004
were 0.83% and 15.13% compared to 0.90% and 12.48%, respectively, for the first six months of 2003.

The increase in interest income was a result of higher loan totals that offset the decrease in
investment income resulting from falling interest rates and the sale of securities. Interest expense was
greater through the first six months of 2004 compared to the same period in 2003, as higher deposit totals
and other borrowing balances more than offset the positive impact of falling rates. The increase in
interest expense was due in part to interest payments on the Trust Preferred Securities issued in March
2003. The interest rate on the Trust Preferred Securities is the three-month LIBOR plus 3.15%. In
anticipation of this common stock offering, Columbia Commercial Bancorp drew $1 million in March
and $500,000 in June on a $1.5 million line of credit, which was utilized by the bank as additional
capital. The credit line is secured by the bank’s stock. This loan is floating at the prime rate and
increased second quarter interest expense of approximately $9,000. We anticipate paying off this line of
credit with the proceeds from the offering.

The provision for loan losses for the first six months of 2004 was increased due to some
uncertainty over a dispute with the U.S. Small Business Administration regarding a guarantee provided
on a loan by the agency. The increased provision offsets an additional $181,000 in charge-off for this
loan. The Small Business Administration disputes its guarantee obligation. We hope to settle this
dispute in 2004.

Non-interest income decreased 34.8% for the six months ended June 30, 2004 compared to the
same period in 2003 as a result of a gain on sales of securities that was booked in 2003 and did not occur
in 2004. Income from service charges and loan fees remained relatively unchanged from the prior year
period. Loan late fees were approximately $32,000 greater in 2004 compared to the first six months of
2003. The increased fees related to one specific loan. This level of loan late fees is not expected to be a
recurring item.

Non-interest expense increased approximately $410,000 for the first six months in 2004
compared to the same period in 2003. Increases in personnel expense accounted for approximately 56%
of the increase. Personnel expense increased with the addition of two commercial loan officers, a deposit
development officer and an operations manager to support increased business development in the Forest
Grove and Beaverton markets. These staffing increases were necessary to develop our loan program
specifically targeting the professional business sector. A new expense was initiated in 2004, as a result
of federal regulators’ suggestion that the bank set up a separate provision expense and liability for
unfunded loan commitments. The expense through June 30, 2004 was $30,000 and it is expected to total
approximately $61,000 for the year.

Occupancy and equipment expenses, which accounted for 13.7% of the non-interest expense
increase in the first half of 2004, rose primarily as a result of increased lease expense for additional space
in the main office location and increased rent at the Tanasbourne office. Depreciation and amortization
expense on software, fixed assets and leasehold improvements accounted for 29.8% of the difference in
non-interest expense for the first six months of 2004 compared to the same period in 2003.
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For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

Our assets grew approximately 52% in 2003. This growth was the result of the opening of the
Forest Grove office in April 2002 and the Tanasbourne office in September 2002. Net income for 2003
was $655,000 ($1.33 per diluted share) compared to $521,000 ($1.09 per diluted share) in 2002. This
increase was primarily due to a 62% increase in the loan portfolio. Our annualized returns on average
assets and average equity for 2003 were 0.74% and 11.48% compared to 0.84% and 10.11%, respectively
in 2002. The primary reason for the decline in return on average assets was the significant increase in
loan loss provision due to an SBA loan that was charged-off.

Interest income increased $1.27 million or 28.9% in 2003. Loan interest income accounted for
95.9% of the increase. Interest expense increased approximately $187,000 or 12.4% in 2003. This
resulted from a $217,000 increase in FHLB borrowing expense, which was offset by a reduction in time
deposit interest expense of approximately $150,000. The increased FHLB borrowing provided an
opportunity to lock in rates at historically low levels. In March 2003, the Company issued $3.093 million
in Trust Preferred Securities, which increased interest expense approximately $98,000 over 2002.

Non-interest income increased approximately $33,000 or 34.7% in 2003. Of this increase 94.5%
was due to increased service charge revenue as a result of increased deposit account volumes. There was
no increase in service fees in 2003. Other fee income, which includes overdraft and NSF charges,
increased $18,087, followed by account service charge fees at $14,088. Loan fees not associated with
origination increased $5,060 and miscellaneous fees and charges decreased $3,655. Gains on sales of
investment securities increased $11,490 or 19.7%.

Non-interest expense increased approximately $602,000. Salaries and employee benefits
increased approximately $303,000. A significant portion of this increase is directly related to filling the
staffing needs at the Forest Grove and Tanasbourne offices. Occupancy expense increased
approximately $146,000 or 55.8%, also as a result of the opening of the two additional offices.

Assets

At June 30, 2004, total assets were $120.8 million, an increase of $14.2 million from December
31, 2003. Average assets for the year 2003 were $88.7 million.

Asset and Liability Management

The principal focus of asset and liability management is the identification, measurement, control
and monitoring of processes and strategies that will enhance net interest margins and capital values
during periods of changing interest rates.

The board of directors has adopted an asset/liability policy that establishes a prudent interest rate
risk management plan. The Asset and Liability Management Committee is responsible for measuring,
controlling and monitoring the bank’s interest rate position. Management uses various tools and
techniques to quantify the exposure to changing interest rates, including traditional “gap” analysis,
earnings at risk, and economic value at risk models.

The matching of assets and liabilities may be analyzed by examining the extent to which such
assets and liabilities are “interest rate sensitive” and by monitoring an institution’s interest rate sensitivity
“gap.” An asset or liability is said to be interest rate sensitive within a specific time period if it will
mature or reprice within that time period. The interest rate sensitivity gap is defined as the difference
between the amount of interest-earning assets maturing or repricing within a specific time period and the
amount of interest-bearing liabilities maturing or repricing within that time period. A gap is considered
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positive when the amount of interest rate sensitive assets exceeds the amount of interest rate sensitive

liabilities. A gap is considered negative when the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities exceeds the

amount of interest rate sensitive assets. During a period of rising interest rates, a negative gap would

tend to adversely affect net interest income while a positive gap would tend to result in an increase in net
interest income. During a period of falling interest rates, a negative gap would tend to result in an

increase in net interest income while a positive gap would tend to adversely affect net interest income.

The following table presents the interest sensitivity profiles as of June 30, 2004. The table
represents a static point in time and does not consider other variables, such as changing spread
relationships or interest rate levels. “Interest sensitivity gap” is the difference between total earning
assets and total interest-bearing liabilities repricing in any given period.

Interest Sensitivity Profile

Within One Year

One Year to Five Years

Over Five Years

% of % of
% of Total Total Total % of Total
Earning Earning Earning Grand Earning
Total Assets Total Assets Total Assets Total Assets
(Dollars in thousands) ’
Rate Sensitive Assets:
Loan Portfolio $62,900 53.0% $19,088 16.1% $12,675 10.7% $94,663 79.7%
Investment and FHLB Stock 4,732 4.0 7,167 6.0 5,547 4.6 17,446 14.7
Fed Funds Sold and Int.
bearing deposits 6,592 5.6 0 0 0 0 6,592 5.6
Total $74,304 62.6% $26,255 22.1% $18,222 15.3% $118,701 100.0%
Rate Sensitive Liabilities:
Savings, NOW and interest
checking $35,332 35.2% $0 0.0% $0 0.0% $35,332 35.2%
Time deposits 21,556 21.5 9,446 94 1,936 1.9 32,938 328
Other borrowings 13,882 13.8 6,800 6.8 6,900 6.9 27,583 27.5
Term Debt 0 0 1,500 1.5 0 0 1,500 1.5
Trust Preferred Securities 3,000 3.0 3,000 3.0
Total $70,770 70.5% $17,746 17.7% $11,836 11.8% $100,353  100.0%
Interest sensitive gap $3,534 $8,509 $6,386
Cumulative gap $3,534 $12,043 $18,429

Earning Assets

Management considers many criteria in managing interest-earning assets, including credit-
worthiness, diversification and structural characteristics, maturity and interest rate sensitivity. The
following table sets forth the bank’s interest earning assets by category at June 30, 2004 and at December

31, 2003.

Profile of Earning Assets

June 30. 2004 December 31, 2003
(Dollars in thousands) % Eaming % Earning
Amount Assets Amount Assets

Loan Portfolio (Net) $93,581 79.6% $86,071 83.9%
Investment and FHLB Stock 17,446 14.8 16,448 16.0
Fed Funds Sold and Int.

Bearing Deps. 6,592 5.6 110 0.1
Total $117,619 100.0% $102,629 100.0%
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Investment Policy

The objective of the bank’s investment policy is to invest those funds not needed to meet loan
demand to earn the maximum return for the bank, yet still maintain sufficient liquidity to meet
fluctuations in loan demand and deposit structure. In doing so, the bank balances the market and credit
risks against the potential investment return, makes investments compatible with the pledge requirements
of deposits of public funds, maintains compliance with regulatory investment requirements, and assists
the various public entities with their financing needs. The Chief Executive Officer and the Vice
President/Chief Financial Officer are authorized to execute securities transactions for the investment
portfolio, subject to the bank’s investment policy and monthly review by the board of directors.

Investment Portfolio

The bank stresses the following attributes for its investments: safety of principal, liquidity, yield,
price appreciation and pledgeability. With its implementation of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities, the bank
is required to classify its portfolio into three categories: Held to Maturity, Trading Securities, and
Available-for-Sale.

Held to Maturity securities include debt securities that the bank has positive intent and ability to
hold to maturity; these securities are reported at amortized cost. At December 31, 2003, the bank had no
securities classified as Held to Maturity.

Trading Securities include debt and equity securities that are purchased and held solely for the
purpose of selling them in the short-term future for trading profits. Trading Securities are reported at fair
market value with unrealized gains and losses included in earnings. At December 31, 2003, the bank
held no securities as Trading Securities.

Available-for-Sale securities include those which may be disposed of prior to maturity. These
securities are reported at fair market value with unrealized gains and losses excluded from the earnings
and reported as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. At December 31, 2003, 100% of the
bank’s investment portfolio was Available-for-Sale.

The following table sets forth the composition of the bank’s investment portfolio at June 30,
2004 and December 31, 2004,

Investment Portfolio

(Dollars in thousands) June 30, 2004 December 31, 2003
Estimated Fair Estimated Fair
Amortized Cost Market Value Amortized Cost Market Value
U.S. government and agency securities $5,084 $5,065 $2,000 $2,014
Mortgage backed securities 11,506 11,443 14,408 14,3743
Equity securities 60 60 60 60
Total $16,650 $16,568 $16,468 316,448

At both June 30, 2004 and at December 31, 2003, obligations of the United States Government or
its agencies and obligations of states and political subdivisions represented 99.79% of the investment
portfolio.

23 Page 32



The following tables present the maturity distribution of the amortized cost and estimated market
value of the bank’s investment securities at June 30, 2004 and December 31, 2003. The weighted
average yields on these instruments are presented based on anticipated maturities.

Investments Maturity Distribution

June 30, 2004

Dug in Over one Over five
one year or less through five years through ten years Over ten years
Total
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount
(Dollars in thousands)
U.S. government and
agency securities 50 -- $2,000 3.11%  $3,084 3.66% -- - § 5084
Mortgage-backed
securities 0 -- -- -- 4,711 4.37 $6,795 491% 11,506
Equity Securities 0 - - - -- - 60 60
Total 30 -- $2,000 3.11% $7,795 4.03% $6,855 4.91%816,650
December 31, 2003
Due in Over one Over five
one vear or less through five years through ten years Over ten years
Total
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount
{Dollars in thousands)
U.S. government and
agency securities $0 -- $2,000 3.25% -- -- -- - $2,000
Mortgage-backed
securities 0 - 116 6.34 $3,320 3.73% $10,972 5.51% 14,408
Equity securities -- -- - - - - 60 -- 60
Total $0 -- $2,116 9.59%  $3.320 5.73% $11,032 551% $16,468

Loan Portfolio

The bank had total net loans (gross loans minus the allowance for loan losses and deferred loan
fees) of $93.6 million at June 30, 2004 reflecting an increase of $7.5 million or 8.7%, compared to total
loans for the year ended December 31, 2003.

The following table sets forth the composition of the gross loan portfolio at June 30, 2004 and

December 31, 2003.

Loan Portfolio Composition

June 30, 2004 December 31, 2003

Percent Percent
of Total of Total
(Dollars in thousands) Amounts Loans Amounts Loans
Commercial $27,328 28.9% $25,927 29.6%
Real Estate:
Construction 33,692 35.6 27,572 31.5
Commercial 29,918 31.6 29,671 339
Other 3,076 33 3,472 4.0
Consumer 649 0.7 976 1.1
Total $94.663  100.00% $87,618  100.00%
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Loans secured by real estate mortgages at June 30, 2004 were composed of loans secured by 1-4
family residential (3.3%), commercial real estate (31.6%) and construction loans (35.6%).

The following table sets forth the maturities and interest sensitivities of the bank’s gross loan

portfolio at June 30, 2004,

Loan Maturities & Interest Sensitivities

Due
Within Due after One
one through Twelve Due after One
month Months through Four Years Over Four Years
Amount Fixed Variable Fixed Variable Fixed Variable Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Commercial $12,765 $2,881 $1,005 $6,446 $2,285 $1,852 $94 $27,328
Real Estate:
Construction -- -- 33,692 -- -- -- -- 33,692
Commercial 7,397 583 1,696 564 9,438 3,603 6,637 29,918
Other 1,865 579 - 239 - 393 - 3,076
Consumer 339 98 -- 116 -- 96 -- 649
Total $22,366 $4,141  $36,393 $7.365  $11,723 $5,944 $6,731 $94,663

Loans with either fixed or variable interest rates are categorized by their maturity: less than one
month; one to twelve months; one to four years; and over four years. At June 30, 2004, the bank’s loans
which mature or re-price in less than one year totaled $62.9 million. Of this amount, $58.8 million or
93.5% are considered variable rate, indexed to the prime lending rate.

The bank’s real estate loan portfolio is secured by office buildings, land for development, single
family homes and other real property located primarily in the Washington County, Oregon area.
Substantially all of these loans are secured by first liens with initial loan to value ratios ranging from
75% to 90% depending on the type of real property securing the loans.

Average Yields Earned and Rates Paid

The following tables show average balances and interest income or interest expense, with the
resulting average yield or rates by category of average earning asset or interest-bearing liability for the
periods indicated:

For the Six Months Ended June 30,

2004 2003
Average Interest Yield/ Average Interest Yield/
(Dollars in thousands) Balance Rate Balance Rate
Assets:
Interest-earning assets:
Loans § 92,563 § 3,344 7.23% § 59459 2,253 7.58%
Investment securities 14,680 282 3.84% 14,396 253 3.51%
FHLB stock 801 16 4.00% 401 15 7.48%
Federal funds sold 1,317 6 0.91% 1,013 6 1.18%
Interest-bearing deposits 3,688 13 0.70% 1,514 2 0.26%
Average interest-earning
assets 113,049 3,661 6.48% 76,783 2,529 6.59%
Allowance for possible loan
losses (1,098) (796)
Noninterest-bearing assets 1,554 1,603
Total average assets $ 113,505 $ 77,590
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(Dollars in thousands)

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity:

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand and savings accounts

Time deposits
Other borrowings
Average interest-bearing
Liabilities
Noninterest-bearing deposits
Other liabilities
Total stockholders’ equity
Total average liabilities and
Stockholders’ equity

Net interest income and net
Interest margin

(Dollars in thousands)
Assets:
Interest-earning assets:
Loans
Investment securities
FHLB stock
Federal funds sold
Interest-bearing deposits
Average interest-earning
Assets
Allowance for possible loan
losses
Noninterest-bearing assets

Total average assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity:

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand and savings accounts
Time deposits
Other borrowings

Average interest-bearing
liabilities

Noninterest-bearing deposits

Other liabilities

Total stockholders’ equity
Total average liabilities and

stockholders’ equity

Net interest income and net
interest margin

For the Six Months Ended June 30,

2004 2003
Average Interest Yield/ Average Interest Yield/
Balance Rate Balance Rate
30,138 204 1.35% 23,020 193 1.68%
33,497 417 2.49% 20,844 324 3.11%
30,201 408 2.70% 17,875 251 2.81%
93,836 1,029 2.19% 61,739 768 2.49%
12,997 9,831
472 409
6,200 5,611
$ 113,505 $ 77,590
$ 2,632 4.66% § 1,761 4.59%
For the Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002
Average Interest Yield/ Average Interest Yield/
Balance Rate Balance Rate
$ 69459 § 5117 7.37% $ 47,069 $ 3,894 8.27%
15,643 515 3.29% 10,001 474 4.74%
514 37 7.20% . 246 7 2.85%
930 10 1.08% 1,829 29 1.59%
1,486 2 0.13% 2,182 2 0.09%
88,032 5,681 6.45% 61,327 4,406 7.18%
(926) (613)
1,575 1,330
$ 88,681 $ 62,044
$26,340 $402 1.53% $17,526 $£394 2.25%
23,074 661 2.86% 21,835 811 3.71%
22,578 629 2.79% 9,856 299 3.03%
71,992 1,692 2.35% 49,217 1,504 3.06%
10,641 7,365
341 3
5,707 5,151
$ 88,681 $ 62,044
$ 3,989 4.53% $ 2902 4.73%
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The following tables show changes in interest income and expense as attributable to changes in
interest rates versus volume for the periods indicated.

(Dollars in thousands)

Increase (decrease) in interest
income:
Loans
Investment securities
FHLB stock
Federal funds sold
Interest-bearing deposits
Total interest income

Increase (decrease) in interest
expense:
Demand and savings accounts
Time deposits
Other borrowings
Total interest expense

Increase (decrease) in net
interest income

(Dollars in thousands)

Increase (decrease) in interest
income:
Loans
Investment securities
FHLB stock
Federal funds sold
Interest-bearing deposits
Total interest income

Increase (decrease) in interest
expense:
Demand and savings accounts
Time deposits
Other borrowings
Total interest expense

Increase (decrease) in net
interest income

For the Six Months Ended June 30,

2004 Versus 2003
Change Change Due Total
Due to Rate to Volume Change

$ (163) $ 1,254 3 1,091

24 5 29

(14) 15 1

) 2 -

8 3 1

(147) 1,279 1,132

(49) 60 11

(104) 197 93

(16) 173 157

(168) 429 261

$ 21§ 850 S 871

For the Year Ended December 31,
2003 Versus 2002

Change Change Due Total
Due to Rate to Volume Change

$ 629 $ 1,852 $ 1,223

(226) 267 41
22 8 30
(5) (14) (19)

1 1) -

(837) 2,112 1,275

(190) 198 8

(196) 46 (150)

(56) 386 330

(442) 630 188

$ (395) $ 1,482 5 1,087
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Deposits

The bank’s primary sources of funds are interest-bearing deposits. The following table sets forth
the bank’s deposit structure at June 30, 2004 and December 31, 2003:

Deposit Structure

June 30, 2004 December 31, 2003
% Total % Total
(Dollars in thousands) Amount  Deposits Amount  Deposits
Noninterest-bearing demand $13,501 16.5% $12,525 17.9%
Interest-bearing demand 1,564 1.9 1,497 2.1
Money market 32,201 39.5 25,469 36.5
Savings 1,567 1.9 528 0.8
Certificates of deposit
less than $100,000 16,982 214 17,404 249
Certificates of deposit
$100,000 or more 15,927 18.8 12,371 17.8
Total deposits $81,742 100% $69,794 100%

The following table presents a breakdown by category of the average amount of deposits and the
weighted average rate paid on deposits for the periods indicated:

Average Deposits/Rate Paid

Six Months Ended Year Ended
June 30, 2004 December 31, 2003
Avg.
Average  Avg. Rate Average Rate
(Dollars in thousands) deposits Paid deposits Paid
Noninterest-bearing demand $ 12,997 0.0% $ 10,641 0.0%
Interest-bearing demand 1,422 0.5% 1,335 0.5%
Money Market 28,716 1.5% 24,562 1.4%
Savings 254 0.2% 443 1.0%
Certificates of deposit 33,497 2.5% 23,074 2.6%
Total 3 76,886 2.0% $ 60,055 1.59%

The following table indicates, as of the dates indicated, time certificates of deposits of $100,000
or more by the time remaining until maturity:

Certificate of Deposit Maturities

(Dollars in thousands) June 30, 2004 December 31, 2003
Maturity in:
Three months or less $4,505 $1,676
3 - 12 months 6,774 9,883
Over twelve months 4,648 1,903
$15,927 $12,371
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Credit Risk Management and Allowance for Loan Losses

Credit risk and exposure to loss are inherent parts of the banking business. Management seeks to
manage and minimize these risks through its loan and investment policies and loan review procedures.
Management establishes and continually reviews lending and investment criteria and approval
procedures that it believes reflect the risk sensitive nature of banking. Loan review procedures are set to
monitor adherence to the established criteria and to ensure that on a continuing basis such standards are
enforced and maintained.

Management’s objective in establishing lending and investment standards is to manage the risk
of loss and provide for income generation through pricing policies. To effectuate this policy, the bank
prices its loan products at a margin above the prime rate, the treasury constant maturity, and other indices
which it constantly monitors.

The loan portfolio is regularly reviewed and management determines the amount of loans to be
charged off. In addition, management considers such factors as previous loan loss experience, prevailing
and anticipated economic conditions, industry concentrations and the overall quality of the loan portfolio.
While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans and real estate owned, future
additions to the allowances may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions. In addition,
various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the
allowances for losses on loans and real estate owned. Such agencies may require us to recognize
additions to the allowances based on their judgments about information available at the time of their
examinations. In addition, any loan or portion thereof that is classified as a “loss” by regulatory
examiners is charged-off. For the year ended December 31, 2003, Columbia Community Bank had net
loan charge-offs of approximately $311,000 and $206,000 through the first six months of 2004.

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level that management considers adequate to
provide for estimated losses based on evaluating known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio. The
allowance for loan losses is increased by charging operating expense. The allowance is reduced by loans
charged off and is increased by provisions charged to earnings and recoveries on loans previously
charged-off. The allowance is based on management’s periodic evaluation of factors underlying the
quality of the loan portfolio, including changes in the size and composition of the portfolio, actual loan
loss experience, current economic conditions, and detailed analysis of individual loans for which full
collectibility may not be assured. The evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are
susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

When information confirms that specific loans are uncollectible, these amounts are charged off
against the allowance for loan losses. The existence of some or all of the following criteria will generally
confirm that a loss has occurred: the loan is significantly delinquent and the borrower has not evidenced
the ability or intent to bring the loan current; the bank has no recourse to the borrower, or if it does, the
borrower has insufficient assets to pay the debt; the estimated fair market value of the collateral is
significantly below the loan balance; and there is little or no near-term prospect for improvement.
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The following table reflects the changes in the Allowance for Loan Losses as well as related information
regarding the loans outstanding for the periods indicated.

Summary of Credit Loss Experience and Related Information

Six months ended June 30, 2004 Year ended December 31, 2003

(Dollars in thousands)
Allowance for Loan Losses at beginning of period $988 §725
Charge-offs:

Commercial 181 312

Real estate construction 0 0

Real estate mortgage 25 0

Consumer 0 0

Total charge-offs 206 312

Recoveries:

Commercial 0 0

Real estate construction 0 1

Real estate mortgage 0 0

Consumer 0 0

Total recoveries 0 1

Net charge-offs ‘ 206 311
Provision charged to operations 300 574
Allowance for Loan Losses at end of period $1,082 $988
Loans outstanding:

End of period $94,663 $87,059

Average during the period 94,560 83,928
Ratio of allowance for credit Josses at end of period

to:

Loans outstanding at end of period 1.14% 1.13%

Average loans outstanding during the period 1.14% 1.18%
Ratio of net charge-offs during the period to

average loans outstanding during the period 0.22% 0.37%

The allowance for loan losses is allocated as shown below based on evaluations of past history
and the composition of the loan portfolio. Since these factors are subject to change, the current
allocation of the allowance is not necessarily indicative of the breakdown of future losses.

Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses

(Dollars in thousands)

June 30, 2004 December 31, 2003

Allocation  Percentage Allocation  Percentage

Commercial $439.3 30.3% $419.9 42.5%
Real estate 125.5 31.1 115.7 11.7
Construction 507.6 36.9 431.6 43.7
Consumer 9.6 1.7 20.8 2.1
$1,082 100% $988 100%

(MPercentage of loans in each category to total loans.
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The following table sets forth information regarding the bank’s non-performing loans on the
dates indicated.

Nonaccrual, Past Due and Restructured Loans
At June 30, 2004 and December 31, 2003

(Dollars in thousands) June 30, 2004 December 31, 2003
Loans accounted for on a nonaccrual basis - % 0 § 734
Accruing loans which are contractually past due 90 days or more 426
Restructured loans -—- 209

Total $ 0 $1,369

As of June 30, 2004, Columbia Community Bank had no loans on nonaccrual. The balance of
non-accrual loans as of December 31, 2003 represented two loans. A construction loan with a balance
of $563,000 has been paid down to less than $200,000 through the sale of a portion of the related project
and is now performing as expected. The balance of $181,000 represents a portion of a loan that was
guaranteed by the U.S. Small Business Administration and charged off in 2003. The Small Business
Administration is disputing steps taken by the bank to work through this charged off loan and is
withholding payment of the guarantee while it reviews the information. Although management believes
the Small Business Administration will make a decision favorable to the bank, it was prudent to charge
off the $181,000 in dispute while a resolution is being negotiated.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002

(Dollars in thousands)
90 Days or More
Past Due Nonaccrual Restructured Lost Interest
12/31/03  12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/02 12/31/03  12/31/02

Commercial $ - --- $ 181 $ - $209 - $ - 5 -
Real estate 426 553 137 - - —
Consumer —-- -— —— - — —— - ———

Total = $426 - $ 734 $137 $209 - $ - $ ---

Accrual of interest is discontinued when there is reasonable doubt as to the full, timely collection
of interest or principal. When a loan becomes contractually past due 90 days with respect to interest or
principal, it is reviewed and a determination is made as to whether it should be placed on nonaccrual
status. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, all interest previously accrued but not collected is
reversed against current period interest income. Income on such loans is then recognized only to the
extent that cash is received and where the future collection of principal is probable. Interest accruals are
resumed on such loans only when they are brought fully current with respect to principal and interest and
when, in the judgment of management, the loans are estimated to be fully collectible as to principal and
interest. Restructured loans are those loans on which concessions in terms have been granted because of
a borrower’s financial difficulty. Interest is generally accrued on such loans in accordance with the new
terms.

Liquidity Management

Liquidity management involves the ability to meet the cash-flow requirements of customers who
are depositors desiring to withdraw funds and borrowers requiring assurance that sufficient funds will be
available to meet their credit needs. The bank’s liquidity management practices focus on the ability to
generate cash within a reasonable time frame and at a reasonable cost. Primary sources of liquidity are
total cash-and-due from banks, federal funds sold and the investment portfolio. The investment portfolio
is relatively short term in nature and is structured to provide a steady and predictable stream of cash
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flows. The majority of the portfolio could also quickly be converted to cash or used as collateral against
borrowings at the Federal Home Loan Bank. The bank also maintains credit lines with its correspondent
banking relationships.

In order to ensure adequate funds are available at all times, we have policies and procedures in
place to monitor liquidity levels on a regular basis. The bank is not subject to any specific liquidity
requirements imposed by regulatory orders. The bank is subject to general FDIC safety and soundness
guidelines. Management believes that its current liquidity levels are adequate.

Capital

For regulatory purposes, both the bank and holding company must maintain certain capital ratios.
As a single bank holding company, the bank’s ratios are most significant. The bank’s actual capital
amounts and ratios are presented in the following table, as well as the regulatory requirements for
minimum capital adequacy and to be considered “well capitalized.”

Actual Minimum Capital Well Capitalized
Adequacy

(Dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
June 30, 2004
Total Capital $11,962 11.2% $8,512 8.0% $10,640 10.0%
(to risk-weighted assets)
Tier I Capital $10,880 10.2% $4,256 4.0% $6,384 6.0%
(to risk-weighted assets)
Tier I Capital $10,880 9.3% $4,256 4.0% $5,320 5.0%
(to average assets)
December 31, 2003
Total Capital $9,858 10.1% $7.835 8.0% $9,794 10.0%
(to risk-weighted assets)
Tier I Capital $8,870 9.1% 3,918 4.0% $5,877 6.0%
(to risk-weighted assets)
Tier I Capital $8,870 8.6% $3,918 4.0% $4,897 5.0%

(to average assets)
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MANAGEMENT
Information about our Directors

The following directors serve on the boards of both Columbia Commercial Bancorp and
Columbia Community Bank:

Patrick J. Culligan, age 56, is an owner of BCA Financial Services, Inc., a financial planning firm in
Hillsboro, Oregon, which is a member of KMS Financial Service, a registered investment advisory firm.

John M. Godsey Jr., age 59, retired in 2003 as a principal of Consulting Engineering Services, a civil
engineering consulting firm which provides civil engineering services throughout the Portland
Metropolitan area.

Donald B. Kane, age 72, retired in 1997 after 26 years as Vice President-Finance of Drake Construction
Company. Mr. Kane was formerly the CFO, Treasurer and a director of Mt. Hood Meadows ski area.
Mr. Kane is currently Chairman of the board of directors.

Martin D. Quandt, age 42, is a principal of Northwest Mortgage Group, Inc., which provides first and
second mortgages and home equity loans to residential customers in Oregon and Washington.

John C. Richards, age 62, is the owner of Professional Towing, which provides automotive repair
services and towing for the Southwest Portland Metro Area.

Rick A. Roby, age 49, serves as our President and Chief Executive Officer. Prior to founding the bank
in 1999, Mr. Roby was president of Sherwood State Bank in Ohio, a position he held for 17 years.

Joseph T. (Ted) Rose, age 65, is a principal of WARZ Investments, L.L.C., a commercial real estate
development company he founded in 1976.

Anita M. Sharman, age 60, is a co-owner of Omega Investments, LLC which specializes in real estate
development, primarily involving hotels. Ms. Sharman served for nine years on the board of directors of
Tualatin Valley Mental Health Association. Ms. Sharman is currently Vice Chairman of the board of
directors.

James E. (Ed) Wagenblast, age 71, is the owner of Valley West Refuse Disposal Inc., and is a principal
of WARZ Investments, L.L.C., a commercial real estate development company.

Information about our Executive Officers

In addition to Rick Roby, President and Chief Executive Officer, the following executive officers
serve as officers of both Columbia Commercial Bancorp and Columbia Community Bank:

Randy V. Blake, age 48, has served as Chief Financial Officer since 2002. Prior to joining the bank, he
served as Vice President, Operations at Oregon Business Bank since 1999.

Fred Johnson, age 48, has served as Executive Vice President, Senior Lending Officer since the bank’s
founding.
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Compensation of Directors and Officers

Directors. For their service on the bank’s board, the directors received an annual retainer for
2004 paid in restricted stock valued at $3,525. The restricted stock is subject to repurchase by the
company at a nominal price if the director does not serve for the full year. They also receive $200 per
monthly meeting attended and $100 per committee meeting attended other than loan committee for which
directors receive $50 per meeting. Directors receive no fees in connection with service as directors of
Columbia Commercial Bancorp.

Executive Officers. The following table sets forth compensation paid by Columbia Community
Bank to its three most highly paid executive officers during 2003. Executives do not receive additional
compensation for their service to the company.

Name Of Individual Capacities In Which
Or Identity Of Group Remuneration Was Received(1) Aggregate Remuneration
Rick A. Roby President & CEO $160,970
Frederick S. Johnson Executive Vice President, 399,210
Senior Lending Officer
Randy V. Blake Vice President and $75,255
Chief Financial Officer

W Serves in the same capacities for both Columbia Commercial Bancorp and Columbia Community Bank

Employment Contracts

We have entered into employment agreements with our executive officers. Mr. Roby’s
agreement provides for an employment term until December 31, 2005, during which time Mr. Roby may
be terminated by the bank only for cause. The agreement requires Mr. Roby not to compete with the
bank for a period of two years following termination of his employment for cause or due to resignation.
In the event of a change in control, Mr. Roby will receive 1.5 times his annual salary, if the event occurs
in 2004, or 1.65 times his annual salary if it occurs in 2005. The bank also has entered into a Deferred
Compensation Agreement with Mr. Roby which entitles him to defer receipt of a portion of his
compensation and receive interest at a rate determined by the board of directors on the deferred amount
during the deferral period. Alternatively, he may direct to the deferred amount be invested in securities
or mutual funds and the gain or loss is deducted from his deferred amount.

The bank also has employment agreements with four other officers that provide a change in
control benefit ranging between /2 and 1 times annual salary in the event of a change in control. These
agreements also provide that the officer will not solicit employees or customers of the bank for one year
following termination of employment.

Equity Compensation Plans

Columbia Commercial Bancorp maintains two equity compensation plans: the 1999 Stock Option
Plan and the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan. The purpose of these plans is to enable the bank to attract and
retain the services of people with training, experience and ability and to provide additional incentive to
key employees and directors by giving them an opportunity to participate in the ownership of the
company.
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1999 Stock Option Plan.

The stock option plan was approved by the bank’s directors on October 19, 1999, and became
effective upon approval of the shareholders at the first annual meeting in April 2000. The plan was
assumed by the holding company upon its inception in 2002. No further options may be granted under
the 1999 Stock Option Plan.

Options to purchase 69,500 shares are outstanding under the 1999 Stock Option Plan. The exercise
prices range from $10.00 to $11.48. All options granted under the plan are vested.

2004 Stock Incentive Plan.

The 2004 Plan became effective on January 30, 2004, and will terminate on January 30, 2014.
Termination of the plan will not affect any awards that are outstanding at that time. A board committee
or, if no commiittee is appointed, the full board of directors administers the 2004 Plan.

The 2004 Plan authorizes awards covering up to 94,000 shares of common stock and provides for
the granting of incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options and restricted stock. In the event any
outstanding option expires without being exercised, or if a restricted stock grant is forfeited, the
unexercised shares formerly subject to that option or forfeited shares previously subject to a restricted
stock grant, would again become available for stock options and restricted stock grants. The 2004 Plan
limits the number of shares authorized for issuance as incentive stock options to 30,000. The 2004 Plan
limits the number of shares that can be granted to an individual to 1,000 in any calendar year or 2,000 in
the calendar year in which the individual is hired or joins the board of directors.

The 2004 Plan contains an evergreen provision that annually increases the number of authorized
shares to an amount equal to 20% of the outstanding shares of the company at fiscal year end, rounded to
the nearest 1,000 shares. Under this provision, annual increases will be made through and including
fiscal year 2014. Assuming the offering is fully subscribed, the number of shares authorized for awards
under the plan would increase to 145,000.

In the event the company’s stock changes due to a stock split, dividend, combination,
reclassification or similar change in capital structure effected without the receipt of consideration,
appropriate adjustments will be made in the number of shares subject to the 2004 Plan, the number of
shares of stock subject to outstanding stock options, and the exercise price for shares subject to stock
options. In the event of a change of control, liquidation or dissolution, unexercised awards will
terminate. In the event of a change of control, however, awards will continue if the agreement governing
the change of control provides for the assumption, substitution or adjustment of each outstanding award.

Each award must be covered by a written agreement that sets forth the terms and conditions of
the award as determined in the sole discretion of the board of directors.

Options are exercisable for a set period of time not to exceed ten years from the date of the grant,
and may be subject to a vesting schedule under which they become incrementally exercisable over a
period of time. Options expire ten years after the date of grant and are subject to earlier cancellation in
the event an optionee ceases to be an employee.

Options are designated as either “Incentive Stock Options,” as defined in Section 422 of the
Internal Revenue Code, or “Non-Qualified Stock Options” and are exercisable at a per share price not
less than 100% of the fair market value of the common stock on the date of the grant. Incentive Stock
Options granted to any person with beneficial ownership of 10% or more of the outstanding shares must
be exercisable at a per share price not less than 110% of the fair market value of the common stock on
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the date of the grant. The 2004 Plan permits, at the discretion of the committee, the option holder to pay
the exercise price of any options with cash, company stock held by the option holder for at least six
months, or by any combination of cash and company stock.

Options may be exercised only while the recipient is employed, or is serving as a director, or, in
the case of incentive stock options, within 90 days after termination of service unless the person is
disabled or dies, in which case all incentive stock options terminate after one year from the date of the
disability or death. Non-qualified stock options terminate three months after termination of service
(unless termination is for cause) or one year from the date of disability or death. Non-qualified stock
options are not transferable except by gift to immediate family or by will or the laws of descent and
distribution. Incentive stock options are not transferable except by will or the laws of descent and
distribution

Shares under restricted stock grants vest over time or upon achievement of performance-based
criteria. If a restricted stock grant is forfeited, the company may repurchase the stock at a nominal price.

We have issued a total of 1,880 shares under the 2004 Plan in the form of restricted stock grants
to directors in lieu of their annual retainer fee.

Transactions with Management

From time to time, some of the directors and officers of the bank and the company, members of
their immediate families, and firms and corporations whom they are associated with do business with us.
The bank leases its office from WARZ Investments, LLC, of which bank directors Joseph T. Rose and
James E. Wagenblast are members. The bank believes the terms and conditions of the leases are fair to the
bank and are substantially comparable to those that would be available to the bank from or to an unaffiliated
party. Director Patrick Culligan also provides investment services for the bank’s 401 (K) plan. He is not
compensated directly by the bank for these services. Other than these transactions, business between the
bank and its directors and officers involves ordinary banking transactions, such as borrowings and
investments in time deposits. We make these transactions in the ordinary course of business, on
substantially the same terms, including interest rates paid or charged and collateral required, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unaffiliated persons. Il.oans to directors and
executive officers do not involve more than the normal risk of collectibility or have other features that
would be disadvantageous to the bank. As of June 30, 2004, the aggregate outstanding amount of all
loans to officers and directors was approximately $1,665,347 which represented 26% of the shareholders
equity at that date. All of these loans are currently in good standing and are being paid in accordance
with their terms.
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Stock ownership of directors and executive officers

The following table shows the number of shares that each of the directors and executive officers
beneficially owned as of June 30, 2004, and the directors and executive officers as a group. The numbers
indicate shares held directly with sole voting and investment power, unless otherwise indicated.

Percent of Shares

Name and Position Number of Shares Outstanding M
Anita M. Sharman, Director, Vice Chairman 18,235 @ 3.8%
Patrick J. Culligan, Director 13,235 @ 2.7%
John M. Godsey, Jr., Director 10,735 @ 2.3%
Donald B. Kane, Director, Chairman 17,235 ® 3.6%
Martin D. Quandt, Director 3,735 © *
John C. Richards, Director 13,335 ™ 2.8%
Rick A. Roby, Director, President & CEO 32,735 ® 6.6%
Joseph T. Rose, Director 12,235 ® 2.6%
James E. Wagenblast, Director 62,985 o 13.2%
Randy V. Blake, CFO 7,000 an 1.5%
Frederick S. Johnson, Executive Vice President 10,500 a2 2.2%
All directors and executive officers

as a group (11 persons) 201,965 @12) 18%

* Less than 1.0%

() For purposes of calculating percent of shares outstanding, the denominator includes 472,784 shares outstanding at June 30,
2004 plus the respective individual’s options. All options held by directors and executive officers are fully vested.

® Includes 3,000 shares covered by options.

® ncludes 4,000 shares held in trust for his benefit and 3,000 shares covered by options.

“ Includes 4,400 shares held jointly with his spouse; 3,100 shares held in trust for his benefit; and 3,000 shares covered by
options.

© Includes 4,000 shares held jointly with his spouse; 10,000 shares held in trust for his benefit; and 3,000 shares covered by
options.

© Includes 500 shares held jointly with his spouse and 3,000 shares covered by options.

™ Includes 10,000 shares held jointly with his spouse and 3,000 shares covered by options.

® Includes 24,000 shares covered by options. Includes 8,500 shares held in trust for his benefit.

® Includes 9,000 owned jointly with his spouse and 3,000 shares covered by options.

1% 1ncludes 56,750 shares held as custodian for minor children and 3,000 shares covered by options.

D Tncludes 7,000 shares held in trust for his benefit.

U9 Includes 10,000 shares covered by options and 200 shares held jointly with his spouse.

The Company is also aware of one other shareholder, Beverly Quandt, who owns more than 5%
of our common stock. Ms. Quandt owns 25,000 shares, which is 5.3% of the outstanding stock as of
June 30, 2004. Ms. Quandt is the mother of director Martin Quandt.

Limitation of Director Liability
Columbia Commercial Bancorp’s Articles of Incorporation provide, among other things, for the
elimination of certain liabilities of directors for monetary damages unless precluded by Oregon law. A

director will not be personally liable to the corporation or its shareholders for monetary damages arising
out of that director’s breach of his or her fiduciary duty of care, except to the extent that Oregon law does
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not permit exemption from such liabilities. A director remains potentially liable for monetary damages
for: (a) any breach of that director’s duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders; (b) acts or
omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law; (c) an
improper distribution under Oregon law; or (d) any transaction from which the director derived an
improper personal benefit.

Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Our Articles of Incorporation also provide that the corporation will indemnify any officer or
director if he or she has been successful on the merits, or otherwise, in the defense of any action, suit or
proceeding to which that person is a party by reason of the fact that he or she was a director or officer.
Additionally, the Articles of Incorporation provide that each officer of director shall be indemnified for
expenses, judgments and settlements in the case of actions other than those brought by or in the name of
the company, even though the director or officer was not successful in his defense if he or she acted in
good faith, did not engage in intentional misconduct and, with respect to a criminal action or proceeding,
did not know his or her conduct was unlawful.

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK
Common Stock

Our authorized capital stock consists of 11,000,000 shares, with no par value, divided into
1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, of which no shares are outstanding, and 10,000,000 shares of
common stock of which 472,784 shares of common stock were outstanding as of the date of this Offering
Circular.

Voting Rights

All voting rights are vested in holders of the common stock, each share being entitled to one vote -
on all matters presented for a vote, including the election of directors. The Articles of Incorporation
provide that stockholders do not have cumulative voting rights in the election of directors.

Dividends

Shareholders are entitled to receive such dividends, if any, as may be declared by the board of
directors out of funds legally available. Our ability to pay dividends is substantially dependent on
dividends paid by the bank. The Oregon Bank Act limits the payment of dividends by a bank to retained
earnings after deductions relating to unreserved non-performing assets, accrued expenses, interest and
taxes. We are also currently subject to limitations on declaring dividends under the terms of our line of
credit with US Bank.

Preemptive Rights

Our Articles of Incorporation provide that sharcholders do not have any preemptive right to
acquire unissued shares of capital stock.
Liquidation Rights

In the event of liquidation, shareholders are entitled to share equally and ratably in the assets
remaining after provision for all debts and liabilities.
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SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

The following discussion is only intended to provide brief summaries of significant statutes and
regulations that affect the banking industry and therefore is not complete. Changes in applicable laws or
regulations, and in the policies of regulators, may have a material effect on our business and prospects.
We cannot accurately predict the nature or extent of the effects on our business and earnings that fiscal or
monetary policies, or new federal or state laws, may have in the future.

Significant Changes In Banking Laws And Regulations

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. On July 30, 2002, the President signed into law the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Act”) to address corporate and accounting fraud. The Act establishes a new
accounting oversight board that will enforce auditing standards and restricts the scope of services that
accounting firms may provide to their public company audit clients. Among other things, the Act also (i)
requires chief executive officers and chief financial officers to certify to the accuracy of periodic reports
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC"”); (ii) imposes new disclosure
requirements regarding internal controls, off-balance-sheet transactions, and pro forma (non-GAAP)
disclosures; (iii) accelerates the time frame for reporting of insider transactions and periodic disclosures
by public companies; and (iv) requires companies to disclose whether or not they have adopted a code of
ethics for senior financial officers and whether the audit committee includes at least one “audit
committee financial expert.”

The Act also requires the SEC, based on certain enumerated factors, to regularly and
systematically review corporate filings. To deter wrongdoing, the Act: (i) subjects bonuses issued to top
executives to disgorgement if a restatement of a company’s financial statements was due to corporate
misconduct; (ii) prohibits an officer or director from misleading or coercing an auditor; (iii) prohibits
insider trades during pension fund “blackout periods™; (iv) imposes new criminal penalties for fraud and
other wrongful acts; and (v) extends the period during which certain securities fraud lawsuits can be
brought against a company or its officers.

Neither Columbia Commercial Bancorp nor Columbia Community Bank is a publicly reporting
company; therefore, neither is expressly subject to the requirements of the Act. However, the FDIC
recently issued guidance recommending, among other things, that FDIC supervised non-public banks
follow certain provisions of the Act. In particular, for banks like Columbia Community Bank, with less
than $500 million in total assets, the FDIC believes that certain provisions of the Act mirror existing
policy guidance related to corporate governance and otherwise represent sound corporate governance
policies. As a result, the FDIC encourages each bank to consider implementing these provisions to the
extent feasible, given the bank’s size, complexity and risk profile. Columbia Community Bank will
certainly incur additional expense as it reviews and implements certain corporate governance policies
consistent with the FDIC’s recommendations; however, it is not expected that such actions will have a
material impact on its business or financial results.

Federal Bank Holding Company Regulation

Columbia Commercial Bancorp is a bank holding company as defined in the Bank Holding
Company Act of 1956, as amended (the “BHCA”), and is therefore subject to regulation, supervision and
examination by the Federal Reserve. In general, the BHCA limits the business of bank holding
companies to owning or controlling banks and engaging in other activities closely related to banking.
Columbia Commercial Bancorp must file annual reports with the Federal Reserve and provide it with
such additional information as the Federal Reserve may require. Under the Financial Services
Modermization Act of 1999, a bank holding company may apply to the Federal Reserve to become a
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financial holding company, and thereby engage (directly or through a subsidiary) in certain expanded
activities deemed financial in nature, such as securities brokerage and insurance underwriting. We have
not elected to be a financial holding company.

Holding Company Bank Ownership. The BHCA requires every bank holding company to obtain
the prior approval of the Federal Reserve before (1) acquiring, directly or indirectly, ownership or control
of any voting shares of another bank or bank holding company if, after such acquisition, it would own or
control more than 5% of such shares, (ii) acquiring all or substantially all of the assets of another bank or
bank holding company, or (ii1) merging or consolidating with another bank holding company.

Holding Company Control of Nonbanks. With some exceptions, the BHCA also prohibits a bank
holding company from (i) acquiring or retaining direct or indirect ownership or control of more than 5%
of the voting shares of any company which is not a bank or bank holding company, or (ii) engaging in
activities other than those of banking, managing or controlling banks, or providing services for its
subsidiaries. The principal exceptions to these prohibitions involve certain non-bank activities which, by
statute or by Federal Reserve regulation or order, have been identified as activities closely related to the
business of banking or of managing or controlling banks.

Transactions with Affiliates. Subsidiary banks of a bank holding company are subject to Federal
Reserve restrictions on extensions of credit to the holding company or its subsidiaries, on investments in
their securities and on the use of their securities as collateral for loans to any borrower. These
regulations and restrictions may limit Columbia Commercial Bancorp’s ability to obtain funds from
Columbia Community Bank for its cash needs, including funds for payment of dividends, interest and
operational expenses.

Tying Arrangements. Columbia Community Bank and Columbia Commercial Bancorp cannot
engage in certain tying arrangements in connection with any extension of credit, lease or sale of property
or furnishing of services. For example, Columbia Community Bank may not generally require, as a
condition to extending credit, that a customer obtain other services from it or from Columbia Commercial
Bancorp, or that a customer refrain from obtaining other services from a competitor.

Support of Subsidiary Banks. Under Federal Reserve policy, Columbia Commercial Bancorp will
be expected to act as a source of financial and managerial strength to Columbia Community Bank. This
means that Columbia Commercial Bancorp will be required to commit, as necessary, resources to support
Columbia Community Bank. Any capital loans a bank holding company makes to its subsidiary banks are
subordinate to deposits and to certain other indebtedness of those subsidiary banks.

Federal and State Bank Regulation

General. As an Oregon state-chartered bank with deposits insured by the FDIC, Columbia
Community Bank is subject to the supervision and regulation of the Oregon Department of Consumer
and Business Services through the Division of Finance and Corporate Securities and the FDIC. These
agencies have the authority to prohibit banks from engaging in what they believe to be unsafe or unsound
banking practices. Columbia Community Bank’s deposits are insured to a maximum of $100,000 per
depositor by the FDIC, and Columbia Community Bank pays semiannual deposit insurance premium
assessments to the FDIC.

CRA. The Community Reinvestment Act requires that, when examining financial institutions
within their jurisdiction, the Federal Reserve or the FDIC evaluates the institution’s record in meeting the
credit needs of its local community, including low and moderate income neighborhoods. This record is
also considered in evaluating mergers, acquisitions and applications to open a branch or facility.
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Insider Credit Transactions. Banks are also subject to certain Federal Reserve restrictions on
extensions of credit to executive officers, directors, principal shareholders or any related interests of such
persons (i.e., insiders). Extensions of credit (1) must be made on substantially the same terms and
pursuant to the same credit underwriting procedures as those for comparable transactions with persons
who are neither insiders nor employees, and (ii) must not involve more than the normal risk of repayment
or present other unfavorable features. Certain lending limits and restrictions on overdrafts also apply to
insiders. A violation of these restrictions may result in regulatory sanctions on the bank or its insiders.

Regulation of Management. Federal law sets forth circumstances under which officers or
directors of a bank may be removed by the institution’s federal supervisory agency. Federal law also
prohibits management personnel of a bank from serving as a director or in a management position of
another financial institution whose assets exceed a specified amount or which has an office within a
specified geographic area.

Safety and Soundness Standards. Federal law imposes upon banks certain non-capital safety and
soundness standards. These standards cover, among other things, internal controls, information systems,
internal audit systems, loan documentation, credit underwriting, interest rate exposure, asset growth,
compensation and benefits. Additional standards apply to asset quality, earnings and stock valuation. An
institution that fails to meet these standards must develop a plan acceptable to its regulators, specifying
the steps that the institution will take to meet the standards. Failure to submit or implement such a plan
may subject the institution to regulatory sanctions.

Interstate Banking and Branching. The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency
Act of 1994 (the “Interstate Act”) permits nationwide interstate banking and branching under certain
circumstances. Currently, bank holding companies may purchase banks in any state, and banks may
merge with banks in other states, as long as the home state of neither merging bank has opted out.
Oregon has permitted interstate banking for a number of years, and in 1996, “opting in” legislation was
enacted, specifically authorizing interstate mergers. The Interstate Act requires regulators to consult with
community organizations before permitting an interstate institution to close a branch in a low-income
area.

Dividends. The principal source of Columbia Commercial Bancorp’s cash revenues is dividends
received from Columbia Community Bank. The payment of dividends is subject to government
regulation, in that regulatory authorities may prohibit banks and bank holding companies from paying
dividends in a manner that would constitute an unsafe or unsound banking practice. In addition, a bank
may not pay cash dividends if doing so would reduce the amount of its capital below that necessary to
meet minimum applicable regulatory capital requirements. State laws also limit a bank’s ability to pay
dividends.

Capital Adequacy

Regulatory Capital Guidelines. Federal bank regulatory agencies use capital adequacy guidelines
in the examination and regulation of bank holding companies and banks. The guidelines are “risk-based,”
meaning that they are designed to make capital requirements more sensitive to differences in risk profiles
among banks and bank holding companies. See “BUSINESS CAPITAL” for the bank’s ratios at June 30,
2004 and December 31, 2003.

Tier I and Tier IT Capital. Under the guidelines, an institution’s capital is divided into two broad
categories, Tier I capital and Tier II capital. Tier I capital generally consists of common stockholders’
equity, surplus and undivided profits. Tier I capital generally consists of the allowance for loan losses,
hybrid capital instruments, and subordinated debt. The sum of Tier I capital and Tier II capital represents
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an institution’s total capital. The guidelines require that at least 50% of an institution’s total capital
consist of Tier I capital.

Risk-based Capital Ratios. The adequacy of an institution’s capital is gauged primarily with
reference to the institution’s risk-weighted assets. The guidelines assign risk weightings to an
institution’s assets in an effort to quantify the relative risk of each asset and to determine the minimum
capital required to support that risk. An institution’s risk-weighted assets are then compared with its Tier
I capital and total capital to arrive at a Tier I risk-based ratio and a total risk-based ratio, respectively.
The guidelines provide that an institution must have a minimum Tier I risk-based ratio of 4% and a
minimum total risk-based ratio of 8§%.

Leverage Ratio. The guidelines also employ a leverage ratio, which is Tier I capital as a
percentage of total assets, less intangibles. The principal objective of the leverage ratio is to constrain
the maximum degree to which a bank holding company may leverage its equity capital base. The
minimum leverage ratio is 3%; however, for all but the most highly rated bank holding companies and for
bank holding companies seeking to expand, regulators expect an additional cushion of at least 1% to 2%.

Prompt Corrective Agtion. Under the guidelines, an institution is assigned to one of five capital
categories depending on its total risk-based capital ratio, Tier I risk-based capital ratio, and leverage
ratio, together with certain subjective factors. The categories range from “well capitalized” to “critically
undercapitalized.” Institutions that are “undercapitalized” or lower are subject to certain mandatory
supervisory corrective actions.

Financial Services Modernization

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999. The Financial Services Modernization Act of 1999, also
known as the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, brought about significant changes to the laws affecting banks
and bank holding companies. Generally, the Act (i) repealed the historical restrictions on preventing
banks from affiliating with securities firms, (ii) provided a uniform framework for the activities of banks,
savings institutions and their holding companies, (iii) broadened the activities that may be conducted by
national banks and banking subsidiaries of bank holding companies, (iv) provided an enhanced
framework for protecting the privacy of consumer information and (v) addressed a variety of other legal
and regulatory issues affecting both day-to-day operations and long-term activities of financial
institutions.

Bank holding companies that qualify and elect to become financial holding companies can
engage in a wider variety of financial activities than permitted under previous law, particularly with
respect to insurance and securities underwriting activities. Columbia Community Bank has not elected to
become a financial holding company. In addition, in a change from previous law, bank holding
companies will be in a position to be owned, controlled or acquired by any company engaged in
financially related activities, so long as the company meets certain regulatory requirements. The act also
permits national banks (and, in states with wildcard statutes, certain state banks), either directly or
through operating subsidiaries, to engage in certain non-banking financial activities.

To the extent the legislation permits banks, securities firms and insurance companies to affiliate,
the financial services industry may experience further consolidation. This consolidation could result in a
growing number of larger financial institutions that offer a wider variety of financial services than
Columbia Community Bank currently offers, and these companies may be able to aggressively compete
in the markets currently served by Columbia Community Bank.
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Anti-terrorism Legislation

USA Patriot Act of 2001. On October 26, 2001, President Bush signed the Uniting and
Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism
(“Patriot Act”) of 2001. Among other things, the Patriot Act (1) prohibits banks from providing
correspondent accounts directly to foreign shell banks; (2) imposes due diligence requirements on banks
opening or holding accounts for foreign financial institutions or wealthy foreign individuals (3) requires
financial institutions to establish an anti-money-laundering compliance program, and (4) eliminates civil
liability for persons who file suspicious activity reports. The Patriot Act also increases governmental
powers to investigate terrorism, including expanded government access to account records. The
Department of the Treasury is empowered to administer and make rules to implement the Patriot Act.
While management believes the Patriot Act may, to some degree, affect the bank ‘s recordkeeping and
reporting expenses, it does not believe that the Act will have a material adverse effect on the bank ‘s
business and operations.

Effects Of Government Monetary Policy

Our earnings and growth are affected not only by general economic conditions, but also by the
fiscal and monetary policies of the federal government, particularly the Federal Reserve. The Federal
Reserve can and does implement national monetary policy for such purposes as curbing inflation and
combating recession, but its open market operations in U.S. government securities, control of the
discount rate applicable to borrowings from the Federal Reserve, and establishment of reserve
requirements against certain deposits, influence the growth of bank loans, investments and deposits, and
also affect interest rates charged on loans or paid on deposits. The nature and impact of future changes in
monetary policies and their impact on the bank cannot be predicted with certainty.

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS

Certain matters in connection with the offering will be passed upon for Columbia Commercial
Bancorp by the law firm of Foster Pepper Tooze LLP, Portiand, Oregon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Columbia Commercial Bancorp and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Columbia Commercial
Bancorp and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, and the related consolidated
statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash
flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of
the Columbia Commercial Bancorp’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Columbia Commercial Bancorp and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

WW ﬂafw ll.?o

Portland, Oregon
March 2, 2004
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COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Federal funds sold

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment securities available-for-sale, at fair value

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Loans, net of allowance for loan losses and unearned income

Furniture, equipment, and leasehold improvements, net of
accumulated depreciation and amortization

Accrued interest receivable and other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits
Interest-bearing demand and money market accounts
Savings deposits
Time deposits

Total deposits

Repurchase agreements

Federal funds purchased

Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings

Guaranteed undivided beneficial interest in
floating rate Junior Subordinated Deferrable
Interest Debentures (Trust Preferred Securities)

Other Capital Debt

Accrued interest payable and other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 10 and 12)

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock, no par value, 4,000,000 shares authorized;
470,904 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2003
and 2003
Surplus
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

See accompanying notes.

June 30, December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001

(Unaudited)

$ 2,231,765 $ 2,185435 § 3,102,547 $ 1,918,480

6,455,000 - 860,000 1,535,000
8,686,765 2,185,435 3,962,547 3,453,480
16,568,352 16,447,617 11,745,610 7,344,091

877,500 737,400 331,400 126,300
93,581,243 86,071,464 53,060,827 37,782,276
527,571 507,939 501,813 221,151
558,076 614,059 464,291 437,776
$120,799,507  $106,563,914  $70,066,488 $ 49,365,074
$ 13,493,570 $ 12,524,695 § 8,353,511 $ 6,218,139

33,760,390 26,965,668 20,658,871 13,752,540
1,570,677 528,173 219,921 489,070

32,917,465 29,775,246 22,412,442 17,764,568
81,742,102 69,793,782 51,644,745 38,224,317
6,582,874 6,226,632 4,526,481 3,579,465

- 2,715,000 -

21,000,000 18,500,000 8,000,000 2,500,000
3,000,000 3,000,000 - -
1,500,000 - - -

522,737 316,666 388,151 223,689

114,347,713 100,552,080 64,559,377 44,527,471
2,347,826 2,347,826 2,347,826 2,335,826
2,519,012 2,519,012 2,519,012 2,501,012
1,634,230 1,165,571 510,480 (10,525)

(49,274) (20,575) 129,793 11,290

6,451,794 6,011,834 5,507,111 4,837,603

$120,799,507

$106,563,914  $70,066,488

$ 49,365,074

F-2
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COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Six Months Ended
June 30, Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2003 2002 2001
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)

INTEREST INCOME
Loans $3,344,125  §2,253,342  $5,116,945 $3,894,213  $2,666,925
Investment securities available-for-sale 282,430 253,346 514,532 474,084 329,871
Other interest and dividend income 34,462 22,702 49,868 37,372 94,451
Total interest income 3,661,017 2,529,390 5,681,345 4,405,669 3,091,247
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest-bearing demand deposits, money market
accounts, and savings deposits 203,942 193,352 402,312 394,469 445,202
Time deposits 417,079 323,754 660,913 810,600 678,574
Repurchase agreements 36,034 63,067 124,325 119,220 95,561
Federal funds purchased 4,060 3,419 8,518 151 988
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings 286,016 150,245 397,560 180,075 14,223
Trust Preferred Securities 72,510 33,795 98,231 -
Other Capital Debt 9,000 - - - -
Total interest expense 1,028,641 767,632 1,691,859 1,504,515 1,234,548
Net interest income 2,632,376 1,761,758 3,989,486 2,901,154 1,856,699
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 300,000 139,836 573,836 287,500 150,000

Net interest income after provision for

loan losses 2,332,376 1,621,922 3,415,650 2,613,654 1,706,699
NONINTEREST INCOME
Service charges and fees 27,164 43,310 90,081 57,952 36,531
Other income 49,754 17,697 38,144 36,270 16,548
Gain on sale of investment securities available-for-sale - 57,044 72,783 61,293 16,634
Total noninterest income 76,918 118,051 201,008 155,515 69,713
NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries and employee benefits 929,515 701,911 1,462,820 1,159,428 814,750
Net occupancy and equipment 247,815 190,874 409,710 262,971 147,603
Data processing 106,580 75,753 174,674 122,021 83,099
Advertising 14,549 17,187 34,263 38,451 20,017
Other expenses 291,176 194,424 442,274 339,353 214,375
Total noninterest expense 1,589,635 1,180,149 2,523,741 1,922,224 1,279,844
INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR
INCOME TAXES 819,659 559,824 1,092,917 846,945 496,568
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 351,000 208,939 437,826 325,940 191,610
NET INCOME $ 468,659 $ 350,885 § 655,091 § 521,005 § 304,958
See accompanying notes. F-3
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COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BALANCE,
December 31, 2000 (Audited)

Issuance of common stock
Net income

Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gains on
investment securities
available-for-sale of
$12,963 (net of taxes
or $6,667)

Reclassification adjustment
for net gain on sales of
investment securities
available-for-sale
included in net income
of $10,979 (net of
taxes of $5,655)

Total comprehensive
income

BALANCE,
December 31, 2001 (Audited)

Issuance of common
stock

Net income

Other comprehensive income —
unreatized gains on
investment securities
available-for-sale of
$156,811 (net of taxes
of $94,086)

Reclassification adjustment
for net gain on sales of
investment securities
available-for-sale
included in net income
of $38,308 (net of
taxes of $22,985)

Total comprehen-
sive income

BALANCE,
December 31, 2002 (Audited)

F-4

Retained Accumulated
Additional Earnings Other Total
Common Stock Paid-In (Accumulated Comprehensive Steckholders’ Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Deficit) Income (Lass) Equity Income
400,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 1,993,968 § (315,483) 9,306 § 3,687,791
68,504 335,826 507,044 842,870
304,958 304958 § 304,958
- - 12,963 12,963 12,963
- - (10,979) (10,979) (10,979)
$ 306,942
468,504 2,335,826 2,501,012 (10,525) 11,290 4,837,603
2,400 12,000 18,000 30,000
- 521,005 - 521,005 8 521,005
- 156,811 156,811 156,811
- - - (38,308) (38,308) (38,308)
$ 639,508
470,904 2,347,826 2,519,012 510,480 129,793 5,507,111

Page 58



COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Retained
Additional Earnings

Common Stock Paid-In (Accumulated

Shares Amount Capital Deficit)

Accumulated
Other Total
Comprehensive Stockholders®
Income (Loss) Equity Income

Comprehensive

Net income

Other comprehensive income —
unrealized losses on
investment securities
available-for-sale of
$195,857 (net of taxes
of $97,929)

Reclassification adjustment
for net gain on sales of
investment securities
available-for-sale
included in net income
of $45,489 (net of
taxes of $27,294)

$ - 3 - 3 655,091

- 8 655,091 $ 655,091

(195,857) (195,857) (195,857

45,489 45,489 45,489

Total comprehen-

sive income

BALANCE,
December 11, 2003 (Audited)

Net income

Other comprehensive income ~
unrealized losses on
investment securities
available-for-sale of
$28,699 (net of taxes
of $14,350)

470,904 2,347,826 2,519,012 1,165,571

468,659

$ 504,723

(20,575) 6,011,834

468,659 8 468,659

(28,699) (28,659) (28,699)

Total comprehen-

sive income

BALANCE,
June 30, 2004 (Unaudited)

470904 § 2347826 $§ 2519012 § 1,634,230

$ 439,960

(49,274) 8§ 6,451,794

See accompanying notes.
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COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile niet income to net cash
from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of investment security premiums
Gain on sales of investment securities available-for-sale
Provision for loan losses
Deferred income tax expense
Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividends
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accrued interest receivable and other assets
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities

Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sales of investmert securities
available-for-sale

Proceeds from maturity and call of investment securities
available-for-sale

Purchase of investment securities available-for-sale

Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Net increase in loans

Purchase of furniture, equipment, and leasehold
improvements

Net cash from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net change in demand deposits, money market accounts,
and savings deposits

Net change in time deposits

Net change in repurchase agreements

Net change in federal funds purchased

Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings

Proceeds from issuance of Trust Preferred Securities

Proceeds from issuance of Other Capital Debt

Proceeds from sale of common stock, net of
issuance costs

Net cash from financing activities

F-6

Six Months Ended

June 30, Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2003 2062 2001
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
$ 468,659 3 350,885 § 655091 § 521,005 § 304,958
70,760 49,892 110,407 86,799 50,551
62,478 105,405 299,439 24,679 10,635
802 (57,044) (72,783) (61,293) (14,599)
300,600 139,836 573,836 287,500 150,000
(181,360) 12,000 101,000 89,000 96,000
(15,963) (15,470) (37,300) (5,700 (3,000)
88,359 (175,311) (173,297) (187,511 (37,394)
206,071 (106,461) (71,485) 164,462 108,827
999,806 303,732 1,384,908 918,941 665,978
5,269,866 3,050,613 3,772,321 7,806,526 3,242,982
1,764,861 1,625,507 5,928,690 1,845,594 1,747,168
(7,082,494)  (8,724,408) (14,857,513) (13,826,526)  (7,682,838)
(140,100) (117,300) (368,700) (199,400) (88,200)
(7,809,779)  (17,400,078) (33,584,473) (15,566,051) (18,476,762)
(90,392) (56,927) (116,533) (367,461) (73,280)
(8,088,038)  (21,622,593) (39,226,208) _(20,307,318) (21,330,930)
8,806,101 9,070,770 10,786,233 8,772,554 7,468,286
3,142,219 (1,530,905) 7,362,804 4,647,874 10,112,068
356,242 3,020,095 1,700,151 947,016 1,443,027
(2,715,000) 3,785,000 2,715,000 - -
2,500,000 2,500,000 10,500,000 5,500,000 2,500,000
. 3,000,000 3,000,000 - -
1,500,000 - - - -
. - - 30,000 842,870
13,589,562 19,844,960 36,064,188 19,897,444 22,366,251
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COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest

Cash paid during the year for taxes

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Change in fair value of investment securities
available-for-sale, net of taxes

See accompanying notes.

Six Months Ended

June 30, Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2003 2002 2001
{Unaudited) (Unaudited)
$6,501,330  $(1,473,901) $(1,777,112) $ 509,067 $ 1,701,299
2,185,435 3,962,547 3,962,547 3,453,480 1,752,181
$8,686,765 $ 2,488,646 § 2,185435 § 3,962,547 $ 3,453,480
$1,026,964 § 782,288 § 1,696,925 § 1,515,784 $ 1,237,622
$ 258291 $ 266,326 § 459213 § 46,800 § 75,000
$ (28,699) § (38,680) $ (150,368) S 118,503 § 1984
F-7
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COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of presentation — The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of Columbia Commercial Bancorp (the Company), a bank holding company established
in February 2002, and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Columbia Community Bank (the Bank)
and Columbia Commercial Statutory Trust — I. Substantially all activity of the Company is
conducted through the Bank and all significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

The interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America for interim financial information.
Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America for complete financial statements.
The financial information included with the interim financial statements has been prepared by
management without audit by independent public accounts. The Company’s annual report
contains audited financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments, including
normal recurring accruals necessary for fair presentation of results of operations for the interim
periods included herein have been made. The results of operations for the six months ended
June 30, 2004, are not necessarily indicative of results to be anticipated for the year ending
December 31, 2004.

Organization — In April 1999, the Bank received regulatory approval to become a state-
chartered institution authorized to provide banking services in the state of Oregon. The Bank,
operating from its headquarters in Hillsboro, Oregon, provides banking services to businesses
and individuals located primarily in the markets from which the Bank operates its three full-
service branches in Hillsboro, Forest Grove, and Beaverton, Oregon. The Bank is subject to the
regulations of certain federal and state agencies and will undergo periodic examinations by those
regulatory authorities.

During 2002, Columbia Commercial Bancorp, an Oregon corporation, was formed for the
purpose of becoming a holding company for the Bank. The Company is registered as a bank
holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, and is subject to
the supervision and examination by the Federal Reserve Board. With formation of the holding
company, a tax-free structural reorganization was completed under an Agreement and Plan of
Exchange, whereby each one of the issued and outstanding shares of the Bank’s common stock
was exchanged for one share of Columbia Commercial Bancorp common stock.

On March 12, 2003, the Company formed Columbia Commercial Statutory Trust — I (the Trust),
a wholly-owned Connecticut statutory business trust, for the purpose of issuing guaranteed
undivided beneficial interests in floating rate Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures
(Trust Preferred Securities). During March 2003, the Trust issued $3 million in Trust Preferred
Securities. The Company used the proceeds from the Trust Preferred Securities offering to fund
continued growth of the Bank.

F-8
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COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - (continued)

Financial statement presentation and use of estimates — The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and reporting
practices applicable to the banking industry. The preparation of consolidated financial statements
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates.

Significant estimates are necessary in determining the recorded value of the allowance for loan
losses and available-for-sale investment securities. Management believes the assumptions used
in arriving at these estimates are appropriate.

Cash and cash equivalents — For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash, interest-bearing deposits with correspondent banks, and federal funds sold. Federal
funds sold represent excess cash funds that are generally invested on a daily basis.

The Bank maintains balances in correspondent bank accounts which at times may exceed
federally insured limits. Management believes that its risk of loss associated with such balances
is minimal due to the financial strength of the correspondent banks. The Bank has not
experienced any losses in such accounts.

Investment securities — The Bank is required to designate debt and equity securities as
“available-for-sale,” “held-to-maturity,” or “trading” investments. Accordingly, the Bank has
designated all of its investment securities as “available-for-sale” at December 31, 2003 and
2002.

Investment securities that will be held for indefinite periods of time, including securities that
may be sold in response to changes in market interest or prepayment rates, needs for liquidity,
and changes in the availability of and the yield of alternative investments are classified as
available-for-sale. These assets are carried at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses, net of tax,
are reported as other comprehensive income. Gains and losses on the sale of available-for-sale
investment securities are determined using the specific-identification method.

Declines in the fair value of individual securities below their cost that are other than temporary
are recognized by write-downs of the individual securities to their fair value. Such write-downs
would be included in earnings as realized losses.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock — The Bank’s investment in Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB)
stock is a restricted investment carried at par value, which approximates its fair value. As a
member of the FHLB system, the Bank is required to maintain a minimum level of investment in
FHLB stock based on specific percentages of its outstanding FHLB advances. The Bank may
request redemption at par value of any stock in excess of the amount the Bank is required to
hold. Stock redemptions are made at the discretion of the FHLB.
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COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - (continued)

Loans, net of allowance for loan losses and unearned income — Loans are stated at the amount
of unpaid principal, reduced by an allowance for loan losses and unearned income. Interest on
loans is calculated by the simple-interest method on daily balances of the principal amount
outstanding. Loan origination fees and certain direct origination costs are capitalized and
recognized as an adjustment of the yield of the related loan.

The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses charged to
expense. Loans are charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes
that the collectibility of principal is unlikely. The allowance is an amount that management
believes will be adequate to absorb possible losses on existing loans that may become
uncollectible, based on evaluations of the collectibility of loans and prior loan loss experience.
The evaluations take into consideration such factors as changes in the nature and volume of the
loan portfolio, overall portfolio quality, review of specific problem loans, and current economic
conditions that may affect the borrower’s ability to pay. Various regulatory agencies, as a regular
part of their examination process, periodically review the Bank’s reserve for loan losses. Such
agencies may require the Bank to recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgment
of information available to them at the time of examinations.

Impaired loans are carried at the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the
loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan
is collateral dependent. Accrual of interest is discontinued on impaired loans when management
believes, after considering economic and business conditions, collection efforts, and collateral
position, that the borrower’s financial condition is such that collection of interest is doubtful.
When interest accrual is discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed. Interest income 1s
subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are received or when the related loan
is returned to accrual status.

Furniture, equipment, and leasehold improvements — Furniture, equipment, and leasehold
improvements are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation
is computed using the straight-line method over the expected useful lives of the assets, ranging
from 3 to 15 years. Amortization of leasehold improvements is computed using the straight-line
method over the lease term or expected life of the related asset, whichever is less. The costs of
maintenance and repairs are expensed as they are incurred, while major expenditures for
renewals and betterments are capitalized.

Income taxes — Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the tax effects
of the differences between the book and tax bases of the various balance sheet assets and
liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected at currently enacted income tax rates
applicable to the period in which the deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be realized
or settled. As changes in tax laws or rates are enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
adjusted through the provision for income taxes.
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COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 -~ ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - (continued)

Adpvertising costs — The Bank expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising costs
were $34,263 and $38,451 for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Stock-based compensation — The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its stock option plans. Accordingly,
compensation costs are recognized as the difference between the exercise price of each option
and the market price of the Company’s stock at the date of each grant. No compensation costs
were recognized in 2003 or 2002. Had compensation of the Company’s stock option plan been
determined based on the fair value at the grant dates for awards under these plans consistent with
the method of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,” net income for the periods ended December 31, 2003 and 2002,
would approximate the pro forma amounts below.

2003 2002
Net income:
As reported $ 655,091 $ 521,005
Pro forma $ 650,841 $ 507,204

The fair value of each option granted in 2003 and 2002 is estimated on the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: (1) dividend yield of
0.0%, (2) expected volatility of 12.5% for 2003 and 16.2% for 2002, (3) risk-free rate of 2.75%
for 2003 and 3.00% for 2002, and (4) expected life of eight years.

The effects of applying SFAS No. 123 in this pro forma disclosure are not indicative of future
amounts. Additional awards in future years are anticipated.

Off-balance-sheet financial instruments — The Bank holds no derivative financial instruments.
However, in the ordinary course of business, the Bank has entered into off-balance-sheet
financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit and commercial and standby
letters of credit. These financial instruments are recorded in the consolidated financial statements
when they are funded or related fees are incurred or received.

Fair value of financial instruments — The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is practicable to
estimate that value:

Cash and cash equivalents — For these short-term instruments, the carrying amount is a
reasonable estimate of fair value.

Investment securities available-for-sale — Fair value for investment securities are based on
quoted market prices or the market values for comparable securities.
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COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - (continued)

Federal Home Loan Bank stock — The carrying amount approximates the estimated fair value.

Loans - For certain variable rate loans, fair value is estimated at carrying value, as these loans
reprice to market frequently. The fair value of other types of loans is estimated by discounting
future cash flows, using current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with
similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities.

Deposit liabilities — The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, and certain money
market deposits is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of fixed-
maturity certificates of deposit is estimated by discounting future cash flows, using the rates
currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Repurchase agreements and federal funds purchased — Due to their short-term nature, the
carrying amounts of borrowings under repurchase agreements and federal funds purchased
approximate their fair values.

Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings and Trust Preferred Securities — Rates currently available
to the Bank for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities are used to estimate the fair
value of these borrowings.

Commitments to extend credit, credit card commitments, and standby letters of credit — The fair
values of these off-balance sheet commitments to extend credit, credit card commitments, and
standby letters of credit are not considered practicable to estimate because of the lack of quoted
market prices and the inability to estimate fair value without incurring excessive costs.

Reclassifications — Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2002 consolidated financial
statements to conform with current year presentations.
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COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities available-for-sale are as

follows:

December 31, 2003:
Obligations of U.S. government
agencies
Mortgage-backed securities
Equity securities

December 31, 2002:
Obligations of U.S. government
agencies
Mortgage-backed securities
Equity securities

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 2,000,000 $ 19,143 § (4,687) § 2,014,456
14,407,851 77,838 (112,528) 14,373,161
60,000 - - 60,000
$16,467,851 $ 96,981 §(117,215) $16,447,617
$ 3,054,704 $§ 79351 § - $ 3,134,055
8,423,301 128,254 - 8,551,555
60,000 - - 60,000
$11,538,005 $207,605 $ - $11,745,610

The following table presents the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Bank’s investment
securities, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have
been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2003:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Totals
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Obligations of U.S. government _
agencies $ 995312 $ (4,687) § - $ -8 995312 § (4,687)
Mortgage-backed securities 8,719,728 (112,528) 8,719,728 (112,528)
Total temporarily impaired
securities $ 9,715,040 $(117,215) § - § - $9715040 $(117,215)
F-13
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COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES - (continued)

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities available-for-sale at
December 31, 2003, by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities may differ
from contractual maturities because borrowers could have the right to call or prepay obligations
with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Estimated
Amortized Fair
Cost Value
Due after one year through five years $ 2,115,829 $ 2,133,368
Due after five years through ten years 3,319,919 3,309,713
Due after ten years 10,972,103 10,944,536
Equity securities 60,000 60,000
$16,467,851 $16,447,617

For the purpose of the maturity table, mortgage-backed securities, which are not due at a single
maturity date, have been allocated over maturity groupings based on the weighted-average
contractual maturities of underlying collateral. Mortgage-backed securities may mature earlier
than their weighted-average contractual maturities because of principal prepayments.

As of December 31, 2003, investment securities with an estimated fair value of $12,295,737

were pledged to secure repurchase agreements, Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings, and public
deposit accounts as permitted or required by law.
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COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 - LOANS

Loans consist of the following:

2003 2002

First mortgage loans:

Real estate construction $ 27,572,086 $ 17,834,743

Commercial real estate 29,671,177 19,052,718

Residential mortgage (1 — 4 family) 2,470,117 1,481,827

Agricultural real estate 1,001,481 895,113
Other loans:

Commercial 25,926,912 13,894,958

Consumer 976,428 971,145

‘ 87,618,201 54,130,504

Allowance for loan losses (987,512) (725,000)
Unearned income (559,225) (344,677)

Loans, net of allowance for loan
losses and uneamed income

Changes in the allowance for loan losses were as follows:

$ 86,071,464

$ 53,060,827

2003 2002
BALANCE, beginning of year § 725,000 § 460,000
Provision for loan losses 573,836 287,500
Loans charged off (312,487) (22,500)
Recoveries 1,163 -
BALANCE, end of year $ 087,512 $ 725,000

The Bank has recognized impaired loans with a recorded balance of $734,100 and $127,500 at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Bank has specific allowances for loan losses
related to these loans in the amount of $129,547 at December 31, 2003. There was no allowance
for loan losses related to impaired loans at December 31, 2002. The average recorded investment
in impaired loans was $260,280 and $25,000 for 2003 and 2002, respectively. Interest income
recognized for cash payments received on these loans was $5,904 for 2003 and $4,880 for 2002.
Had the impaired loans performed according to the original terms, additional interest income
recognized would have been $11,390 for 2003 and $3,682 for 2002.

Loans pledged to secure Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings were $34,806,376 and
$11,788,343 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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NOTE 4 - FURNITURE, EQUIPMENT, AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

The composition of furniture, equipment, and leasehold improvements is summarized as follows:

2003 2002
Furniture and equipment § 559,442 $ 472,364
Leasehold improvements 232,429 225,853
Total furniture, equipment, and leasehold
improvements 791,871 698,217
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (283,932) (196,404)
Furniture, equipment, and leasehold
improvements, net of accumulated .
depreciation and amortization § 507,939 $ 501,813

Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to $110,407 and $86,799 for the years ended

December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

NOTE 5 — TIME DEPOSITS

Time certificates of deposit of $100,000 and over aggregated $12,370,715 at December 31,

2003, and $7,646,941 at December 31, 2002.

At December 31, 2003, the scheduled maturities for all time deposits are as follows:

Years ending December 31, 2004 $ 20,148,189
2005 6,482,490

2006 1,369,602

2007 942,720

2008 832,245

$ 29,775,246
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COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 — REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS AND FEDERAL FUNDS PURCHASED

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank had outstanding securities sold under agreements
to repurchase totaling $6,226,632 and $4,526,481, respectively. Repurchase agreements provide
for interest at variable rates, which ranged from 0.40% to 1.50% and 0.75% to 2.65% at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The repurchase agreements are collateralized by
obligations of U.S. government agency securities and mortgage-backed securities, earning
interest at 4.50% to 6.50%.

The Bank also had unsecured overnight federal funds purchased of $2,715,000 at December 31,
2003, with interest rates from 1.0% to 1.99%. There were no federal funds purchased at
December 31, 2002.

NOTE 7 ~ FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK BORROWINGS

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) of Seattle and has entered into
an “Advances, Security and Deposit Agreement” which provides a credit arrangement from the
FHLB. Borrowings under the credit arrangement are collateralized by the Bank’s FHLB stock as
well as deposits or other instruments which may be pledged. As of December 31, 2003, the Bank
had borrowings outstanding with the FHLB of $18,500,000. The promissory notes mature
between 2004 and 2013 with rates ranging from 1.20% to 5.22%. The Bank had $8,000,000 in
borrowings from the FHLB at December 31, 2002. As of December 31, 2003, the scheduled
maturities of Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings are as follows:

Years ending December 31, 2004 $ 4,500,000
2005 2,300,000
2006 3,700,000
2007 3,500,000
2008 1,000,000
Thereafter 3,500,000
$ 18,500,000
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COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8 — TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES

In March 2003, the Company formed a wholly-owned Connecticut statutory business trust
subsidiary, Columbia Commercial Statutory Trust — I (the Trust), which issued $3,000,000 of
guaranteed undivided beneficial interests in the Company’s floating rate Junior Subordinated
Deferrable Interest Debentures (Trust Preferred Securities). These debentures qualify as Tier 1
capital under regulatory guidelines. Al common securities of the Trust are owned by the
Company. The proceeds from the issuance of the common securities and the Trust Preferred
Securities were used by the Trust to purchase $3,093,000 of subordinated deferrable interest
debentures of the Company. The debentures, which represent the sole asset of the Trust, possess
the same terms as the Trust Preferred Securities and accrue interest quarterly at the applicable
London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 3.15% per annum. Interest payments are
deferrable at the discretion of the Company for the first five years. As of December 31, 2003, all
interest payments to the Trust and all dividend payments by the Trust were current.

In conjunction with the issuance of the Trust Preferred Securities, the Company entered into
contractual arrangements which, taken collectively, fully and unconditionally guarantee payment
of (1) accrued and unpaid distributions required to be paid on the Trust Preferred Securities, (2)
the redemption price with respect to any Trust Preferred Securities called for redemption by the
Trust, and (3) payments due upon a voluntary or involuntary dissolution, winding up, or
liquidation of the Trust. The Trust Preferred Securities are mandatorily redeemable upon
maturity of the debentures on March 26, 2033, or upon earlier redemption as provided in the
indenture. The Company has the right to redeem the debentures purchased by the Trust in whole
or in part, on or after March 26, 2008. As specified in the indenture, if the debentures are
redeemed prior to maturity, the redemption price will be the principal amount and any accrued
but unpaid interest. For the year ended December 31, 2003, interest expense on the debentures
and the corresponding dividends paid on the Trust Preferred Securities totaled $98,231.
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NOTE 9 - INCOME TAXES

Components of the provision for income taxes include the following:

2003 2002
Current

Federal $ 278,868 $ 189,240
State 57,958 47,700
336,826 236,940

Deferred
Federal 86,000 75,000
State 15,000 14,000
101,000 89,000
Provision for income taxes $ 437,826 $ 325,940

As of December 31, 2003, the Bank had available to offset future taxable income unamortized
preopening expenses capitalized for tax purposes of $27,000. These preopening expenses are
being amortized and deducted for tax purposes over a 60-month period.

Deferred income taxes represent the tax effect of differences in timing between financial income
and taxable income. The nature and components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as
follows:

2003 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses $ 209,000 $ 177,000
Unamortized preopening expenses 11,000 47,000
Total deferred tax assets 220,000 224,000
Deferred tax liabilities:
Accrual to cash adjustment (144,000) (134,000)
Accumulated depreciation (60,000) (21,000)
Loan fees (77,000) (44,000)
Other (19,000) (4,000)
Total deferred tax liabilities (300,000) (203,000)
Net deferred tax (liabilities) assets $ (80,000) $ 21,000
F-19
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NOTE 9 ~ INCOME TAXES - (continued)

Management believes, based upon the Company’s historical performance, that the deferred tax
assets will be realized in the normal course of operations and, accordingly, management has not
reduced the deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance.

NOTE 10 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE-SHEET RISK

In the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers, the Bank is a party
to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk. These financial instruments include
commitments to extend credit and the issuance of letters of credit. These instruments involve, to
varying degrees, elements of credit and interest-rate risk in excess of the amounts recognized in
the balance sheets. The contract amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement
the Bank has in particular classes of financial instruments.

The Bank’s exposure to credit loss, in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the
financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and letters of credit written, is represented
by the contractual amount of those instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in
making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customers as long as there is no
violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed
expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of
the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment
amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The amount of collateral
obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is based on management’s
credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable,
inventory, property and equipment, and income-producing properties.

Letters of credit written are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support
public and private borrowing arrangements, including commercial paper, bond financing, and
similar transactions. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as
that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The Bank holds cash, marketable
securities, or real estate as collateral supporting those commitments for which collateral is
deemed necessary.
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NOTE 10 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE-SHEET RISK -
(continued)

A summary of the notional amounts of the Bank’s financial instruments with off-balance-sheet
risk at December 31, 2003, are as follows:

Commitments to extend credit $ 22,595,791
Commercial and standby letters of credit 862,000
§ 23,457,791

NOTE 11 - CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Substantially all of the Bank’s loans, commitments, and commercial and standby letters of credit
have been granted to customers in the Bank’s market area. The majority of such customers are
also depositors of the Bank. Concentrations of credit by type of loan are set forth in Note 3. The
Bank’s loan policy does not allow the extension of credit to any single borrower or group of
related borrowers in excess of $450,000 without approval from the Board of Directors’ loan
committee.

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating lease commitments — As of December 31, 2003, the Bank leased certain properties
and office equipment under noncancellable operating leases.

Future minimum lease payments associated with the properties are as follows:

Years ending December 31, 2004 $ 270,036
2005 250,200

2006 208,824

2007 169,816

2008 21,900

$ 920,776

Total rent expense, net of sublease income, was $200,069 and $136,580 for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The Bank’s office space in Hillsboro, Oregon, is under a lease agreement with a related party

which expires on March 31, 2008. Rent paid to the related party for this lease was $109,200 and
$107,400 for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - (continued)

The Bank subleased a portion of its office space to related parties under two separate agreements
which terminated in 2003. Rental income for these leases was $42,000 for both of the years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2002.

Legal contingencies — The Company may become a defendant in certain claims and legal
actions arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, after
consultation with legal counsel, there are no matters presently known to the Company that are
expected to have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial condition.

NOTE 13 - TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Certain directors, executive officers, and principal stockholders are customers of and have had
banking transactions with the Bank in the ordinary course of business, and the Bank expects to
have such transactions in the future. Management believes all loans and commitments to loan
included in such transactions are made in compliance with applicable laws on substantially the
same terms (including interest rates and collateral) as those prevailing at the time for comparable
transactions with other persons and, in the opinion of the management of the Bank, do not
involve more than the normal risk of collection or present any other unfavorable features. The
amount of loans outstanding to directors, executive officers, principal stockholders, and
companies with which they are associated was as follows:

2003 2002
BALANCE, beginning of year $ 924,124 $ 846,520
Loans made 425,579 473,410
Loans repaid ‘ (368,967) (395,806)
BALANCE, end of year $ 980,736 $ 924,124

NOTE 14 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

During 2000, the Bank adopted a 401(k) plan in which substantially all employees participate.
Employees may contribute the maximum permissible under federal tax laws. The Bank made
50% matching contributions in 2003 and 2002, up to 8% of total employee contributions. All
employees participating at the adoption of the plan are fully vested in employer matching
contributions, while other employees vest in their employer match ratably over a six-year period
based on their date of hire. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Bank’s
matching contributions were $55,796 and $32,392, respectively.
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NOTE 15 - STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has reserved 80,000 shares of its common stock for issuance under a stockholder-
approved stock option plan. The exercise price for each option will be the fair market value of
the underlying common stock at the time the option is granted. The options have varying vesting
periods, ranging from immediate to up to three years, and expire no later than ten years after the
effective date of grant. The following summarizes options available and outstanding under this
plan:

2003 2002
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Common Exercise Common Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price

BALANCE, beginning of year 67,000 $ 10.04 60,250 $ 10.08

Granted 2,500 $ 10.63 6,750  § 11.20

BALANCE, end of year 69,500 $ 10.17 67,000 $ 10.15

Options exercisable, end of year 66,500 § 10.17 58,250  § 10.04
Options available for grant, end of year 10,500 13,000

Weighted-average fair value per share

of options granted during the year $ 2.75 $ 3.26

As of December 31, 2003, exercise prices range from $10.00 to $11.48, and the weighted-
average exercise price and contractual life for all options outstanding is $10.17 per share and
3.98 years, respectively.
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NOTE 16 - FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table estimates fair values and the related carrying values of the Bank’s financial
instruments at December 31, 2003:

Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,185,435 $ 2,185,435
Investment securities available-for-sale,

at fair value $ 16,447,617 $16,447,617
Federal Home Loan Bank stock $ 737,400 $ 737,400
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses

and unearned income $ 86,071,464 $ 85,554,464

Financial liabilities:

Demand deposits, money market accounts,

and savings deposits $ 40,018,536 $ 40,018,536
Time deposits $ 29,775,246 $ 29,882,246
Repurchase agreements $ 6,226,632 $ 6,226,632
Federal funds purchased $ 2,715,000 $ 2,715,000
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings $ 18,500,000 $ 18,861,000
Trust Preferred Securities $ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000

While estimates of fair value are based on management’s judgment of the most appropriate
factors, there is no assurance that were the Bank to dispose of such items at December 31, 2003,
the estimated fair values would necessarily be achieved at that date, since market values may
differ depending on various circumstances. The estimated fair value at December 31, 2003,
should not necessarily be relied upon at subsequent dates.

In addition, other assets and liabilities of the Bank that are not defined as financial instruments
are not included in the above disclosures, such as property and equipment. Also nonfinancial
instruments typically not recognized in the consolidated financial statements nevertheless may
have value but are not included in the above disclosures. These include, among other items, the
estimated earnings power of core deposit accounts, the earnings potential of loan servicing
rights, the trained work force, customer goodwill, and similar items.

NOTE 17 - REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered
by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate
certain mandatory — and possibly additional discretionary — actions by regulators that, if
undertaken, could have a direct material effect on a bank’s financial statements. Under capital
adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, banks must
meet
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NOTE 17 - REGULATORY MATTERS - (continued)

specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities, and
certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Capital
amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about
components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company
and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and
Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1
capital to average assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2003 and 2002,
that the Company and the Bank meet all capital adequacy requirements to which they are
subject.

As of the most recent notifications from their regulatory agencies, the Bank was categorized as
well-capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There are no
conditions or events since that notification that management believes may have changed the
institutions’ category.

The following tables present selected capital information for the Company and the Bank as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002:

To Be Well-
Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes  Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio  Amount  Ratio
As of December 31, 2003:
(dollars in thousands)
Total capital to risk-weighted assets:
Columbia Commercial Bancorp $10,021 10.2% $7,843 >8% N/A N/A
Columbia Community Bank $ 9,858 10.1% $7,835 >8% $9,794 >10%
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets:
Columbia Commercial Bancorp $ 9,033 9.2% §$3,922 >4% N/A N/A
Columbia Community Bank $ 8,870 9.1% $3,918 >4% §$5,877 >6%
Tier 1 capital to average assets:
Columbia Commercial Bancorp $ 9,033 8.7% $4,155 >4% N/A N/A
Columbia Community Bank $ 8,870 8.5% $4,151 >4% §$5,189 >5%
F-25
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COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 17 - REGULATORY MATTERS - (continued)

As of December 31, 2002
(dollars in thousands)
Total capital to risk-weighted assets:
Columbia Commercial Bancorp
Columbia Community Bank

Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets:
Columbia Commercial Bancorp
Columbia Community Bank

Tier 1 capital to average assets:

Columbia Commercial Bancorp
Columbia Community Bank

F-26

To Be Well-

Capitalized Under

For Capital Prompt Corrective

Actual Adequacy Purposes  Action Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount  Ratio  Amount  Ratio
$ 6,102 10.3% $4,747 >8% N/A N/A
$ 6,083 10.3% $4,747 >8% $5,934 >10%
$ 5377 9.1% $2,373 >4% N/A N/A
§ 5358 9.0% $2,373 >4% §$3,560 >6%
$ 5377 7.7% $2,797 >4% N/A N/A
$ 5,358 7.7% $2,797 >4% $3,496 >5%
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Exhibit Number  Description
1.1 Placement Agent Agreement with D. A. Davidson & Co.
2.1 Articles of Incorporation of Columbia Commercial Bancorp
2.2 Bylaws of Columbia Commercial Bancorp
3.1 Specimen Stock Certificate
4.1 Form of Subscription Agreement —~ Shares sold by Columbia Commercial
Bancorp
4.2 Form of Subscription Agreement ~ Shares sold by D. A. Davidson & Co.
6.1 1999 Stock Option Plan, as amended
6.2 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement
6.3 Form of Incentive Stock Option
6.4 2004 Stock Incentive Plan
6.5 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement
6.6 Employment Agreement with Rick A. Roby
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6.8 Employment Agreement with Frederick S. Johnson
6.9 Employment Agreement with Randy V. Blake
6.10 Lease Agreement with WARZ Investments, LLC (Hillsboro)
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Exhibit 1.1

Shares of Common Stock
D.A. DAVIDSON & CO.

PLACEMENT AGENT AGREEMENT

Dated as of , 2004

Columbia Commercial Bancorp
314 East Main St., Suite A

- Hillsboro, Oregon 97123

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Columbia Commercial Bancorp, a bank holding company incorporated in the State of
Oregon (the “Company”), hereby engages D.A. Davidson & Co. as placement agent (the
“Placement Agent”) on a best efforts basis in connection with the offering by the Company (the
“Offering”) of up to 250,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock (the “Shares™), at a price
per share of $20.00.

The Company has filed or will file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“Commission”) an offering statement on Form 1-A (File No. ) (the “Offering
Statement”), which includes an Offering Circular (the “QOffering Circular”) for the offering of the
Shares pursuant to an exemption under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”).
Copies of the Offering Statement, including all exhibits and schedules thereto, any amendments
thereto and all Offering Circulars have or will be delivered to the Placement Agent.

In light of the background set forth above, the representations, warranties and covenants
set forth below, and the transactions contemplated hereby, the parties agree as follows:

1. Representations and Warranties of the Company. The Company represents and
warrants to the Placement Agent, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that:

(a) The Company is not required to file, and it has never filed, reports under Section
13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the

“Exchange Act”);

()  Except for documents that have been filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Rule 254 under the 1933 Act, the Company has not
distributed and will not, without the prior consent of the Placement Agent,
distribute any offering material in connection with the Offering other than the
Offering Circular.
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(d)

(e)

The Company has been duly organized and is validly existing under the laws of
the State of Oregon, is duly registered as a bank holding company under the Bank
Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, and is qualified to do business as a
foreign corporation in each jurisdiction in which the ownership or leasing of
properties or the conduct of its business requires such qualification, except where
failure to be so qualified would not have a material adverse effect upon the
business, condition (financial or otherwise), properties or results of operations of
the Company and its subsidiary, Columbia Community Bank (the “Bank”), taken
as a whole. The Bank has been duly incorporated and is in good standing under
the laws of the State of Oregon and is qualified to do business as a foreign
corporation in each jurisdiction in which the ownership or leasing of properties or
the conduct of its business requires such qualification, except where failure to be
so qualified would not have a material adverse effect upon the business, condition
(financial or otherwise), properties or results of operations of the Company and
the Bank, taken as a whole. Each of the Company and the Bank has all requisite
power and authority (corporate and other) to own its respective properties and
conduct its respective businesses as currently being carried on and as may be
described in the Offering Circular. Except as described in the Offering Circular,
the Company owns all of the outstanding capital stock of the Bank, free of any
liens, claims, charges or encumbrances. The accounts of the Bank are insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”) up to the maximum
applicable amount in accordance with the rules and regulations of the FDIC, and
no proceedings for the termination or revocation of such membership or insurance
are pending or threatened. Except for the Bank and Columbia Commercial
Statutory Trust I, the Company does not own or control, nor is it owned or
controlled by, any corporation, association or other entity, whether directly or
indirectly.

At the time of sale and issuance of the Shares, the Shares will have been validly
issued and will be fully paid and non-assessable. The Shares will be issued in
compliance with, or pursuant to exemptions from, the registration requirements of
federal and applicable state securities laws. No preemptive rights of shareholders
exist with respect to any of the Shares or the issue and sale thereof. The Offering
and the sale of the Shares as contemplated by this Agreement will not give rise to
any rights, other than those that have been waived or satisfied, for or relating to
the registration, qualification, or listing of any securities issued or issuable by the
Company. There are no options, warrants or other rights to purchase, agreements
or other obligations to issue, or other rights to convert any obligations into, shares
of capital stock or ownership interests in the Company outstanding, except as
described in the Offering Circular.

Neither the Commission nor any other regulatory authority has ever issued an
order against the Company or any of the Company’s officers (as defined in Rule
16a-1(f) under the Exchange Act) or directors relating to such person’s
participation in any act or omission that was, or was alleged to be, in violation of
the registration requirements or antifraud provisions of the 1933 Act or the
Exchange Act, nor has any state securities commission or law enforcement
agency entered any order or commenced or threatened any litigation (whether
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criminal, civil or administrative) against any such person relating to the offer and
sale of securities, nor, in any such case, is the Company aware that a basis exists
for any such action.

63 Neither the Commission nor any state securities commission has ever issued an
order preventing, delaying or suspending the use of any registration statement,
prospectus or other selling literature relating to the proposed offering of securities
by the Company, nor have any of them ever instituted proceedings for that

purpose.

(g0  Moss Adams LLP who certified the audited financial statements for fiscal years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 included in the Offering Statement and the
Offering Circular are independent public accountants with respect to the
Company.

(h)  The consolidated financial statements of the Company, together with the notes
thereto included in the Offering Statement and Offering Circular comply in all
material respects with the requirements of the 1993 Act and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder and fairly present the financial position of the
Company as of the dates indicated and the results of operations and changes in
financial position for the periods therein specified; and said consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles consistently applied throughout the periods involved. The financial
information included in the Offering Circular under the caption “Business —
Columbia Commercial Bancorp — Columbia Commercial Bancorp Selected
Financial Information as of June 30, 2004” presents fairly on the basis stated in
the Offering Circular the information purported to be shown therein at the dates
and for the periods indicated.

() The conditions for use of Form 1-A, as set forth in the General Instructions
thereto, have been satisfied.

G) Since the respective dates as of which information is given in the Offering
Statement and the Offering Circular, and except as otherwise disclosed therein, (i)
there has been no material adverse change in the condition (financial or
otherwise), financial results or business affairs of the Company and the Bank,
taken as a whole, whether or not arising in the ordinary course of business, (i1)
there have been no transactions entered into by the Company or the Bank which
would materially affect the Company or the Bank, other than in the ordinary
course of business, (iii) there has been no dividend or distribution of any kind
declared, paid or made by the Company on any class of its capital stock or on any
class of capital stock of a subsidiary, (iv) neither the Company nor the Bank has
incurred, other than in the ordinary course of business, any material liabilities or
obligations, direct or contingent, and (v) there has not been (A) any change in the
capital stock of the Company or the Bank (except for options granted (or the
exercise thereof) pursuant to or shares of Common Stock issued pursuant to the
employee benefit plans of, or as compensation to the directors of, the Company),
or any issuance of warrants, convertible securities or other rights to purchase

PAGE 3 - PLACEMENT AGENT AGREEMENT
Page 84



(k)

D

(m)

()

capital stock of the Company or any subsidiary (except as noted above), or (B)
any material increase in the short-term or long-term debt (including capitalized
lease obligations) of the Company or the Bank, except indebtedness and deposit
liabilities incurred by the Bank in the ordinary course of their banking business.
Neither the Company nor the Bank has any contingent liabilities which are not
disclosed in the Offering Circular or in the Offering Statement that are material to
the Company and the Bank, taken as a whole.

As of the time the Offering Statement is or was qualified by order of the
Commission, and until the completion of the Offering, (A) the Offering Statement
and Offering Circular conformed or will conform in all material respects to the
requirements of the 1933 Act and the rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder, (B) the Offering Statement did not or will not include an untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated
therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, and (C) the
Offering Circular did not or will not include an untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make
the statements therein, in light of the circumstances in which they are or were
made, not misleading; except that the foregoing shall not apply to statements in or
omissions from any such document in reliance upon, and in conformity with,
written information furnished to the Company by the Placement Agent
specifically for use in the preparation thereof. If the Offering Statement has been
qualified by order of the Commission, no stop order suspending the effectiveness
of the Offering Statement has been issued, and no proceeding for that purpose has
been initiated or, to the Company’s knowledge, threatened by the Commission.

There are no contracts or documents of the Company or the Bank that are required
to be filed as exhibits to the Offering Statement by the 1933 Act or by the rules
and regulations promulgated thereunder, which contracts or documents have not
been so filed as required.

There is no action, suit, claim or proceeding pending or, to the knowledge of the
Company, threatened against the Company or the Bank before any court or
administrative agency or otherwise that, if determined adversely to the Company
or the Bank, might (a) result in any change in the eamings, business,
management, properties, assets, rights, operations, condition (financial or other)
or prospects of the Company that is materially adverse to the Company or the
Bank, taken as a whole, or (b) prevent the consummation of the Offering. To the
Company’s knowledge, there are no material legal or governmental actions, suits
or proceedings pending or threatened against any executive officer or director of
the Company or the Bank, that could have a material adverse effect on the
condition (financial or otherwise), properties, business, results of operations or
prospects of the Company and the Bank, taken as a whole.

Neither the Company nor the Bank is, or, with the giving of notice or lapse of
time or both, will be, in violation of or in default under its Articles of
Incorporation or Bylaws or under any agreement, lease, contract, indenture or
other instrument or obligation to which it is a party or by which it, or any of its
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properties, is bound and which default is of material significance in respect of the
business or financial condition of the Company and the Bank, taken as a whole.
The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the
transactions herein contemplated and the fulfillment of the terms hereof will not
conflict with or result in a breach of any of the terms or provisions of, or
constitute a default under, any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust or other
agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party, or of the Articles of
Incorporation or Bylaws of the Company, or any order, rule or regulation
applicable to the Company of any court or of any regulatory body or
administrative agency or other governmental body having jurisdiction.

The Company has full legal right, power and authority to enter into this
Agreement and to take the actions and perform the transactions contemplated
hereby. This Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the
Company and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the Company
enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except as may be
limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other similar
laws relating to or affecting creditors’ rights generally or by general equitable
principles. Each approval, consent, order, authorization, designation, declaration
or filing by or with any regulatory, administrative or other governmental body
necessary in connection with the execution and delivery by the Company of this
Agreement and the consummation of the Offering (except such additional steps as
may be required by the Commission, or the NASD, or such additional steps as
may be necessary to qualify the Shares for public offering under state securities or
Blue Sky laws), has been obtained or made and is in full force and effect.

The authorized capital stock of the Company as of June 30, 2004 is as set forth
under the caption “Description of Capital Stock™ in the Offering Circular and
there have not been any subsequent issuances of capital stock of the Company,
except for subsequent issuances, if any, pursuant to any employee, officer or
director benefit or compensation plans. All of the outstanding shares of capital
stock of the Company have been duly authorized, validly issued and are fully paid
and nonassessable. Neither the filing of the Offering Statement nor the offering or
sale of the Shares, as contemplated by the Offering Circular, gives rise to any
rights, other than those which have been waived or satisfied, for or relating to the
registration of any shares of capital stock or other securities of the Company. All
of the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of the Bank have been duly
authorized, validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable.

The Company has filed all federal, state, local and foreign income and franchise
tax returns required to be filed or has requested extensions thereof, except in any
case in which the failure so to file would not, individually or in the aggregate,
have a material adverse effect on the business, condition (financial or otherwise),
properties or results or operations of the Company and the Bank, taken as a
whole, and are not in default in the payment of any taxes which were payable
pursuant to said returns or any assessments with respect thereto, other than any
which the Company or the Bank is contesting in good faith or as would not,
individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on the business,
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condition (financial or otherwise), properties or results or operations of the
Company and the Bank, taken as a whole.

Each of the Company and the Bank holds all material licenses, certificates and
permits from governmental authorities that are necessary to the conduct of its
business; and, to the knowledge of the Company, neither the Company nor the
Bank has infringed any patents, patent rights, trade names, trademarks or
copyrights, which infringement is material to the business of the Company and
the Bank, taken as a whole. The Company knows of no infringement by others of
material patents, patent rights, trade names, trademarks or copyrights owned by or
licensed to the Company or the Bank.

The Company is not an “investment company” within the meaning of Section 3(a)
of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”), and the
rules and regulations thereunder.

Other than as contemplated by this Agreement or described in the Offering
Statement, the Company has not incurred any liability for any finder's or broker's
fee or agent's commission in connection with the execution and delivery of this
Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

No report or application filed (after giving effect to any amendments thereto) by
the Company or the Bank with the Federal Reserve Board (the “FRB”), the
Oregon Division of Finance and Corporate Securities, the FDIC or other
regulatory authority having jurisdiction over it (each such report or application,
together with all exhibits thereto, a "Regulatory Report"), as of the date it was
filed (after giving effect to any amendments thereto), contained an untrue
statement of a material fact or omitted to state a material fact required to be stated
therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading when made or
failed to comply in all material aspects with the applicable requirements of the
FRB, the Oregon Division of Finance and Corporate Securities, the FDIC or such
other regulatory authority (the “Banking Regulators”), as the case may be. The
Company and the Bank have filed each Regulatory Report that they were required
to file with any Banking Regulator, which is material to or could reasonably be
expected to be material to the business, operations, financial condition or the
Company and the Bank taken as a whole.

Each of the Company and the Bank is insured by insurers of recognized financial
responsibility against such losses and risks and in such amounts as are prudent
and customary in the course of banking business generally. Neither the Company
nor the Bank has been refused any insurance coverage it has sought or applied for.

Any certificate signed by any officer of the Company and delivered to the
Placement Agent shall be deemed a representation and warranty by the Company
to the Placement Agent as to the matters covered thereby.
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Representations and Warranties of the Placement Agent.

(a) The Placement Agent represents and warrants to the Company that none
of the Placement Agent, or any of its partners, directors, officers, is subject to
disqualification under Rule 262 under the Securities Act of 1933.

3. Sale and Delivery of the Offered Shares. .

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

On the basis of the representations, warranties and covenants herein contained,
and subject to the terms and conditions herein set forth, the Placement Agent
agrees to exercise its reasonable best efforts to locate purchasers for, and to assist
the Company in effecting sales of a minimum of 125,000 shares ($2.5 million), at
a price per share of $20.00. The Company and the Placement Agent shall agree
on a timeline for notice to the Placement Agent of whether the Placement Agent
will be permitted to place any additional shares.

The closing of the Offering (the “Closing”) will occur from time-to-time as
mutually agreed upon by the Company and the Placement Agent (the “Closing
Date”).

The Company shall credit purchased Shares to the accounts of the purchasers
thereof immediately upon notification by the Company to the Placement Agent of
acceptance of such purchaser’s subscription. The certificates for the Shares will
be delivered in such denominations and in such registrations as the Company
reasonably deems appropriate unless a specific purchaser requests reasonable
accommodation, in which case the Company shall comply therewith, provided
that such accommodation does not, in the judgment of the Company, impose
unreasonable burden or expense on the Company. '

Payment for the Shares purchased pursuant to selling efforts by the Placement
Agent (“Davidson Offered Shares” as defined in the Offering Statement) shall be
made by or on behalf of the purchasers to the Placement Agent for the account of
the Company by wire transfer or other delivery of immediately available funds, or
by such other means as may be acceptable to the Placement Agent in its sole
discretion and transmitted to the Company no later than the next business day
after the Placement Agent received a completed subscription agreement and funds
from purchasers. Payment for all other Shares (“Company Offered Shares” as
defined in the Offering Statement) shall be made by or on behalf of the purchasers
to the Company by wire transfer of immediately available funds, or by such other
means as may be acceptable to the Company in its sole discretion. The Placement
Agent and the Company shall each deposit all funds from such subscriptions in an
account established by the Company for purposes of receiving the Offering
proceeds.

The cash proceeds from accepted subscriptions for Davidson Offered Shares will
be distributed as follows: (i) seven percent (7%) of the aggregate cash proceeds
from Davidson Offered Shares, shall be distributed to the Placement Agent as
compensation (the “Placement Agent Commission™) for the Placement Agent’s
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services in connection with the Offering; (ii) any amounts payable in respect of
the Expense Allowance and Additional Expenses (each as defined below)
incurred but not previously paid to the Placement Agent will be distributed to the
Placement Agent; and (iii) the balance of such proceeds will be retained by the
Company.

In addition to the Placement Agent Commission the Company shall reimburse to
the Placement Agent for up to a maximum of $10,000 (the “Expense Allowance”)
for all fees and expenses incurred by or on behalf of the Placement Agent;
provided that such amount shall not include amounts for Additional Expenses (as
defined below). For purposes of this Agreement “Additional Expenses” will
include fees and expenses incurred by or on behalf of the Placement Agent for (i)
Blue Sky and state securities filing fees and expenses, including fees and
expenses of the Placement Agent’s counsel if retained; (i1) NASD filing fees and
expenses; and (iii) other expenses jointly determined by the parties to be outside
the expected scope of the Expense Allowance. The Company shall pay all transfer
taxes and like charges levied in connection with the sale and issuance of the
Shares.

4. Covenants of the Company. The Company covenants and agrees with the Placement

Agent that:
(2)

When prepared and until completion of the Offering, the Offering Circular will
contain all statements that are required to be stated therein, will not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact, and will not omit to state any material fact
required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not
misleading in the light of the circumstances under which they were made.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, with respect to the Offering
Circular:

(i) The Company will not, without the prior consent of the Placement Agent
deliver or distribute any offering material in connection with the Offering other
than the Offering Circular;

(ily  The Company’s capital stock will comply in every material respect with
the description thereof contained in the Offering Circular and the Offering
Circular will describe in every material respect the Company’s capital stock;

(iii)  The Offering Circular will describe accurately any material legal or
governmental actions, proceedings, or suits pending or known to be threatened
against the Company or any of the Company’s executive officers or directors in
their capacity as such; and

(iv)  The Offering Circular will describe accurately the Company’s properties,
the limitations thereon, the encumbrances and leases pertaining thereto, and the
adequacy thereof.
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The Company will advise the Placement Agent promptly of any request from any
of the Company’s regulators for any additional information, and of the issuance or
entry by any such agency of any stop order, cease and desist order, or similar
action suspending the Offering, or of the institution of any proceedings for that
purpose. The Company will use its reasonable best efforts to prevent the issuance
of any such order or action and, if issued, to obtain as soon as possible the lifting
thereof.

Subject to the Company’s discretion to limit offers and sales in certain
jurisdictions as described in the Offering Circular, the Company will cooperate
with the Placement Agent in endeavoring to qualify the Shares for sale under the
securities laws of such jurisdictions as the Placement Agent may reasonably have
designated in writing and will make such applications, file such documents, and
furnish such information as may be reasonably required for that purpose, provided
the Company shall not be required to qualify as a foreign corporation or to file a
general consent to service of process in any jurisdiction where it is not now so
qualified or required to file such a consent. The Company will, from time to time,
prepare and file such statements, reports, and other documents, as are or may be
required to continue such qualifications in effect for so long a period as the
Placement Agent may reasonably request for purposes of completing distribution
of the Shares in the Offering.

The Company hereby authorizes the Placement Agent, when and if it is
determined by the Placement Agent to be necessary to do so, to file with the OTC
Bulletin Board a listing application (the “Listing Application”) respecting the
Common Stock, together with such schedules, exhibits and other supporting
materials as may be reasonably necessary or appropriate to support the same. The
Company will provide all reasonably necessary assistance to the Placement Agent
to obtain approval of the Listing Application and, if approved, the Company will
enter into a Listing Agreement with the OTC Bulletin Board in customary form.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall not be required to register any
class of its capital stock under Section 12 of the Exchange Act in order to satisfy
such listing or qualification requirements.

The Company will deliver to the Placement Agent or to prospective purchasers at
the Placement Agent’s direction, from time to time, as many copies of the
Offering Circular as the Placement Agent may reasonably request.

The Company will comply with the 1933 Act and the Exchange Act, and the rules
and regulations thereunder, so as to permit the completion of the distribution of
the Shares as contemplated in this Agreement and the Offering Circular. If, during
the pendency of the Offering, any event shall occur as a result of which, in the
judgment of the Company or in the reasonable opinion of the Placement Agent, it
becomes necessary to amend or supplement the Offering Circular in order to
make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances existing at the time
the Offering Circular is delivered to a purchaser, not misleading, or if it is
necessary at any time to amend or supplement the Offering Circular to comply
with any law, the Company promptly will prepare such an amendment or
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supplement and, to the extent necessary so that the Offering Circular as so
amended or supplemented will not, in the light of the circumstances when it is so
delivered, contain any false statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary, in light of the circumstances as a whole, to render the same
accurate in all material respects.

Upon request from Davidson, the Company will provide any of the information
required to be maintained in Davidson’s records under Rule 15¢2-11 of the
Exchange Act for Davidson to submit quotations of the Company’s stock for
publication.

No offering, sale, short sale or other disposition of any shares of Common Stock
of the Company or other securities convertible into or exchangeable or
exercisable for shares of Common Stock or derivative of Common Stock (or
agreement for such) will be made for a period of 180 days after the date of this
Agreement, directly or indirectly, by the Company otherwise than hereunder or
with the prior written consent of the Placement Agent, except that the Company
may, without such consent, (a) grant options to purchase shares of common stock
or grant shares pursuant to the Company’s stock option plan or stock incentive
plan and (b) issue shares upon the exercise of options granted pursuant to the
Company’s stock option plan or stock incentive plan..

Neither the Company nor any of its affiliates, nor any person acting on behalf of
any of them will, directly or indirectly, (2) take any action designed to cause or to
result in, or that has constituted or which might reasonably be expected to
constitute, the stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of the
Company to facilitate the sale or resale of the Shares; or (b) bid for, purchase, or
pay anyone any compensation for soliciting purchases of, the Shares in the
Offering, or pay or agree to pay to any person any compensation for soliciting
another to purchase any other securities of the Company, otherwise than as
provided in this Agreement.

The Company will cooperate in all respects with the due diligence inquiries of the
Placement Agent and its counsel and will make available all information
reasonably requested in connection therewith, Without limiting the generality of
the foregoing, the Company will timely provide copies of all documents,
electronic media and other materials in such form as the Placement Agent or its
counsel may reasonably request from time to time, and will deliver the same at
the reasonable direction of the Placement Agent or its counsel.

The Company will make available its management personnel to the Placement
Agent, or to prospective purchasers of the Shares upon request of the Placement
Agent, at reasonable times and on reasonable prior notice for the purposes of
answering such questions and providing such information as may be necessary or
appropriate in the Placement Agent’s reasonable discretion; provided that, this
Section 3(k) shall not be construed to require the Company to take any action or
make any disclosure that would, in the reasonable opinion of counsel to the
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Company, result in a disqualification of the Offering from exemption under the
1933 Act.

O The Company will apply the net proceeds from the Offering substantially as set
forth under “Use of Proceeds” in the Offering Circular.

(m)  If at any time during the Offering any rumor, publication or event relating to or
affecting the Company shall occur as a result of which, in the Placement Agent’s
sole judgment, the market price of the Shares has been or is likely to be materially
affected (regardless of whether such rumor, publication or event necessitates a
supplement to or amendment of the Offering Circular), the Company will, after
notice from the Placement Agent advising the Company to the effect set forth
above, consult with the Placement Agent concerning the substance of, and
consider disseminating a press release or other public statement reasonably
satisfactory to the Placement Agent responding to or commenting on, such rumor,
publication or event.

5. Covenants of the Placement Agent.

(@) The Placement Agent will deliver a copy of the Offering Circular and related
subscription agreement to each prospective purchaser of Davidson Offered Shares
in accordance with Regulation A under the 1933 Act, and shall otherwise conduct
its participation in the Offering in accordance with Regulation A.

(b)  The Placement Agent shall promptly notify the Company of any circumstance
that is reasonably likely to result in the disqualification under Rule 262 of the
Placement Agent or any of its directors or officers.

6. Conditions to Obligations of the Placement Agent. The obligations of the
Placement Agent to exercise its best efforts to place for sale the Davidson Offered Shares are
subject to the continuing accuracy during the Offering and until the Closing of the Company’s
representations and warranties herein, to the Company’s performance of its covenants and
obligations hereunder, and to the following additional conditions:

(a)  No stop order relating to the Offering, or the Offering Circular, shall have been
issued and no proceedings for that purpose shall have been taken or, to the
knowledge of the Company, shall be contemplated by any of the Company’s
regulators, or any state securities commissioner, and no injunction, restraining
order, or order of any nature by a federal or state court shall have been issued that
would prevent the issuance of the Shares.

(b)  The Placement Agent shall have received the opinion of Foster Pepper Tooze
LLP, counsel for the Company, dated as of the Closing of the Offering and
addressed to the Placement Agent (and stating that it may be relied upon by
counsel to the Placement Agent), with respect to the matters set forth in Exhibit A
hereto. The opinion will be based solely on the law of the State of Oregon. In
addition to the matters set forth above, such opinion shall also include a statement
to the effect that nothing has come to the attention of such counsel that leads it to
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(d)

(e)

believe that as of the date first delivered to prospective purchasers and continuing
until the Closing Date the Offering Circular contains an untrue statement of a
material fact or omits a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to
make the statements therein not misleading, (except that such counsel need
express no view as to financial statements, schedules and statistical information
therein). With respect to such statement, counsel for the Company may state that
their belief is based upon the exercise of due diligence.

The Placement Agent shall have received from counsel for the Company prior to
the initiation of the Offering a memorandum or summary, in form and substance
satisfactory to the Placement Agent, with respect to the qualification for offering
and sale by the Placement Agent of the Shares under the state securities or Blue
Sky laws of such jurisdictions as the Placement Agent may reasonably have
designated to the Company.

The NASD shall have reviewed and approved as to form and substance the
faimess of this Agreement and the Placement Agent’s Compensation.

The Placement Agent shall have received as of the commencement of the
Offering and as of the completion of the Offering, a certificate or certificates of
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company to
the effect that as of such date each of them severally represents as follows:

1) No stop order or cease and desist order relating to the Offering has been
issued, and no proceedings for such purpose have been taken or are, to his or her
knowledge, contemplated by the Commission or any state securities
commissioner;

(i)  The Company’s representations and warranties contained in Section 1 are
true and correct in all material respects;

(iii)  He or she has carefully examined the Offering Circular and, in his or her
opinion, as of the commencement of the Offering and as of the completion of the
Offering, the statements contained in the Offering Circular were true and correct,
and the Offering Circular does not omit to state a material fact required or
necessary in order to make the statements therein not misleading, and, in his or
her opinion, since the commencement of the Offering, no event has occurred that
should have been set forth in a supplement to or an amendment of the Offering
Circular that has not been set forth in such a supplement or amendment; and

(iv)  Since the date of the Offering Circular, there has not been any material
adverse change or any development involving a prospective material adverse
change in or affecting the Company’s condition, financial or otherwise, or its
earnings, business affairs, management, or business prospects, whether or not
occurring in the ordinary course of business, and there has not been any material
transaction entered into by the Company, other than the transactions in the
ordinary course of business and changes and transactions contemplated by the
Oftering Circular.
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® The Company shall have furnished to the Placement Agent such further
certificates and documents confirming the representations and warranties,
covenants and conditions contained herein and related matters as the Placement
Agent may reasonably have requested.

The opinions and certificates mentioned in this Agreement shall be deemed to be in
compliance with the provisions hereof if they comply in all material respects with the
requirements for such opinions and certificates as set forth in this Agreement.

If any of the conditions hereinabove provided for in this Section 6 shall not have been
fulfilled when and as required by this Agreement to be fulfilled, the obligations of the Placement
Agent hereunder may be terminated by the Placement Agent by notifying the Company of such
termination in writing at or prior to the Closing Date.

, In such event, the Company and the Placement Agent shall not be under any obligation to
each other (except to the extent provided in Section 6 hereof).

7. Conditions to the Obligations of the Company. The obligations of the Company to
sell and deliver the Davidson Offered Shares in the Offering are subject to the condition that at
the time of each respective sale of the Shares, no stop order, cease and desist order, or injunction
relating to the Offering shall have been issued and in effect or proceedings therefor initiated or
threatened. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Agreement shall inhibit or preclude
the Company’s right to accept or reject any subscription for any reason whatsoever prior to
acceptance of the subscription by the Company in accordance with the terms of the Offering set
forth in the Offering Circular. Nothing in this Section 7 limits the Company’s ability to
terminate the Offering in its sole discretion as described in the Offering Circular.

8. Indemnification.

(a) The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Placement Agent and
each person, if any, who controls the Placement Agent within the meaning of the
1933 Act, against any losses, claims, damages or liabilities to which the
Placement Agent or any such controlling person may become subject under the
1933 Act, the Exchange Act, or otherwise, insofar as such losses, claims, damages
or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) arise out of or are based
upon (i) any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of any material fact
contained in the Offering Statement, Offering Circular, or any amendment or
supplement thereto, or (ii) the omission or alleged omission to state therein a
material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements
therein not misleading; and will reimburse the Placement Agent and each such
controlling person for any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred by the
Placement Agent or such controlling person in connection with investigating or
defending any such loss, claim, damage or liability, action or proceeding or in
responding to a subpoena or governmental inquiry related to the offering of the
Shares, whether or not the Placement Agent or controlling person is a party to any
action or proceeding; provided, however, that the Company will not be liable in
any such case to the extent that any such loss, claim, damage or liability arises out
of or is based upon an untrue statement or alleged untrue statement, or omission
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or alleged omission made in the Offering Statement, Offering Circular, or any
amendment or supplement to either of them, in reliance upon and in conformity
with written information furnished to the Company by or through the Placement
Agent specifically for use in the preparation thereof This indemnity agreement
will be in addition to and not in limitation of any liability that the Company may
otherwise have.

The Placement Agent agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company, each
of its directors, and each person, if any, who controls the Company within the
meaning of the 1933 Act, against any losses, claims, damages or liabilities to
which the Company or any such director, officer, or controlling person may
become subject under the 1933 Act or otherwise, insofar as such losses, claims,
damages or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) arise out of or
are based upon (i) any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of any
material fact contained in the Offering Statement, Offering Circular or any
amendment or supplement thereto, (ii) the omission or the alleged omission to
state therein a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the
statements therein not misleading in the light of the circumstances under which
they were made; and will reimburse the Company or any such person for any
legal or other expenses reasonably incurred by the Company or any such director,
officer, or controlling person in connection with investigating or defending any
such loss, claim, damage, liability, action or proceeding or in responding to a
subpoena or government inquiry relating to the offering of the Shares, whether or
not the Company or any such director, officer, or controlling person is a party to
any action or proceeding; provided, however, that the Placement Agent will be
liable in each case only to the extent that such untrue statement or alleged untrue
staterent or omission or alleged omission has been made in the Offering
Statement, Offering Circular or such amendment or supplement thereto, in
reliance upon and in conformity with information furnished to the Company by or
through the Placement Agent specifically for use in the preparation thereof. This
indemnity agreement will be in addition to and not in limitation of any liability
that such Placement Agent may have otherwise.

In case any proceeding (including any governmental investigation) shall be
instituted involving any person in respect of which indemnity may be sought
pursuant to this Section 8, such person (the “indemnified party”) shall promptly
notify the person against whom such indemnity may be sought (the “indemnifying
party”’) in writing. No indemnification provided for in Sections 8(a) and (b) shall
be available to any party who shall fail to give notice as provided in this Section
8(c) if the party to whom notice was not given was unaware of the proceeding to
which such notice would have related and was materially prejudiced by the failure
to give such notice, but the failure to give such notice shall not relieve the
indemnifying party or parties from any liability that it or they may have to the
indemnified party for contribution or otherwise than on account of the provisions
of Sections 8(a) and (b). In case any such proceeding shall be brought against any
indemnified party and it shall notify the indemnifying party of the commencement
thereof, the indemnifying party shall be entitled to participate therein and, to the
extent that it shall wish, jointly with any other indemnifying party similarly
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notified, to assume the defense thereof, with counsel reasonably satisfactory to
such indemnified party and shall pay as incurred the fees and disbursements of
such counsel related to such proceeding. In any such proceeding, any indemnified
party shall have the right to retain its own counsel at its own expense.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the indemnifying party shall pay as incurred (or
within 30 days of presentation) the fees and expenses of the counsel retained by
the indemnified party in the event (i) the indemnifying party and the indemnified
party shall have mutually agreed to the retention of such counsel or (ii) the named
parties to any such proceeding (including any impleaded parties) include both the
indemnifying party and the indemnified party and representation of both parties
by the same counsel would be inappropriate due to actual or potential differing
interests between them. It is understood that the indemnifying party shall not, in
connection with any proceeding or related proceedings in the same jurisdiction, be
liable for the reasonable fees and expenses of more than one separate firm for all
such indemnified parties, unless representation of multiple parties by the same
counsel would be inappropriate due to actual or potential differing interests
between them. Such firm shall be designated in writing by the Placement Agent in
the case of parties indemnified pursuant to Section 8(a) and by the Company in
the case of parties indemnified pursuant to Section 8(b). The indemnifying party
shall not be liable for any settlement of any proceeding effected without its
written consent but if settled with such consent or if there be a final judgment for
the plaintiff, the indemnifying party agrees to indemnify the indemnified party
from and against any loss or liability by reason of such settlement or judgment.

If the indemnification provided for in this Section 8 is unavailable to or
insufficient to hold harmless an indemnified party under Sections 8(a) and (b)
above in respect of any losses, claims, damages or liabilities {or actions or
proceedings in respect thereof) referred to therein, then each indemnifying party
shall contribute to the amount paid or payable by such indemnified party as a
result of such losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in
respect thereof) in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative benefits
received by the Company on the one hand and the Placement Agent on the other
from the offering of the Shares. If, however, the allocation provided by the
immediately preceding sentence is not permitted by applicable law then each
indemnifying party shall contribute to such amount paid or payable by such
indemnified party in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect not only such
relative benefits but also the relative fault of the Company on the one hand and
the Placement Agent on the other in connection with the statements or omissions
that resulted in such losses, claims, damages or liabilities, (or actions or
proceedings in respect thereof), as well as any other relevant equitable
considerations. The relative benefits received by the Company on the one hand
and the Placement Agent on the other shall be deemed to be in the same
proportion as the total proceeds from the sale of Davidson Offered Shares (before
deducting expenses) received by the Company bear to the total compensation
received by the Placement Agent (not including reimbursements for expenses,
whether or not accountable). The relative fault shall be determined by reference
to, among other things, whether the untrue or alleged untrue statement of a
material fact or the omission or alleged omission to state a material fact relates to
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information supplied by the Company on the one hand or the Placement Agent on
the other and the parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to information and
opportunity to correct or prevent such statement or omission.

The Company and the Placement Agent agree that it would not be just and
equitable if contributions pursuant to this Section 8(d) were determined by pro
rata allocation or by any other method of allocation that does not take account of
the equitable considerations referred to above in this Section 8(d). The amount
paid or payable by an indemnified party as a result of the losses, claims, damages
or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) referred to above in this
Section 8(d) shall be deemed to include, subject to the limitations set forth above,
any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred by such indemnified party in
connection with investigating or defending any such action or claim.
Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section 8(d)), (i) the Placement Agent shall
not be required to contribute any amount in excess of the commissions applicable
to the Davidson Offered Shares and (ii) no person guilty of fraudulent
misrepresentation shall be entitled to contribution from any person who was not
guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation.

(e In any proceeding relating to the Offering Circular or any supplement or
amendment thereto, each party against whom contribution may be sought under
this Section 8 hereby consents to the jurisdiction of any court having jurisdiction
over any other contributing party, agrees that process issuing from such court may
be served upon him or it by any other contributing party and consents to the
service of such process and agrees that any other contributing party may join him
or it as an additional defendant in any such proceeding in which such other
contributing party is a party.

69} Any losses, claims, damages, liabilities or expenses for which an indemnified
party is entitled to indemnification or contribution under this Section 8 shall be
paid by the indemnifying party to the indemnified party as such losses, claims,
damages, liabilities or expenses are incurred, except as provided in Section 8(c).
A successor to the Placement Agent, or to the Company, its directors or officers,
or any person controlling the Company, shall be entitled to the benefits of the
indemnity, contribution and reimbursement agreements contained in this Section
8.

9. Notices. All communications hereunder shall be in writing and, except as otherwise
provided herein, will be mailed, hand or courier delivered, telecopied or delivered by electronic
mail (and in the case of telecopy or electronic mail, accompanied by electronic answerback or
automatic delivery confirmation) as follows:
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If to the Placement Agent: With a copy to:

D.A. Davidson & Co. D.A. Davidson & Co.

Two Centerpointe Drive 8 Third Street North

Suite 400 Great Falls, MT 59401

Lake Oswego, Oregon 97035 Attention: Larry Martinez
Attention: Daren J. Shaw Facsimile: 406-791-7380
Facsimile: 503-603-3065 Electronic Mail: Imartinez@dadco.com

Electronic Mail: dshaw@dadco.com

If to the Company: With a copy to:

Columbia Commercial Bancorp Foster Pepper Tooze LLP

314 East Main Street, Suite A 601 SW 2™ Avenue, Suite 1800
Hillsboro, Oregon 97123 Portland, Oregon 97204-3171
Attention: Rick Roby Attention: Gordon E. Crim
Facsimile: 503-846-9528 Facsimile: 800-600-1964

Electronic Mail: Electronic Mail: crimg@fosterpdx.com

rick@columbiacommunitybank.com

Any such notice shall be effective, in the case of deliver, at the time of delivery, and in the case
of mail or telecopier, at the time of dispatch with electronic confirmation of answerback.

10. Termination.

(a)
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This Agreement may be terminated by the Placement Agent by notice to the
Company at any time prior to the completion of the Offering if any of the
following has occurred:

(1) the Company shall have failed to perform all obligations and satisfy all
conditions on its part to be satisfied or performed hereunder at or prior to the
Closing Date; -

(i)  the Company shall have, in the sole judgment of the Placement Agent,
sustained any material loss or interference with its business or properties from
fire, flood, hurricane, accident or other calamity, whether or not covered by
insurance, or from any labor dispute or any legal or governmental proceeding, or
there shall have been any materially adverse change (including, without
limitation, a change in senior management or control), or constitute a
development involving a prospective materially adverse change, in the
Company’s condition (financial or otherwise) or its earnings, business,
management, properties, assets, rights, operations or prospects, except in each
case as described in or contemplated by the Offering Circular (as may have been
amended or supplemented as of such occurrence), and such event singly or
together with any other event makes it, in the sole judgment of the Placement
Agent, impracticable to market the Shares on the terms and in the manner
contemplated in the Offering Circular;

Page 98




(iii)  any outbreak or escalation of hostilities or declaration of war or national
emergency or other national or international calamity or crisis or material adverse
change in economic or political conditions if the effect of such outbreak,
escalation, declaration, emergency, calamity, crisis or material adverse change on
the financial markets of the United States would, in the reasonable judgment of
the Placement Agent, materially impair the ability to market the Shares or to
enforce contracts for the sale of the Shares;

(iv)  the enactment, publication, decree or other promulgation of any statute,
regulation, rule or order of any court or other governmental authority that, in the
opinion of the Placement Agent, materially and adversely affects or may
materially and adversely affect the Company’s business or operations;

(v)  declaration of a banking moratorium by federal or Oregon authorities; or

(vi)  the taking of any action by any governmental body or agency in respect of
its monetary or fiscal affairs that, in the opinion of the Placement Agent, has a
material adverse effect on the securities markets in the United States.

(b)  This Agreement may be terminated by the Company by notice to the Placement
Agent at any time prior to the Closing Date in the event the Company determines
it is in the best interest of the Company.

(© This Agreement shall terminate automatically without further action by either
party if the Company determines in its sole discretion to terminate the Offering as
described in the Offering Circular, or if for any other reason the Closing does not
occur. '

Termination of this Agreement pursuant to this Section 10 shall be without liability of any party
to any other party except for the liability of the Company in relation to commissions for
Davidson Offered Shares sold prior to such termination, the Expense Allowance and any unpaid
Additional Expenses as provided in Section 3 hereof, or the indemnity provided in Section 8
hereof.

11. Future Engagements. The Company agrees to use the Placement Agent as its
placement agent in any trust preferred securities offering by the Company within twelve months
from the date of this agreement.

12. Successors. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the
Placement Agent, the Company and their respective successors and legal representatives, and
nothing expressed or mentioned in this Agreement is intended or shall be construed to give any
other person any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under or in respect of this Agreement,
or any provisions herein contained, this Agreement and all conditions and provisions hereof
being intended to be and being for the sole and exclusive benefit of such persons and for the
benefit of no other person, except that (i) the indemnities of the Company contained in Section 6
hereof shall also be for the benefit of any person or persons who control the Placement Agent
within the meaning of Section 15 of the 1933 Act or Section 20 of the Exchange Act; and (ii) the
indemnities of the Placement Agent contained in Section 6 hereof shall also be for the benefit of

PAGE 18 - PLACEMENT AGENT AGREEMENT
G REEMEN | Page 99




the directors of the Company, the officers of the Company and any person or persons who
control the Company within the meaning of Section 15 of the 1933 Act or Section 20 of the
Exchange Act. No purchaser of Shares from the Placement Agent shall be deemed a successor
because of such purchase.

13. Miscellaneous. Time shall be of the essence of this Agreement.

It is the desire and intent of the parties that the provisions of this Agreement be enforced
to the fullest extent permissible under the law and public policies applied in each jurisdiction in
which enforcement is sought. Accordingly, in the event that any provision of this Agreement
would be held in any jurisdiction to be invalid, prohibited or unenforceable for any reason, such
provision, as to such jurisdiction, shall be ineffective, without invalidating the remaining
provisions of this Agreement or affecting the validity or enforceability of such provision in any
other jurisdiction.

The reimbursement, indemnification and contribution agreements contained in this
Agreement and the representations, warranties and covenants in this Agreement shall remain in
full force and effect regardless of (a) any termination of this Agreement, (b) any investigation
made by or on behalf of any Placement Agent or controlling person thereof, or by or on behalf of
the Company or its directors or officers and (c) the conclusion of the Offering under this
Agreement.

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the
State of Oregon.
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If the foregoing letter is in accordance with your understanding of our agreement, please sign and
return to us the enclosed duplicates hereof, whereupon it will become a binding agreement

among the Company and the Placement Agent in accordance with its terms.

Very truly yours,

D.A. DAVIDSON & CO.

Daren J. Shaw
Managing Director

The foregoing Placement Agent Agreement
is hereby confirmed and accepted as
of the date first above written.

COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP

By:

Rick Roby
Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT A
Form of Legal Opinion of Foster, Pepper Tooze LLP

D.A. Davidson & Co., as Placement Agent
Two Centerpointe Drive

Suite 400

Lake Oswego, Oregon 97035

Re:  Offering of up to 250,000 shares of Common Stock of Columbia
Commercial Bancorp

Ladies and Gentlemen:

INTRODUCTION

This firm has acted as special counsel to Columbia Commercial Bancorp, an Oregon
bank holding company (the “Company”) in connection with the proposed offering (the
“Offering”) of up to 250,000 shares of common stock of the Company (the “Shares) pursuant to
an Offering Circular, dated , 2004, in which Offering you have undertaken to assist the
Company in offering and selling the Shares in accordance with a Placement Agent Agreement
(the “Placement Agreement”) dated , 2004, between the Company and D.A.
Davidson & Co. (the “Placement Agent”).

Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed
to them in the Placement Agreement or in the Offering Circular. This opinion is given pursuant
to Section of the Placement Agreement.

SCOPE OF INVESTIGATION; DOCUMENTS REVIEWED

In the course of our representation, we have examined the Offering Circular and the
Placement Agreement, and the exhibits and annexes appended thereto. We have received from
officers of the Company, and have reviewed, copies of the Articles of Incorporation and bylaws
of the Bank and minutes of certain meetings of the Company’s Board of Directors. We have
reviewed certificates and other information from public officials in those jurisdictions that we
have deemed appropriate and have made such review of law as we consider necessary for the
purposes of this opinion. As to certain matters of fact material to the following opinions, we
have relied upon representations of representatives of the Company, including representations
and warranties made by the Company in the Placement Agreement, without independently
verifying the accuracy of those representations.

We have relied as to matters of fact upon the above documents and investigation. Where
we render an opinion “to our knowledge” or “known to us,” our opinion is based solely upon
(a) the conscious awareness of facts or other information by the attorneys within the firm who
have had active involvement in negotiation and preparation of the Placement Agreement and the
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Offering Circular. Unless we have specifically advised otherwise in this letter, we have not
undertaken or made any inquiry, search, investigation or legal or factual analysis or research to
verify the accuracy of any opinion which is rendered with the phrases “to our knowledge” or
“known to us.” No limited inquiry which we may have undertaken shall be considered an
independent investigation and the fact of our engagement to render this opinion letter shall not be
construed to imply knowledge of any matter on our part.

ASSUMPTIONS
This opinion assumes:

1. The authenticity and completeness of all documents submitted to us as originals,
and the conformity to authentic and complete original documents of all documents submitted to
us as certified, conformed or photostatic copies;

2. The genuineness of all signatures on all documents submitted to us, and the legal
competence of all natural persons who are signatories thereto;

3. That the Placement Agent has negotiated the Placement Agreement, and will
exercise its rights and remedies thereunder and under applicable law, in good faith, with fair
dealing, diligently, and in a commercially reasonable manner;

4. That the Placement Agent is duly formed and validly existing under the laws of its
jurisdiction of organization, has met all legal requirements applicable to it, and has all requisite
power and authority to enter into, and have taken all necessary action to execute and deliver, the
Placement Agreement and to effect the transactions contemplated thereby;

5. That the Placement Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered
by the Placement Agent and constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Placement
Agent, enforceable against it in accordance with the terms thereof;

6. That the representations of the parties to the Placement Agreement are accurate
and complete; and

7. That there has been no mutual mistake of fact or understanding, fraud, duress or
undue influence.

OPINIONS

Based on the foregoing, and subject to the assumptions, qualifications and limitations set
forth herein and incorporated herein by reference, we are of the opinion that:

0] Each of the Company and the Bank has been duly organized and is validly
existing as a bank holding company under the laws of the State of Oregon and
bank under the laws of the State of Oregon, respectively, with corporate power
and authority to own or lease its properties and to conduct its business as
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2)

(3)

(4)

©)

(0)

Y
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described in the Offering Circular; each of the Company and the Bank is duly
qualified to transact business in all jurisdictions in which the failure to qualify
would have a materially adverse effect upon the business of the Company and the
Bank, taken as whole; and, to our knowledge, the Company does not own or
control, directly or indirectly, any corporation, association or other entity other
than its two subsidiaries, Columbia Community Bank and Columbia Capital Trust
I. The Company is duly registered as a bank holding company under the Bank
Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended.

All of the issued and outstanding capital stock of the bank and the
common securities of Columbia Capital Trust I are owned by the Company.

The Company has authorized capital stock as set forth in the Offering
Circular; there are currently shares of capital stock issued and outstanding.
The Shares conform to the description thereof contained in the Offering Circular;
the form of certificates for the Shares complies as to form with the requirements
of Oregon law; the Shares have been duly authorized, fully paid and non-
assessable, and no preemptive rights of stockholders exist with respect to any of
the Shares or the issue or sale thereof.

Except as described in or contemplated by the Offering Circular, to our
knowledge, are no outstanding or authorized options, warrants or rights of any
character obligating the Company to issue any shares of its capital stock or any
securities convertible or exchangeable into or evidencing the right to purchase or
subscribe for any shares of such stock; and except as described in the Offering
Circular, to our knowledge, no holder of any securities of the Company or any
other person has a right, contractual or other, that has not been satisfied or
effectively waived, to cause the Company to sell or otherwise issue to them, or to
permit them to underwrite the sale of, any of the Shares or the right to have any
Common Stock or other securities of the Company included in the Offering
Circular or the right to require registration under the Securities Act of any shares
of Common Stock or other securities of the Company.

The statements under the captions “Description of Capital Stock,”
“Supervision and Regulation” and “Legal Proceedings” in the Offering Circular,
insofar as such statements constitute a summary of documents referred to therein
or matters of law, fairly summarize in all material respects the information called
for with respect to such documents and matters.

The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of
the transactions herein contemplated do not and will not conflict with or result in
a breach of any of the terms or provisions of, or constitute a default under, the
Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of the Company or any agreement or
instrument known to us to which the Company is a party or by which the
Company may be bound.

The Company has full corporate power and authority to enter into this
Agreement, to sell and deliver the Shares; this Agreement has been duly and
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(10)

(11

validly authorized by all necessary corporate action by the Company, has been
duly and validly executed and delivered by and on behalf of the Company, and is
a valid and binding agreement of the Company enforceable in accordance with its
terms, except as enforceability may be limited by general equitable principles, and
by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent transfer or
other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally, and except as to those provisions
relating to indemnity or contribution for liabilities arising under federal and state
securities laws (as to which we state no opinion); and no approval, authorization,
order, consent, registration, filing, qualification, license or permit of or with any
court, regulatory, administrative or other governmental body is required for the
execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Company or the consummation
of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, except (1) such as have been
obtained and are in full force and effect under the Securities Act, (ii) such as may
be required under applicable Blue Sky laws in connection with the purchase and
distribution of the Shares by the Placement Agent; and (iii) the clearance by the
National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. of the underwriting arrangements
contemplated hereby.

The Company is not, and will not become, as a result of the consummation
of the Offering and application of the net proceeds therefrom as described in the
Offering Circular, required to register as an investment company under the 1940
Act. ~

Upon delivery of the Shares and payment therefor as contemplated by the
Offering Circular, the purchasers thereof will acquire good and marketable title to

- the same on the Closing Date, free and clear of all liens, encumbrances, and

claims.

To our knowledge, there are no legal or governmental actions, suits or
proceedings pending or threatened to which the Company or any of its officers or
directors is or is threatened to be made a party or of which property owned or
leased by the Company is or is threatened to be made the subject, the outcome of
which could be expected to have a material adverse effect on the condition
(financial or otherwise), properties, business, results of operations or prospects of
the Company.

The conditions for use of Form 1-A, as set forth in the General
Instructions thereto, have been satisfied and the Offering Circular and any
amendment thereof or supplement thereto complies in all material respects with
the requirements of the 1933 Act and the rules and regulations thereunder.

OTHER MATTERS

In the course of the preparation of the Offering Circular, we have not independently
verified the accuracy, completeness or faimess of the statements contained in the Offering
Circular and we make no representation to you as to the accuracy, completeness or fairness of
the statements contained in the Offering Circular. However, nothing has come to our attention
that causes us to believe that the Offering Circular, as of its date, contained or contains any
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untrue statement of material fact, or omitted or omits to state a material fact required to be stated
therein or necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they
are made, not misleading (it being understood that we are not expressing any statement with
respect to any financial information contained therein).

OTHER QUALIFICATIONS

In addition to the qualifications, assumptions, and other limitations set forth in this
opinion of counsel, and without limiting the effect of such qualifications, assumptions and other
limitations, our opinion is further qualified as follows:

1. We express no opinion as to:
(2) provisions relating to the waiver of rights, remedies, and defenses;

(b)  provisions for payment or reimbursement of costs and expenses or
indemnification for claims, losses, or liabilities (including, without limitation, attorney
fees) in excess of statutory limits or an amount determined to be reasonable by any court
or other tribunal, and any provision for attorney fees other than to the prevailing party;

(©) provisions pertaining to jurisdiction and venue;

(d) limitations on the liability of parties to the Placement Agreement or
provisions for the indemnification of such parties for their own negligence or misconduct;

2. Except as provided herein, we express no opinion as to any matter whatsoever
relating to:

(a) the accuracy or completeness of any financial, accounting, or statistical
information furnished by the Company;

(b)  the accuracy or completeness of any representations made by the Company; or
(©) the financial status of the Company.

3. We express no opinion as to any matter whatsoever relating to: (a) compliance
with zoning, land use, building, health and safety, or environmental rules, regulations, laws,
ordinances, or directives; (b) federal and state occupational safety and health laws and
regulations; (c) federal and state antitrust and unfair competition laws and regulations; (d) federal
and state securities laws and regulations except as expressly stated herein; (e) federal and state
tax laws and regulations, except as expressly stated herein; (f) federal patent, copyright, and
trademark laws, state trademark laws, similar laws, and regulations thereunder; or (g) federal and
state pension, employee benefit and labor laws and regulations.
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DISCLAIMER
The opinions herein expressed are specifically subject to and qualified by the following:

1. Regardless of the states in which members of this firm are licensed to practice,
our opinions are limited to the laws of the State of Oregon and to applicable federal laws.

2. This opinion letter is provided to you as a legal opinion only and not as a guaranty

or warranty of the matters discussed herein. Our opinions are limited to the matters expressly
stated herein, and no other opinions may be implied or inferred.

MISCELLANEOUS
This opinion letter is rendered as of the date set forth above, and we disclaim any
obligation to advise you of any changes in the circumstances, laws, or events that may occur

after this date or to otherwise update this opinion letter.

This opinion letter is rendered solely for your benefit in connection with the Offering.
No other person or entity shall be entitled to rely on any matter set forth herein without our
express written consent.

Very truly yours,

FOSTER PEPPER TOOZE LLP
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Exhibit 2.1

Q]

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION - FILED
OF FEB75 2002
| | OREGON
COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP SECRETARY OF STATE

Acting as the incorporator under the Oregon Business Corporation Act, the undersigned hereby
- adopts the following Articles of Incorporation.
ARTICLE I
NAME

The name of the corporation is Columbia Commercial Bancorp (the "Corporation”).

ARTICLE I
PURPOSES AND POWERS

The Corporation is organized to engage in any lawful activity for which a corporation may be
organized under the Oregon Business Corporation Act, including, but not limited to, owning and holding
the capital stocks of state or federally chartered banks. The Corporation will have the same powers as an
individual to do all things necessary or convenient to carry out its business and affairs, including but not.
limited to, the powers specified in the Oregon Business Corporanon Act or which may be hereafter

granted by such law.
ARTICLE III
AUTHORIZED CAPITAL STOCK

: A. Authorized Classes of Shares. The Corporation may issue 11,000,000, shares 6f:étock
divided into two classes as follows:

1,000,000 shares of preferred stock ("Preferred Stock"). The Preferred Stock may be further
divided into ome or more series of Preferred Stock. Each series of Preferred Stock will have the
preferences, limitations and relative rights as may be set forth for such series either in these Articles or in
an amendment to these Articles ("Preferred Stock Designation"). A Preferred Stock Designation may be
adopted either by action of the Board of Directors of the Corporation pursuant to Section G of this Article

III or by action of the shareholders of the Corporation; and
* 10,000,000 shares of commaon stock ("Common Stock").
Except as may otherwise be provided in a Preferred Stock Designation, all shares of a-class w111

have preferences, limitations and relative rights identical to those of all other shares of the same class. All
shares of a series of Preferred Stock will have preferences, limitations and relative rights identical to those
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of all other shares of that series of Preferred Stock.
B. Voting Rights. The Corporation's Capital Stock will have voting rights as follows:

“ 1. Common Stock Voting Rights. Subject to the voting rights, if any, of any shares
of Preferred Stock that may be outstanding, the outstanding shares of Common Stock will (a) each
- have one vote, (b) vote together as a single voting group and {c) together have unlimited voting

rights.

2. Preferred Stock Voting Rights. Except as otherwise provided by the Oregon
Business Corporation Act or in a Preferred Stock Designation, each share of Preferred Stock will
on each matter which that series of Preferred Stock is entitled to-vote (a) either have (i) one vote if
that series of Preferred Stock is not by its terms convertible into Common Stock or, if that series
of Preferred Stock is convertible into Common Stock,.or (ii) one vote for each share of Common
Stock which that series of Preferred Stock may be converted into as of the record date for the

meeting at which the vote is to be taken and (b) vote together with shares of the Common Stock as

a single voting group.

3. Nonvoting Preferred Stock. Shares of any series of Preferred Stock which are
designated as being. "nonvoting" will nonetheless have such voting rights as are required by the
Oregon Business Corporation Act. .

4, Noncumulative Voting for Directors. The holders of shares of Common Stock

and the holders of shares of any series of Preferred Stock which is entitled to vote with respectto -

the election of directors will not have the right to cumulate votes in the election of directors.

C. Dividends. Subject to any priority or participating rights of any Preferred Stock that may
be outstanding, the holders of Common Stock will be entitled to receive, out of any legally available assets
of the Corporation, any dividends, if any, declared by the Board of Directors of the Corporation. Except
as may otherwise be provided in a Preferred Stock Designation, the Board of Directors of the Corporation
will have the sole authority and discretion to determine the time, amount and terms of payment for any
dividend which may be declared. Nothing in these Articles will be construed.as obligating the Board of
Directors of the Corporation to declare a dividend at any time, even though the Corporation may have

assets legally available to pay a dividend.

D. Redemption. Subject to any prbvision to the contrary contained in any Preferred Stock

. Designation, the Corporation may repurchase all or any of its outstanding shares of Common Stock or
Preferred Stock even though the distribution made to effect that repurchase would cause the difference
between the Corporation's total assets and its total liabilities to be less than the amount that would be
needed to satisfy the preferential liquidation rights of all outstanding shares of classes or series of a class
with liquidation rights that are prior to those of the shares being repurchased if the Corporation were to be

liquidated at the time of such repurchase.

E. Liquidation. -In liquidating, dissolving or winding up the Corporation, the Board of
Directors must first discharge or make adequate provision for discharging all liabilities of the Corporation.
The remaining net assets of the Corporation shall be distributed to the holders of the Common Stock
according to their respective share holdings, subject to the priority and part1c1patmg rights of any

Preferred Stock that may be outstanding,
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entitled

Corporatron

F. Preemptive Rights. No holder of any shares of Common Stock or Preferred Stock will be
to any preemptive right to purchase or subscribe for any unissued or treasury shares of the

G, Preferences, Limitations and Relative Rights of Preferred Stock. The Board of Directors

of the Corporation is expressly authorized to, from time to time by resolution duly adopted, designate the
preferences, limitations and relative rights. of one or more series of Preferred Stock. A Preferred Stock
Designation by the Board of Directors may set fortl, with respect to the shares of the series of Preferred
Stock so designated, the following preferences, limitations and relatwe rights:

1. Voting, The voting rights of the shares of that series of Preferred Stock,
including whether the shares have special, conditional or limited voting rights. Alternatively, the

Preferred Stock Designation may include a statement to the effect that the shares of that series of .

Preferred Stock are "monvoting" except to the extent voting rrghts are required by the Oregon
Business Corporation Act.

2. Dividends. The dividend rate and preference, if any, .of the shares of that series

of Preferred Stock. The Preferred Stock Designation will also state (a) whether the dividend

rights of shares of that series of Preferred Stock are cumulative, noncumulative or partrally
cumulative and (b) whether or not the shares of that series of Preferred Stock will participate in
any dividends that may be declared with respect to the Common Stock.

3. Liquidations. The amount ef the liquidation preference, if any, of the shares of

that series of Preferred Stock. The Preferred Stock Designation will also state whether or not
and, if so, when the shares of that series of Preferred Stock will participate with the Common

Stock in any liquidating distributions.

4. Redemption. Whether the shares of that series of Preferred Stock are redesmable
at the option of the Corporation, at the option of the holder of the shares or another person or
upon the occurrence of a designated event and whether the redemption price for the shares of that
series of Preferred Stock will be a designated amount or determined by a designated formula or
by reference to an extrinsic event or extrinsic data, whether the redemption price for the shares of
such series of Preferred Stock will be paid in cash, indebtedness or other property. The Preferred
Stock Designation will also state (a) the terms and conditions, if any, of any redemption, (b) the
procedures for effecting any redemption and. (c) whether or not and, if so, where and in what
manner a sinking fund must be created by the Corporatxon for the purpose of funding any

redemption.

3. Conversion. Whether the shares of that series of Preferred Stock are convertible
at the option of the Corporation, at the option of the holder of the shares or another person or
upon the occurrence of a designated event into other securities of the Corporation in a designated
amount or in an amount determined by a designated formula or by reference to an extrinsic event
or extrinsic data. The Preferred Stock Designation will also state the terms and conditions of the

_ conversion, if any, and the procedures for effecting such a conversion.
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6. Other Terms. Such other preferences, limitations and relative rights as the Board
of Directors of the Corporation may determine,

Every Preferred Stock Designation must identify that series of Preferred Stock in a manner that-
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will distinguish that series from all other series of Preferred Stock and from the undesignated Preferred
Stock., The Preferred Stock Designation must also set forth the number of shares to be included in that
series. All shares of that series that are thereafter redsemed, converted, or, if so provided in the Preferred
Stock Designation, remain unissued on a designated date or on the occurrence of an event will cease to be
of that series and will automatically become undesignated Preferred Stock. '

- Any Preferred Stock Designation adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporatzon pursuant
to this Section G of Article Il will constitute articles of amendment to these Articles of Incorporation and
will become effective, without shareholder action, upon filing as prescribed by the Oregor Business
Corporation Act. No shares of Preferred Stock or of a series of Preferred Stock may be issued by the
Corporation prior to the filing of amcles of amendment determining the prefewnces limitations and

relative rights of such shares, -

ARTICLE IV

- REGISTERED AGENT AND OFFICE AND ADDRESS FOR NOTICES
The initial registered agent of the Corporation is FP&S Registry Services, Inc., and the street

address of the initial registered office and mailing address of the initial registered agent are 101 SW Main
Street, 15th Floor, Portland, Oregon 97204. The address where the Secrétary of State may mail notices is
FP&S Registry Services, Inc., 101 SW Main Street, 15th Floor, Portland, Oregon 97204,

ARTICLE V-

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A. . Number of Directors. The number of directors of the Corporation will be as provided in

the Corporation’ s bylaws. As used in these Articles of Imcorporation, the term “whole board of ‘

directors" means the total number of directors that the Corporation would have if there were no vacancies
on the board of directors. The names of directors constituting the initial Board of Directors of the
Corporation will be as appointed by the 1n001porator of the Corporation at the organizational meeting of

the Corporanon

ARTICLE VI
LIMITATIONS ON LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS

No director of the Corporation shall be personally. liable to the Corporation or its stockholders for
monetary damages for conduct as a director, except that this provision shall not eliminate or limit the
liability of a director for any act or omission occurring prior to the date of adoption of this Article and that
this provision shall not eliminate or limit the liability of a director for (a) any breach of the director's duty
of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders; (b) acts or ornissions not in good faith or which involve
intentional misconduct or a kmowing violation of law; (c) any distribution to shareholders which is
unlawful under the Oregon Business Corporation Act or successor statute; or (d) any transaction from
which the director derived an improper personal benefit. No amendment to or repeal of this Article shall
apply to or have any effect on the liability or alleged liability of any director of the coiporation for or with
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respect to any acts or omissions prior to such amendment or repeal.

This Article is intended to limit the liability of any director of the Corporation to the greatest
extent authorized under the Oregon Business Corporation Act. Any further limitation on the liability of
directors authorized under any amendment to the Oregon Business Corporation Act is incorporated into
this Article on the effective date of that amendment.

ARTICLE VI
INDEMNIFICATION

A.  Non-Derivative Actions. Subject to the provisions of Sections C, E and F below, the
Corporation shall indemnify any person who was or is a party to or is threatened to be made a party to
any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative,
or investigative, (including all appeals) (other than an action by or in the right of the Corporation) by
reason of or arising from the fact that the person is or was a director or officer of the Corporation or one 
of its subsidiaries, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, partner, or

~ trustee of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan

or other enterprige, against reasonable expenses (including attorney's fees), judgments, fines, penalties,
excise taxes assessed with respect to any employee benefit plan and amounts paid in settlement actually
and reasonably incurred by the person to be indemnified in commection with such action, suit or
proceeding if the person acted in good faith, did not engage in intentional misconduct, and, with respect to
any criminal action or proceeding, did not know the conduct was unlawful. The termination of any

" action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere

or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith or, with
respect to any criminal action or proceeding, that the person knew that the conduct was unlawful,

B. Derivative Actions. Subject to the provisions of Sections C, E and F below, the
Corporation shall indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any
threatened, pending or completed action or suit (including all appeals) by or in the right of the
Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of or arising from the fact that the person is or
was a director or officer of the Corporation or one of its subsidiaries, or is or was serving at the request of
the Corporation as a director, officer, partner, or trustee of another foreign or domestic corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust, employes benefit plan or other enterprise, against reasonable expenses
(including attorneys' fees) actually incurred by the person to be indemnified in connection with the
defense or settlement of such action or suit if the person acted in good faith, provided, however, that no
indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have
beeni adjudged to be liable for deliberate misconduct in the performance of that person's duty to the .
Corporation, for any transaction in which the person received an improper personal benefit, for any
breach of the duty of loyalty to-the Corporation, or for any distribution to shareholders which is unlawful
under the Oregon Business Corporation Act, or successor statute, unless and- only to the extent that the
court in which such action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the
adjudication of liability but in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is falrly and
reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses which the court shall deem proper.

C. Determjnation of Right to Indemniﬁcation in Certain Cases. Subject to the provisions of
Sections E and F below, indemnification under Sections A and B of this Article shall not be made by the
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(1)

Corporation unless it is expressly determined that indemnification of the person who is or was an officer
or director, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, partner, or trustee

of apother forcign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan or
other enterprise, is proper in the circumstances because the person has met the applicable standard of
conduct set forth in Sections A or B. That determination may be made by any of the following:

(a) By the Board of Dlrectors by majority vote of & quoruin consisting of duectors
who are not or were not parties to the action, suit or proceeding; }

(b) If a quorum cannot be obtained under paragraph (a) of this subsection, by
maJomty vote of a committee duly designated by the Board of Directors consisting solely of two or more
directors not at the time parties to the action, suit or proceedmg (directors who are parties to the action,
suit or proceeding may participate in designation of the committee);

(c) By special legal counsel selected by the Board of Directors or its committee in the
manner prescribed in (a) or (b) or, if a quorum of the Board of Directors cannot be obtained under (a) and
a committee cannot be designated under (b) the special legal counsel shall be selected by majority vote of

the full Board of Directors, including directors who are parties to the action, suit or proceeding;

(d) If referred to them by Board of Directors of the Corporation by majority vote of a
quorum (whether or not such quorum consists in whole or in part of directors who are parties to the
action, suit or proceeding), by the shareholders; or

G) By a court of competent jurisdiction,

D. Indemnification of Persons Other than Officers or Directors. Subject to the provisions of
Section F, in the event any person not entitled to indemnification under Sections A and B of this Article
was Or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit

or proceeding of a type referred to in Sections A or B of this Article by reason of or arising from the fact

that such person is or was an employee or agent (including an attorney) of the Corporation or one of its
subsidiaries, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as an employee or agent (including an
attorney) of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit

_ plan or other enterprise, the Board of Directors of the Corporation by a majority vote of a quorum
" (Whether or not such quorum consists in whole or in part of directors who were parties to such action, suit

or proceeding) or the stockholders of the Corporation by a majority vote of the outstanding shares upon
referral to them by the Board of Directors of the Corporation by a majority vote of a quorum (whether or
not such quorum consists in whole or in part of directors who were parties to such action, suit or
proceeding) may, but shall not be required to, grant to such person a right of indemnification to the extent
described in Sections A or B of this Article as if the person were acting in a capacity referred to therein,
provided that such person meets the applicable standard of conduct set forth in such Sections.
Furthermore, the Board of Directors may designate by resolution in advance of any action, suit or
proceeding, those employees or agents (including attorneys) who shall have all rlghts of indemnification
granted under Sections A and B of this Article.

E. Successful Defense. Notwithstanding any other provision of Sections A, B, C or D of
this Article, but subject to the provisions of Section F, to the extent a director, officer, or employee is
successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to in Sections
A, B or D of this Article, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, that person shall be
indemnified against expenses (including attorneys fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him in
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connection therewith

F; Condition Precedent to Indemnification Under Sectxons A, B D or E. " Any person who

' desues to receive the benefits otherwise conferred by Sections A, B, D or E of this Article shall promptly

notify- the Corporation that the person has been named a defendant to an action, suit or proceeding of a

| tg}pe referred to in Sections A, B, D, or E and intends to rely upon the right of indemnification described

in Sections A, B, D or E of this Article. The notice shall be in writing and mailed, via registered or
certified mail, return receipt requested, to the President of the Corporation at the executive offices of the
Corporation or, in the event the notice is from the President, to the registered agent of the Corporation.
Failure to give the notice required hereby shall entitle the Board of Directors of the Corporation by a
majority vote of a quorum (conmsisting of directors who, insofar as indemnity of officers or directors is
concerned, were not parties to such action, suit or proceeding, but who, insofar as indemnity of
employees or agents is concerned, may or may not have been parties) or, if referred to them by the Board
of Directors of the Corporation by a majority vote of a quorum (consisting of directors who, insofar as
indemnity of officers or directors is concerned, were not parties to such action, suit or proceeding, but
who, insofar as indemnity of employees or agents is concerned, may or may not have been parties), the
stockholders of the Corporation by a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by holders of shares of the
Corporation's stock which have unlimited voting rights to make a determination that such a failure was
prejudicial to the Corporation in the circumstances and that, therefore, the right to indemnification
referred to in Sections A, B or D of this Article shall be denied in its entirety or reduced in amount,

G. - Advances for Expenses. Expenses incurred by a person indemnified hereunder in
defending a civil, criminal, administrative or investigative action, suit or proceeding (including all appeals)
or threat thereof, may be paid by the Corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or
proceeding upon-receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such person to repay such expenses if it shall
ultimately be determined that the person is not entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation and a written
affirmation of the person's good faith belief that he or she has met the applicable standard of conduct,
The undertaking must be a general personal obligation of the party receiving the advances but need not be
secured and may be accepted W1thout reference to financial ability to make repayment.

H. Insurance. The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on bebalf of any
person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation or one of its subsidiaries or
is or was serving at the request of the Corporation &s & director, officer, partner, trustee, employee or
agent of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, employee benefit plan
or other enterprise against any liability asserted against and incurred by that person in any such capacity,
or arising out of his status as such, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify
that person against such liability under the provisions of this Article or under the Oregon Business

Corporation Act.

L Purpose and Exclusivity. The indemnification referred to in the various Sections of this
Article shall be deemed to be in addition to and not in lieu of any other rights to which those indemnified
may be entitled under any statute, rule of law or equity, agreement, vote of the stockholders or Board of
Directors or otherwise. The Corporation is authorized to enter into agreements of indemnification. The
purpose of this Article is to augment the provisions of the Oregon Business Corporation Act dealing with

indemnification.

1. Severability. If any of the provisions of this Article are found; in any action, suit or
proceeding, to be invalid or ineffective, the validity and the effect of the remaining provisions shall not be

affected.
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The name and address of the incorporator of the Corporation-is as follows:

Person to contact about this filing: Scott L. Gilfillan, daytime phone number (503) 221-7799.

30046594.01

ARTICLE VIII
INCORPORATOR

Scott L. Gilfillan

One Main Place, 15th Floor -
101 S.W. Main Street .
Portland, Oregon 97204-3223
(503) 221-0607 .

o d S

Scott L. Gilfillan, fncorporator
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BYLAWS
OF

COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP

ARTICLE 1.
SHAREHOLDER MEETINGS

Section 1.1 Anuual Meeting. The annual meeting of the shareholders of Columbia Commercial
Bancorp (the “Corporation™) will be held on the third Wednesday in April of every year at the principal office
of the Corporation or at such other time, date or place as may be determined by the Board of Directors. At
such meeting the shareholders entitled to vote will elect 8 Board of Directors and transact such other business

as may come before the meeting,

Section 1.2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of shareholders will be held at any time on call of
the President, the Chief Executive Officer or the Board of Directors, or on demand in writing by not fewer
than three shareholders of record holding in aggregate not less than one-third of all outstandmg shares entitled
to be cast on any matter proposed to be considered at the special meeting.

. Section 1.3. Notice. Written notice stating the place, date and time of the meeting, and, in the case
of a special meeting, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, will be delivered not less than
ten nor more than sixty days before the date of the meeting, either personally or by mail, by or at the direction
of the President or the Secretary, to each shareholder of record entitled to vote at such meeting. If mailed, the
notice will be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the sharsholder at
the shareholder’s address as it appears on the current shareholder records of the Corporation, with postage

prepaid.

Section 1.4. Waijver of Notice. A shareholder may, at any time, waive any notice required by these -

Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation or the Oregon Business Corporation Act. Except as otherwise provided
by this Section 1.4, the waiver must be in writing, must be signed by the shareholder and must be delivered to
the Corporation for inclusion in the minutes and filing in the corporate records. A shareholder’s attendance at
a meeting waives any objection to {a) lack of notice or defective notice, unless the shareholder objects at the
begimning of the meeting to holding the meeting or transacting business at the meeting and (b) consideration
of any matter at the meeting that is not within the purpoese or purposes described in the notice of a special
meeting, unless the shareholder objects to considering the matter when it is first presented.

Section 1.5. VYoting. Except as otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, each
shareholder will be entitled to one vote, in person or by proxy, on each matter voted on at a shareholder's

meeting for each share of stock outstanding in such shareholder’s name on the records of the Corporation

which is entitled to vote on such matter, Unless held as trustee or in another fiduciary capacity, shares may
not be voted if held by another corporation in which the Corporation holds a majority of the shares entitled to
vote for directors of such other corporation.

Section 1.6. Quomum: Vote Reguired. A majority of the shares entitled to vote on a matter,
represented in person or by proxies, will coustitute a quornm with respect to that matter at any meeting of the
shareholders. If a quorum is present, action on a matter, other than the election of directors, is approved if the
votes cast in favor of the action exceed the votes cast in opposition, unless the vote of a greater number is
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required by the Oregon _Businesé Corporation Act or the Articles of Incorporation. Election of directors is
governed by Section 2.1 of these Bylaws. Unless otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, a
majority of votes represented at & meeting of shareholders, whether or not 2 quorum, may adjourn the meeting

to a different time, date, or place.

Section 1.7. Action Without Meeting, Any action required or permitted to be taken at 2 meeting of
shareholders may be taken without a meeting if & written consent, or consents, describing the action taken is
signed by all of the shareholders entitled to vote on the action and is delivered to the Corporation for inclusion
in the minutes and filing with the corporate records. The action is effective when the last shareholder signs
the consent, unless the consent specifies an eatlier effective date. A consent signed under this section has the

effect of a meeting vote and may be described as such in any document, Unless a record date for determining .

the shareholders entitled to take action without & meeting is otherwise established, the record date for that
purpose is the date the first shareholder signs the consent. If the Oregon Business Corporation Act requires
that notice of a proposed action be given to non-voting shareholders and that the action is to be taken by
unanimous consent of the shareholders, at least 10 days written notice of the proposed action will be given to
non-voting shareholders before the action is taken.

ARTICLE 2.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 2.1, Number and Blection of Directors. The Board of Directors will consist of not less than
five (5) members and-not:more than (15) fifteen members. The number of directors will be established within
this range from time to time by the Board of Directors. A decrease in the number of directors will not have
the effect of shortening the term of any incumbent director. At each annual meeting, the shareholders shall
elect directors by a plurality of the votes cast by the shares entitled to vote in the election. Each director will
be elected to hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders and until the election and qualification
of a successor, subject to prior death, resignation or removal. Any shareholder whe desires to nominate any
person or persons to stand for election as a director shall notify the Secretary of the Corporation, not less than
sixty (60) days prior to the meeting at which directors are to be elected, of the name, age, business and
residence addresses, profession or occupation of, and number of shares of the Corporation’s capital stock held
by, such person or persons.

Section 2.2, Vacancies. Unless otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, any vacancy
occurring in the Board of Directors, including a vacancy resulting from an increase in the number of directors,
may be filled by the Board of Directors or if the remaining directors do not constitute a quorum, by the
affirmative vote of a majority of the remaunng directors. A director elected to fill a vacancy will serve for the
unexpired term of the director’s predecessor in office, subject to prior death, resignation or removal.

Section 2.3. Annual Meeting. An annual meeting of the Board of Directors will be held without
notice immediately after the adjourmment of the anmual meesting of the shareholders or at another time
designated by the Board of Directors upon notice in the same manner as provided in Section 2.5. The annual
meeting will be held at the principal office of the Corporation or at such other place as the Board of Directors
may designate,

Section 2.4. Regular Meetings, The Board of Directors shall hold regular meetings on the third
Tuesday of each month inumediately prior to the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Columbia
Community Banl at the principal office of the Corporation, or at such other time and place as the Board of
Directors may designate. Regular meetmgs may be held without notice of the date, time, place or purpose of

the meeting.

Section 2.5. Special Meetings, Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the
President, the Chief Executive Officer or any member of the Board of Directors, Notice of each special
meeting will be given to each director, either by oral or in written notification actually received not less than
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24 hours prior to the meeting or by written notice mailed by deposit in the United States mail, first class
pastage prepaid, addressed to the director at the director’s address appearing on the records of the Corporation
not Jess than 72 hours prior to the meeting. Special meetings of the directors may also be held at any time
when all members of the Board of Directors are present and consent to a special meeting, Special meetings of
the directors will be held at the principal office of the Coxpozatxon or at eny other place demgnated by a
majority of the Board of Directors, '

Section 2.6. Telephonic Mestings. The Board of Directors may permit directors to participate ina
meeting by any means of communication by which all of the persons participating in the meeting can hear
each other at the same time. Participation in such a meeting will constitute presence in person at the meeting.

Section 2.7. Waiver of Notice. A director may, at any time, waive any notice required by these
Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation or the Oregon Business Corporation Act. Except as otherwise provided
in this Section 2.7, the waiver must be in writing, must be signed by the director, must specify the meeting for
which notice is waived, and must be delivered to the Corporation for inclusion in the minutes and filing in the
corporate records. A director’s attendance at a meeting waives any required notice, unless the director at the
beginning of the meeting or promptly upon the director’s arrival objects to holding the meeting or transacting
business at the meeting and does not thereafter vote for or assent to any action taken at the meeting,

Section 2.8. Quorum. A muajority of the number of directors that has been established by the Board
of Directors pursuant to Section 2.1 of these Bylaws will constitute a quorum for the transaction of business,

Section 2.9. Voting. The act of the majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum
is present will for all purposes constitute the act of the Board of Directors, unless otherwzse provided by the

Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.

Section 2,10, Action Without Meeting. Unless otherwise provided by the Articles of Incorporation,
any action required or perniitied to be taken at a Board of Directors meeting may be taken without a meeting
if a written consent, or consents, deseribing the action taken is'signed by each director and included in the
minutes and filed with the corporate records. The action is effective when the last director signs the consent,
unless the consent specifies an earlier effective,date. A consent signed under this section has the effect of an
act of the Board of Directors at a meeting and may be described as such in any document.

Section 2.11. Removal of Directors. Unless otherwise provided by the Articles of Incorporation, the
shareholders, at any meeting of the shareholders called expressly for that purpose, may remove any director
from office, with or without cause.

Section 2,12, Pawers of Directors, The Board of Directors will have the gole responsibility for the
management of the business of the Corporation. In the management and control of the property, business and
affairs of the Corporation, the Board of Directors is vested with all of the powers possessed by the
Corporation itself, so far as this delegation of power is not inconsistent with the Oregon Business Corporation
Act, the Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws. The Board of Directors will have the power to determine
what amount constitutes net eamnings of the Corporation, what amount will be reserved for working capital
and for any other purpose, and what amount, if any, will be declared as dividends. Such determinations by the
Board of Directors will be final and conclusive except as otherwise expressly provided by the Oregon
Business Corporation Act or the Articles of Incorporation. The Board of Directors may designate one or more
officers of the Corporation who will have the power to sign all deeds, leases, contracts, mortgages, deeds of
trust and other instruments and dociuments executed by and binding upon the Corporation. In the absence of a
designation of any other officer or officers, the Chief Executive Officer is so designated.

Section 2.13. Conunittees. Unless the Articles of Incorporation provide otherwise, a majority of the
Board of Directors may designate from among its members an Executive Commuittee and any number of other
committees. Each committes must consist of two or more directors and will have such powers and will
perform such duties as may be delegated and assigned to the committee by the Board of Directors. No
comymittee will have the authority of the Board of Directors with respect to {a) approving dividends or other
distributions to sharebolders, (b) amending the Articles of Incorporation, (c) adopting a plan of merger or
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- consolidation, (d) recommending to the shareholders the sale, lease, exchange, or other disposition of all or
substantially all the property and assets of the Corporation other than in the usual and regular course of its
business, (2) recommending to the shareholders a voluntary dissolution of the Corporation or & revocation
thereof, (f) approving or proposing to shareholdsrs other actions required to be approved by the shareholders,
(2) authorizing or approving any reacquisition of shares of the Corporation, (h) authorizing or approving the
issuance, sale or contract for sale of shares of the Corporation’s stock except either pursuant to a stock option
or other stock compensation plan or where the Board of Directors has determined the maximum number of

shares and has expressly delegated this authority to the committss, (i) determining the designation and relative -

rights, preferences and limitations of a class or series of shares, unless the Board of Directors has determined a
maxinum number of shares and expressly delegated this authority to the committee, (j) adopting, amending or
repealing Bylaws for the Corporation, or (k) filling vacancies on the Board of Directors or on any of jts
committees or (1) taking any other action which the Oregon Business Corporation Act prohibits a committee
of & board of directors to take. The provjsions of Sections 2.4, 2.5, 2.6, 2.7, 2.8, 2.9, and 2.10 of the Bylaws
will also apply to all committees of the Board of Directors. Each comnmittee will keep written records of its
activities and proceedings, All actions by committees will be reported to the Board of Directors at the next
meeting following the action and the Board of Directors may ratify, revise or alter such action, provided that
no rights or acts of third parties will be affected by any such revision or alteration. :

Section 2.14. Chairman of the Board. The Board of Directors may elect one of its members to be -

Chairman of the Board of Directors. The Chairman will advise and consult with the Board of Directors and
the officers of the Corporation as to the determination.of policies of the Corporation, will preside at all
meetings of the Board of Directors and of the shareholders, and will performn such other functions and
respongibilities as the Board of Directors may designate from time to time. At the request of the Chairman of
the Board of Directors or in the Chairman's absence, the Vice-Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, or the
President (if the President is a director), will preside at meetings of the Board of Directors and at meetings of

the shareholders,

Section 2.15. Vice-Chairman., The Board of Directors may elect one of its members to be Vice-
Chairman of the Board of Directors, The Vice-Chairmean will advise and consult with the Board of Directors
and the officers of the Corporation as to the determination of policies of the Corporation, will preside at all
meetings of the Board of Directors and of the shareholders at which the Chairman is absent, and will perform
such other functions and responsibilities as the Board of Directors may designate from time to time.

Section 2.16. Directors Emeritus. The Board of Directors may appoint one or more individuals who
have previously served on the Board of Directors to serve as Director Emeritus until the next annual meeting
of shareholders, provided that not more than three Directors Eimeritus shall serve at any one time. Directors
Emeritus shall not vote on any matter coming before the Board of Directors, and their number shall not be

considered in determining a quoruny

ARTICLE 3.
OFFICERS

Section 3.1. Composition. The officers of the Corporation will consist of at least a Chief Executive
Officer, who shall also be a director, a President, who may also be the Chief Executive Officer, at least one
Vice President, and a Treasurer or Secretary, each of whom will be elected by the Board of Directors at the
annual meeting of the Board of Directors or at any regular meeting of the Board of Directors or at any special
meeting called for that purpose. Other officers and assistant officers and agents may be elected or appointed
by or in the manner directed by the Board of Directors as the Board of Directors may deem necessary or
appropriate. Any vacancies occwring in any office of the Corporation may be filled by election or
appointment by the Board of Directors at any regular meeting or any special meeting called for that purpose.
Each officer will hold his or her office until the next annual meeting of the Board of Directors and until the
election and qualification of a successor in such office, subject to prior death, resignation or removal.
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Section 3.2. Chief Executive Officer. The Board of Directors shall designate one of the directors of
the Corporation to serve as its Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer will be responsible for
implementing the policies and goals of the Corporation as stated by the Board of Directors and will have

.general supervisory responsibility and authority over the property, business and affairs of the Corporation.

Unless otherwise provided by the Board of Directors, the Chief Executive Officer will have the authority to

hire and dismiss employees and agents of the Corporation and to take such other actions as the Chief

Executive Officer dsems to be necessary or appropriate to implement the policies, goals and directions of the
Board of Directors. The Chief Executive Officer may sign any documents and instruments of the Corporation

. which require the signature of the President under the Oregon Business Corporation Act, the Arncles of

Iucorporauon or these Bylaws..

, Section 3.3, President. The President will have all the responsibilities and authority as may be
delegated to the President by the Chief Executive Officer or prescribed by the Board of Directors, The
President may sign any documents and instruments of the Corporation which require the signature of the
President under the Oregon Business Corporation Act, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws, Upcn
the death, resignation or removal of the President, the Board of Directors may appoint a Vice President or
another person to serve as an “acting” or “interim"” President to serve as such until the position is filled by
action of the Board of Directors. Urless otherwise provided by the Board of Directors, an “acting” or
“interim” President will have all responsibilities and authority of the President. _

Section 3.4. Vice President. A Vice President will have such responsibilities and anthority as may
be prescribed by the Board of Directors or as may be delegated by the Chief Executive Officer or the
President to such Vice President. If at any time there is more than one Vice President, the Board of Directors
may designate the order of seniority or the areas of responsibility of such Vice Presidents. A Vice President
{or if more than one, the Vice Presidents in order of senicrity by designation or order of appointment) will
have all of the powers and perform all of the duties of the Pres1dent during the absence or disability of the

President.

Section 3.5. Secretary. The Secretary, or such other officer as may be designated by the Board of

Directors, will keep the minutes and records of all the meetings of the shareholders and directors and of all

other official business of the Corporation. The Secretary will give notice of meetings to the sharcholders and
directors and will perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors.

Section 3.6. Treasurer. The Treaswer will receive all moneys and funds of the Corporation and
deposit such moneys and funds in the name of and for the account of the Corporation with one or more banks
designated by the Board of Directors or in such other short-term investment vehicles as may from time to time
be designated or approved by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer will keep accurate books of account and
will make reports of financial transactions of the Corporation to the Board of Directors, and will perform such
other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors. The duties of the office of Treasurer may rest in
the Chief Executive Officer or the President. If the Board of Directors elects & Vice President of Finance or a
Chief Financial Officer, the duties of the office of Treasurer may rest in that officer.

Section 3.7. Removal. The directors, at any regular meeting or any special meeting called for that
purpose, may remove any officer from office with or without cause; provided, however, that no removal will
impair the contract rights, if any, of the officer removed or of the Corporation or of any other person or entity.

ARTICLE 4,
STOCK AND OTHER SECURITIES
Section 4.1 Certificates. All stock and other securities of the Corporation will be represented by
certificates which will be signed by the President or & Vice President and the Secretary or an Assistant

Secretary of the Corporation, and which may be sealed with the seal of the Corporation or & facsimile thereof,

Section 4.2, Transfer Agent and Registrar, The Board of Directors may from time to time appoint
one or more Transfer Agents and one or more Registrars for the stock and other securities of the Corporation.
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The signatd.res of the President or a Vice President and the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary upon a

certificate may be facsirniles if the certificate is manually signed by a Transfer Agent or registered by a

Registrar.

Section 4.3. Transfer. Title to a certificate and to the interest in the Corporation represented by that
certificate can be transferred only (a) by delivery of the certificate endorsed by the person designated by the
certificate to be the owner of the interest represented thereby either in blank or to a specified person or (b) by
delivery of the certificate and a separate document containing a written assigament of the certificate or a
power of attorney to sell, assign or transfer the same, signed by the person designated by the certificate to be
the owner of the interest represented thereby either in blank orto a specified person.

Section 4.4, Limitation on Number of Shareholders. the Corporation shall at all times limit the
number of shareholders of record to fewer than 500, and shall not recognize or register on its stock transfer
ledger any purported transfer that would cause the Corporation to have 500 or more shareholders of record,
Each stock certificate issued by the Ccuporahon shall bear a legsnd to that effect in substantially the following

forny;

“Transfer of the shares represented by this_ certificate 13 subject to a
limitation on the total number of shareholders of record as set forth in the
bylaws of the issuer. Any transfer of shares that would violate such
limitation without the prior written approval of the Board of Directors is
void and will not be registered in the stock transfer records of the issuer.
A copy of the relevant provisions of the bylaws is available at the
principal office of the issuer.”

Section 4.5. Necessity.for Registration. Prior to presentent for registration upon the transfer books
of the Corporation of a transfer of stock or other securities of the Corporation, the Corporation or its agent for
purposes of registering transfers -of its securities may treat the registered owner of the security as the person
exclusively entitled to vote the securities; to receive any notices to shareholders; to receive payment of any
interest on a security, or of any ordinary, extraordinary, partial liquidating, final liquidating, or other dividend,
or of any other distribution, whether paid in cash or in securities or in any other form; and otherwise to
exercise or enjoy any or all of the rights and powers of an owner. :

Section 4.6. Fixing Record Date. The Board of Directors may fix in advance & date as record date
for the pwrpose of determining the registered owners of stock or other securities (a) entitled to notice of or to
vote at any meeting of the shareholders or any adjournment thereof; (b) entitled to receive payment of any
interest on a secutity, or of any ordinary, extracrdinary, partial liquidating, final liquidating, or other dividend,
or of any other distribution; whether paid in cash or in securities or in any other form; or (c} entitled to
otherwise exercise or enjoy auy or all of the rights and powers of an owner, or in order to make a
determination of registered owners for any other proper purpose. The record date will be not more than 60
days and, in the case of a meeting of shareholders, not less than 10 days before the date on which the

. particular action which requires such determination of registered owners is to be taken.

Section 4.7. Record Date for Adiowrned Mesting. Av determination of sharehblders entitled to notice
of or to vote at a meeting of the shareholders is effective for any adjowrnment of the meeting unless the Board

of Directors fixes a new record date.

Section 4.8. Lost Certificates. In case of the loss or destruction of a certificate of stock or other
security of the Corporation, a duplicate certificate may be issued i its place upon such conditions as the
Board of Directors may prescribe.

Section 4.9 Fractional Shares. In the event of any distribution of shares of capital stock of the
Corporation, no fractional shares shall be issued, and cash shall be paid in lisu theleof
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ARTICLE 5.
CORPORATE SEAL

If the Corporation has a corporate seél, its size and style is shown by the impression below:

ARTICLE 6.
AMENDMENTS
Unless otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws of the Corporation may be
amended or repealed by the Board of Directors, subject to amendment or repeal by action of the shareholders,
at any regular meeting or at any special meeting called for that purpose, provided notice of the proposed
change is given in the notice of the special meeting or notice thereof is waived in writing.
ARTICLE 7.
SEVERABILITY

If any provision of these Bylaws is found, in any action, suit or proceeding, to be invalid or
ineffective, the validity and the effect of the remaining provisions will not be affected.

Adopted by action of the Board of Directors of Columbia Commercial Bancorp as of
, 2002, ‘

, Secretary
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Transfer of the shares represented by this certificate is subject to a limitation on the total number

of shareholders of record as set forth in the bylaws of the issuer. Any transfer of shares that

would violate such limitation without the prior written approval of the Board of Directors is void
and will not be registered in the stock transfer records of the issuer. "A copy of the relevant

provisions of the bylaws is available at the principal office of the issuer.
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Exhibit 4.1

APPLICATION FOR SUBSCRIPTION OF COMMON STOCK
'~ COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP

(Page 1 of 1)

APPLICATIONS FOR SUBSCRIPTIONS MUST BE RECEIVED NOT LATER THAN
5:00 P.M. LOCAL TIME ON , 2004.*

I, the undersigning subscribe, hereby subscribe for and agree to purchase the number of
shares of common stock of COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP (herein referred to as the
“Company”) for the aggregate purchase price set forth on page two hereof. The Company is a
corporation organized under Oregon law for the purpose of serving as a holding company for
Columbia Community Bank, an Oregon state chartered bank (the “Bank”). I understand that the
purchase price of each share of common stock is $20.00. I understand that unless I am an
existing shareholder or employee of the Company or the Bank that I must subscribe for a
minimum of 1,000 shares and that the maximum number of shares 1 may beneficially own is
23,639, which is 5% of the shares outstanding prior to this offering (unless an exception to the
minimum or maximum is otherwise authorized by the Company’s Board of Directors).

I understand that there is no minimum for this offering and the Company will have access
to any funds that they have accepted at any time,

I attest and acknowledge that I have received an Offering Circular and have read and
understand the disclosures set out in the Offering Circular and that I am not relying upon any
information other than as set forth in the Offering Circular. I further attest and acknowledge that
I have the requisite authority and capacity to execute this Agreement. I further understand and
acknowledge that this subscription is for an equity investment in the Company; that this
investment is not protected by any deposit insurance; and that this investment involves risk,
including the possible loss of principal.

I understand and agree that this Subscription Agreement will be irrevocable for a period
of one (1) year. I understand and agree that the Board of Directors shall have the power to
release, settle, or compromise (on such terms and conditions as the Board may prescribe) any
subscription or claim, dispute, or action arising out of a subscription for shares.

I understand and acknowledge that the Board of Directors reserves the right to reject any
subscription, in its sole discretion, in whole or in part, for any reason whatsoever.

* The Board of Directors may extend terminate the offering early or may extend it for up to two
additional periods of 30 days each. '

PLEASE COMPLETE REVERSE SIDE OF THIS AGREEMENT
and return with full payment of subscription amount to:

Columbia Commercial Bancorp
314 East Main Street
Hillsboro, OR 97123

(503) 693-7500
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SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT
COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP

(Page 2 of 2)

Number of Shares @ $20.00 per share =

The capital stock, when issued, will be registered as follows (see instructions below):

Address:

Subscriber’s Signature

Printed Name

If Subscriber is an entity, indicate capacity of
person signing: :

Telephone:

State of Residence:

Taxpayer LD. (SSN)#

Joint Subscriber’s Signature

Printed Name

Date:

We will hold payment for your subscription in a segregated account until we have accepted or rejected the
subscription, in whole or in part. If your subscription is accepted, you will receive by return mail a copy of
this Agreement signed by a Columbia Commercial Bancorp representative. As soon as administratively
possible after the closing of the offering, you will receive a stock certificate for the shares purchased in
this offering. Please note that we have the discretion to accept your subscription in full, to accept only a
portion of your subscription, or to reject your subscription entire/y. If only a portion of your subscription
is accepted you will receive a stock certificate number of shares issued and a refund for the balance of

Yyour purchase price.

COMPANY USE ONLY

The foregoing Application for Subscription of Common Stock is accepted for Columbia Commercial

Bancorp.

Total Accepted Subscription Amount $

( shares)

Subscription # By:

Date: Its

30062896.03
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR DELIVERY OF SUBSCRIPTION AND PAYMENT
COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP

COMPLETING THE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT:

1. The Offering calls for a minimum purchase of ONE THOUSAND (1,000) shares ($20,000),
unless you are an existing shareholder or employee of the Company or the Bank.

2. When indicating how the stock should be registered, please, BY PRINTING CLEARLY,
enter full name(s) and, if the name(s) are not those of individual(s), indicate the full legal
name and type of organization involved (e.g., corporation, partnership, or trust). For
qualified retirement plans, provide exact wording for ownership registration. For joint
ownership, or transfers to minors, or for self-directed retirement plans, use the abbreviations
and instructions set forth below:

A. COM PRO -- Community Property (Note: Stock held as community property can be
registered as “John Doe as COM PRO” and requires only one signature.)

B TEN COM -- Tenants in Common
C. JT TEN -- Joint Tenants with Right of Survivorship

D. Trustee Ownership should be registered as “John Doe, as Trustee of (Name of
Trustor)”. ‘

E. Custodian under Uniform Gifts to Minors Act should be registered as “(Custodian’s
Name) for _ (Minor’s Name) under UGMA of _(State)”.

F. SELF-DIRECTED RETIREMENT PLAN—Submit this Subscription Agreement to
the plan trustee or custodian for execution. For further assistance please feel free to
contact the Company. As always, consult your individual tax or legal advisor as to
the specifics of your situation.

A stock certificate will be issued in the exact manner in which the Subscription Agreement is
completed.

3. Payment of the subscription amount may be made by check, draft or money order payable to
Columbia Commercial Bancorp.

4, Mail your Subscription Agreement and payment to Columbia Commercial Bancorp, 314 E. Main
St., P.O. Box 725, Hillsboro, Oregon 97123-0725. If you prefer, you may deliver your
Subscription Agreement and payment, during business hours (8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.), to
Columbia Commercial Bancorp, at the address noted above.
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. Exhibit 4.2
APPLICATION FOR SUBSCRIPTION OF COMMON STOCK
COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP
314 East Main Street
Hillsboro, OR 97123

(Page 1 of 2)

APPLICATIONS FOR SUBSCRIPTIONS MUST BE RECEIVED NOT LATER THAN 5:00 P.M.
LOCAL TIME ON , 2004.*

I, the undersigning subscriber, hereby subscribe for and agree to purchase the number of shares of
common stock of COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP (herein referred to as the “Company”) for the
aggregate purchase price set forth on page two hereof. The Company is a corporation organized under
Oregon law for the purpose of serving as a holding company for Columbia Community Bank, an Oregon state
chartered bank (the “Bank™). I understand that the purchase price of each share of common stock is $20.00. I
understand that unless I am an existing shareholder or employee of the Company or the Bank that I must
subscribe for a minimum of 1,000 shares and that the maximum number of shares I may beneficially own is
23,639, which is 5% of the shares outstanding prior to this offering (unless an exception to the minimum or
maximum is otherwise authorized by the Company’s Board of Directors).

I understand that there is no minimum for this offering and the Company will have access to any funds
that they have accepted at any time.

I attest and acknowledge that I have received an Offering Circular and have read and understand the
disclosures set out in the Offering Circular and that I am not relying upon any information other than as set
forth in the Offering Circular. I further attest and acknowledge that I have the requisite authority and capacity
to execute this Agreement. 1 further understand and acknowledge that this subscription is for an equity
investment in the Company; that this investment is not protected by any deposit insurance; and that this
investment involves risk, including the possible loss of principal.

I understand and agree that this Subscription Agreement will be irrevocable for a period of one (1)
year. I understand and agree that the Board of Directors shall have the power to release, settle, or compromise
(on such terms and conditions as the Board may prescribe) any subscription or claim, dispute, or action arising
out of a subscription for shares.

I understand and acknowledge that the Board of Directors reserves the right to reject any subscription,
in its sole discretion, in whole or in part, for any reason whatsoever.

* The Board of Directors may extend terminate the offering early or may extend it for up to two additional
periods of 30 days each.

PLEASE COMPLETE REVERSE SIDE OF THIS AGREEMENT
Retain the last copy for your records
and return the top three (3) copies to:
Marge Sitzmann
D.A. Davidson & Co.
8 Third Street North
Great Falls, MT 59401

406-791-7319 office, 406-791-7357 fax
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR DELIVERY OF SUBSCRIPTION AND PAYMENT

(Page 2 of 2)
Number of Shares @ $20.00 per share = §
Date:
Print Account Title / Name State of Residence/Domicile:
Taxpayer ID #:
Print Account Title / Joint Name
Address:
X . . -
Authorized Signature (title if applicable)
X . . .
Authorized Joint Signature (title if applicable)
PLEASE CHECK ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:
{ ) Ihave an account with D.A. Davidson & Co. (Act#: Y(AE name & #: ( )

Unless you instruct your broker otherwise, your subscription amount will be deducted from the D.A. Davidson
& Co. account indicated above. If you wish to have funds transferred from another source, please include with
this Subscription Agreement those instructions.

() I1donot have an existing account with D.A. Davidson & Co. and do not wish to open an account:

Please make your check payable to Columbia Commercial Bancorp and send your check, together with a
signed Subscription Agreement to:

Marge Sitzmann Name as it should appear on stock certificate (printed):
D.A. Davidson & Co.
8 Third Street North
Great Falls, MT 59401

The proceeds of your subscription will he delivered to Columbia Commercial Bancorp to he held until it is accepted or
rejected. If your subscription is accepted, you will receive by return mail a copy of this Agreement signed by a Columbia
Commercial Bancorp representative. As soon as administratively possible after the closing of the offering, each
shareholder will receive confirmation from Columbia Commercial Bancorp of the number of shares beneficially owned.
Shares sold through D.A. Davidson & Co. will be held of record in its name. Please note that Columbia Commercial
Bancorp has the discretion to accept your subscription in full, to accept only a portion of your subscription, or to reject
your subscription entirefy. If only a portion of your subscription is accepted you will receive an acknowledgement for
the number of shares issued and a refund for the balance of your purchase price.

The foregoing Application for Subscription of Common Stock is accepted for Columbia Commercial Bancorp.

Total Accepted Subscription Amount § ( shares)
Subscription # By
Date: Its
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Exhibit 6.1

COLUMBIA COMMUNITY BANK

1999 COMBINED INCENTIVE and
NON-QUALIFIED STOCK OPTION PLAN

ARTICLE 1 - PURPOSE

The purpose of this 1999 Combined Incentive and Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan is to

advance the interests of Columbia Community Bank and its shareholders by enabling the Bank to attract
and retain the services of people with training, experience and ability and to provide additional

incentive to key employees and directors by giving them an opportunity to pamc1pate in the owneréhlp
of the Bank.

2.1
22
23

24

2.5
2.6

27

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

30014986.01

ARTICLE 2 - DEFINITIONS

As used herein, the following definitions will apply:

“Bank” means Columbia Community Bank, an Oregoﬁ banking corporation.
“Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of the Bank.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendéd.

“Committee” means the Committee appoinfed as specified-in Article 5 of this Plan, or the Board
of Directars if no such Committee has been appointed.

“Common Stock” means the Commbn Stock of the Bank, $5.00 par value per share.
“Employee” means any person employed by the Bank or a subsidiary.

“Incentive Stock Option” means an Option which is an incentive stock option within the meaning
of Section 422 of the Code. :

“Non-Qualified Stock Option” means an Option which is not an Incentive Stock Option.

“Option” means an option to purchase Shares of Common Stock of the Bank granted under this
Plan pursuant to a written option agreement.

“Optibnee” means any individual who is granted an Option under this Plan.

“Parent” means any corporation in an unbroken chain of corporations ending with the Bank if, at
the time of the granting of an Option, each of the corporations other than the Bank owns stock
possessing 50 percent or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock in one of

the other corporations iz such chain. -

“Plan” means this 1999 Combined Incentive ahd Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan of Columbia
Community Bank. '

“Share” means a share of the Common Stock.
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2.14  “Subsidiary” means any corporation in an unbroken chain of corporations beginning with the
Bank if, at the time of the granting of an Option, each of the corporations other than the last
corporation in the unbroken chain owns stock possessing 50 percent or more of the total
combined voting power of all classes of stock in one of the other corporations in such chain.

ARTICLE 3 - STOCK SUBJECT TO THE PLAN

3.1 Except as provided in Article 9, the total number of Shares of Common Stock covered by all
Options granted under this Plan will not exceed 000 _ Shares, which Shares may be in
whole or in part, as the Board may from time to time determine, authorized but unissued Shares
or issued Shares which have been reacquired by the Bank. The Bank will at all times reserve for
issuance the number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of Options granted or
which may be granted under this Plan. :

32 If an Option expires or terminates for any reason without having been exercised in full, unless
this Plan itself has terminated, the unpurchased Shares covered thereby will be added to the
Shares otherwise available for Options which may be granted in accordance with the terms of this
Plan. If an Option is exercised in part or in full, the number of Shares covered by this Plan and
reserved for issuance under this Plan will automatically be reduced by the number of Shares
purchased pursuant to the exercise of such Option.

ARTICLE 4 - DURATION OF THE PLAN

This Plan will be effective as of the date on which it is adopted by the Board of Directors,
subject to approval by the shareholders of the Bank as provided in Article 8 of this Plan. This Plan will
continue in effect until Options have been exercised with respect to all of the Shares reserved for this
Plan (subject to any adjustments under Article 9), unless sooner terminated by action of the Board of
Directors. No Incentive Stock Option may be granted hereunder after ten years from the effective date
of this Plan. The Board of Directors will have the right to suspend or terminate this Plan at any time, |
except that, with respect to any Options then outstanding under this Plan, the termination of the Plan
will not affect the exercisability of any Options granted prior to such termination.

| ARTICLE 5 - ADMINISTRATION

5.1 The Plan will be administered by the Committee appointed by the Board of Directors and
consisting of not less than two non-Employee directors. The Board of Directors may at any time
assume the responsibilities of and act as the Committee if the Board of Directors so elects,
provided that, with respect to options granted to Employees, including directors who are
Employees, no employee director shall participate in the administration of the Plan. The Board of

_Directors may from time to time appoint members of the Committee in substitution for, orin°
addition to members previously appointed, and may fill vacancies, however caused, in the
Committee. The Committee may select one of its members as its chairman and will hold its
meetings at such times and places as it may deem advisable. A majority of the members of the
Committee will constitute a quorum. All actions of the Committee will be taken by a majority of
its members. Any action may be taken by a written instrument signed by all Committee
members, and all actions so taken will be fully as effective as if it has been taken by a vote of a

o Mmajority of the members at 2 meeting duly called and held.

30014986.01
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52 Subject to the provisions of this Plan and any additional terms or conditions imposed by the
Board, the Committee will administer the Plan and the Options granted thereunder and will have
the authority, in its discretion, to determine and designate from time to time the persons to whom
Options will be granted, the number of Shares to be covered by each Option, the Option exercise
price, the duration of each such Option, and other terms and conditions of each Option which
need not be identical.

5.3 Subject to the provisions contained in this Plan, the Committee may from time to time adopt rules
and regulations relating to the administration of the Plan. The interpretation and construction by
the Committee of the provisions of the Plan or any option agreement will be final and conclusive,
subject to review by the full Board of Directors. The Committee may correct any defect, supply
any omission or reconcile any inconsistency in this Plan or in any option agreement in the manner .
and to the extent it deems appropriate,

ARTICLE 6 - ELIGIBILITY

Options may be granted to Employees (including Employees who are directors) and directors of
the Bank or its Subsidiaries who, in the judgment of the Committee, have performed or will perform
services of special importance to the Bank in the management, operation and development of its
business or the business of one or more of its Subsidiaries. Options may also be granted under this
Plan to any other person who provides services or other value to the Bank.

ARTICLE 7 - OPTION TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Options granted under this Plan will be evidenced by written option agreements in a form
approved by the Committee. The option agreements must be consistent with this Plan and will include in
substance the following terms and conditions as appropriate:

7.1 Each Option will specify as to whether the Option is intended to qualify as an incentive stock
~ option within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code (“Incentive Stock Options”); provided that
Incentive Stock Options will only be granted to Employees. All Options not specifically
designated as Incentive Stock Options.will be presumed to have been intended to not qualify as
such (“Non-Qualified Stock Options™).

7.2 Each Option will specify the number of Shares to which it pertains.-

7.3 Each Option will specify the purchase price of the Shares covered by the Option as determined by
the Committee in its sole discretion (“Exercise Price™); provided that no Option will have an
Exercise Price less than 100 percent of the fair market value of a Share at the time the Option is
granted and provided further that no Incentive Stock Option will have an Exercise Price less than
110 percent of the fair market value of a Share at the time the Option is granted if such Incentive
Stock Option is granted to a person who owns stock possessing more than ten percent (10%) of
the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Bank or any Parent or Subsidiary.

7.4 Each Option will specify the term or duration of the Option which will not exceed ten years from
the date of the grant of such Option, provided that no Incentive Stock Option granted to a person
who owns stock possessing more than ten percent (10%) of the total combined voting power of
all classes of stock of the Bank or any Parent or Subsidiary may have a duration greater than five
years from the date of the grant of such Incentive Stock Option. Partial exercise will be permitted
from time to time.

30014986.01
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7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

30014986.01

No Option may be transferred by the Optionee other than by will or the laws of descent and
distribution. Options may be exercised only by the Optionee except as provided in Section 7.8.

In the event that an Optionee who is an Employee ceases to be an Employee for any reason other
than the death or disability of the Optionee, any Option or unexercised portion thereof which was
otherwise exercisable on the date of termination of employment will terminate unless exercised
within a period of three months from the date on which the Optionee ceased to be an Employee,
provided that this will not extend the time within which the Option may be exercised beyond the
limits described in Section 7.4 of this Plan.

In the event that an Optionee who is an Employee ceases to be an Employee by reason of the
Optionee becoming disabled, any Option or unexercised portion thereof which was otherwise
exercisable on the date of termination of employment will terminate unless exercised within a
period of one year from the date on which the Optionee ceased to be an Employee, provided that
this will not extend the time within which the Option may be exercised beyond the limits
described in Section 7.1.4 of this Plan. Disability will be determined in accordance with Section
105(d)(4) of the Code.

In the event an Optionee dies while an Employee, the Option may be exercised, to the extent not
previously exercised and subject to any vesting provisions, at any time within one year after the
Optionee’s death by the estate of the Optionee or by any person or persons who acquire the
Option directly from the Optionee by bequest or inheritance, provided that this will not extend the
time within which the Option may be exercised beyond the limits described in Section 7.1.4 of
the Plan.

To the extent that the aggregate fair market values (determined at the time of grant) of Shares
with respect to which an Option designated as an Incentive Stock Option is exercisable for the
first time by the Optionee during any calendar year under this Plan and under all other incentive
stock option plans (within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code) of the Bank or any Parent or
Subsidiary exceeds $100,000 plus any unused limit carryover available in such year, such '
Options will be treated as Non- Quahﬁed Stock Options noththstandmg any designation to the
contrary.

No Option may be exercised prior to the later of six months from the date that this Plan is .
approved by the shareholders of the Bank or six months from the date such Option is granted, and
thereafter may be exercised from time to time over the period stated therein in such amounts and
at such times as may be prescribed by the Committee in its discretion, but in all such cases if the
Optionee does not exercise in any year the full number of Shares to which the Optionee is
entitled, the Optionee’s rights will be cumulative and the Optionee may acquire those Shares in
any subsequent year during the term of the Option.

Each Optionee, by accepting the Option, agrees that whenever the Bank undertakes a firmly
underwritten public offering of its securities and if requested by the managing underwriter in such
offering, the Optionee will enter into an agreement not to sell or dispose of any securities of the
Bank owned or controlled by the Optionee provided that such restriction will not extend beyond
12 months from the effective date of the registration statement filed in connection with such
offering. :

The option agreements may also include such other terms and conditions not inconsistent with the

terms of this Plan as the Board deems advisable, including vestmg requirements, buy-back
restrictions or forfeiture provisions. ‘
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~ issuable upon exercise of the Option for investment and not with a view to, or in connection

82

~ actions of the Committee at the time of such exercise, by surrender of other previously acquired

/ 83

8.4
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reported closing bid and asked prices, as applicable, on the last business day preceding the day

-securities of the Bank, as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors.

Shares, pay to the Bank amounts necessary to satisfy applicable federal, state and local

ARTICLE 8 - EXERCISE OF OPTIONS TO PURCHASE SHARES '
The followmg provisions shall apply to the exercise of any optlon granted pursuant to this plan

Notice of Intent to Exerc1se Shares may be purchased or acquired pursuant to an Option
granted under this Plan only upon receipt by the Bank of written notice signed and delivered by
the Optionee (or, in the case of exercise after death of the Optionee, by the personal
representative, executor, administrator, heir or legatee of the Optionee, as the case may be)
directed to the President of the Bank at the prineipal business office of the Bank.

The notice must state the number of Shares being purchased, specify the method of payment of
the exercise price for the Shares being purchased and the date by which such payment will be
made to complete the purchase, and, unless int the'opinion of counsel for the Bank such a
representation is not required in order to comply with the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
contain a representation that it is the Optlonee s then present intention to acquire the Shares

with, any distribution thereof.
Pavment of Exercise Price. On or before the date specified in the notice of exercise for

completion of the purchase and issuance of Shares pursuant to the exercise of an Option, the full
Exercise Price shall be paid, either by check or; if allowed by either the terms of the Option or by

securities of the Bank. If the Exercise Price is paid in whole or in part by the delivery of
Common Stock or other securities of the Bark, the certificates representing such securities must
be delivered, duly endorsed for transfer. At the election of the Optionee, the exercise of an
Option may be made by sequential delivery of an increasingly greater number. of shares of
Common Stock acquired through the exercise of the option and, in such event, the actual
sequentlal issuance and delivery of the shares shall not be réquired but may be effected by book
entnes in the Bank’s stock records. '

Any Common Stock or other securities of the Bank, delivered in payment of the Exercise Price,
will be valued at the publicly reported price for the last sale, or the average of the publicly

the Bank receives such notice, or, if there are no publicly reported prices of such Common ‘
Stock or other securities of the Bank, at the fair market value of such Common Stock or other ]

Rights as a Shareholder. No Optionee will have the rights of a shareholder of the Bank as
to dividends, voting or otherwise, as to any Shares until a-certificate representing the Shares is
issued to the Optionee. Each Optionee who has exercised an Option must, upon notification of
the amount due and prior to or concurrently with delivery of the certificate representing the

withholding tax requirements and, if the Optionee fails to do so, the Bank may withhold such
amounts from other amounts owed by the Bank to the Optionee.

Compliance with Agplicable Laws. No Shares will be issued with respect to the exercise of
any Option unless the-exercise and the issuance of the Shares will comply with all relevant

provisions of law, including, without limitation, any applicable state securities laws, the ]
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, the respective rules and regulations promulgated i
thereunder, and the requirements of any stock exchange upon which thie Shares may then be ‘
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listed, and will be further subject to the approval of counsel for the Bank with respect to such
compliance.

The Bank will not be liable to any Optionee or any other person for failure to issue Shares upon
the exercise of an Option where such failure is due to the inability of the Bank to obtain all
permits, exemptions or approvals from regulatory authorities which are deemed by the Bank’s
counsel to be necessary. The Board may require any action or agreement by an Optionee as may
from time to time be necessary to comply with the federal and state securities laws. - The Bank
will not be obliged to register Options granted or Shares purchased under the Plan under any
federal or state securities laws.

ARTICLE 9 - CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Except as provided in this Article 9, if the outstanding Shares are hereafter increased, decreased,
changed into or exchanged for a different number or kind of Shares or for other securities of the
Bank or of another corporation, by reason of any reorganization, merger, consolidation,
reclassification, stock split-up, combination of Shares, or dividend payable in Shares, the
Committee will make such adjustment in the number and kind of Shares or other securities
covered by Options which may be granted under this Plan as it deems appropriate. The
Committee will at such time make such adjustment in the number and kind of Shares or other
securities covered by outstanding Options as well as an adjustment in the exercise price under
each such Option as the Committee deems appropriate. Any determination by the Committee as
to what adjustments may be made, and the extent thereof, will be final, binding on all parties and
conclusive.

In the event of any dissolution or liquidation of the Bank, or any merger or consolidation with one
or more corporations in which the Bank is not the surviving entity, in lieu of any continuing rights
under an Option, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, provide a 30-day period immediately
prior to such event during which the Optionee will have the right to exercise an Option in whole
or in part without any limitations on exercisability.

ARTICLE 10 - AMENDMENT OF PLAN

The Board of Directors may, at any time and from time to time, modify or amend this Plan as it
deems advisable to qualify Incentive Stock Options granted under this Plan as “incentive stock
options” as defined in Section 422 of the Code, or to conform with any other changes in the law
while this Plan is in effect or for any other reason, provided, however, that except as provided in
Article 9 hereof, no change in an Option already gra.nted to an Optionee wxll be made without the
written consent of such Optionee.

“Unless also approved by the shareholders of the Bank, either by unanimous written consent, or by

the affirmative vote of holders of not less than a majority of all shares entitled to vote and
represented at an annual meeting or a special meeting called for the purpose of such approval, no .
amendment or change will be effective to (a) increase the total number of Shares which may be
purchased under this Plan; (b) change the minimum purchase price herein before specified for
Options; (c) increase the maximum Option period; (d) materially increase the benefits to
participants under this Plan; or (e) materially modxfymg the requirements for eligibility for
participation in this Plan.
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ARTICLE 11 - EMPLOYMENT RIGHTS

Nothing in this Plan nor in any Option or right granted pursuant hereto will confer upon any
Optionee any right to be continued in the employment of the Bank or any Subsidiary of the Bank, or to
limit or affect in any way the right of the Bank, in its sole discretion, (a) to terminate such Optionee’s
employment at any time, with or without cause, (b) to change the duties of any Optionee, or (c) to
increase or decrease any Optionee’s compensation from the rate in existence at the time an Option is
granted.

ARTICLE 12 - ISSUE AND TRANSFER TAXES

The Board of Directors may from time to time require the Bank to pay issnance or transfer
taxes on Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of an Option under this Plan.

ARTICLE 13 - CONDITIONS TO EFFECTIVENESS OF PLAN

“This Plan has been approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Bank. However, the

effectiveness of any Options granted under this Plan will be contingent upon approval of this Plan by
the holders of two-thirds of the Bank’s outstanding shares entitled to vote and represented at an annual

_ meeting or at a special meeting called for the purpose of approving this Plan.

Dated and approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank on , 1999,

Approved by the shareholders of the Bank on
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Appendix

COLUMBIA COMMUNITY BANK

Amendment to the 1999-COMBINED INCENTIVE AND NON-QUALIFIED STOCK OPTION
PLAN ,
Section 3.1 of the 1999 Combined Incentive and Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan is hereby amended to
read in its entirety as follows:

“3.1. Except as provided in Article 9, the total number of Shares of Common Stock
covered by all Options granted under this Plan will not exceed 80,000 Shares, which Shares may
be in whole or in part, as the Board may from time to time determine, authorized but un-issued
Shares or issued Shares which have been reacquired by the Bank. The Bank will at all times
reserve for issuance the number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of Options
granted or which may be granted under this Plan.” :
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< A M P Exhibit 6.2

NON-QUALIFIED STOCK OPTION

This Non-Qualified Stock Option is granted under the terms of the 1999 Combined
Incentive and Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan, dated October 19th, 1999 (the “Plan™) of
Columbia Community Bank, an Oregon banking corporation (the “Bank™). Unless otherwise
defined herein, terms in this option shall have the same meanings as defined in the Plan.

The “Optionee”

Number of Shares of fhe
Bank’s Common S

“Exercise Price” per share
(Must be af least equal to 85% of the current fair market value of the stock,)

“Date of Grant” \

(
“Expiration Date” ;
(May be not more than 10 years after the Date of Grant. '

1. Terms of the Option.

1.1  Grant of Option The Bank hereby grants to the Optionee the right, privilege,
and option to purchase up to the number of shares indicated above, subject to adjustment as

- hereinafter set forth in Section 1.2 below, of the Bank’s Common Stock (the “Option Shares”) at

the Exercise Price per share as indicated above (the “Option™). The Option may only be
exercised as to a whole number of shares of Common Stock.

‘ 1.2 Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization. In the event of changes in the
outstanding securities of the Bank by resson of stock dividends, stock splits, combinations,
reclassification of securities, exchange of shares, or reorganizations, the number and class of
securities of the Bank deliverable upon the exercise of this Option, the Exercise Price and the
vesting schedule under this Option will be subject to adjustment. Adjustments under this Section
1.2 will be made by either the Committee or by-the Bank’s Board of Directors and their
determination as to what adjustments will be made, and the extent thereof, will be final, binding,
and conclusive. .

1.3 Status of this Option as a Non—@ahﬁed Stock Option. It is intended by the
Bank that this Option will not qualify as an incentive stock option within the meaning of Section
422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

1.4  Nontrapsferability of Option. This Option and the rights of the Opﬁonee under
this Option may not be transferred in any manner except by will or by the laws of descent and
distribution upon the death of the Optionee,
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1.5 Reservation of Shares. The Bauk ‘agrees that at all times there will be reserved
for issuance upon exercise of this Option such number of shares of its Common Stock as is
required for such issuance.

2. Time of Exercise of Option.

2.1  When the Option Becomes Exercisable. This Option may only be exercised
on or after 7/26/2003 in accordance with the following vesting schedule and only to the extent not
previously exercised:

' Maximum Number
On or After of shares

)

bl

>

>

The number of Shares indicated in the foregoing vesting schedule may be adjusted in
accordance with Section 1.2. The foregoing vesting schedule may be acoelerated under certain
circumstances as set forth in Section 4 of this Option.

2.2  Effect of Unpaid Leaves of Absence, If at any time during the term of this
Option, the Optionee is on unpaid leave from the Bank or any Subsidiary, the Option may not be
exercised during such unpaid leave and the dates contained in the foregoing vesting schedule
shall be extended by the length of such unpaid leave.

2.3 Expiration and Termination of Option. This Option will expire upon the close
of business on the Expiration Date and may terminate earlier upon certain events as set forth in
Section 4 of this Option. To the extent that this Option has not been exercised prior to the
Expiration Date or any earlier termination, all further rights to purchase shares pursuant to this
Option will cease and terminate at such time.

3. Owption Exercise Procedures.

3.1  Who may Exercise the Option. Ouly the Optionee (or, in the case of exercise
after death of the Op‘uonee, by the executor, administrator, heir, or legates of the Optxonee as the
case may be) may exercise this Option.

3.2  Notice of Exercise. A “Notice of Exercise” must be signed and delivered to
the Bank’s corporate Secretary or such other person as the Bank may designate at the Bank’s
principal business office of the Bank, A copy of the Bank’s current form of Notice of Exercise in

. attached hereto. The Bank, howevér, reserves the right to revise ts form of Notice of Exercise

from time-to-time as it determines to be appropriate. If, at the time of the exercise of this Option,
the Bank does not have an effective registration statement on file with the Securities and
Exchange Commission that covers the issnance of shares upon the exercise of this Option, the
Notice of Exercise will also contain certain representations from the Optiones as required under
applicable state and federal securities laws. A copy of the then-current form of Notice of
Exercise may be obtained at any time from the Bank. A notice will only be effective if submitted
on the form in effect at the time of such exercise.

3.3 Pavment of Exercise Price. The Notice of Exercise must indicate the manner
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of payment of the Exercise Price for the number of shares so purchased. Payment may be made
by check. The Bank, in its sole discretion, may permit the Exercise Price to be paid, in whole or
in part, by the surrender to the Bank for cancellation of other securities of the Bank that have
been owned by the Optionee for at least six-months with a fair market value equal to the Option
Price for the number of shares so purchased. Securities of the Bank that are surrendered for
cancellation will be valued at the publicly reported price for the last sale on the last business day
preceding the day the Bank receives the Notice of Exercise, or, if there are no publicly reported
prices for such securities, at the fair market value of such securities as determined in good faith
by the Bank’s Board of Directars af the Committee. If the Exercise Price is being paid in whole
or in part by the delivery of other securities of the Bank, the Notice of Exercise must be
accompanied by delivery of the certificates or instruments representing such other securities duly
endorsed for canceliation,

3.4  Delivery of Shares Following Exercise. The Bank will make delivery of the
Option Shares purchased within a reasonable time after it receives the Notice of Exercise and
payment in full of the Exercise Price of the Option Shares being purchased. However, if any law
or regulation requires the Bank to take any action with respect to the issuance of the Option
shares, including, without limitation, actions that may be required for compliance with federal
and state securities laws or the listing requirements of any stock exchange upon which the Bank’s
Common Stock is then listed, then the date of delivery of such shares may be extended for the
period necessary to take such action. The Optionee shall only become the holder of such shares
upon the actial issuance of the stock certificate representing such shares.

4. Termination and/or Acceleration of the Option Upon Certain Events

4.1 Effect of the Death of the Optionee. If the Optionee dies while an employee ar
director of the Bank or any Subsidiary, fhis Option will terminate one year after
the date of such death or, if sooner, upon the Expiration Date. In such event, this
Option may be exercised only to the extent the Optionee was entitled to exercise
this Option on the date of the Optionee’s death and only by the person or persons
to whom the Optionee’s rights under this Option may pass by the Optionee’s will
or by the laws of descent and distribution of the state or country of the
Optionee’s domicile at the time of death. .

42  Effect of the Disability of the Optionee. If the Qptionee becames totally and
permanently disabled (as defined in Section 22 (¢) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended) while an employee of the Bank or any Subsidiary, this Option will terminate one year
after the date of such termination of employment, director service, or if sooner, upon the
Expiration Date. In such event, this Option may be exercised only to the extent the Optionee was
entitled to exercise this Option on the date of such termination. '

43  Bffect of Termination of the Employment of the Optionee, If the Optionee’s
employment or service to the Bank or any Subsidiary terminates as a result of the Optionee’s
retirement or for any reason other than the reasons set forth in Sections 4.1 or 4.2 of this Option,
this Option will terminate three (3) months after the date of such termination of employment or, if
sooner, upon the Expiration Date. In such event, this Option may be exercised only to the extent
the Optionee was entitled to exercise this Option on the date of such termination. Far purposes of
this Option, the Optionee’s employment with the Bank or any Subsidiary shall be considered to
have terminated if the Optionee for any reason becomes a “part-time” employee as such term is
defined in the Bank’s then existing employment rules or guidelines.
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4.4 Effect of a Change of Control of the Bank. In the event of (2) a merger,
consolidation, plan of exchange or voluntary share exchange agreement with one or more
corporations in which the shareholders of the Bank immediately prior to such transaction do not,
following such transaction, continue to hold securities with voting rights equal to at least 50% of
~ all votes entitled to be cast in the election of directors of the surviving entity, (b) a sale of all or

substantially all of the assets of the Bank or (c) the dissolution and liquidation of the Bank
(collectively a “Change of control Transaction™), (i) this Option may be assumed by the successor
in interest in such Change of Control Transaction, (ii) the Optionee may receive from the
successor in interest in such Change of Control Transaction a replacement option with rights
which are economically equivalent to the rights under this Option at the time of such Change of
Control Transaction or, (iii} if neither of the foregoing occurs, this Option shall terminate upon
the closing of the Change of Control Transaction. If, in a Change of Control Transaction, this
Option is neither assumed nor replaced by the successor in inferest, the Optionee shall be
provided with notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the closing of such Change of Control
Transaction and shall be entitled to exercise this Option as to all of the Option Shares without
regard to the vesting schedule set forth in Section 2.1.

5. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Optioree.

5.1 No Effect on Employment. The Optionee understands and agrees that nothing
contained in this Option will be construed to limit or restrict the rights of the Bank to terminate
the emoployment or service as a director of the Optionee at any time, with or without cause, to
change the duties of the Optionee or ta increase or decrease the Optionee’s compensation.
Without limiting the foregoing, the Optionee understands and agrees that the vesting of shares
under this Option is subject to and is conditioned upon the continned employment of the Optionee
by the Bank or a Subsidiary and that such employment or director service can be terminated at
any time by the Bank or its Subsidiary. :

5.2 Rights Prior to Exercise of This Option. The Optionee understands and agrees
that the Optionee will have no rights as a shareholder in the Option Shares, including without
limitation the right to vote or receive dividends, until the issuance of the shares is reflected in the
Bank’s stock transfer records.

5.3 Tax Implications. The Optionee understands that, under federal income tax laws
as they currently exist, the exercise of this Option will resuit in ordinary income in the amount by
which the fair market value of the shares acquired upon exercise exceeds the Exercise Price.

5.4 Underviriter's Lock-up. The Optionee by accepting this Option agrees that
whenever the Bank undertakes a firm underwritten public offering of its securities and if
requested by the managing underwriter in such offering, the Optionee will enter into an
agreement not to sell or dispose of any securities of the Bank owned or controlled by the
Optionee provided that such restriction will not extend beyond twelve (12) months from the
effective date of the registration statement filed in connection with such offering.

5.4 Disclosures. The Optionee acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan and
certain related information and represents that Optionee has fully reviewed the terms and
conditions of the Plan and this Option and has had opportunity to obtain the advice of counsel
prior to executing this Option. The Optionee represents and warrants that the Optionee is not
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relying upon any representations, agreements or understandings of or with the Bank except for
those set forth in this Option, .

6. Miscellaneous Provisions.

6.1  Binding Effect. This Option will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
parties hereto and their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.

6.2  Natices. All notices to the Optionee or other persans then entitled to exercise
this Option will be delivered at the address contained in the records of the Bank or such other
address as maybe specified in writing by the Optiones or such other person. All notices to the
Bank will be delivered at its principal offices.

6.3 Governing Law and Interpretation. This Option will be governed by laws of the
State of Oregon as to all matters, including but not limited to matters of validity, construction,
effect, and performance, without giving effect to rules of choice of law, This Option hereby
incorporates by reference all of the provisions of the Plan arid will in all respects be interpreted
and construed in such manner as to effsctuate the intent of the Plan. In the event of & conflict
between the terms of this Option and the Plan, the terms of the plan will prevail, All matters of
interpretation of the Plan and this Option, including the applicable terms and conditions and the
definitions of the words, will be determined in the sole and final discretion of the Committes or
the Bank’s Board of Directors.

6.4 Attornay Fees. If any suit or action is instituted in connection with any’
controversy arising out of this Option or the enforcement of any right hereunder, the prevailing
party will be entitled to recover, in addition to costs, such sums as the court may adjudge
reasonable as attorney fees, including fees on any appeal.

COLUMBIACOMMUNITY BANK
N
BY

Attast:

OPITONEE::
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NOTICE OF EXERCISE

TO: COLUMBIA COMMUNITY BANK

This notice of Exercise serves as an irrevocable notice from the undersigned of the undersigned’s
intent to exercise the following Stock Option to purchase shares of the Bank’s Common Stock
(all of which are vested under the Option) under and in accordance with the terms and conditions
set forth in the Option and Plan. :

Date of Grant of the Option | ,

Number of Shares being Purchased
through the exercise of the Option

Exercise Price Per Share 3

Ageregate Lxercise Price 8 ,
(must equal number of shares multiplied by exercise price per share)

Method of Payment (indicate selected method)
Cash Payment. My check is stapled to this notice.

Delivery of other securities of the Bank which I have held for at least
six months. The certificates or instruments that represent those
securities are enclosed, duly endorsed for cancellation.

Cashless Exercise and Same-Day Sale through Broker. Ihave instructed
the following broker to issue a check payable to the Bank from my
account in an amount equal to the aggregate exercise price.

Name of Broker:
Mailing Address:
Telephone Number:
OPTIONEE:
(signature of the Optionee) (name of the Optionee, printed)

{date of signing of notice of exercise)

(Optionee's social security number)
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SAMPLE | Exhibit 6.3

INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION

This Incentive Stock Option is granted under the terms of the Combined Incentive and Non-
Qualified Stock Option Plan, dated October 19,1999 (the "Plan") of Columbia Community Bank, an
Oregon banking corporation (the “Bank”), Unless otherwise defined herein, terms in this Option shall have
the same meanings as defined in the Plan, :

The “Optionee” _
Number of Shares of the
Bank’s Common Stock

“Exercise Price” per Share
[Must be at least equal to 100% of the current fair market value of the stock or, if the optlonee is « ten percent (10%)
or greater sharcholder of the Bank, at Jeast equal 10 110% of the current fair market value of the stock./

“Date of Grant”

“Expiration Date” o
[May be not more that 10 years after the Date of Grant or, if the optionee Is a ten percent (10%) or greater
shareholder of the Bank, 1ot more than 3 years dfter the Date of Grant]

1. Terms of the Option.

1.1 Grant of Ontion The Bank hereby grants to the Optionee the right, privilege, and option to
purchase up to the number of shares indicated above, subject to adjustment as hereinafter set forth in Seotion
1.2 below, of the Bank's Common Stock (the “Option Shares™) at the Exercise Price per share as indicated
above (the “Option’™). The Option may only be excrcised as to a whole number of shares of Common Stock.

1.2, Adjustments Upon Changes in Canitalization. In the event of changes in the cutstanding
securities of the Bank by reason of stock dividends, stock splits, combinations, reclassification of securitics,

exchanges of shares, or reorganizations, the number and class of securities of the Bank dcliverable upon the
exercige of this Option, the Exercisc Price and the vesting schedule under this Option will be subject to
adjustment. Adjustments under this Section 1,2 will be made by either the Cormmittee or by the Bark's
Board of Directors and their determination as to what adjustments will be made, and the extent thereof, will
be final, binding, and conclusive.

.13 Status of this Option as an Incentive Stock Option. Tt is intended by the Bank that this

Option will qualify as an incentive stock option within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended, However, if this Option fails in whole or in part to qualified as an incentive
stock option fot atly reason, this Option shall continue to be valid, shall be an incentive stock option to the
fullest extent permiticd and otherwise shall be trested as a non-gualified stock option. The Bank shall not
have any Hability to the Qptionce for any failure of this Option to qualify, in whelc ot in part, as an incentive
stock option. _

14 Nontrsnsferability of Option. This Option and the rights of the Optionee under this Option
may not be transferred in any manner except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution upon the

. death of the Optiones.

1.5 Rescrvation of Shares. The Bank agrees that at all tirnes there will be reserved for issuance
upon exercise of this Option such number of shares of its Common Stock as is required for such issuance.
2, Time of-Exercise of Option,
-1-
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2.1 When the Option Becomes Exercisable. This Option may only be exercised on or after
October 19", 2000 in accordance with the following vesting schicdule and only to the extent not previously

exereised:

, Maximum Number
On or After —of Shares

5

A

The number of Shares indicated in the foregoing vesting schedule may be adjusted in accordance
with Section 1.2, The foregoing vesting schedule may be accelerated under certain circumstances as set
forth in Section 4 of thig Option. [Tncentive stock options may not become exercisable in any calendar year as to
shares with more than an aggregate Exercise Price of 3100,000. Thiy includes sharays vesting under previeusly
granted Incentive stock options.]

2.2 Effect of Unpaid Leaves of Absence. If at any time during the term of this Option, the
Optionee is on unpaid leave from the Bank or any Subsidiary, the Option may not be exercised during such
unpaid leave and the dates contained in the foregoing vesting schedule shall be extended by the length of
such unpaid leave.

2.3 Expiration and Termination of Option. This Option will expire upon the close of businesa
on the Expiration Date and may terminate earlier upon certain events as get forth in Section 4 of this Option,

To the extent that this Option has riot been exercised prior to the Expiration Date or any earlier termination,
all further rights to purchase shates pursuant to this Option will ¢casc and termhinate at such time,

3. Option Exercise Procedures.

3.1 Who May Exercise the Option. Only the Optionee (or, in the case of exercise after death of
the Optionee, by the executor, administrator, heir, or legatee of the Optiotiee, as the case may be) may
exercige this Option,

3.2 Notice of Exercise. A “Notice of Exercise” must be signed and delivered to the Bank's
corporate Seorctary or such other person as the Bank may designate at the Bank’s principal business office
of the Bank. A copy of the Batk's current form of Notice of Exercise is attached hereto, The Bank,
however, Teserves the right to revise its form of Notice of Exercise from time-to-time a3 it determines to be
appropriate. If, at the time of the exercise of this Option, the Bank docs not have an effective registration
statemnent on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission that govers the issuance of shares upon the
exercise of thig Option, the Notloe of Exercise will also contain certain representations from the Optionee as
required under applicable state and federal securities laws. A copy of the then-current form of Notice of
Exerciss may be obtained at any time from the Bank. A notice will only be effective 1f’ submitted on the
form in effect at the time of such exercise.

33 Payment of Exercise Price. The Notice of Exercise must indicate the manner of payment of
the Exercise Price for the number of shares so purchased. Payment may be made by check. The Bank, in its
sole diserction, may permit the Exercise Price to be paid, in whole or in part, by the surrender to the Bank
for cancellation of other sceurities of the Bank that have been owned by the Optiones for at least six-months
with a fair market value cqual to the Option Price for the number of shares so purchased, Securities of the
Bank that are surrendered for cancellation will be valued at the publicly reported price for the last salc on the
last business day preceding the day the Bank reeeives the Notice of Exercise, or, if there are no publicly
reported prices for such securitics, at the fair market value of such securitics as detenmined in good faith by
the Bank’s Board of Directors or the Committee. If the Exercise Price is being paid in whole ot in part by

2.
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the delivery of other securities of the Bank, the Notice of Exercise must be accompanied by delivery of the
certificates ot ingtruments representing such other securities duly endorsed for cancellation.

34 Delivery of Shares Following Exercise. The Bank will make delivery of the Option Shares
purchased within a reasonable time aficr it receives the Notice of Exercise and payment in full of the
Exercisc Price of the Option Shares being purchased, However, if any law or regulation requires the Bank
to take any action with respect to the issuance of the Option Shares, including, without limitation, actions
that may be required for compliance with federal and state securitics laws or the listing requiretnents of any
stock exchange upon which the Banlk’s Common Stock is then listed, then the date of delivery of such
shares may be extended for the period necessery to take such action. The Optionee shall only become the
holder of such shares upon the actual issuanse of the stock certificate representing such shares.

4, Termination and/or Acceleration of the Option Upon Certain Events

4,1 - Effect of the Death of the Optionee. Ifthe Optionee dies whils an employee of the Bank or
any Subsidiary, this Option will tetminate one year after the date of such death or, if soener, upon the
Expiration Date. In such event, this Option may be exercised only to the extent the Optionee was entitled to
exercise this Option on the date of the Optionee's death and only by the persen or persons to whom the
Optionec's rights under this Option mey pass by the Optionee's will or by the laws of descent and
distribution of the state or country of the Optionee's domicile at the time of death.

4.2 Effeot of the Disability of the Optionee. If the Optionee becomes totally and permanently

- disabled (as defined in Section 22 (2)(3) of the Intetnal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended) while an

employee of the Bank or any Subsidiary, this Option will tenminate one year afer the date of such
termination of employment or, if sooner, upon the Expiration Date. In such event, this Option may be
exercised only to the extent the Oplionee was entitled to exercise this Option on the date of such
termination,

4.3 Effect of Termination of the Emplovment of the Optionee. If the Optionee’s employment

with the Bank or any Subsidiary terminates as a result of the Optionece’s retirement or for any reason other
than the reasons get forth in Sections 4.1 or 4.2 of this Option, this Option will terminate three (3) months
after the date of such termination of employment ot, if sooner, upaon the Expiration Date. In such event, this
Option may be exercised only to the extent the Optionee was entitled to exercise this Option on the date of
such termination. For purposes of this Option, the Optionee’s employment with the Bank or any Subsidiary
shall be considered to bave terminated if the Optionee for any reason becomes & “‘part-time” employee as
such term is defined in the Bank’s then existing employment rules or guidelines,

4.4 Effect of a Change of Control of the Bark, In the event of (2) a merger, consolidation, plan

of cxchange or voluntary shate exchange agreement with one or tnore corporations in which the
shareholders of the Bank immmediately prior to such transaction do not, following such transaction, continue
to hold seourities with voting rights equal to at least 50% of all votes entitled to be cast in the election of
directors of the surviving entity, (b) a sale of all or substantially all of the asscts of the Bank or (¢) the
dissolution and liquidation of the Bank (collestively a “Change of Control Transaction"), (i) this Option
may be assumed by the successor in interest in such Change of Control Transaction, (ii) the Optlonce may
receive from the successor in interest in such Change of Control Transaction a replacement option with
rights which are economically equivalent to the rights under this Option at the time of such Change of
Control Transaction or, (1ii) 1f neither of the foregaing oceurs, this Option shall terminate upon the closing
of the Change of Control Transaction. If, in & Change of Contro] Trangaction, this Option i3 neither
assumed nor teplaced by the successor in interest, the Optiones shall be provided with votice at least thitty
(30) dzys prior to the slosing of sueh, Change of Control Transaction and shall be entitled to exercige this
Option as fo all of the Opton Shares without regard to the vesting schedule set forth in Section 2.1.

[Note that acceleration may causo optinns to longer qualify as incentive stock options but the Change of Cotitrol
Transaction may amount {o a disqualjfying disposition armyway.]

5. 2epresentations, Warranties and Covenants of the Optionee,

e
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5.1.  No Effect on Emplovment. The Optionee understands and agrees that nothing contained in
this Option will be construed to limit or restrict the rights of the Bank to terminate the employment of the
Optionee at any time, with or without cause, to change the duties of the Optionee or to increase or decrease
the Optionee's compensation. Without limiting the foregoing, the Optionee understands and agrees that the
vesting of shares under this Option is subject to and is conditioned upon the continued employment of the
Optionee by the Bank or a Subsidiary and that such employment can be terminated at any time by the Bank
or itg Subsidiary, :

5.2, Rights Prior to Bxercise of This Option, The Optionee understands and agrees that the

Optionec will have no rights as a shareholder in the Option Shares, ineluding without limitation the tight to
vote or receive dividends, until the {ssuance of the shares is reflected in the Bank’s stock tranafer records,

53.  Tax Imnlications. The Optionee understands that, under federa] income tax laws as they
currently exist, the exercise of this Option may result in alternative minimum taxes and that the sale of
shares acquired by exercise of this Option either within two (2) years of the Grant Date or within one (1)
year of the date on which this Option is exercised (a "Disqualifying Disposition") will result in ordinary
income to the Optionee in an amount cqual to the difference between the Exercise Price and the lesser of the
fair market value of the shates acquired on the date of such exercise or the amount realized in the
Disqualifying Disposition, If the Optionee makes a Disqualifying Disposition, the Optionee will
immediately notify the Bank that such has oceurred and will pay to the Bank the amount of any federal,
state, or local income taxes that the Bank may be required to withhold under applicabic law.

5.4 Underwriter's Lock-up. The Optionee by aceepting this Option agrees that whenever the
Bank undertakes a firm underwritten public offering of its securities and if requested by the managing
underwriter in such offering, the Optionee will enter into an agreement not to sell or disposs of any
securities of the Bank owned or controlled by the Optionee provided that such restriction will not extend
beyond twelve (12) months from the effective date of the registration statement filed in connection with
such offering,

55 Disclosures. The Optionee acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan and ecrtain related
information and represents that Optionee has fully reviewed the terms and conditions of the Plan and this
Option and has hed opportunity to obtain the advice of counsel prior to executing this Option. The Optiones
rvepresents and warrants that the Optionee is not relying upon any representations, agreements or
understandings of or with the Bank except for those set forth in this Option.

6. Mlscellaneous Provisions

6.1.  Binding Effect. This Option will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties
hereto and their lieirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns. '

6.2.  Notjees. All notices to the Optionee ot other persons then entitled to exercise this Option
will be delivered at the address conteinced in the records of the Bank or such other address as may be
specified in writing by the Optionee or such other person. All notices to thic Bank will be delivered at its
principal offices.

63.  Governing Law and Interpretation. This Option will be governed by the laws of the State
of Oregon as to all matters, including but not limited to matters of validity, construction, effect, and
performance, without giving effect to rules of choice of law, This Option hereby incorporates by reference
all of the provisions of the Plan and will in all respects be interpreted and construed in such manner as to
effectuate the intent of the Plan. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Option and the Plan, the
terms of the Plan will prevail, All matters of intcrpretation of the Plan and this Option, including the
applicable terms and conditions and the definitions of the words, will be determined in the sole and final
disoretion of the Committee or the Bank's Board of Ditectors, '

-4
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6.4, Afforncy Fees. If any suit or action is instituted in connection with any controversy atising
out of thiz Option or the euforcement of any right hereunder, the prevailing party will be entitled to recover,
in addition to costs, such surms as the court may adjudge reasonable as attomey facs, including fees on any

appeal.

| COLUMBIA COMMUNITY BANK
By: ,'
Attest:
BS/:
/7 OPHGNEE:
-5-
1671201
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NOTICE OF EXERCISE

TO: COLUMRIA COMMUNITY BANK

This Notice of Exercise serves as an ixevoceble notice from the undersigned of the undersigned’s intent to exercige the
following Stock Option to purchase ghares of the Bank's Cotmmon Stock (all of which are vestsd under the Option)
under and in ascordance with the terms and conditions sct forth in the Gption and Plan,

Date of Grant of the Option R

Number of Shares being Purchased
through the exercise of the Option

8

Exercise Price per Share

Aggregate Exercise Price $
(must equal humber of shares multiplied by exercise price per share)

Method of Payment (indicated selected method)

Cash Fayment. My check is stapled to this notice.

Delivery of other sccutities of the Bank which T have held for at least six manths, The
certificates or instrurncuts that represent those securities are enclosed, duly endorsed for

cancsllation,

Cashless Exercise and Same-Day Sals through Broker, 1 have instructed the following

broker to issue a check payable to the Bank froti my account in an amount equal to the

aggregate cxereise price.

Narre of Broket:

Mailing Address:

Telephone Number:
OPTIONEE:
(signature of the Optionee) : (name of the Optionee, printed)

(dale of signing of notice of exercise)

(mailing adaress for shareholder records) (Optionee s social security number)

nnte7Iag
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Exhibit 6.4

COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP
2004 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

1. Purpose of the Plan

The purpose of this Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) is to advance the interests of
Columbia Commercial Bancorp, an Oregon corporation (the “Company™) and its shareholders by
enabling the Company to attract and retain the services of people with training, experience and
ability and to provide additional incentive to Employees and non-employee directors of the
Company and others who provide services to the Company by giving them an additional
opportunity to participate in the ownership of the Company.

2. Definitions
As used herein, the following definitions will apply:

(a) “Acquired Company” means any corporation or other entity that becomes a majority
owned Subsidiary, after the Effective Date, by merger, consolidation, acqulsltlon of all
or substantially all of its assets or otherwise.

(b) “Authorized Shares” means the number of shares of Common Stock authorized for
issuance under all Awards, as set forth in Section 3.1 of this Plan.

(c) “Available Shares” means the number of shares of Common Stock available under this
Plan for future awards at any given time.

(d) “Award” means any grant of an Incentive Stock Option, any grant of a Non-Qualified
Stock Option or the making of any Restricted Stock Grant.

(e) “Board of Directors” means the Company’s Board of Directors.

(f) “Change of Control Transaction” means (i) the adoption of a plan of dissolution or
liquidation with respect to the Company, (ii) the consummation of any plan of

exchange, merger or consolidation with one or more Companies in which the Company

is not the surviving entity, or in which the security holders of the Company prior to
such transaction do not receive in the transaction securities with voting rights with
respect to the election of directors equal to 50% or more of the votes of all classes of
securities of the surviving corporation or (iii) the consummation of a sale of all of
substantially all of the Company’s assets following a shareholder vote on such sale.

(g) “Company” means Columbia Commercial Bancorp and its Subsidiaries and, unless the
context requires otherwise, and any successor or assignee of the Company by merger,
consolidation, acquisition of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets or

otherwise.
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(h) “Committee” means any committee appointed by the Board of Directors in accordance
with Article 5 of this Plan, or, the Board of Directors, if no such committee is then in

existence.
(i) “Common Stock” means the Company’s common stock.

() “Disabled” means having a mental or physical impairment that has lasted or is expected
to last for a continuous period of twelve (12) months or more and, in the Committee’s
sole discretion, renders an Optionee unable to perform the duties that were assigned to
the Optionee during the twelve (12) month period prior to such determination. The
Committee’s determination of the existence of an individual’s disability will be
effective when communicated in writing to the Optionee and will be conclusive on all
of the parties.

(k) “Effective Date” means the date on which this Plan is approved by the Board of
Directors.

(D “Employee” means any person employed by the Company or a Subsidiary.

(m)“Exercise Price” means the price per share at which shares of Common Stock may be
purchased upon exercise of an Incentive Stock Option or a Non-Qualified Stock

Option.
(n) “Fair Market Value” with respect to shares of Common Stock for any date means:

1) Ifthe Common Stock is traded on a national securities exchange or on either the
NASDAQ National Market or NASDAQ Small-Cap Market, the “Fair Market
Value” of a share of Common Stock will be the average between the lowest and
highest reported sales price of the Common Stock for such date, or if no
transactions occurred on such date, on the last date on which trades occurred;

2) Ifthe Common Stock is not traded on a national securities exchange or on
NASDAQ but bid and asked prices are regularly quoted on the OTC Bulletin
Board Service, by the National Quotation Bureau or any other comparable
service, the “Fair Market Value” of a share of Common Stock will be the average
between the highest bid and lowest asked prices of the Common Stock as reported
by such service at the close of trading for such date or, if such date was not a
business day, on the preceding business day; or

3 If there is no public trading of the Common Stock within the terms of
subparagraphs 1 or 2 of this subsection, the “Fair Market Value” of a share of
Common Stock will be as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion.

(o) “Grantee” means any individual who receives a Restricted Stock Grant.

() “Incentive Stock Option” means an option to purchase shares of Common Stock that
the Committee indicates is intended to qualify as an incentive stock option within the
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meam'ng of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code and is granted under Article 6
- of this Plan.

@) “Incentive Option Agreement” means the agreement between the Company and the
" Optionee evidencing the grant of an Incentive Stock Option.

{0) “Internal Revenue Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

(r) “Non-Qualified Stock Option™ means an option to purchase shares of Common Stock
that the Committee either indicates is intended to be a Non-Qualified stock option,
indicates is not intended to qualify as an incentive stock option within the meaning of
Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code and is granted under Article 7 of this Plan,
or-although indicated by the Committee as an Incentive Stock Option does not qualify
within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code.

(s) “Non-Qualified Option Agreement” means the agreement between the Company and
the Optionee evidencing the grant of a Non-Qualified Stock Option.

(t) “Optionee” means any individual who is granted an Incentive Stock Option or a Non-
Qualified Stock Option.

(u) “Option Agreement” refers to an Incentive Option Agreement or Non-Qualified Option
Agreement, as the case may be.

(v) “Outstanding Stock Options” means all Stock Options that, at such time, have not yet
been exercise, expired, terminated or cancelled.

(w)“Restricted Stock Grant” means a grant of shares of Common Stock pursuant to this
Plan, regardless of whether the Grantee receives the shares covered by such grant
- solely for services or for a combination of services and cash payment to the

Company.

(x) “Restricted Stock Agreement” means the written agreement between the Company and
a Grantee that evidences a Restricted Stock Grant.

- (y) “Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

(z) “Significant Shareholder” means any person who owns stock possessing more than
ten percent (10%) of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the
Company or any parent or Subsidiary of the Company. For purposes of this
definition a person shall be considered the owner of all stock owned directly or
indirectly by or for such person’s siblings, spouse, ancestors and lineal descendants.
In addition, stock owned, directly or indirectly, by or for a corporation, partnership,
estate or trust shall be considered as being owned proportionately by or for its
shareholders, partners or beneficiaries to the extent required by Section 422 of the
Internal Revenue Code.
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(az)  “Subsidiary” of the Company means any corporation or other entity owned or
controlled by the Company in an unbroken chain of corporations or other éntities in
which each of the corporations or other entities other than last corporation or other
entity owns fifty percent (50%) or more of the total combined voting power of all
classes of equity ownership interests in the other corporations or other entities in such
chain.

(bb)  “Stock Option” refers to Incentive Stock Option and Non-Qualified Stock
Options.

(cc)  “Tax Withholding” means all amounts determined by the Company to be required
1o satxsfy applicable federal, state and local tax withholding requirements upon the
exercise of a Stock Option, the disqualifying disposition of shares of Common Stock
acquired by exercise of a Stock Option, the vesting of shares under a Restricted Stock
Grant, a Grantee making an election under Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue -
Code with respect to a Restncted Stock Grant or as otherwise may be required under

applicable tax laws.

3. Stock Subject to the Plan

3.1 Aggregate Number of Authorized Shares. Subject to adjustment in accordance
with Section 10.1, the total number of Authorized Shares is initially established at 94,000 shares.
Beginning January 30, 2004 ending fiscal year 2014, the number of Authorized Shares shall be
increased as of the last day of each fiscal year by an amount sufficient to increase the number of
Authorized Shares to be equal to Twenty Percent (20%) of the outstanding Common Stock as of
the last day of such fiscal year rounded to the nearest 1,000 shares. Notwithstanding any other
provision of this Plan, the maximum number of shares of Common Stock authorized for issuance
under Incentive Stock Options is 30,000 shares.

32  Number of Available Shares. At any point in time, the number of Available
Shares shall be the number of Authorized Shares minus:

(a) the number of shares of Common Stock issued upon the exercise of Stock
Options; and

(b)  the mumber of shares of Common Stock covered by Outstanding Stock
Options; and

©) the number of shares of Common Stock covered by Restricted Stock Grants
except to the extent that unvested shares are forfeited and repurchased by
the Company pursuant to the terms of a Restricted Stock Agreement.

If a Stock Option expires, terminates or is cancelled for any reason without having been exercised
in full, the shares of Common Stock covered by such Stock Option that were not purchased
through the exercise of such Stock Option will again become Available Shares. If shares of
Common Stock covered by a Restricted Stock Grant are repurchased by the Company pursuant to
the terms of a Restricted Stock Agreement, those shares will again become Available Shares.
Shares of Common Stock used by an Optionee to satisfy any income tax withholding obligations

4
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upon the exercise of a Non-Qualified Stock Optlon shall nonetheless, for purposes of thls Plan, be
~ considered as having been issued upon the exercise of such option.

3.3  Reservation of Shares. Available Shares shall consist of authorized but unissued

shares of the Company’s Common Stock. At all times, the Company will reserve for issuance
shares of Common Stock equal to the sum of (i) the number of shares covered by Outstanding

Stock Options and (ii) the number of Available Shares.

3.4  Annual Limit on Number of Shares to Any One Person. No person will be
eligible to receive Awards which, in aggregate, exceed 1000 shares in any calendar year except
in connection with the hiring or commencement of services from such person in which case the
limit shall be 2000 shares during such calendar year. However, the foregoing limitation shall not
apply to Awards of Stock Options in substitution for outstanding stock options of an Acquired
Company that are cancelled in connection with the acquisition of an Acquired Company.

4, Commencement and Duration of the Plan

4.1 Effective Date of the Plan. This Plan will be effective as of January 30, 2004,
subject to the provisions of Section 4.2.

42  Shareholder Approval of the Plan. This Plan will be submitted to the
shareholders of the Company for their approval within twelve (12) months of the Effective Date.
This Plan will be deemed approved by the shareholders if approved by a majority of the votes cast

-at a duly held meeting of the Company’s shareholders at which a quorum is present in person or by
proxy. Awards may be made prior to such shareholder approval provided that such Awards are
conditioned upon such approval and state by their terms that they will be null and void if
shareholder approval is not obtained.

4.3 Termination of the Plan. This Plan will terminate ten (10) years from the
Effective Date. In addition, the Board of Directors will have the right to suspend or terminate this
Plan at any time. Termination of the Plan will not terminate or otherwise affect any Outstanding
Stock Option, Option Agreement, Restricted Stock Grant or Restricted Stock Agreement.
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5. Administration

Subject to the provisions of this Plan and any additional terms or conditions which, from
time to time, may be imposed by the Board of Directors, the Committee will administer this Plan
and will have the authority, in its sole discretion, to grant Incentive Stock Options and Non-
Qualified Stock Options and to make Restricted Stock Grants in accordance with Articles 6, 7 and
9, respectively. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in connection with the acquisition of a corporation
or entity that will become an Acquired Company, the Board of Directors shall retain (but may
delegate to the Committee) the right to agree to grant Stock Options or make Restricted Stock
Grants in substitution for stock options granted by the Acquired Company prior to the date of such
acquisition that remain outstanding and not exercised as of such date. From time to time, the
Committee may adopt rules and regulations relating to the administration of this Plan and may seek
the advice of legal, tax, accounting and compensation advisors. Decisions of the Committee with
respect to the administration of this Plan, the interpretation or construction of this Plan or the
interpretation or construction of any written agreement evidencing an Award will be final and
conclusive, subject only to review by the full Board of Directors. The Committee may correct any
defect, supply any omission or reconcile any inconsistency in this Plan or in any agreement
evidencing an Award in the manner and to the extent it deems appropriate. The Committee may
accelerate the vesting of Stock Options and Restricted Stock Grants in connection with the
occurrence of a Change of Control Transaction and may do so, in whole or in part, on any basis
that it determines to be appropriate.

The Board of Directors shall appoint the Committee, which shall consist of at least two
members of the Board of Directors. For purposes of this paragraph, directors who are (i) not
“outside directors” as such term is defined in Treasury Regulation §1.162-27(e)(3), (i) directors
who are not “non-employee directors” as such term is defined in Rule 16b-3 issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission under Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, (“Rule 16b-3") and (iii) directors that fail to meet the requirements for service on a
compensation committee as set forth in the listing standards of the exchange or market on which
the Common Stock primarily trades are referred to as “Abstaining Directors.” The appointment to
the Committee of one or more Abstaining Directors shall not invalidate any of the Committee’s
actions. An Abstaining Director shall be deemed to have abstained from any action of the
Committee for which an “Abstaining Director,” under the respective rule giving rise to such
designation, is prohibited from participating (notwithstanding any statement to the contrary which
may be contained in minutes of a meeting of the Committee). Ifthe Committeg proposes to take
an action by unanimous consent in lieu of a meeting, an Abstaining Director shall be deemed to not
be a member of the Committee for the purpose of such consent with respect to any actions for
which such member is deemed to be an Abstaining Director.

If no Committee is appointed, the Board of Directors will have all the powers, duties and
responsibilities of the Committee as set forth in this Plan. In addition, the Board of Directors
may abolish a Committee and assume the duties and responsibilities of the Committee at any
time by resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors.
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6. Incentive Stock Option Terms and Conditions
Incentive Stock Options will be subject to the following terms and conditions.

6.1  Requirement for a Written Agreement. Each Incentive Stock Option will be
evidenced by a written Incentive Option Agreement. The Committee, from time to time, will
determine the form of Incentive Option Agreement. Except as provided in Section 6.13, the
terms of every Incentive Option Agreement must be consistent with this Plan. Any
inconsistencies between any Incentive Option Agreement and this Plan will be resolved in
accordance with the terms and conditions specified in this Plan. Except as expressly required by
this Article 6, the terms and conditions of each Incentive Stock Option do not need to be identical.

6.2  Who May be Granted an Incentive Stock Option. An Incentive Stock Option
may be granted to any Employee who, in the judgment of the Committee, has performed or will
perform services important to the management, operation and development of the business of the
Company or of one or more of its Subsidiaries. The Committee, in its sole discretion, shall
determine when and to which Employees Incentive Stock Options are granted.

6.3  Number of Shares Covered by an Incentive Stock Option. Each Incentive
Option Agreement shall specify the number of shares of Common Stock that may be purchased
upon exercise of the Incentive Stock Option, as determined by the Committee in its sole
discretion.

6.4  Vesting Schedule under an Incentive Stock Option. Each Incentive Option
Agreement shall specify when and to what extent the Incentive Stock Option is exercisable, and
may previde that the Incentive Stock Option is immediately exercisable as to all of the shares of
Common Stock covered by such option or is only exercisable in accordance with a vesting
schedule.

Notwithstanding any term to the contrary set forth in any Incentive Option Agreement, an
Incentive Stock Option granted to a person who, at the time of the grant, was an executive officer
of the Company will not become exercisable until after six (6) months from the date of such grant
unless the Award was approved either by (i) a committee of non-employee directors within the
requirements of Rule 16b-3 or (ii) the full Board of Directors. To the extent that an Incentive
Stock Option (together with other incentive stock options within the meaning of Section 422 of
the Internal Revenue Code held by such Optionee with an equal or lower exercise price per
share) purports to become exercisable for the first time during any calendar year as to shares of
Common Stock with a Fair Market Value (determined at the time of grant) in excess of
$100,000, such excess shares shall be considered to be covered by a Non-Qualified stock option
and not an incentive stock option within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue

Code.

6.5  Exercise Price of an Incentive Stock Option. Each Incentive Option Agreement
shall specify the Exercise Price of the Incentive Stock Option. The Exercise Price will be 100%
of Fair Market Value as of the date on which the Incentive Stock Option was granted. However,
if the Optionee is a Significant Shareholder, the Exercise Price will be 110% of Fair Market
Value as of the date on which the Incentive Stock Option was granted.
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6.6  Duration of an Incentive Stock Option--Generally. Each Incentive Option
Agreement shall set forth the term of the Incentive Stock Option provided that such term will not
exceed 10 years from the date on which such option was granted. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
if the Optionee is a Significant Shareholder, the term will not exceed 5 years from the date on
which the Incentive Stock Option was granted. The Optionee shall have no further right to
exercise an Incentive Stock Option following the expiration of such term.

6.7  The Effect of Termination of the Optionee’s Employment on the Term of an
Incentive Stock Option. If an Optionee ceases to be an Employee for any reason other than as a
result of the Optionee dying or becoming Disabled (as provided for in Section 6.9 and
Section 6.10, respectively), all Incentive Stock Options granted to such Optionee shall terminate,
to the extent that they are not exercised within 3 months following the date the Optionee ceases
to be an Employee. The foregoing provision will not extend the time within which an Incentive
Stock Option may be exercised beyond the expiration of the term of such option. No additional
vesting shall occur after the date the Optionee ceases to be an Employee. The Incentive Option
Agreement may, in the discretion of the Committee, provide that if the Optionee’s employment
is terminated by the Company for cause (as defined by an employment or severance agreement
between the Company and the Employee, or if not so defined, as determined by the Company’s
President or Board of Directors in their reasonable discretion) the Incentive Stock Option will
terminate immediately upon the Company’s notice to the Optionee of such termination.

6.8  The Effect of a Leave of Absence on an Incentive Stock Option. An Optionee
shall not cease to be an Employee, for purposes of Section 6.7, if the Optionee is on sick leave,
family leave, military leave or any other leave of absence that is approved by the Committee.
The Committee, in its sole discretion, may determine whether or not an Incentive Stock Option
shall continue to vest during any sick leave, family leave, military leave or other approved leave
of absence. Ifan Optionee’s sick leave, family leave, military leave or other approved leave of
absence continues for more than ninety (90) days and reemployment of the Optionee is not
guaranteed by contract or statute, the Optionee’s Incentive Stock Option may cease to qualify as
an incentive stock option within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code. In
such event, the Stock Option will nonetheless continue as a Non-Qualified Stock Option under
this Plan.

6.9  The Effect of the Death of an Optionee on the Term of an Incentive Stock
Option. If an Optionee ceases to be an Employee as a result of the death of the Optionee, all
Incentive Stock Options granted to such Optionee shall terminate to the extent that they are not
exercised within twelve (12) months following the date of the Optionee’s death. The foregoing
provision will not extend the time within which an Incentive Stock Option may be exercised
beyond the expiration of the term of such option and no additional vesting shall occur after the
date of the Optionee’s death.

6.10 The Effect of the Disability of an Optionee on the Term of an Incentive Stock
Option. If an Optionee ceases to be an Employee as a result of the Optionee was becoming
disabled, all Incentive Stock Options granted to such Optionee shall terminate to the extent that
they are not exercised within twelve (12) months following the date the Optionee became
disabled. The foregoing provision will not extend the time within which an Incentive Stock
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Option may be exercised beyond the expiration of the term of such option and no additional
vesting shall occur after the date the Optionee became disabled.

6.11 Transferability. Incentive Stock Options are not transferable except by will or
the laws of descent and distribution upon the death of the Optionee.

6.12 Tax Treatment and Savings Clause, Nothing contained in this Plan, any
Incentive Option Agreement, any document provided by the Company to an Optionee ot any
statement made by or on behalf of the Company shall constitute a representation or warranty of
the tax treatment of any Incentive Stock Option or that such option will qualify as an incentive
stock option under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code. Any option that is designated as
an Incentive Stock Option but, either in whole or in part, fails for any reason to qualify as an

incentive stock option within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code or fails to

satisfy requirements of this Plan that apply only to Incentive Stock Options shall be treated as an
incentive stock option to the fullest extent permitted under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue
Code and this Plan and, notwithstanding such designation, shall otherwise be treated as a Non-
Qualified Stock Option under this Plan.

6.13 Non-Conforming Terms of Substitute Incentive Stock Options. Incentive
Stock Options granted in substitution for outstanding incentive stock options of an Acquired
Company may deviate from the terms otherwise required by this Article 6 to the extent that the
Committee, in its sole discretion upon the advise of its advisors, determines that such non-
conforming terms are required or appropriate under applicable tax law, accounting principles or

contractual requirements or are otherwise appropriate.

7. Non-Qualified Stock Option Terms and Conditions

Non-Qualified Stock Options may be granted in accordance with the following terms and
conditions. '

7.1  Requirement for a Written Agreement. Each Non-Qualified Stock Option will
be evidenced by a written option agreement (“Non-Qualified Option Agreement). The Committee
will determine from time to time the form of Non-Qualified Option Agreement. The terms of the
Non-~Qualified Option Agreement must be consistent with this Plan and any inconsistencies will be
- resolved in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in this Plan, Except as otherwise
required by this Article 7, the terms and conditions of Non-Qualified Stock Options do not need to

be identical.

7.2  Who may be granted a Non-Qualified Stock Option? A Non-Qualified Stock
Optlon may be granted to any Employee, any director of the Company and any other individual
who, in the judgment of the Committee, has performed or will perform services important to the
management, operation and development of the business of the Company or of one or more of its
Subsidiaries. The Committee, in its sole discretion, shall determine when and to whom Non-
Qualified Stock Options are granted.

73  Number of Shares Covered by a Non-Qualified Stock Option. Each Non-
Qualified Option Agreement shall specify the number of shares of Common Stock that may be
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purchased upon exercise of the Non-Qualified Stock Option, as determined by the Committee in
its sole discretion.

7.4 Vesting Schedule under a Non-Qualified Stock Option. Each Non-Qualified
Stock Option Agreement shall specify when and to what extent the Incentive Stock Option is
exercisable, and may provide that the Incentive Stock Option is immediately exercisable as to all
of the shares of Common Stock covered by such option or is only exercisable in accordance with
a vesting schedule. Any Non-Qualified Stock Option that was not either approved by (i) a
committee of non-employee directors within the requirements of Rule 16b-3 or (ii) the full board
of directors of the Bank, shall, notwithstanding Section 9.2 hereof or the terms set forth in the Non-
Qualified Option Agreement not be exercisable until at least six momnths after the date of such
grant.

7.5  Exercise Price of a Non-Qualified Stock Option. The Exercise Price for each
Non-Qualified Stock Option will be at least 100% of the Fair Market Value as of the date on
which the Non-Qualified Stock Option is granted. However, if it is subsequently determined that
the Exercise Price as stated in the Non-Qualified Option Agreement is less than 100% of the Fair
Market Value, such fact will not invalidate the Non-Qualified Stock Option.

7.6  Duration of a Non-Qualified Stock Option--Generally. Each Non-Qualified
Option Agreement shall set forth the term of the Non-Qualified Stock Option provided that such
term will not exceed 10 years from the date on which such option was granted. The Optionee shall
have no further right to exercise a Non-Qualified Stock Option following the expiration of such
term. -

7.7 The Effect of Termination of the Optionee’s Employment or Service as a
Director on the Term of a Non-Qualified Stock Option. If an Optionee, ceases to be an
Employee of the Company (or, in the case of an Optionee who is not an Employee but is a
director of the Company, ceases to be a director of the Company) for any reason other than as a
result of the Optionee dying or becoming Disabled (as provided for in Section 7.9 and
Section 7.10, respectively), all Non-Qualified Stock Options granted to such Optionee shall
terminate to the extent that they are not exercised within three months following the date the
~ Optionee ceased to be an Employee (or a director, as the case may be) of the Company. The
foregoing provision will not extend the time within which a Non-Qualified Stock Option may be
exercised beyond the expiration of the term of such option and no additional vesting shall occur
after the date the Optionee ceases to be an Employee (or a director, as the case may be). Inthe
discretion of the Committee, the Non-Qualified Option Agreement may provide that if the
Optionee’s employment is terminated by the Company for cause (as defined by an employment or
severance agreement between the Company and the Employee, or if not so defined, as
determined by the Company’s President or Board of Directors in their reasonable discretion) the
Non-Qualified Stock Option will terminate immediately upon the Company’s notice to the
Optionee of such termination.

7.8 The Effect of a Leave of Absence on a Non-Qualified Stock Option. An
Optionee shall not cease to be an Employee, for purposes of Section 7.7, if the Optionee is on
sick leave, family leave, military leave or any other leave of absence that is approved by the
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Committee. The Committee, in its sole discretidn, may determine whether a Non-Qualified
Stock Option shall continue to vest during any sick leave, family leave, military leave or other
approved leave of absence.

7.9  The Effect of the Death of an Optionee on the Term of a Non-Qualified Stock
Option. If an Optionee ceases to be an Employee, ceases to serve as a director of the Company or
ceases to provide services to the Company as a result of the Optionee’s death, all Non-Qualified
Stock Options granted to such Optionee will terminate to the extent that they are not previously
exercised within twelve (12) months following the date of the Optionee’s death. The foregoing
provision will not extend the time within which a Non-Qualified Stock Option may be exercised
beyond the expiration of the term of such option and no additional vesting shall occur after the
date the Optionee’s death.

7.186  The Effect of the Disability of an Optionee on the Term of a Nou-Qualified Stock
Option. If an Optionee ceases to be an Employee, ceases to serve as a director of the Company or
ceases to provide services to the Company as a result of the Optionee becoming Disabled, all Noxzi-
Qualified Stock Options granted to such Optionee shall terminate to the extent that they are rot
exercised within twelve (12) months following the date of the Optionee becoming Disabled. The
foregoing provision will not extend the time within which a Non-Qualified Stock Option may be
exercised beyond the expiration of the term of such option and no additional vesting shall occur
after the date the Optionee became disabled.

7.11 Transferability. Non-Qualified Stock Options may be transferred by gift to the

. Optionee’s spouse, children or a trust for the exclusive benefit of any combination of the
Optionee, the Optionee’s spouse and the Optionee’s children but only to the extent permitted by
the Committee as expressly stated in the Non-Qualified Option Agreement. Any transfer of a
Non-Qualified Stock Option shall be conditioned upon the Optionee and the transferee of such
Non-Qualified Stock Option executing and delivering to the Company a form of
Transfer/Assumption of Non-Qualified Stock Option as the Company may request.
Notwithstanding any transfer of 2 Non-Qualified Stock Option, the Optionee shall remain liable
to the Company for any income tax withholding amounts that the Company is required to
withhold at the time the transferred Non-Qualified Stock Option is exercised. If the Non-
Qualified Option Agreement does not expressly provide that such option is transferable, such
option may not be transferred by the Optionee, except by will or the laws of descent and
distribution upon the Optionee’s death or with the prior written consent of the Committee, which
consent may be withheld in the Committee’s sole discretion.

7.12  Non-Conforming Terms of Substitute Non-Qualified Stock Options. Non-
Qualified Stock Options granted in substitution for outstanding Non-Qualified stock options of
an Acquired Company may deviate from the terms otherwise required by this Article 7 to the
extent that the Committee, in its sole discretion upon the advise of its advisors, determines that
such non-conforming terms are required or appropriate under applicable tax law, accounting
principles or contractual requirements or are otherwise appropriate.

8. Exercise of Stock Options
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8.1  Notice of Exercise. A Stock Option may be exercised only by delivery to the
Company of written notice signed by the Optionee or by the permitted transferee of a Non-
Qualified Stock Option under Section 7.11 (or, in the case of exercise after death of the
Optionee, by the executor, administrator, heir or legatee of the Optionee, as the case may be)
directed to the President of the Company (or such other person as the Company may designate)
at the Company’s principal business office. The notice will specify (i) the number of shares of
Common Stock being purchased, (ii) the method of payment of the Exercise Price, (iii) the
method of payment of the Tax Withholding, if required, and (iv), unless a registration under the
Securities Act is in effect with respect to the Plan at the time of such exercise, the notice of
exercise shall contain such representations as the Company determines to be necessary or
appropriate in order for the sale of shares of Common Stock being purchased pursuant to such
exercise to qualify for exemptions from registration under the Securities Act and other applicable

state securities laws.

8.2  Payment of Exercise Price. No shares of Common Stock will be issued upon the
exercise of any Stock Option unless and until payment or adequate provision for payment of the
Exercise Price of such shares has been made in accordance with this subsection. The
Committee, in its sole discretion, may provide in any Option Agreement that the Exércise Price
may be paid in cash (including by check), by delivery of a full-recourse promissory note, by the
surrender of shares of Common Stock or other securities issued by the Company (provided that
such other securities have been held by the Optionee for at least six months prior to the date on
which the Option is being exercised) in accordance with Section 8.4, or by any combination of
the foregoing. In the absence of such terms in the Option Agreement, the Exercise Price shall be
paid in cash (including by check). The Committee, in its sole discretion, may permit an
Optionee to elect to pay the Exercise Price by authorizing a duly registered and licensed broker-
- dealer to sell the shares of Common Stock to be issued upon such exercise (or, at least, a
sufficient portion thereof) and instructing such broker-dealer to immediately remit to the
Company a sufficient portion of the proceeds from such sale to pay the entire Exercise Price.

8.3  Pavment of Tax Withholding Amounts. Upon the exercise of any Stock Option
(including a Non-Qualified Stock Option transferred by the Optionee pursuant to Section 7.11),
either with the delivery of the notice of exercise or upon notification of the amount due, each
Optionee must pay to the Company or make adequate provision for the payment of all Tax
Withholding, if any. The Option Agreement may provide for, or the Committee, in its sole
discretion, may allow the Optionee to pay the Tax Withholding (i) in cash (including by check),
(i) by the Company withholding such amount from other amounts payable by the Company to
the Optionee, including salary, (iii) by surrender of shares of Common Stock or other securities
of the Company in accordance with Section 8.4, (iv) by the application of shares that could be
received upon exercise of the Stock Option in accordance with Section 8.4, or (v) any
combination of the foregoing.

By receiving and upon exercise of a Stock Option, the Optionee shall be deemed to have
consented to the Company withholding the amount of any Tax Withholding from any amounts
payable by the Company to the Optionee. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may permit an
Optionee to elect to pay the Tax Withholding by authorizing a duly registered and licensed
broker-dealer to sell the shares to be issued upon such exercise (or, at least, a sufficient portion
thereof) and instructing such broker-dealer to immediately remit to the Company a sufficient
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portion of the proceeds from such sale to pay the Tax Withholding. No shares will be issued
upon an exercise of a Stock Option unless and until payment or adequate provision for payment
of the Tax Withholding has been made. If, either as a result of the exercise of a Stock Option or
the subsequent disqualifying disposition of shares acquired through such exercise, the Company
determines that additional Tax Withholding was or has become required beyond any amount
paid or provided for by the Optionee, the Optionee will pay such additional amount to the
Company immediately upon demand by the Company. Ifthe Optionee fails to pay the amount
demanded, the Company may withhold that amount from other amounts payable by the
Company to the Optionee, including salary.

8.4  Payment of Exercise Price or Withholding with Other Securities. To the
extent permitted in Section 8.2 and Section 8.3 above, the Exercise Price and Tax Withholding
may be paid by the surrender of shares of Common Stock or other securities of the Company,
which should be indicated on the notice of exercise. Payment shall be made by either (i)
delivering to the Company the certificates or instruments representing such shares of Common
Stock or other securities, duly endorsed for transfer, or (ii) delivering to the Company an
attestation in such form as the Company may deem appropriate with respect to the Optionee’s
ownership of the shares of Common Stock or other securities of the Company. For purposes of
this Article 8, shares of Common Stock shall be valued at their Fair Market Value as of the Jast
business day preceding the day the Company receives the Optionee’s notice of exercise. For
purposes of this Article 8, other securities of the Company shall be valued at the publicly
reported price, if any, for the last sale on the last business day preceding the day the Company
receives the Optionee’s notice of exercise, or, if there are no publicly reported prices of such
other securities of the Company, at the fair market value of such other securities as determined in .
good faith by the Board of Directors. To the extent permitted in Section 8.3, Tax Withholding
may (if the Optionee notifies the Company at the time of the notice of exercise) be paid by the
application of shares which could be received upon exercise of any other stock option issued by
the Company. This application of shares shall be accomplished by crediting toward the
Optionee’s Tax Withholding obligation the difference between the Fair Market Value and the
Exercise Price of the Stock Option specified in the Optionee’s notice. Any such application shall
be considered an exercise of the other Stock Option to the extent that shares are so applied.

8.5 Compliance with Legal Requirements. No shares of Common Stock will be
issued with respect to the exercise of any Stock Option unless the exercise and issuance of the
shares of Common Stock will comply with (i) all relevant provisions of law, including, without
limitation, the Securities Act, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, all applicable state securities
laws and the Internal Revenue Code, each as amended and including the respective rules and
regulations promulgated under each of the foregoing, (ii) any registration under the Securities
Act in effect with respect to the Plan, and (iii) the requirements of any stock exchange upon
which the Common Stock may then be listed. Compliance with such provisions shall be subject
to the approval of legal counsel for the Company. The Company will not be liable to any
Optionee or any other person for failure to issue shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of a
Stock Option where such failure is due to the inability of the Company to obtain all permits,
exemptions or approvals from regulatory authorities which are deemed necessary by the
Company’s legal counsel. The Board may require any action or agreement by an Optionee as
may be necessary, from time to time, to comply with the federal and state securities laws. The
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Company will not be obliged to prepate, file or maintain a registration under the Securities Act
with respect to the Plan or to take any actions with respect to any state securities laws.

8.6  Issuance of Shares. Notwithstanding the good faith compliance by the Optionee
with all of the terms and conditions of an Option Agreement and with this Article 8, the Optionee
will not become a shareholder and will have no rights as a shareholder with respect to the shares
covered by such Stock Option until the issuance of shares pursuant to the exercise of such Stock
Option is recorded on the Company’s stock transfer record. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Company shall not unreasonably delay the issuance of a stock certificate and shall exercise
reasonable efforts to cause such stock certificate to be issued to the Optionee as soon as is
practicable after the compliance by the Optionee with all of the terms and conditions of the
Option Agreement and with this Article 8.

8.7 Notice of any Disqualifying Disposiﬁon and Provision for Tax Withholding.

Any Optionee that exercises an Incentive Stock Option and then makes a “disqualifying
disposition” (as such term is defined under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code) of the shares
so purchased, shall immediately notify the Company in writing of such disqualifying disposition
and, in accordance with Section 8.3, shall pay or make adequate provision for all Tax Withholding
~ that may be required as a result of such disqualifying disposition.

8.8 Non-Conforming Terms of Substitute Incentive Stock Options and Substitute
Non-Qualified Stock Options. Stock Options granted under Article 6 or Article 7 of this Plan in
substitution for outstanding incentive stock options or Non-Qualified stock options of an
Acquired Company may deviate from the terms otherwise required by this Article 8 to the extent
that the Committee, in its sole discretion upon the advise of its advisors, determines that such
non-conforming terms are required under applicable tax law, accounting principles or contractual
requirements or are otherwise appropriate.

9. Restricted Stock Grants

Restricted Stock Grants may be made in accordance with the following terms and
conditions. :

9.1 Requirement for a Written Restricted Stock Agreement. Each Restricted Stock
Grant will be evidenced by a Restricted Stock Agreement. The Committee will determine from
time to time the form of Restricted Stock Agreement. Except as provided in Section 9.10, the
terms of each Restricted Stock Agreement must be consistent with this Plan. Any inconsistencies
between any Restricted Stock Agreement and this Plan will be in accordance with the terms and
conditions specified in this Plan. Except as otherwise required by this Article 9, the terms and
conditions of each Restricted Stock Grant do not need to be identical.

9.2  Who Mayv Receive a Restricted Stock Grant. A Restricted Stock Grant may be
made to any Employee, any director of the Company or any other individual who provides
services to the Company where, in the judgment of the Committee, the services performied or to be
performed by such Grantee are important to the management, operation and development of the

14
Stock Incentive Plan, Columbia Commercial Bancorp_v3.DOC

Page 165



business or businesses of the Company or one or more of its Subsidiaries. The Committee, in its
sole discretion, shall determine when and to whom Restricted Stock Grants are made.

9.3  Number of Shares Covered by a Restricted Stock Grant. Each Restricted
Stock Agreement shall specify the number of shares of Common Stock covered by the Restricted
Stock Grant, as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion.

9.4  What the Grantee Must Deliver to Receive a Restricted Stock Grant. The
Committee, in its sole discretion, will determine the consideration payable by a Grantee for the
shares covered by a Restricted Stock Grant. Consideration may consist of services rendered by
the Grantee to the Company, payment in cash, delivery of a promissory note, or delivery of other
securities of the Company. To the extent that the sum of any cash payment, any promissory note
and any other securities received by the Company from the Grantee in connection with a
Restricted Stock Grant is less than the Fair Market Value of the shares of Common Stock
covered by such Restricted Stock Grant determined as of the date of such grant, the shares of
Common Stock covered by the Restricted Stock Grant shall be deemed to have been issued by
the Company for services rendered by the Grantee,

9.5  Vesting Schedule under a Restricted Stock Grant. The Committee, in its sole
discretion, shall determine the terms and conditions upon which shares covered by any Restricted
Stock Grant shall vest, which terms shall be set forth in the Restricted Stock Agreement.
Unvested shares covered by a Restricted Stock Grant may not be transferred by the Grantee
under any condition without the prior written consent of the Committee, which consent may be
withheld in its sole discretion. '

9.6  Right to Repurchase Unvested Shares upon Certain Conditions. The
Restricted Stock Agreement shall specify the events upon the occurrence of which the Company

shall have the right to repurchase from the Grantee any or all of the Grantee’s unvested shares
and the period during which the Company must exercise this right following the occurrence of
the event. The Restricted Stock Agreement shall also specify the “Repurchase Price per Share”
that the Company shall pay to the Grantee upon exercise of its right to repurchase unvested
shares and the terms of such payment. If not otherwise specified in the Restricted Stock
Agreement, the right to repurchase must be exercised within forty-five (45) days after the
Company receives from the Grantee written notice of the occurrence of the event, the repurchase
price shall be $0.001 per share and the repurchase price shall be payable to the Grantee in cash
(including by check) within ten (10) days after the date on which the right to repurchase the
shares is exercised. Any right of the Company to repurchase unvested shares may be assigned
by the Company in its sole discretion without notice to, or the prior consent of, the Grantee.

9.7  Payment of Tax Withholding Amounts. Upon the vesting of shares under a
Restricted Stock Grant or upon the Grantee making a valid election under Section 83(b) of the
Internal Revenue Code, each Grantee must pay to the Company or make adequate provision for
the payment of all Tax Withholding, unless the Committee, in its sole discretion, determines
otherwise. The Restricted Stock Agreement may provide for, or the Committee, in its sole
discretion, may allow the Grantee to pay the Tax Withholding (i) in cash (including by check),
(ii) by the Company withholding such amount from other amounts payable by the Company to
the Grantee, including salary, (iii) by surrender of shares of Common Stock or other securities of
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the Company in the manner specified in Section 8 4, (iv) by the application of vested shares that
could be received under the Restricted Stock Agreement in accordance with Section 8.4, or
(v) any combination of the foregoing.

By accepting a Restricted Stock Grant, the Grantee shall be deemed to have consented to
the Company withholding the amount of any Tax Withholding from any amounts payable by the
Company to the Grantee. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may permit a Grantee to elect to
pay the Tax Withholding by authorizing a duly registered ‘and licensed broker-dealer to sell
shares of Common Stock that are vested or vesting under the Restricted Stock Agreement (or, at
least a sufficient portion thereof) and instructing such broker-dealer to immediately remit to the
Company a sufficient portion of the proceeds from such sale to pay the Tax Withholding. No
shares of Common Stock will be released from the restrictions on their transfer under Section 9.5
unless and until payment or adequate provision for payment of the Tax Withholding has been
made. Ifthe Company later determines that additional Tax Withholding was or-has become
required beyond any amount paid or provided for by the Grantee, the Grantee will pay such
additional amount to the Company immediately upon demand by the Company. Ifthe Grantee
fails to pay the amount demanded, the Company may withhold that amount from other amounts
payable by the Company to the Grantee, including salary.

9.8 Compliance with Legal Requirements. No shares of Common Stock will be
issued with respect to any Restricted Stock Grant unless the issuance of the shares of Common
Stock will comply with (i) all relevant provisions of law, including, without limitation, the
Securities Act, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, all applicable state securities laws and the
Internal Revenue Code, each as amended and including the respective rules and regulations
promulgated under each of the foregoing, (ii) any registration under the Securities Act in effect
with respect to the Plan, and (iii) the requirements of any stock exchange upon which the
Common Stock may then be listed. Compliance with such provisions shall be subject to the
approval of legal counsel for the Company. The Company will not be liable to any Grantee or
any other person for failure to issue shares of Common Stock in connection with a Restricted
Stock Grant where such failure is due to the inability of the Company to obtain all permits,
exemptions or approvals from regulatory authorities which are deemed necessary by the
Company’s legal counsel. The Board may require any action or agreement by a Grantee as may
be necessary, from time to time, to comply with the federal and state securities laws. The
Company will not be obliged to prepare, file or maintain a registration under the Securities Act
with respect to the Plan or to take any actions with respect to any state securities laws.

9.9  Issuance of Shares. Notwithstanding the good faith compliance by the Grantee
with all of the terms and conditions of a Restricted Stock Agreement and with this Article 9, the
Grantee will not become a shareholder and will have no rights as a shareholder with respect to
the shares covered by such Restricted Stock Grant until the issuance of shares is recorded on the
stock transfer record of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall not
unreasonably delay the issuance of a stock certificate and shall exercise reasonable efforts to
cause such stock certificate to be issued to the Grantee as soon as is practicable after the
compliance by the Grantee with all of the terms and conditions of the Restricted Stock
Agreement and with this Article 9.
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9.10 Non-Conforming Terms of Substitute Restricted Stock Grants. Restricted
Stock Grants made under this Article 9 in substitution for outstanding stock options or unvested
restricted stock grants of an Acquired Company may deviate from the terms otherwise required
by this Article 9 to the extent that the Committee, in its sole discretion upon the advise of its
advisors, determines that such non-conforming terms are required under applicable tax law,
accounting principles or contractual requirements or are otherwise appropriate.

10. Change in Capital Structure or Control

10.1  Change in Capital Structure; Effect on Number of Shares and Exercise Price.
If the outstanding shares of Common Stock are hereafter increased, decreased, changed into or
exchanged for a different number or kind of shares of Common Stock or for other securities of the
Company or of another corporation, by reason of any reorganization, merger, consolidation,
reclassification, stock split-up, combination of shares of Common Stock, or dividend payable in
shares of Common Stock or other securities of the Company, the Committee will make such
adjustment as it deems appropriate in the number and kind of Authorized Shares. In addition, the
Committee will make such adjustment in the number and kind of shares of Common Stock or other
securities covered by Outstanding Stock Options, as well as make an adjustment in the Exercise
Price of each Qutstanding Stock Option as the Committee deems-appropriate. Any determination
by the Committee as to what adjustments may be made, and the extent thereof, will be final,
binding on all parties and conclusive.

10.2  Effect of the Occurrence of a Change of Control Transaction on Continuing
Rights. In the event of the occurrence of any Change of Control Transaction, all OQutstanding
Stock Options shall terminate effective as of the effective date of such transaction, unless and only
to the extent that the terms and conditions of the transaction expressly provide for the assumption
of this Plan and the continuation of such Outstanding Stock Options. Each Optionee shall be
provided written notice of the expected occurrence of any such transaction at least fifteen (15) days
prior to the effective date and shall be permitted to tender a notice of exercise of any Outstanding
Stock Option that is conditioned upon the transaction actually occurring and, notwithstanding any
provision of Article 8 or term of any Option Agreement, shall not be required to tender payment of
the exercise price or amounts that the Company may be required to withhold for tax purposes until
after the occurrence of the transaction. The terms and conditions of the transaction may provide
for the assumption of this Plan with respect only to outstanding Restricted Stock Grants that have
not fully vested and the assignment to and assumption by the surviving corporation of the rights
and obligation of the Company under each outstanding Restricted Stock Agreement.
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11. Underwriter’s Lock-Up

Each written agreement evidencing an Award will specify that the Optionee or Grantee, by
accepting the Award agrees that, whenever the Company undertakes a firmly underwritten public
offering of its securities, the Optionee or Grantee will, if requested to do so by the managing
underwriter in such offering, enter into an agreement not to sell or dispose of any securities of the
Company owned or controlled by the Optionee or Grantee provided that such restriction will not
extend beyond twelve (12) months from the effective date of the registration statement filed in
connection with such offering.

12. Employment Rights

Nothing in this Plan nor in any written agreement evidencing an Award will confer upon
any Optionee or Grantee any right to continued employment with the Company or to limit or affect
in any way the right of the Company, in its sole discretion, to (a) terminate the employment of such
Optionee or Grantee at any time, with or without cause, (b) change the duties of such Optionee or
Grantee, or (c) increase or decrease the compensation of the Optionee or Grantee at any time.
Unless the written agreement evidencing an Award expressly provides otherwise, vesting under
such agreement shall be conditioned upon:

1) for Employees of the Company, the continued employment of the Optionee or Grantee;

2) for independent contractors, the Optionee or Grantee continuing to provide services to
the Company on substantially the same terms and conditions as such services were
provided at the time of the Award; or

3) For directors who are not Employees, the Optionee or Grantee continuing to serve as a
director of the Company.

" Nothing in this Plan shall be construed as creating a contractual or implied right or covenant by the
Company to continue such employment, service as an independent contractor or service as a
director.

13. Amendment of Plan

The Board of Directors, at any time and from time to time, may modify or amend this Plan
as it deems advisable except that any amendment (i) increasing the number of shares of Common
Stock issuable pursuant to this Plan, (ii) expanding the group of persons eligible to receive
Awards or (iii) otherwise required to be approved by the shareholders of the Company under any
applicable law, accounting principle or listing requirement, shall only become effective if and
when such amendment is approved by the shareholders of the Company. Except as provided in
Article 10, no amendment shall be made to the terms or conditions of an outstanding Stock Option
or Restricted Stock Grant without the written consent of the Optionee or Grantee.
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DATED as of, and approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company at a mee’tin‘g
held on, January 30.2004.

Approved by the shareholders of the Company on April 16, 2004.
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INSERTS TO FORM OF STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
Full corporate name of plan sponsor

State of incorporation of the Company
Number of shares initially authorized under the plan

Fiscal Year in which Evergreen provisions

Percentage of the outstanding shares by which

increases under the “evergreen” provisions, if applicable

Minimum number of shares by which authorized shares

under the “evergreen” provisions, if applicable

Maximum number of shares authorized for Incentive Stock
Options (a fixed number of shares for ISOs is required if
“evergreen” provisions are included)

Maximum number of shares covered by an award

Annual maximum number of shares covered by awards

upon hiring

Date on which plan was approved by Board of

Date on which plan was approved by shareholders
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s n « ? LE Exhibit 6.5
COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP
RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT
This Restricted Stock Agreement is made and entered into pursuant to the terms of the 2004 Stock
Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) adopted by the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Columbia Commercial

Bancorp, an Oregon corporation (the “Company”). Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms
defined in this Restricted Stock Agreement shall have the meanings as defined in the Plan.

“Grantee”

Number of Shares of the Company’s
Common Stock Awarded (the “Grant Shares”)
“Date of Award”

Price Paid by Grantee per Share, if any

* “Fair Market Value per Share of Date of Award

Repurchase Price per Share

“Vesting Schedule” - As set forth on Schedule A

1. AWARD OF RESTRICTED STOCK GRANT

The Company hereby awards to the Grantee and the Grantee accepts the award of a Restricted Stock
Grant of the number of shares of Common Stock of the Company specified above as the Grant Shares. This
Restricted Stock Grant is being made as part of the Grantée’s compensation package without the payment of
any consideration other than the Grantee’s services to the Company and payment of the Price Paid by the
Grantee per Share specified above, if any. The Award is being made pursuant to the Plan and is subject to
and conditioned upon the terms and conditions of the Plan and the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement. Any inconsistency between this Agreement and the terms and conditions of the Plan will be
resolved in accordance with the Plan.

2, REPRESENTATIONS OF THE GRANTEE

2.1 No Representations by or on Behalf of the Company. The Grantee is not relying on any
representation, warranty or statement made by the Company or any agent, employee or officer, director,
shareholder or other controlling person of the Company regarding the Grant Shares or this Restricted Stock
Grant. ‘ ' '

2.2.  Tax Election. The Company has advised the Grantee to seek and the Grantee has obtained
his or her own tax and financial advice with regard to the federal and state tax considerations resulting from
the Grantee’s receipt of the Grant Shares pursuant to the Award. Based upon that advice (and not upon any
advice or statements of anyone acting on behalf of the Company), the Grantee is making his or her own
determination as to the advisability of making a Section 83(b) election with respect to the Grant Shares
covered by the Award and this Restricted Stock Agreement. The Grantee understands that the Company will
report to appropriate taxing authorities the payment to the Grantee of compensation income either (i) upon the
vesting of Shares or (ii) if the Grantee makes a timely Section 83(b) election, as of the Date of the Award.
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The Grantee understands that he or she is solely responsible for the payment of all federal and state taxes
resulting from this Restricted Stock Grant. With respect to Tax Withholding Amounts, the Company has all
of the rights specified in Section 5 of this Restricted Stock Agreement and has no obligations to the Grantee
except as-expressly stated in Section 5 of this Restricted Stock Agreement,

2.3 Agreement to Enter into Lock-Up Agreement with an Underwriter. The Grantee, by

" accepting the Award represented by this Restricted Stock Agreement, understands and agrees that whenever -

the Company undertakes a firmly underwritten public offering of its securities, the Grantee will, if requested
to do so by the managing underwriter in such offering, enter into an agreement not to sell or dispose of any
securities of the Company owned or controlled by the Grantee provided that such restriction will not extend
beyond 12 months from the effective date of the registration statement filed in connection with such
offering,

3. GENERAL RESTRICTIONS OF TRANSFERS OF UNVESTED SHARES

3.1 No Transfers of Unvested Shares. The Grantee agrees for himself or herself, his or her
executors, administrators and other successors in interest that none of the Unvested Shares, nor any interest
therein, may be voluntarily or involuntarily sold, transferred, assigned, donated, pledged, hypothecated or
otherwise disposed of, gratuitously or for consideration prior to their vesting in accordance with the Vesting
Schedule set forth in Schedule A.

32 Stock Distributions. If the Company makes any distribution of stock with respect to the
Grant Shares by way of a stock dividend or stock split, or pursuant to any recapitalization, reorganization,
consolidation, merger or otherwise, and the Grantee receives any additional shares of stock in the Company
(or other shares of stock in another corporation) as a result thereof, such additional (or other) shares shall be
deemed Grant Shares hereunder and shall be subject to the same restrictions and obhgatlons imposed by this
Agreement.

33 Invalid Transfers. Any disposition of the Grant Shares other than in strict compliance with
the provisions of this Agreement shall be void, The Company shall not be requued (1) to transfer on its books
any Grant Shares which have been sold or transferred in violation of the provisions of this Section 2 or (ii) to
treat as the owner of the Grant Shares, or otherwise to accord voting, dividend or any other rights to, any

person or entity to whom Grantee transferred or aftempted to transfer the Grant Shares in contravention of -

this Agreement.

34 Status of Repurchased Grant Shares. Any of the Grant Shares repurchased by the
Company pursuant fo this Agreement shall return to the status of authorized, but unissued, shares of the
Company. - :

4. RIGHT TO REPURCHASE UNVESTED GRANT SHARES
4.1 Repurchase Right. For a period of ninety days (90) after the occurrence of any of the
following events (each a “Repurchase Event™), the Company shall have the right, at its option, to repurchase’
the Grant Shares from the Grantee to the extent that they were Unvested on the date of the Repurchase Event:
| @) upon the death of the Grantee; and

(i1) upon the Grantee becoming Disabled, as such term is defined in the Plan; and

(iif) upon the Grantee ceasing, for any reason, to be an Employee, as such term is
defined in the Plan, except that a Jeave of absence in accordance with the Company’s sick leave,
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family leave or military leave policies or that is otherwise approved by the Committee that
administers the Plan shall not constitute cessation of Employment provided unless the Grantee fails
to return to employment with the Company at the end of such leave in accordance with such policies
or approval; and

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Company was not aware of the occurrence of the Repurchase Event, the

ninety-day period shall not begin to run unti! such time as the Company actually becomes aware of such
occurrence. If the Company fails to exercise its repurchase right upon the occurrence of one Repurchase
Event, this shall not bar or waive the Company’s right to exercise its repurchase right’i in connection with any
subsequent Repurchase Event

4.2 Purchase Price and Payment. The Repurchase Price per Share of the Grant Shares under -

this Section 4 is as specified on the first page of th1s Restrrcted Stock Agreement and shall be pard by the -
Company at the closing by check. '

43 Closing of the Repurchase. Any shares repurchased pursuant to this Section 4 shall be
transferred at a closing to be held at the principal office of the Company no later than ten. (10) days after the
expu‘atlon of the ninety (90) day period specified i in Section 4.1.

4.4 Safekeeping of Stock Certificate Until the Explration of the Repurchase Right. ‘Until

Grant Shares are vested in accordance with the vesting schedule set forth in Schedule A, the stock certificate
representing the Grant Shares may be retained by the Company or its transfer agent.” Upon the closing of any
repurchase pursuant to this Section 4, Grantee does hereby authorized and does hereby irrevocably appoint
the Secretary of the Company (with full power of substitution) his attorney-in-fact to transfer the Grant
Shares on the books of the Company and to cancel or reissue a new certificate representing the Grant
Shares in accordance with this Section 4. Upon the written request of the Grantee, the Company will
deliver or cause to be delivered to the Grantee a stock certificate representirig the Grant Shares that have -
vested in accordance with the vesting schedule set forth in Schedule A to the extent that stock certificates
for such vested shares have not previously been delivered to the Grantee. The power of attorney
contained in this Section 4.4 shall become null and void as to Grant Shares that have vested in accordance
with the Vesting schedule set forth in Schedule A, :

4.5 ‘Assioninent of Rights bv the Company. The Company may, in its sole discretion,
assrgn its rights to repurchase Unvested Grant Shares to any one Or more persons w1thout notice to, or the
prior consent of, the Grantee,

5. PR_OVIS'I‘ON'FOR PAYMENT OF TAX WITHHOLDING AMOUNTS

“"%51  Payment of Tax Withholding Amounts. Upon the vesting of the Grant Shares or upon

the Grantee making a valid ele¢tion under Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code, the Grantee must
pay to the Company or make adequate provision for the payment of all Tax Withholding as such tefm is
defined in the Plan. By accepting the Award represented by this Restricted Stock Agreement, the Grantee

shall be deemed to have consented to the Company withholding the amount of any Tax Withholding from -
any amounts payable by the Company to the Grantee. No shares of Common Stock will be released from .

the restrictions on their transfer under Section 3 of this Restricted Stock Agreement unless and until
payment or adequate provision for payment of the Tax Withholding has been made. If the Company later
determines that additional Tax Withholding was or has become required beyond any amount paid or
provided for by the Grantee, the Grantee will pay such additional amount to the Company immediately
upon demand by the Company. If the Grantee fails to pay the amount demanded, the Company may
withhold that amount from other amounts payable by the Company to the Grantee, including salary.
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52 Alternative Provisions for the Payment of Tax Withholding Amounts. The

alternative means by which the Grantee may pay or make provisions for the payment of Tax Withholding
Amounts are set forth on Schedule B attached to this Restricted Stock Agreement. -

6. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

61 Specific Performance. The parties hereby acknowledge and agree that it is ixnposvsible to

. measure in money the damages which will be suffered by a party hereto by reason of any breach by another

party of any term of this Agreement, that the Company and its common stock are unique and that a
non-breaching party. will suffer irreparable injury if this Agreement is not speciﬁcally performed.
Accordingly, the parties hereto.acknowledge that a non-breaching party shall, in addition to all other
remedies available hereunder or at law, be entitled to equitable relief (including without limitation
preliminary and permanent injunctive relief) to enforce the terms of this Agreement.

62 . bNo.Rlights to Continued Employment. Nothing contained herein shall confer upon

~ Grantee any right to continue in the employ of the Company, and the Company reserves all rights to

discharge Grantee for any reason whatsoever, with or without cause, as an at-will employee, subject to the
terms of any other written agreement that may exist between the Company and Grantee

6. 3 Amendment and Modification. This Agreement may be amended, modiﬁed,and

- supplemented only by written agreement of all of the parties hereto.

64  Assignment. This Agreement and all of the provisions hereof shall be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns, but neither this
Agreement nor-any of the rights, interests or obligations hereunder shall be assigned by the Grantee without
the prior written consent of the Company. } .

6.5 Governing Law. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder
shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Oregon applicable to .
the construction and enforcement of contracts wholly executed in Oregon by residents of Oregon and wholly.
performed in Oregon. Any action or proceeding brought by any party hereto shall be brought only in a state
or federal court of competent jurisdiction located in the County.of Washington in the State of Oregon and all
parties hereto hereby submit to the in personam jurisdiction of such court for purposes of any such action or .
procedure.

6.6 Attorneys' Fees. If any party to this Agreement brings an action against another party to -
enforce his or its rights under this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover his or its, costs
and expenses, including without limitation attorneys fees and costs, incurred in connection with such action,
including any appeal of such action. In the event that a party brings such an action agamst more, than one of
the other parties to this Agreement, any attorneys fees awarded against such other parties shall be equitably

- apportioned among such other parties in light of all of the facts and circumstances surrounding their

involvement in such action.

6.7 Headings. The headings of the sections and subsections of this Agreement are inserted for
convenience only and shall not constitute a part hereof. : .

6.8 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Plan embody the entire agreement and
understanding of the parties hereto in respect of the subject matter contained herein and supersedes all prior
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written or oral communications or agreementsA all of which are merged herein. There are no restrictions,
promises, warranties, covenants, or undertakings, other than those expressly set forth or referred to herein.

6.9 No Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement or any rights or obligations of
any party hereunder shall be effective, except pursuant to a written instrument signed by the party or parties
waiving compliance, and any such waiver shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the spec1ﬁc
purpose stated in such writing.

6.10  Severability of Provisions. In the event that any provision hereof is found invalid or
unenforceable pursuant to judicial decree or decision, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain valid and
enforceable according to its terms. '

6.11  Notices. All notices or other communications pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing
and shall be deemed duly given if personally delivered or if mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested,
prepaid and addressed to the address of the party as set forth in this Agreement or such other address as such
party shall have furnished to the other party in writing.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantee and the Company ha"ve executed this Agréement on the day
and year first indicated above.

GRANTEE

Social Security Number:

Address:  ___

COMPANY COLUMBIA COMMERCIAL BANCORP

By:
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RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT
SCHEDULE A - VESTING SCHEDULE

Grant Shares awarded under the Restricted Stock Agreement to which this Schedule A is attached
shall vest as set forth below. Grant Shares that have not yet vested in accordance with the vestmg schedule
are referred to in the Restricted Stock Agreement as “Unvested Shares.” :

Upon the following vesting dates:

Vesting Date Number of Grant Shares Vesting on that Date

December 31, 2004 ALL SHARES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT
,200__
300
— 200__
1200 |

Notwithstanding the foregoing:

@
(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

30083674.01

no Unvested Shares will vest after the occurrence of any Repurchase Event;
no Unvested Shares will vest while the Grantee is on leave; -

any vesting dates referred to above shall automatically be extended by the duration of
any leave of absence that is without pay; and

the number of Grant Shares vesting above shall automatically be adjusted as appropriate
to reflect any stock dividend, stock-split, combination of shares or other similar event as
referred to in Section 10.1 of the Plan.
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RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT
SCHEDULE B -~ ALTERNATIVE PROVISIONS FOR PAYMENT OF TAX
WITHHOLDING AMOUNTS

The Grantee may pay or make provision for the payment of Tax Withholding Amounts due under

Section 5 of the Restricted Stock Agreement in the following manner:

30083674.01

The Grantee may elect to pay the Tax Withholding (i) in cash (including by check), (ii) by the
Company withholding such amount from other amounts payable by the Company to the Grantee,
including salary, (iii) by surrender of shares of Common Stock (including vested Grant Shares)
valued at their Fair Market Value as such term is defined in the Plan, (iv) by authorizing a duly
registered and licensed broker-dealer to sell shares of Common Stock that are vested or vesting
under the Restricted Stock Agreement (or, at least a sufficient portion thereof) and instructing
such broker-dealer to immediately remit to the Company a sufficient portion of the proceeds from
such sale to pay the Tax Withholding (v) by the surrender of other securities of the Company in
the manner specified in Section 8.4 of the Plan, or (vi) any combination of the foregoing.
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Exhibit 6.6
EXHIBIT 1

EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Executive Employment Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into
effective July 1, 2001 by and between Columbia Community Bank, INC., an Oregon
corporation (* Corporanon”) and Rick A. Roby (“Employee”).

RECITALS:

Corporation wishes to employ Employee and Employee wishes to accept employment
with Corporation on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

AGREEMENT:

1. Employment. Corporation agrees to employ employee as President-CEO-Cashier
for a period from 7-1-2001 to 12-31-2005. Employee will report to the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) of Corporation. Corporation and Employee acknowledge that the corporation may
terminate Employee’s employment with Corporation at any time with Cause (as defined in
Section 8.2) and by employee with 30 day written notice for any cause.

2. Term. This Agreement will commence on the effective date of this Agreement set
forth above (the “Effective Date’) and will continue for a period of 4.5 years, unless extended
in writing by the written agreement of Corporation and Employee, or unless earlier terminated
as provided below in Section 8.

3. Duties. Employee agrees to the best of Employee’s ability and experience that
Employee will at all times loyally and conscientiously perform all such duties and obligations
pursuant to the express and implicit terms of this Agreement, and to the reasonable satisfaction

‘of Corporation. During the termn of Employee’s employment relationship with Corporation,

Employee agrees that Employee will (i) devote all of Employee’s business time and attention to

.the business of Corporation, (ii) Corporation will be entitled to all of the benefits and profits

arising from or incident to all such services and advice provided by Employee, (iii) Employee
will not render commercial or professional services of any nature to any other person or
organization, whether or not for compensation, without the prior written consent of the Board,
and (iv) Employee will not directly or indirectly engage or participate in any business that is

‘competitive in any manner with the business of Corporation. Nothing in this Agreement will

prevent Employee from accepting speaking or presentation engagements in exchange for
honoraria or from serving on boards of charitable organizations, or from owning no more than
two percent of the outstanding equity securities of a corporation whose stock is listed on a
national stock exchange or the NASDAQ National Market. Employee will comply with and be
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bound by Corporation’s operating policies, procedures and practices from time to time in effect
during the term of Employee’s employment.

4. Compensation. For the duties and services to be performed by Employee under this
Agreement, Corporation will pay Employee, and Employee agrees to accept, the salary, stock
options, bonuses and other benefits described below and in the future at a rate commensurate
with other senior officers of the bank :

4.1Salary. Employee will receive a base salary of $112,000 per year on an
annualized basis. Employee’s base salary will be payable the 15" and end of each month
pursuant to Corporation’s normal payroll practices and no less than the average salary for
banks of similar asset size and operating results. Employee’s base salary will be reviewed at
the end of each fiscal year and may be adjusted upward at the discretion of the Board of
Directors.

4.2 Stock Options. In consideration of Employee agreeing to execute and
perform this Agreement, the Corporation shall grant an Option, to purchase 7,500 shares at
85% of the current market price of the Corporation’s common stock, which Option shall be
Non- Qualified stock options. Future stock options will be based on operating results of the
Bank determined by the Board of Directors as stated in section 4.3.

4.3 Bonuses. Employee’s entitlement to incentive bonuses and stock options
from Corporation is discretionary and will be determined by the Board or its Compensation
Committee in good faith based upon the extent to which Employee’s individual performance

objectives and Corporation’s profitability objectives and other financial and nonfinancial

objectives are achieved during the applicable bonus period. A schedule of applicable
objectives will be presented to the employee by December 15" of each year of this contract in
the form attached hereto as Schedule A to the Agreement

4.4 Changes_in Control. If the Corporation undergoes a change of control,
as defined in Section 9, while the Employee is still employed at the date of the change of
control occurs, then the Employee will be entitled to a cash bonus equal to 1.25 times the
Employee’s annual salary in 2001, 1.35 in 2002, 1.45 in 2003, 1.55in 2004, and 1.65 in 2005.

4.5  Deferred Compensation. If Employee desires to defer certain income
that might be earned in the future (i.e. salary and/or bonus), the Corporation will make
available a non-qualified deferred compensation plan to ensure the Employee future financial
stability. Compensation contributed to this plan would accrue interest at a rate set earned by
the plan but would not be less than 7.25%. This plan would be available for compensation
earned in other sections of this Agreement. This deferred compensation agreement would not
require the corporation to make contribution or to set aside funds for this obligation.

4.6 . Reimbursement of Expenses. Employee will be authorized to incur on
behalf of and for the benefit of, and will be reimbursed by, Corporation for all
reasonable and necessary business expenses, provided that such expenses are
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substantiated or previously approved (as appropriate) in accordance with Corporation’s
policies adopted from time to time.

47 A full sized equipped automobile as well as fuel, insurance, and
maintenance or the employer will provide an allowance equal to these costs.

4.8  Additional Benefits. Employee will be eligible to participate in the
Corporation’s employee benefit plans of general application, including without limitation, those
plans covering medical and dental insurance and disability and life insurance in accordance
with the rules established for individual participation in any such plan under applicable law.
Employee will be eligible for. vacation and sick leave in accordance with the policies in effect
during the term of this Agreement and will receive such other benefits as Corporation generally
provides to its other employees of comparable position and experience. Initially these benefits
will be as follows: |

(a) 100% of the premiums for medical, dental, and eyeglass insurance
for Employee and Employee’s family; and Life Insurance of two times annual salary, and a
70 %long-term disability plan. Salary will be continued until the long-term disability program
becomes effective and permanent disability is determined. '

(b) Four weeks of paid vacation per calendar year will be allotted to the
end of this contract, prorated for any partial calendar years.

5. Working Facilities. Corporation will provide Employee with such facilities and
supplies as are necessary and appropriate for the performance of Employee’s duties and
obligations under this Agreement.

6. Restrictive Covenants.

6.1 Covenant Not to Compete.

(a) Employee hereby acknowledges and agrees that: the market in which
the Corporation operates will be Washington County, Oregon and therefore the covenant set
forth in this Section 6 is reasonable in scope and essential to the preservation of the
Corporation’s business; (ii) it would be impossible for Employee to work for a direct
competitor with the Corporation’s core business (as defined at the time of termination) without
inevitably using the Corporation’s proprietary information. '

(b) For a period of two years after termination with cause or employee

initiated resignation of Employee’s employment (the “Non-Competition Period”), Employee

agrees that, at the Corporation’s option, Employee will not compete with the Corporation’s
business as it is conducted on the date of such termination of employment or it is then planned
to be conducted pursuant to an actual plan of action approved by the Board of Directors. For
purposes of the preceding sentence, Employee shall be deemed to be competing with the
Corporation’s business if they perform for, provide to or assist any other individual, persor,
firm or other entity in performing or providing the same or similar services as Employee
provided to the Corporation to or for any Client or Prospective Client of the Corporation.
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(1) “Client” means any individual, person, firm or other entity
that is presently or at any time within 12 months prior to Employee’s separation
from the Corporation in a business relationship with the Corporation for the
provision of the Corporation’s services.

(2) “Prospective Client” means any individual, person, firm or
other entity that is not a Client but with respect to whom the Corporation
conducted, prepared or submitted any proposal, client development or marketing
efforts at any time within 12 months prior to Employee’s separation from the
Corporation.

6.2 Covenant Not to Solicit or Hire. Employee covenants and agrees that for so
long as Employee is employed by the Corporation and for one year thereafter, Employee shall
not, directly or indirectly, hire, employ, retain, solicit or cause to be solicited for employment
by Employee or by any third party who is, as of the date of such solicitation or who was within
the twelve (12) month period prior to the date of such solicitation, an employee of the
Corporation or any subsidiary or affiliate of the Corporation. :

7. Injunctive Relief and Survival. Employee acknowledges and agrees that any breach
or threatened breach of any of the provisions of Section 6 will cause irreparable injury and
harm to the Corporation. In the event of such a breach, or threatened breach, the Corporation
will be entitled to seek injunctive relief, including a temporary restraining order and
preliminary injunction, together with any damages suffered by it as a result of any such breach.
The provisions of Section 6 and this Section 7 will survive termination of this Agreement
excepting a change of control as outlined in section #9, which will completely void section #6
and this section #7.

8. Termination.

8.1 Events of Termination. Employee’s employment may be terminated at any
time upon the occurrence of any one of the following events:

(a) Upon Employee giving Corporation 30 days’ prior written notice, for
any reason;

(b) Immediately upon Corporation giving Employee written notice with

Cause; »

(¢) Upon the death of Employee; or

(d) Upon the Disability of Employee.
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8.2 Definition of Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, the occurrence of any
one of the following events will be “Cause” for termination: (i) Employee willfully and
continuously fails and refuses to comply with the policies, standards and regulations of
Corporation established by the Board; (if) Employee engages in fraud, dishonesty, or any other
act or misconduct in the performance of Employee’s duties and obligations on behalf of
Corporation; or (iit) Employee fails to perform any material provision of this Agreement to be
performed by Employee. ‘

8.3Death or Disability. In the event that Employee’s employment with
Corporation terminates as a result of Employee’s death or Disability (as defined in
Section 8.4), Employee or Employee’s estate or representative will receive any benefits
payable under Corporation’s then existing benefit plans and policies in effect on the date of
death or Disability and in accordance with applicable law.

8.4 Definition of Disability. For purposes of this Agreement, Disability will
mean that Employee has been unable to perform the essential functions of Employee’s duties
and obligations under this Agreement, with or without reasonable accommodation, as the result
of Employee’s incapacity due to physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or
more of Employee’s major life activities, and such inability, which continues for at least 120
consecutive calendar days or 150 calendar days during any comsecutive 12-month period, if
shorter, after its commencement, is determined to be total and permanent by a physician
selected by Corporation and its insurers and acceptable to Employee or to Employee’s legal
representative (with such agreement on acceptability not to be unreasonably withheld).

9. Changes in Control. Change in Control shall mean any of the following events.

A.Any person (including any individual or entity) or persons acting in
concert (but excluding in all events the Employee) shall become the beneficial owner of voting
shares representing 50 % or more of the voting power of the Company.

B. A majority of the board of directors of the Company, as constituted as of
July 1%, 2001, together with any directors subsequently nominated, shall cease, for any reason

other than death or voluntary resignation, to constitute a majority thereof.

C.Any agreement is executed whereby a majority of the voting shares of
the Company are or are to bé exchanged for shares or other property of another entity.

D.A Change in Control shall have occurred or must be reported pursuant to
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Change in Bank Control Act or the Bank Holding
Company Act as presently constituted or as hereinafter amended.

E. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this Section 9, a change
of control shall be deemed not to have occurred unless following any transaction occurrence in
which a change of control otherwise exists, the shareholders of the Company fail to hold more
than 50% of the surviving entity. :
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10. Miscellaneous Provisions.

10.1 Waiver. The waiver by Corporation of a breach of any provision of this
Agreement by Employee will not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent or
other breach by Employee.

10.2 Assignment. Employee acknowledges that the services to be rendered by
Employee are unique and personal. Accordingly, Employee agrees that Employee may not
assign any of Employee’s rights or delegate any of his duties or obligations under this
Agreement without the prior written consent of Corporation.

10.3  Conflicts. Employee represents that Employee’s performance of all the
terms of this Agreement will not breach any other agreement to which Employee is a party.
Employee has not, and will not during the term of this Agreement, enter into any oral or
written agreement in conflict with any of the provisions of this Agreement. Employee further

‘represents that Employee is entering into or has entered into an employment relationship with

Corporation of Employee’s own free will and that Employee has not been illegally solicited as

an employee in any way by the Corporation or any Corporation employee.

10.4  Successors. Any successor to Corporation (whether direct or indirect
and whether by purchase, lease, merger, consolidation, liquidation or otherwise) to all or
substantially all of Corporation’s business and/or assets will assume the obligations under this
Agreement and agrees expressly to perform the obligations under this Agreement in the same
manner and to the same extent as Corporation would be required to perform such obligations in
the absence of a succession. The terms of this Agreement and all of Employee’s rights under
this Agreement will inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, Employee’s personal or
legal representatives, executors, administrators, successors, heirs, distributees, devisees and
legatees.

10.5 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the
parties, and supersedes and replaces all previous written or oral agreements or understandings
between the parties. No amendment or variation of the terms and conditions of this Agreement
will be valid unless it is in writing and signed by all parties.

10.6 Enforceability. If any tribunal declares any provision of this Agreement,
as written, to be invalid or unreasonable in scope, the remainder of this Agreement, including
any portion of the challenged provision that the tribunal finds to be reasonable, will be fully
enforceable. :

10.7 Notices. Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement will be in
writing and will be deemed sufficient upon receipt, when delivered personally or by a
nationally-recognized delivery service (such as Federal Express or UPS), or 48 hours after
being deposited in the U.S. mail as certified or registered mail with postage prepaid, if such
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notice is addressed to the party to be notified at such party’s address as set forth in the records
of Corporation. :

10.8 Severability. If one or more provisions of this Agreement are held to be
unenforceable under applicable law, the parties agree to renegotiate such provision in good
faith. In the event that the parties cannot reach a mutually agreeable and enforceable
replacement for such provision, then (i) such provision will be excluded from this Agreement,
(ii) the balance of the Agreement will be interpreted as if such provision were so excluded and
(ii1) the balance of the Agreement will be enforceable in accordance with its terms.

16.9 Law and Jurisdiction. This Agreement will be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the state of Oregon. In the event a dispute or claim
should arise regarding this Agreement, jurisdiction and venue of any such action will be in
Multnomah County, Oregon. Each of the parties expressly consents to the jurisdiction and
venue set forth in this Section. :

10.10 Advice of Counsel. EACH PARTY TO THIS AGREEEMNT
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT, IN EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, SUCH PARTY HAS
HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO SEEK THE ADVICE OF INDEPENDENT LEGAL
COUNSEL, AND HAS READ AND UNDERSTOOD ALL OF THE TERMS AND
PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT. THIS AGREEMENT WILL NOT BE
CONSTRUED AGAINST ANY PARTY BY REASON OF THE DRAFTING OR
PREPARATION HEREOQF.

CORPORATION:

Columbia Community Bank, INC,
an Orego /n/CO“rporatlon

By: > ////’//2144
T s

Chairman of the Board of Directors

EMPLO,YZEE"\
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Exhibit 6.7

Deferred Compensation Arrangement

Dated: December 28, 2000

Betweené Columbia Community Bank, hereinafter referred tb as “Bank”

And: Rick A. Roby, hereinafter referred to as “Employee”

Recitals: |

Bank is the present embloyer of Employee. Bank and Emp!oyeé desire to establish a
deferred compensation plan for Employee’s benefit to ensure his financial stability in

subsequent years. . ‘

The parties, therefore, agree as follows:

Agreement:

Lo

1. Deferred Compensation Arrangements.

1.1 Deferral of Compensation. Bank agrees to defer payment to Employee in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Bank agrees to defer payment to
Employee in accordance with the terms of the Agreement of (1) any portion of
Employee’s monthly salary for any calendar year, and (2) any Bonus determined by
Bank’s board of directors as otherwise payable to Employee attributable to his services
during a calendar year subsequent to 2000 if, prior to the start of such calendar year,
Employee notifies Bank in writing of his election to defer such portion of monthly salary
and/or Bonus. '

For purposes of this Agreement the term “Bonus” means any cash compensation |
- payable to Employee in addition to his then monthly salary.

1.2 Deferred Compensation Account. ‘Any Bonus the paymeént of which is deferred in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement, net of employment taxes required to be
withheld from such Bonus, shall be accounted for as a general liability identified as
deferred compensation. The amount of deferred compensation owed Employee will
accrue interest at a rate of 7.25% per annum and will compound on an annual basis.
The interest rate applied to this deferred compensation account will be set annually by
the Board. Or, at Employee’s option, he may direct Bank to invest his account or any
portion thereof in fixed income securities or mutual funds, with the actual income, gains
and losses from such securities or funds to be credited to the Employee’s account
quarterly. The Deferred Compensation Account shall not be debited for any federal,
state or local income taxes attributable to net investment income.
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1.3 Payment to Employee. The balance of the Deferred Compensation Account shall
be paid to Employee or Employee’s designated beneficiary in the event of Employee’s -
death, over a five-year annual payment plan or other mutually agreed upon term
following the earliest of the following events:

(1)  Termination of Employee’s employment with Bank (including termination
resulting from Employee's retirement, disability to death);

(2) A Change in Control (as defined in Employee’s Executive Employment
Agreement). '

Bank shall withhold and pay on Employee’s behalf all federal, state and local taxes
required under applicable law to be withheld and paid on Employee's behalf from
payment of the Deferred Compensation Account to Empioyee.

1.4 Beneficiary Designation. Employee shall designate a beneficiary by notifying Bank
in writing. If Employee has not designated a beneficiary or if the designated beneficiary
dies prior to full payment, hereunder, any remaining payments shall be made to
Employee's spouse or if none to his then living children in equal shares, per stirpes.

2. Employee's Responsibilities. In consideration of the deferred compensation
hereunder, Employee agrees that he will devote all of his skill, diligence and attention to
his employment at Bank while he is employed by Bank and will not actively engage,
either directly or indirectly, in any business or other activity which is or may not be
deemed to be in any way competitive with or adverse to the best interests of Bank.

The parties acknowledge and agree that the deferred compensation hereunder is to be
paid to Employee without any substantial risk of forfeiture as that term is used at
3121(v)(2)(A) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

3. Relationship Between the Parties.

3.1 Nothing contained in this Agreement and no action taken pursuant to the provisions

of this Agreement shall create or be construed to create a trust of any kind, or a
fiduciary relationship between the Bank and Employee, his beneficiaries or any other
person. Any funds, which are held in the Deferred Compensation General Ledger
Liability Account, shall continue for all purposes to be the general funds of Bank. No
person other than Bank shall have any interest in such funds by virtue of this
Agreement. :

3.2 The rights of Employee to benefits under this Agreement shall be solely those of any
unsecured creditor of Bank. Any assets acquired or held by Bank in connection with the
liabilities assumed by it pursuant to the Agreement, specifically including all amounts
held in the Deferred Compensation Account shall not be deemed to be held under trust
for the benefit of Employee or any beneficiary of his estate or to be security for the
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performance of the obligations of Bank but shall be general, unpledged and
unrestricted.

3.3 Any compensation deferred under this Agreement shall not be deemed salary or
other compensation of Employee for the purpose of computing benefits to which he may
be entitled under any pension plan or other arrangement of Bank for the benefit of any
of its employees. Any deferred compensation which is payable under this Agreement
while Employee is employed by Bank shall be deemed compensation of Employee for
purposes of computing benefits to which he may be entitied under any employee benefit
plan of Bank in which Employee is an eligible participant.

3.4 The benefits payable under this Agreement shall be independent of, and in addition
to, any other agreement relating to Employee’s employment that may exist from time to
time, or any other compensation payable by Bank to Employee, whether salary, bonus

or otherwise.

3.5 This Agreement shall not be deemed to constitute a contract of employment
between the parties, nor shall any provision hereof restrict the right of Bank to discharge
Employee or restrict the right of Employee to terminate his. employment.

3.6 The deferred compensation provided herein shall not be subject to anticipation,
alienation, sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, encumbrance or charge. Any attempt so
to anticipate, alienate, transfer, assign, pledge, encumber or charge the same shall be
void. '

4, Claims Procedure

4.1 Claims If Employee, his designated beneficiary or his estate (“Claimant”) is denied
all or a portion of a claimed benefit hereunder for any reason, Bank shall notify the
Claimant within 60 days or allowance or denial of the claim. The notice shall be in
writing, sent by mail to the Claimant's last known address and must contain the
following information: '

a. The specific reasons for the denial;

b. Specific reference to pertinent provisions of this Agreement on which the
denial is based; and
c.  Ifapplicable, a description of any additional information or material

necessary to perfect the claim, an explanation of why such information or
material is necessary and an explanation of the claims review procedure.

4.2 Review Procedure. A Claimant is entitled to request a review of any denial of his
claim by Bank. The request for review must be submitted in writing within 60 days of
the Claimant’s receipt of the notice of the denial. Absent a request for review within the
60-day period, the claim will be deemed to be conclusively denied. The Claimant of his
representative shall be entitled to review all pertinent documents, and fo submit issues
and comments in writing.
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4.3 Final Decision. Within 60 days of receipt of the Claimant's request for review, Bank
shall allow or deny the claim. The decision shall be made in writing to the Claimant.
The decision shall recite the facts and reasons for denial, with specific reference to the
pertinent provisions of the Agreement.

5. Controlled Subsidiaries. Bank agrees to take such action as may be necessary or
appropriate to effect compliance with this Agreement by each of its subsidiary
corporations as though each such subsidiary corporation were a signatory of thzs
Agreement :

6. Miscellaneous

6.1 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an orlglnal and together shall constitute one and the same.-
agreement.

6.2 Section Headings. The section headings contained in this Agreement are for
convenience only and shall in .no manner be construed as part of this Agreement.

6.3 Right to Contract. Employee represents and warrants to Bank that he is not now

under any obligation, contractual or of an other nature, to any other person, firm or
corporation which is inconsistent or in conflict with this Agreement, or which would
prevent, limit or impair in any way the performance of his obligations hereunder.

6.4 Waiver. The waiver by either party of a breach or any provision of this Agreement
shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach hereof.

8.5 Benefit. Except as otherwise provided herein, the rights and obligations of this
contract shall inure to and be binding upon the parties and their respective heirs,
successors and assigns.

6.6 Conflict of Laws. This contract is executed and delivered in the State of Oregon and
shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws and decisions of the State
of Oregon. Venue shall be in Washington County Oregon.

6.7 Amendment. This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the parties
hereto and may only be amended, modlﬂed or supp|emented in writing as agreed by the
parties.

6.8 Attorneys’ Fees. With respect to any dispute relating to this Agreement, or in the
event that a suit, action, or other proceeding or any nature whatsoever, including,
without limitation, any proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code and involving issues
peculiar to federal bankruptcy law, or any action seeking a declaration of rights or an

action for rescission, is instituted to interpret or enforce this Agreement or any provision
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of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitied to recover from the losing party
its reasonable attorneys’, paralegals’, accountants’, and other experts’ and professional

fees and all other fees, costs, and expenses actually incurred and reasonably
~necessary in connection therewith, as determined by the judge at trial or other

proceeding, or on any appeal or review, in addition to all other amounts provided by law.

ln witness whereof, the parties have entered mto this Agreement as of the date first

above written.

.1/
,'
0
/
;
¢
A
I

? /l

uRf&t(A Roby (Emp

e

Columbla Community Bank

By its Chairman,
Donald B. Kane
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Exhibit 6.8

EXHIBIT 1

EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Executive Employment Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into
effective November 20, 2002 by and between Columbia Community Bani, INC an QOregon

. corporanon (“Corporation”), and Frederick S. J ohnson (“Employee”).

RECITALS:

Corporation wishes to employ Employee and Employee wishes to accept employment
with Corporation on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

- AGREEMENT:

1. Emplovment. Corporation agrees to employ employee as Senior Vice-Pregident Loan
Administration for a period from 12-01-2001 to 12-31-2005. Employee will report to President
of the Corporation. Corporation and Employee acknowledge that the corporation may terminate
Employee’s employment with Corporation at any time with or without Cause (as defined in
Section 8.2) and by employee with 30 day written notice for any cause.

2. Temm. This Agreement will commence on the effective date of this Agreement set
forth above (the “Effective Date™) and will continue for a period of 4 years and one month,
unless extended in writing by the written agreement of Corporation and Employee, or unless
earlier terminated as provided below in Section 8.

. 3. Duties. Employee agrees to the best of Employee's ability and experience that
Employee will at all times loyally and conscientiously perform all such duties and obligations
pursuant to the express and implicit terms of this Agreement, and to the reasonable satisfaction
of Corporation. During the term of Employee’s employment relationship with Corporation,
Employee agrees that Broployee will (i) devote all of Employee’s business time and attention to
the business of Corporation, (ji) Corporation will be entitled to all of the benefits and profits
arising from or incident to all such services and advice provided by Employes, (iii) Employee
will not render commercial or professional services of any nature to any other person or
organization, whether or not for compensation, without the prior written consent of the Board,
and (iv) Employee will not directly or indirsctly engage or participate in any business that is
competitive in any manner with the business of Corporation. Nothing in this Agresment will
prevent Employee from aceepting speaking or presentation engagements in exchange for
honoraria or from serving on boards of charitable organizations, or from owning no more than
two percent of the outstanding equity securities of a corporation whose stock is listed on a
national stock exchange or the NASDAQ National Market. Employece will comply with and be
bound by Corporation’s operating policies, procedures and practices from titne to time in effect
during the term of Employee’s employment.
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4, Compengation. For the duties and services to be performed by Employee under this
Agreement, Corporation will pay Employee, and Employee agrees to accept, the salary, stock
options, bonuses and other benefits described below and in the future at a rate commensurate
with other senior officers of the bank:

4.1 Salary. Employee will receive a base salary of $86,500 on an apaualized
basis. Employee’s base salary will be payable the 15® and end of each month pursuant to
Corporation’s normal payroll practices and no less than the average salary for banks of similar
asset size and operating results. Employee’s base salary will be reviewed at the end of each
fiscal year and may be adjusted upward at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

_ 4.2 Stock Options. In consideration of Bmployee agreeing to execute and perform
this Agreement, the Corporation shall grant an Option, to purchase 1000 shares at 85% of the
current matket price ($10.63) of the Corporation’s common stock, which Option shall be Non-
Qualified stock options. Future stock options will be based on operating results of the Bank
determined by the Board of Dirsctors as stated in section 4.3.

4.3 Bonuses, Employee’s eptitlement to incentive bonuses and stock options
from. Corporation is digcretionary and will be determined by the Board or its Compensation
Committes in good faith based upon the extent to which Employee’s individual performance
objectives and Corporation’s profitability objectives and other financial and nonfinancial
objectives are achieved during the applicable bonus period.

4.4 Changes in Control, If the Corporation undergoes a change of control, as
defined in Section 9, while the Employee is still employed at the date of the change of control
occurs, then the Employze will be entitled to a cash bonus equal to .50 times the Employze’s
annual salary in 2001, .75 in 2002, 1.00 in 2003, 1.00in 2004, and 1.00 in 2005.

4.5  Deferred Compensation. If Employee desires to defer certain income
that might be eammed in the future (i.e. salary and/or bonus), the Corporation will make available
a non-qualified deferred compensation plan to ensure the Employee future financial stability.
Compensation contributed to this plan would accrue interest at a rate set camed by the plan but
would not be less than 5%. This plan would be available for compensation eamed in other
scctions of this Agreement. This deferred compensation agreement would not require the
corporation to make contribution or to set aside funds for this obligation.

4.6  Reimbursement of Expenges. Employee will be authorized to incur en
behalf of and for the benefit of, and will be reimbursed by, Corporation for all reasonable

and necessary business expenses, provided that such expenses arc substantiated or
‘previously approved (as appropriate) in accordance with Corporation’s policies adopted
from time to time.

4,8  Additional Bencfits. Employee will be eligible to participate in the

Corporation’s employee benefit plans of general application, including without limitation, those

plans covering medical and dental insurance and disability and life insurance in accordance with
the rules cstablished for individual participation in any such plan under applicable law.
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Employee will be eligible for vacation and sick leave in accordance with the policies in effect
during the term of this Agresment and will receive such other bepefits as Corporation generally
provides 1o its other employees of comparable position and experience. Initially these benefits
will be as follows: ’ ,

(8) 100% of the premiums for medical, dental, and eyeglass insurance
for Employee and Employee’s family or the cash equivalent of 100% of employee cost of
medical, dental, and eyeglass insurance. Employee chooses to waive present health, dental,
and eyeglass insurance coverage due to coverage in place through spouse’s employer. Life
Insurance equaling two times annual salaty (key-man life insurance plan), and a 66 2/3 %loug-
termt disability plan. Salary will be continued until the long-tetm disability program becomes
fully effective and permanent disability is determined.

(b) Four weeks of paid personal time per calendar year will be allotted to
the end of this contract, protated for any partial calendar years. One-week carryover will be
allowed but only from year to year and no accumulation over S weeks in any one-year will be
allowed. Personal time that exceeds 5 weeks per year will be lost if not taken.

4.9 The employee will receive a cash payment equal to six months salary if the
employee is terminated for any reason other than cause or disability as described in section 8.

5. Working Facilities. Corporation will provide Employee with such facilities and
supplies as are necessary anmd appropriate for the performance of Employee’s duties and

obligations under this Agreement.

6. Restrictive Covenants.

4.1 Covenant Not to Compeste.

(a) Employee hereby acknowledges and agrees that: the market in which
the Corporation operates will be Washington County, Oregon and therefore the covenant set
forth in this Section 6 is reasomable in scope and essential to the preservation of the
Corporation’s business; (U) it would be impossible for Employee to work for a direct
competitor with the Corporation’s core business (as defined at the time of termination) without
inevitably using the Corporation’s proprietary information.

(b) For a period of two years after termination with cause or employee
inmitiated resignation of Employee’s employment (the “Non-Competition Period”), Employee
agrees that, at the Corporation’s option, Employee will not compete with the Corporation’s
business as it {s conducted on the date of such termination of employment or it is then planmned
to be conducted pursuant to an actual plan of action approved by the Board of Directors. For
purposes of the preceding sentence, Employee shall be deemed to be competing with the
Corporation's business if they perform for, provide to or assist any other individual, person,
firm or other entity in performing or providing the same or similar services as Employee
provided to the Corporation to or for any Client or Prospective Client of the Corporation.

(1) “Client” means any individual, person, firm or other entity that
is presently or at any time within 12 months prior to Employee’s separation from.
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the Corporation in 2 business relationship with the Corporation for the provision
of the Corporation’s services.

(2) “Prospective Client” means any individual, person, firm or
other entity that is not a Client but with respect to whom the Corporation
conducted, prepated or submitted any proposal, client development or marketing
efforts at any time within 12 months prior to Employee’s separation from the
Corporation.

6.2 Covéngm Nol to Solicit or Hire: Employee covenants and agrees that for so

long as Employee is employed by the Corporation and for one year thereafter, Employee shall
not, directly or indirectly, hite, employ, retain, solicit or cause to be solicited for employment by
Bmployee or by any third party who is, as of the date of such solicitation or who was within the
twelve (12) month petiod prior to the date of such solicitation, an employes of the Corporation orx
any subsidiary or affiliate of the Corporation.

7. Injunctive Relief and Survival. Employee acknowledges and agrees that any breach
or threatened breach of any of the provisions of Section 6 will cause irreparable igjury and harm
to the Corporation. In the event of such a breach, or threatened breach, the Corporation will be
entitled to seck imjunctive relief,. including a temporary restraining order and preliminary
injunction, together with any damages suffered by it as a result of any such breach. The

provisions of Section 6 and this Section 7 will survive termination of this Agtcement excepting a .

change of control as outlined in section #9, which will completely void section #6 and this
section #7.

8. Termination,

8.1 Bvents of Termination. Employee’s employment may be terminated at any
time upon the odcurrence of any oue of the following events:

(1) Upon Employee giving Cotporation 30 days prior wrtitten
notice, for any reason;

(b) Immediately upon Cozporauon giving Employee written notice wnh
or without Cause; _
(c) Upon the death of Employee; or

(d) Upon the Disability of Employee as described in §.4,

8.2 Definition of Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, the occutrence of any

one of the following events will be “Cause” for termination: (i) Employee willfully and
continuously fails and refuses to comply with the policies, standards and regulations of
Corporation established by the Board; (ii) Bmployee engages in fraud, dishonesty, or any other
act or misconduct in the performance of Employee’s duties and obligations on bchalf of
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Corporaticn; or (iii) Employee fails to perform any material provision of this Agreement to be
performed by Employee. Without cause will be for any other reason and at the discretion of the

Board of Directors.

8.3 Death _or Disability, In the event that Employee’s employment with
Corporation terminates as a result of Employee’s death or Disability (as defined in Section 8.4),
Employee or Employes's estate or representative will receive any benefits payable under
Corporatmn s then existing benefit plans and pol1c1es in effect on the date of death or D1sab1hty

and in accordance with applicable law.

8.4 Definition of Disability. For purposes of this Agreement, Disability will mean
that Employee has been unable to perform the essential functions of Employes’s duties and
obligations under this Agreement, with or without reasonable accommodation, as the result of
Employee’s incapacity due to physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or
more of Employee’s major life activities, and such inability, which continues for at least 120
consecutive calendar days or 150 calendar days dunng any consecutive 12-month period, if
shorter, afier its commencement, is determined to be total and permanent by a physician selected
by Corporation and its insuters and acceptsble to Employee or to Employee's legal
representative (with such agreement on’ acceptability not to be unreasomably withheld).
Employee must also be eligible for the company long term disability program.

9. Changes in Control. Change in Contro) shall mean any of the following svents.

A.Any persen (including any individual or entity) or persoms acting in
concert (but excluding in all events the Employee) shall become the beneficial owner of voting
shares representing 50% or more of the voting power of the Company.

B. A majority of the board of directors of the Company, as constituted as of
December 1, 2001, together with any directors subsequently nominated, shall cease, for any
reason other than death or voluntary resigoation, to constitute a majority thereof.

_ C. Any agreement is executed whersby a majority of the voting shares of the
Company are or are to be exchanged for shares or other property of another entity.

D. A Chaunge in Control shall have occurred or must be reported pursuant to
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Change in Bank Control Act or the Bank Holding
Company Act as presently constituted or as hereinafter amended.

E. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this Section 9, a change

of contro} shall be deemed not to have occurred uniess following any transaction occurrence in
which & change of contro] otherwise exists, the shareholders of the Company fail to hold more

than 50% of the surviving entity.

10. Miscellangous Provisions.
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10.1 Waiver. The waiver by Corporation of a breach of any provision of this
Agreement by Employee will not operate ot be construed as a waiver of any subsequent or other

breach by Employee.

102 Assignment. Bmployee acknowledges that the services to be rendered by
Brployee are unique and personal. Accordingly, Employee agrees that Employee may not
assign any of Employee’s rights or delegate any of his duties or obligations under this
Agreement without the prior written consent of Corporation.

, 103 Conflicts. Employee represents that Employee’s performance of ail the
terms- of this Agreement will not breach avy other agreement to which Employes is a party.
Employee has not, and will not during the term of this Agreerent, euter into any oral or written
agreement in conflict with any of the provisions of this Agreement. Employee further represents
that Employee is entering into or has entered into an employment relationship with Corporation
of Employee’s own free will and that Employee has not been illegally solicited as an emplayee

in any way by the Corporation or any Corporation employee.

104  Successors. AnNY successor to Corpbration (whether direct or indirect and

. whether by purchase, lease, merger, consolidation, liquidation or otherwise) to all or

substantially all of Corporation’s business and/or agssts will assume the obligations under this
Agreement and agrees expressly to perform the obligations under this Agreement in the satre
marner and to the same extent as Corporation would be required to perform such obligations in
the absence of a succession. The terms of this Agreement and all of Bmployee’s rights under this
Agreement will inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, Employee’s personal or legal
representatives, executors, administrators, successors, heirs, distributees, devisees and legatees.

_ 10.5 Entire Aerecment. This Agreement contains the entirg agreement of the
parties, and supersedes and replaces all previous written or oral agreements or understandings
between the parties. No amendment or variation of the terms and conditions of this Agreement

will be valid upless it is in writing and signed by all partics.

: 10.6 Enforceability. If any tribunal cieclares any provision of this Agreement,
as written, to be invalid or unreasonable in scope, the remainder of this Agreement, including
any portion of the challenged provision that the tribunal finds to be reasonable, will be fully

enforceable.

10.7 Notices. Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement will be in
writing and will be deemed sufficient upon receipt, when delivered personally or by a nationally-
recognized delivery service (such as Federal Express or UPS), or 48 hours after being deposited
in the U.S. mail as certified or registered mail with postage prepaid, if such notice is addressed to
the party to be notified at such party’s address as set forth in the records of Corporation.

10.8  Sgverability. If one or more provisions of this Agreement are held to be

unenforceable under applicable law, the parties agree to renegotiate such provision in good faith.
In the event that the parties cannot reach a mutually agreeable and enforceable replacement for
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such provision, then (i) such provision will be cxcluded from this Agreement, (i) the balancs of
the Agreement will be interpreted as if such provision were so excluded and (iii) the balance of
the Agreement will be enforceable in accordance with its terms.

10.9 Law and Jutisdiction. This Agreement will be governed by and construed
in sccordance with the laws of the state of Oregon. In the event a dispute or claim should arise
regarding this Apgreement, jurisdiction and venue of any such action will be in Multnomah
County, Oregon. Each of the parties expressly consents to the jurisdiction and venue set forth in

this Section.

10.10 Advice of Coumsel. ~EACH PARTY TO THIS AGREEEMNT
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT, IN EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, SUCH PARTY HAS
HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO SEEK THE ADVICE OF INDEPENDENT LEGAL
COUNSEL, AND HAS READ AND UNDERSTOOD ALL OF THE TERMS AND
PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT. THIS AGREEMENT WILL NOT BE CONSTRUED
AGAINST ANY PARTY BY REASON OF THE DRAFTING OR PREPARATION HEREQF.

CORPORATION:

Columbia Community Bank, INC.

By: ./: - 'M
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i : '1 Exhibit 6.9

EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Executive Employment Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into
effective January 15, 2003 by and between Columbia Community Bank, an Oregon corporation
(“Corporation”), and Randy Blake (“Employee”).

RECITALS:

Corporation wishes to employ Employee and Employee wishes to accepf employment
with Corporation on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

AGREEMENT:

1. Employment. Employee will be emplayed by Corporation as Vice President-
Financial-Technical Operations. Employee will report to the President of the Corporation.
Corporation and Employee acknowledge that Employee’s employment is and will continue to be
at-will, as defiped under Oregon law, and that Employee’s employment with Corporation may be
terminated by either party at any time with or without Cause (as defined in Section 8.3).

2. Term. This Agreement will commence on the effective date of this Agreement set
forth above (the “Effective Date™) and will continue for a period of three years, unless extended
in writing by the written agreement of Corporation and Employee, or unless earlier terminated as
provided below in Section 8. ' :

3. Duties. Employee agrees to the best of Employee’s ability and experience that
Employee will at all times loyally and conscientiously perform all such duties and obligations
pursuant to the express and implicit terms of this Agreement, and to the reasonable satisfaction
of Corporation. During the term of Employee’s employment relationship with Corporation,
Employee agrees that Employee will (i) devote all of Employee’s business time and attention to
the business of Corporation, (ii) Corporation will be entitled to all of the benefits and profits
arising from or incident to all such services and advice provided by Employee, (iii) Employee
will not render commercial or professional services of any nature to any other person or
organization, whether or not for compensation, without the prior written consent of the Board,
and (iv) Employee will not directly or indirectly engage or participate in any business that is
competitive in any manner with the business of Corporation. Nothing in this Agreement will
prevent Employee from accepting speaking or presentation engagements in exchange for
honoraria or from serving on boards of charitable organizations, or from owning no more than
two percent of the outstanding equity securities of a corporation whose stock is listed on a
national stock exchange or the NASDAQ National Market. Employee will comply with and be
bound by Corporation’s operating policies, procedures and practices from time to time in effect
during the term of Employee’s employment.

4. Compensation. For the duties and services to be performed by Employee under this

Agreement, Corporation will pay Employee, and Employee agrees to accept, the salary, stock
options, bonuses and other benefits described below:
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4.1 Salary. Employee will receive a base salary of $67,500.00 per year on an
annualized basis. Employee’s base salary will be payable semi-monthly pursuant to
Corporation’s normal payroll practices. Employee’s base salary will be reviewed at the end of
each fiscal year.

4.2 Bonuses. Employee’s entitlement to incentive bonuses from Corporation is
discretionary and will be determined by the Board or its Compensation Committee in good faith
based upon the extent to which Employee’s individual performance objectives and Corporation’s
profitability objectives and other financial and nonfinancial objectives are achieved during the
applicable bonus period.

4.4  Change in Control. - If the Corporation undergoes a Change of Control,
as defined in Section 9, while the Employee is still employed at the date of the change of control
occurs, then the Employee will be entitled to a cash bonus equal to 0.50 times the Employee’s
annual salary should the Employee or Corporation choose to terminate employment for any
reason-within one (1) year of the Change in Control.

4.5  Deferred Cogp_ensatlon If Employee desires to defer certain income -

* that might be earned in the future (i.e. salary and/or bonus), the Corporation will make available

a non-qualified deferred compensation plan to ensure the Employee future financial stability.
Compensation contributed to this plan would accrue interest at a rate set annually but would not
be less than 7.25%. This plan would be available for compensation earned in other sections of
this Agreement. This deferred compensation agreement would not require the corporation to
make contribution or to set aside funds for this obligation.

46  Reimbursement of Expenses. Employee will be authorized to incur on
behalf of and for the benefit of, and will be reimbursed by, Corporation for all reasonable and
necessary business expenses, provided that such expenses are substantiated or previously
approved (as appropriate) in accordance with Corporation’s policies adopted from time to time.

4.7  Additional Benefits. Employee will be eligible to participate in the
Corporation’s employee benefit plans of general application, including without limitation, those
plans covering medical and dental insurance and disability and life insurance in accordance with
the rules established for individual participation in any such plan under applicable law.
Employee will be eligible for vacation and sick leave in accordance with the policies in effect
during the term of this Agreement and will receive such other benefits as Corporation generally
provides to its other employees of comparable position and experience. Initially these benefits
will include, but not necessarily be limited to including, the following:

- (a) 100% towards the premiums for medical and dental insurance for

Employee. Employee’s family may be covered at employee’s expense; and

(b) Four (4) weeks of paid vacatioﬁ per calendar year, prorated for any
partial calendar years.

(c) Life Insurance in the amount of one and one-half (1.5) times
Employee’s annual salary.
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5. Working Facilities. Corporation will provide Employee with such facilities and
supplies as are necessary and appropriate for the performance of Employee’s duties and
obligations under this Agreement.

6. Restrictive Covenants-Confidentiality Agreement.

(a) Non-Disclosure. Employee acknowledges that certain proprietary
information, whether of & technical or non-technical nature and whether of a tangible or
intangible form, including but not limited to business plans, marketing plans, client lists,
customer account information, techniques, plans, methods, data, tables, calculations, letters or
other paperwork, documents, technology and processes of the Bank collectively referred to as
“Trade Secrets”, were and will be prepared and developed by the Bank at great expense and over
lengthy periods of time, are secret and confidentidl, are unique and constitute the exclusive
property and secrets of the Bank, and that any use or disclosure of such Trade Secrets, except in
accordance with and under the provisions of this or any other written agreement between the
parties, would be wrongful and would cause irreparable injury to the Bank. Additionally, it is
understood that by virtue of Employee’s employment by the Bank, Employee may have access to
information that is confidential and proprietary to the Bank’s customers, suppliers, and other
third persons, and that such information should be subject to the same restrictions against
disclosure by Employees as the Bank’s Trade Secrets. Employee therefore agrees that he:

(1)  Will not, at any time, without the express writter ¢onsent of the
Bank, publish, disclose, or divulge to any person, firm or corporation any
Trade Secrets except in accordance with, and under the provisions of this
Agreement or other written agreements between the parties;

(2)  Will not use, directly or indirectly, for Employee’s own benefit or
the benefit of any other person, firm, or corporation any Trade Secrets
except in accordance with and under the provisions of this Agreement or
other written agreements between the parties;

(3)  Will treat confidentially all documents involving Trade Secrets that
are delivered or made available to Employee as a necessary part of
Employee’s responsibilities as an employee of the Bank, whether or not
they are identified or marked by the Bank as proprietary or confidential
documents, and will not reproduce or use¢ such documents without

- appropriate authority;

(4)  Will not advise others of Trade Secrets known or used by the Bank
or others associated with the Bank;

%) Will not, after leaving the employ of the Bank, accept éemployment
where the duties under such employment would require or would pose a
reasonable likelihood of requiring Employee to use or disclose Trade
Secrets; and

(6)  Will abide by the same restrictions set forth above in subsections
(1) through (3), inclusive, as to any information that is proprietary and
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confidential to third persons and that was divulged to Employee by virtue
of his employment with the Bank.

_ (b) Non-Solicitation. Employee agrees that during the period of
Employee’s employment and for a further period of one (1) year after leaving the employ
of the Bank, Employee will not, without the prior written consent of the Bank, directly or
indirectly solicit, influence, or assist anyone in the solicitation or influencing of (1) any
customer or depositor of the Bank for the purpose of causing, encouraging, or attempting
to cause or encourage such customer to divert its current, ongoing, or future business
from the Bank to another financial institution or (2) any other employee of the Bank for
the purpose of causing, encouraging, or attempting to cause or encourage such other
employees to leave for the employment of the Bank. Bank and Employee mutually agree
that the customers specifically mentioned on the Attached Exhibit A are exempt from
section 6.(b){(1) and each has initialed the exhibit to indicate that agreement.

(¢)  Enforcement. In the event of any breach of this Agreement by
Employee or any threatened or attempted breach by Employee of the non-competition,
non-solicitation, and non-disclosure, obligations set forth above in sections 6.(a) and
6.(b) of this Agreement, the Bank will be entitled to injunctive relief against Employee
and the parties hereby agree that the amount of any bond for damages to be posted by the -
Bank in seeking such imjunction will be Five Hundred Dollars ($500), provided,
however, that this provision will in no way limit or be evidence of the amount of
damages to the enjoined party. Nothing herein will be construed as precluding or
limiting any other remedies available hereunder or at law or in equity for any breach or
threatened or attempted breach of this Agreement, including the recovery of damages.

7. Injunctive Relief and Survival. Employee acknowledges and agrees that any breach
or threatened breach of any of the provisions of Section 6 will cause irreparable injury and harm
to the Corporation. In the event of such a breach, or threatened breach, the Corporation will be
entitled to seek injunctive relief, including a temporary restraining order and preliminary
injunction, together with any damages suffered by it as a result of any such breach. The
provisions of Section 6 and this Section 7 will survive termination of this Agreement.

8. Termination.

8.1 Events of Termination. Employeé’s employment may be terminated at any
time upon the occurrence of any one of the following events:

(a) Upon Employee giving Corporation 30 days’ prior written notice, for
any reason,; _

(b) Upon Corporation giving Employee 30 days’ prior written notice,
without Cause;

(c) Immediately upon Corporation giving Employee written notice with
Cause;

(d) Upon the death of Employee; or
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(e) Upon the Disability of Employee.

8.2 Definition of Cause. For purposes of this Agreement, the occurrence of any
one of the following events will be “Cause” for termination: (i) Employee willfully and
continuously fails and refuses to comply with the policies, standards and regulations of
Corporation established by the Board; (i) Employee engages in fraud, dishonesty, or any other
act or misconduct in the performance of Employee’s duties and obligations on behalf of
Corporation; or (iii) Employee fails to perform any material provision of this Agreement to be
performed by Employee.

8.3 Death or Disability. In the event that Employee’s employment with
Corporation terminates as a result of Employee’s death or Disability (as defined in Section 8.4),
Employee or Employee’s estate or representative will receive any benefits payable under
Corporation’s then existing benefit plans and policies in effect on the date of death or Disability
and in accordance with applicable law. :

8.4 Definition of Disability. For purposes of this Agreement, Disability will mean
that Employee has been unable to perform the essential functions of Employee’s duties and
obligations under this Agreement, with or without reasonable accommodation, as the result of
Employee’s incapacity due to physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or
more of Employee’s major life activities, and such inability, which continues for at least 120
consecutive calendar days or 150 calendar days during any consecutive 12-month period, if
shorter, after its commencement, is determined to be total and permanent by a physician selected
by Corporation and its insurers and acceptable to Employee or to Employee’s legal
representative (with such agreement on acceptability not to be unreasonably withheld).

9. Change in Control. Change in Control shall mean any of the following events.

A.Any person (including any individual or entity) or persons acting in
concert (but excluding in all events the Employee) shall become the beneficial owner of voting
shares representing 50% or more of the voting power of the Company.

B. A majority of the board of directors of the Company, as constituted as of
March 31, 2001, together with any directors subsequently nominated, shall cease, for any reason-
other than death or voluntary resignation, to constitute a majority thereo£

C. Any agreement is executed whereby a majority of the voting shares of the
Company are or are to be exchanged for shares or other property of another entity.

D. A Change in Control shall have occurred or must be reported pursuant to
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Change i Bank Control Act or the Bank Holding
Company Act as presently constituted or as hereinafter amended.

10. Miscellaneous Provisions.

10.1  Waiver. The waiver by Corporation of a breach of any provision of this
Agreement by Employee will not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent or other
breach by Employee.
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10.2 -Assignment. Employee acknowledges that the services to be rendered by
Employee are unique and personal. Accordingly, Employee agrees that Employee may not
assign any of Employee’s rights or delegate any of his duties or obligations under this
Agreement without the prior written consent of Corporation.

10.3  Conflicts. Employee represents that Employee’s performance of all the
terms of this Agreement will not breach any other agreement to which Employee is a party.
Employee has not, and will not during the term of this Agreement, enter into any oral or written
agreement in conflict with any of the provisions of this Agreement. Employee further represents
that Employee is entering into or has entered into an employment relationship with Corporation
of Employee’s own free will and that Employee has not been illegally solicited as an employee

' in any way by the Corporation or any Corporation employee.

10.4 Successors. Any successor to Corporation (whether direct or indirect and
whether by purchase, lease, merger, consolidation, liquidation or otherwise) to all or
substantially all of Corporation’s business and/or assets will assume the obligations under this
Agreement and agrees expressly to perform the obligations under this Agreement in the same
manner and to the same extent as Corporation would be required to perform such obligations in
the absence of a succession. The terms of this Agreement and all of Employee’s rights under this
Agreement will inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, Employee’s personal or legal
representatives, executors, administrators, successors, heirs, distributees, devisees and legatees.

10.5 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the
parties, and supersedes and replaces all previous written or oral agreements or understandings
between the parties. No amendment or variation of the terms and conditions of this Agreement
will be valid unless it is in writing and signed by all parties.

10.6  Enforceability. If any tribunal declares any provision of this Agreement,
as written, to be invalid or unreasonable in scope, the remainder of this Agreement, including
any portion of the challenged provision that the tribunal finds to be reasonable, will be fully

enforceable.

10.7 Notices. Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement will be in
writing and will be deemed sufficient upon receipt, when delivered personally or by a nationally-
recognized delivery service (such as Federal Express or UPS), or 48 hours after being deposited
in the U.S. mail as certified or registered mail with postage prepaid, if such notice is addressed to
the party to be notified at such party’s address as set forth in the records of Corporation.

10.8 Severability. If one or more provisions of this Agreement are held to be
unenforceable under applicable law, the parties agree to renegotiate such provision in good faith.
In the event that the parties cannot reach a mutually agreeable and enforceable replacement for
such provision, then (i) such provision will be excluded from this Agreement, (ii) the balance of
the Agreement will be interpreted as if such provision were so excluded and (iii) the balance of
the Agreement will be enforceable in accordance with its terms.

10.9 Law and Jurisdiction. This Agreement will be governed by and construed
in accordance with the laws of the state of Oregon. In the event a dispute or claim should arise
regarding this Agreement, jurisdiction and venue of any such action will be in Multnomah
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County, Oregon. Each of the parties expressly consents to the jurisdiction and venue set forth in
this Section.

10.10 Advice of Counsel. EACH PARTY TO THIS AGREEEMENT
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT, IN EXECUTING THIS AGREEMENT, SUCH PARTY HAS
HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO SEEK THE ADVICE OF INDEPENDENT LEGAL
COUNSEL, AND HAS READ AND UNDERSTOOD ALL OF THE TERMS AND
PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT. THIS AGREEMENT WILL NOT BE CONSTRUED
AGAINST ANY PARTY BY REASON OF THE DRAFTING OR PREPARATION HEREOF.

" CORPORATION:
COL UNITY BANK
an regonc rp atlo /
bk AL
resi nt

EMPLOYEE:
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“Exhibit 6.10

LEASE

THIS LEASE is entered into this 2 ) . day of 172,@6’.64 . between WARZ
Investments L.L.C., an Oregon limited liability company, hereinafter referred to as “Lessor” and
Columbia Community Bank, hereinafter referred to as “Lessee”.

Lessor is the owner of a building and other improvements on that certain real property
situated in the City of Hillsboro, County of Washington, and State of Oregon, described in
Exhibit “A”. Lessor hereby Leases to Lessee and Lessee hereby rents from Lessor upon the
terms, conditions and covenants contained herein the “Premises™ of approximately 2950 square
feet, described in Exhibit “B”, which is a part of said improvements. The location of the
Premises is outlined in red on Exhibit “C”. Any alterations or improvements to the Premises
required of the Lessor are set forth in Exhibit “D”. The street address of the Premises is 314 E.

Main Hillsboro, Oregon 97123

1. TERM: The term of this Lease shail be for a period of 4 years and 2 months. The
Lease term shall commence on the st day of March, 2004 (the “Commencement Date”) and

~ shall expire at midnight on the 30th day of April, 2008. Lessee shall have an option to renew the

Lease for an additional term of 5 years as provided in Exhibit “E”. Lessee shall be ent1tled to
possession of the Premises as of the Commencement Date.

-2 RENT: Beginning upon the Commencement Date and continuing during the entire
Lease term, Lessee shall pay to Lessor monthly rent, as follows:

(2)  Base rent during the term of this Lease as set forth in exhibit “F”.

() Additional rent for Lessee’s proportionate share for common area
maintenance charges, insurance and taxes as provided in sections 4, 5 and 6.

~ The base rent and the additional rent shall be due and payable in advance on the
first day of the month. Rent for the month of March, 2004 shall be paid upon the execution of
this Lease. The next rent payment shall be-due on April 1, 2004. Lessee shall pay the rent to
Lessor in United States currency w1thout any right to deduction or setoff and without any notice

or demand.

Lessee shall pay the base rent, additional rent and other amounts required to be
paid by Lessee under this Lease to Lessor at PO BOX 88 Hillsboro, Oregon 97123 or at such
other place as Lessor may from time to time designate in writing.

3. SECURITY DEPOSIT: Upon execution of this Lease, Lessee shall pay to Lessor
the sum of §__-0- as a security deposit, and not as prepaid rent, which sum shall be
retained by Lessor as security for the full and faithful performance by Lessee of all of the
covenants and terms of this Lease required to be performed by Lessee. Such security deposit shall
be returned to Lessee after the expiration of this Lease provided Lessee has fully and faithfully
carried out all of Lessees obligations hereunder, including the payment of all amounts due to
Lessor hereunder and the surrender of the Premises to Lessor in the condition required herein.
The security deposit may be commingled with other funds of Lessor and shall not bear-interest.
The retention or use of all or any portion of the security deposit by Lessor shall in no way be a

1
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bar or a defense to any action to renter and to retake possession of the Premises or for any action
which Lessor may at any time institute for the breach of any term, covenant or condition of this
Lease. Lessor shall have the right to offset against the security deposit any sums owing from
Lessee to Lessor and not paid when due and any damages caused by Lessee’s default. Any offset
against the security deposit shall not be Lessor’s exclusive remedy, and such offset maybe
invoked by Lessor in addition to any other remedy provided by law or in this Lease for Lessee’s
default. Should Lessor utilize any portion of the security deposit pursuant to this paragraph,
Lessee shall restore the security deposit to the original amount within ten days after demand
therefor. In the event of a sale of the property described in Exhibit “A”, Lessor shall have the
right to transfer the security deposit to the purchaser, and Lessor shall thereupon be released from
all liability for the return of the security deposit, and Lessee agrees to look solely to the new
Lessor for the return of the security deposit.

-4, TAXES: Lessee shall be responsible for and pay before delinquent all taxes
assessed during the term of this Lease against any trade fixtures, leasehold improvements, or
personal property of any kind owned by or placed upon or about the Premises by Lessee. In
addition to the rental provided in this Lease, Lessee shall pay 23% of all real property taxes and
assessments levied, assessed or imposed during the Lease term upon the real property and
improvements described in Exhibit “A”. All real property taxes and assessments payable for a
period, part of which shall be within the Lease term and part of which shall be either before or
after the Lease term, shall be prorated between Lessor and Lessee. Lessee shall pay to Lessor an
amount each month that is equal to one-twelfth of Lessee’s share of the estimated real property
taxes and assessments. Lessor shall notify Lessee of the estimated monthly amount to be paid
and of any changes in the estimated amount, and Lessee shall pay Lessor such estimated amount
at such time as and together with Lessee’s monthly rent payment. Lessor shall furnish to Lessee
an annual statement showing the real property taxes and assessments against the real property
and improvements, and shall charge or credit to Lessee for any difference between the actual
amount and the estimated amounts previously paid by Lessee. Lessee shall pay Lessor any
deficiency within 30 days after Lessor gives Lessee notice thereof. Lessor shall credit any
overpayment against Lessee’s next monthly rent. No interest or earnings shall be payable by
Lessor to Lessee on any amount accumulated. hereunder. Lessor may commingle said tax
payments with other funds of Lessor. Lessor shall pay all such taxes and assessments when the
same become due or payable. If during the Lease term, either the voters of the state of Oregon
or the State Legislature enact a real property tax limitation or reduction, then any substitute tax or
taxes, in any name or form, which may be adopted to replace or supplement real property taxes
shall be considered the equivalent of real property taxes for the purposes of this paragraph.
Should there be in effect during the Lease term any law, statute, or ordinance which levies,

assesses or imposes any tax (other than any income tax) upon rents, Lessee shall pay such tax as |

may be attributable to the rents under this Lease or shall reimburse Lessor for any such tax paid
by Lessor within ten days after Lessor bills Lessee for the same.

5. INSURANCE:

(a) During the Lease term, Lessor shall maintain in full force a policy or
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policies of fire irsurance with standard extended coverage endorsements to the extent of at least
90% of the replacement cost of the building or buildings and other improvements, fixtures,
furnishings and equipment (exclusive of Lessee’s trade fixtures, leéasehold improveiments and

~other property) situated on or pertinent to the real property described in Exhibit “A”. During the
‘Lease term, Lessor shall also maintain in full force a comprehensive liability insurance policy of

not less than $2,000,000.00 insuring Lessor against liability for bodily injury and property
damage occurring in, or about the real property described in Exhibit “A”. Lessor may also. secure
and maintain suich other insurance as Lessor deems reasonably necessary in connection with the
real property described in Exhibit “A”, and the buildings, improvements, fixtures, furnishings
and equipment- thereon or pertinent thereto, including, without limitation, rent-interruption
insurance. Lessor shall secure said insurance at competitive rates. In addition to the base rent
provided in this Lease, Lessee shall pay 23% of the premiums for said insurance. Insurance
premiums attributable to a period, a part of which shall be within the Lease term and a part of
which shall be either before or after the Lease term, shall be prorated between Lessor and Lessee.
Lessor will establish a reserve for insurance premiums, in the same manner as the reserve for real
property taxes and assessments, pursuant to paragraph 4 above, and in such event Lessee shall
pay an amount, each month, together with its monthly base rent, equal to one-twelfth of Lessee’s

share of the estimated annual insurance premiums, and the terms and conditions of paragraph 4
above with respect to property taxes and assessments shall apply in a like manner to ﬁre and
liability insurance prermums

(b) " This Lease i$ entered into on the basis that Lessee’s occupancy will not

increase the classification of the Premises or the real property and improvements for insurance
rating purposes. If Lessee’s intended use of the Premises is a different classification for insurance
rating purposes, resulting in higher insurance premiums for any buildings situated on the real
property described in Exhibit “A”, Lessee shall pay for the increased costs of the premiums for
insuring any such building or buildings against loss by fire with standard extended coverage
endorsements during the term of this Lease. If the insurance premiums on any buildings are

increased during the Lease term as a result of the installation of equipment on the Premises by

Lessee, by reason of the Lessee’s maintaining certain goods or materials on the Premises or as a

result of other use or occupancy of the Premises by Lessee, Lessee shall pay the additional cost of _

the insurance for any such buildings (whether or not Lessor has consented to the activity resulting
in the increased insurance premiums). Lessee shall refrain from any activity in Lessee’s use of

the Premises which would make it impracticable to insure the Premises or the buildings situated -

on the real property described in Exhibit “A” against casualty or which would increase the
insurance rate on any such buildings or prevent Lessor from taking advantage of the ruling of the
Insurance Rating Bureau of the state in which the Premises are situated or its successors allowing
Lessor to obtain reduced premium rates for long term fire insurance policies, unless Lessee pays
the additional cost of the insurance. If Lessee installs any electrical equipment that overloads the
lines in the Premises or any such buildings, Lessee shall at Lessee’s own expense make whatever
changes are necessary to comply with the requirements of the insurance underwriters and the
governmental authorities having jurisdiction. Any insurance premiums to be paid by Lessee by
reason of Lessee’s initial intended use of the Premises or any increases in fire insurance
premiums attributable to Lessee’s use or occupancy of the Premises during the term of the Lease
shall be paid by Lessee to Lessor within 30 days after Lessor bills Lessee for the same.

6. COMMON AREA, OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE CHARGES:

w
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(a) The term “common area” (or “common areas”) means all the areas on the
real property described in Exhibit “A” used or intended to be used from time to time in common
by lessees of said property or by customers or invitees of such lessees, including, but not limited
to, to the extent applicable, parking lots, roads, walkways, curbs, landscaped areas, planters,
common malls, interior atriums, exterior stairways, interior Stairs and balconies, elevators,
corridors, loading docks, delivery areas, telephone areas, restrooms, and all fixtures, furnishings,
improvements and equipment pertinent thereto or constituting a part thereof, and such other like
areas and facilities as Lessor may designate from time to time. Common area shall also include
abutting property used for landscaping and entrances contiguous to the real property described in
Exhibit “A”. For purposes of determining “common area, operating and maintenance charges
common area shall be deemed to include all building or buildings and other improvements
situated on the real property described in Exhibit “A”, and all fixtures, furnishings and equipment
pertinent thereto or constituting a part thereof, including the common area as defined above.

(b)  Lessee shall pay to Lessor 23% of the “common area operating and
maintenance charges” which are defined as Lessors direct, out-of<pocket costs incurred for
maintenance and opération of the common area to the extent necessary to keep the same in good
condition and repair, including, but not limited to: lighting, sweeping, cleaning, snow removal of
parking area, line painting and other painting, and janitorial services; maintenance repair and
operation of fire protection systems, sprinkler systems, storm drainage systems and other utility
systems; expenses for security and security systems; insurance, exclusive of insurance coverage
charged to Lessee pursuant to paragraph 5; personal property taxes, but not any property taxes
included in paragraph 4; electricity, repair and maintenance of directory and other signs;

‘maintenance and repair of paving, curbs, sidewalks, driveways, planting and landscaping,

lighting and sign facilities, and resurfacing; repair and.maintenance -of exterior walls (including
repainting, restaining, sealing or similar treatment), roofs, gutters and downspouts of any
building or buildings, including replacement when necessary; all maintenance and repair and
operating costs of common malls, interior atriums and other interior areas included herein in any
buildings situated on the real property described in Exhibit “A”; costs of any public address,
loudspeaker or music system; all costs and expenses of personnel to implement the forégoing

services; rental paid for machinery and equipment to carry out the foregoing services; reasonable

reserves for anticipated expenditures, in Lessor’s discretion commensurate with good business
practices, such as replacement of roofs, replacement of parking areas, replacement of common
area heating and air conditioning equipment, replacement of other fixtures, furnishings and
¢quipment within the definition of “common area” and the replacement of machinery and

equipment utilized to carry out the foregoing services; plus 20% of the forgoing direct costs to -
cover Lessor’s indirect costs. There shall be excluded the cost of the initial construction of
common area facilities. The fact that an above stated cost or expense is treated as a capital

expense for accounting purposes shall not relieve Lessee of its obligation to pay its share of the
cost or expense.

(c) Lessor shall notify Lessee of the estimated monthly amount to be paid by
Lessee for its share of the common area, operating and maintenance charges, and Lessee shall
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pay Lessor such estimated amount at the same time as and together with Lessee’s monthly base

rent, Lessor shall, within 90 days following the end of each calendar year during the term of this -

Lease, determine and furnish to Lessee a statement showing in reasonable detail the actual costs
and expenses of such maintenance and operations during the preceding calendar year (or partial
year for the first year in which construction is completed) together with a computation of the
charge or credit to Lessee for any difference between the actual costs and the estimated costs paid
by Lessee for such period; and any such difference shall be paid ‘or reimbursed within 30 days
after Lessor gives Lessee notice thereof. Lessee’s obligation for its share of the common area,
operating and maintenance charges for any calendar year shall be prorated as of the
commencement date of and the expiration date of the term of this Lease. The determination of
the certified public accountant then serving Lessor shall be conclusive each year of the actual
costs and expenses of such maintenance and operations.

7. USE OF COMMON AREA: Subject to the provisio‘ns of this Lease, Lessee, its
employees, agents, customers and invitees shall have the nonexclusive revocable license to use

the common area along with others. However, the common area shall at all times be subject to

the exclusive control, custody and management of Lessor and parts thereof may be closed at such
time or times as may be determined advisable by Lessor. Lessor reserves the right to make
changes in the common area of the real property described in Exhibit “A” from time to time,

including but not limited to changes, additions or deletions with respect to the parking areas and

layout, roads, drives and walkways, landscaped areas, the directory sign and othier equipment and
improvements situated in the common area. Lessor also reserves the right to eréct promotional
and other displays within the common area, as Lessor may from time to time deem desirable.

8. ACCEPTANCE OF PREMISES AND COMPLETION OF BUILDING:

(a)  Lessee accepts the Premises on the specified Commencement Date in the
condition existing as of the execution of this Lease, subject only to completion of any work to be
performed by Lessor as set forth in Exhibit “D.” Any work to be performed by Lessor as set

forth in Exhibit “D” shall be considered as substantially completed notwithstanding the

noncompletion of items which are dependent upon Lessee’s fixturing and other work..

(b)  Within 30 days following the substantial completion of the work to be
performed by Lessor as set forth in Exhibit “D,” Lessee shall deliver to Lessor a written
statement signed by Lessee, setting forth in detail any work to be performed by Lessor as set
forth in Exhibit “D” or elsewhere in this Lease which has not been properly completed. The
failure of Lessee to execute and deliver such a statement within the time limited shall constitute
an acknowledgement by Lessee that all of Lessor’s work hereunder has been satisfactorily.
completed and performed as of that date. Notwithstanding the delivery of such writtén
statement, Lessee’s obligation for rental and other charges hereunder shall not abate during the
period the Lessor is completing any such work. '

9. USE OF PREMISES:
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() = The Premises shall be used and occupied ohly for the conduct of a

community bank and other related services under the trade name Columbia Community Bank -

and for no other purpose or purposes and under no other trade name without Lessor’s prior
written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. Lessor shall not consent to
any use involving adult entertainment.

(b)  Lessee shall not use or permit any part of the Premises to be used for any
purpose in violation of any municipal, county, state or federal law, ordinance or regulation.
Lessee shall conform to all applicable laws and regulations of any public authority affecting the
Premises and the use thereof. Lessee shall correct at Lessee’s own expense any failure of
compliance created through Lessee’s fault or by reason of Lessee’s use.

() Lessee shall refrain from any activity which would be reasonably
offensive to Lessor, to other lessees in any building situated on the real property described in
Exhibit “A”, or to owners or users of adjoining Premises, or which would tend to create a
nuisance or damage the reputation of the Premises or of any such buildings. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, Lessee shall not permit any objectionable noise or odor to escape or
be emitted from the Premises, Lessee shall not place any boxes, cartons, ribbish, merchandise or
other personal property in the walkways or other common areas, and Lessee shall not place nor
permit any loudspeaker or sound amplifier or any phonograph or other devices similar to any of
the foregoing at any place in or out of the Premises where the same may be heard outside of the
Premises.

) (d) Lessee shall not load the floors beyond the point considered safe by a
competent engineer or architect selected by Lessor.

© Lessee may post the signs described in Exhibit “G”, provided the signs
comply with any applicable sign ordinances. Lessee shall not place, maintain or attach any other
sign, display, insignia, decoration, lettering, awning, canopy, advertising or promotion matter or
material, antenna, aerial or other device to the exterior or interior walls, windows, doors or roof
of the Premises without the prior written consent of Lessor. Lessor need not consent to any sign
or other attachment which fails to conform to the general design concept of the building situated
on the real property described in Exhibit “A” as established by Lessor. Notwithstanding Lessor’s
consent to any signs or other attachments, Lessee shall remove all such signs or other
attachments upon termination of the Lease and repair any damage to the Premises caused thereby
at Lessee’s own cost and expense. :

63) Lessee shall keep the Premises open for business and cause Lessee’s
business to be conducted therein continuously during the term of this Lease during those days
and hours as is customary for businesses of like character, except to the extent that the use of the
Premises is interrupted or prevented by causes beyond Lessee’s reasonable control and for
reasonable vacation periods.

(g)  Lessee shall not conduct or permit to be conducted any sale by auction on
any part of the Premises, whether said auction be voluntary, involuntary, pursuant to any

assignment for the payment of creditors or pursuant to any bankruptcy or other insolvency

6
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proceedings unless Lessee has permission from Lessor. Lessee shall not permit the use of any
part of the Premises for a secondhand store, distress or fire sale, or bankruptcy or going-out-of-
business sale or the like. Lessee shall not permit any coin operated vending, novelty or game
machines or equipment on the Premises.

(h)  Lessee shall not commit or suffer any strip or waste of the Premises or the
improvements thereon or any part thereof. Lessee shall keep the Premises in a neat, clean,
sanitary and orderly condition.

(1) Lessee shall comply, and cause Lessee’s employees, agents, invitees and
customers, to comply with reasonable rules respecting the use of the Premises and the common
area promulgated by Lessor from time to time and communicated to Lessee in writing. Such rules
shall include the regulation of parking, and Lessee and its employees shall park their cars and
trucks only in areas designated by Lessor from time to time for that purpose. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, such rules may establish hours during which the common areas shall
be open for use, may regulate the receiving and delivery of goods and merchandise to the
Premises and may regulate the removal of garbage and refuse from the Premises.

4)) Lessee shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Substance to be spilled,
leaked, disposed of, or otherwise released on or under the Premises. Lessee may use or otherwise
handle on the Premises only those Hazardous Substances typically used or sold in the prudent
and safe operation of the business specified in Section 9(a). Lessee may store such Hazardous
Substances on the Premises only in quantities necessary to satisfy Lessee’s reasonably anticipated
needs. Lessee shall comply with all Environmental Laws and exercise the highest degree of care
in the use, handling, ard storage of Hazardous Substances and shall take all practicable measures
to minimize the quantity and toxicity of Hazardous Substances used, handled, or stored on the
Premises. On the expiration or termination of this Lease, Lessee shall remove all Hazardous
Substances from the Premises. The term Environmental Law shall mean any federal, state, or
local statute, regulation, or ordinance or any judicial or other governmental order pertaining to
the protection of health, safety, or the environment. The term Hazardous Substance shall mean
any hazardous, toxic, infectious, or radioactive substance; waste, and material as defined or listed
by any Environmental Law and shall include, without limitation, petroleum oil and its fractions.

(k) Lessee shall be solely responsible for securing the Premises. Lessee shall
provided Lessor with a key to be used in the event of a need for emergency repairs.

10.  LESSEE IMPROVEMENTS AND ALTERATIONS: Exhibit “D” sets forth the
Lessor Work to be completed by Lessor at its expense. Lessee shall pay for any additional
Lessee improvements that it desires and that are approved by Lessor. Lessee shall make no
improvements or alterations on the Premises of any kind, without the prior written consent of
Lessor. Prior to the commencement of any work by Lessee, Lessee shall first submit the
following to Lessor and obtain Lessor’s written consent to all of the following: Lessee’s plans
and specifications, including, without limitation, a comprehensive interior design plan, and
detailed plans specifying carpeting, colors and fixtures; Lessee’s estimated costs; and the names
of all of subcontractors. All work performed by the Lessee shall be done in strict compliance
with all applicable building, fire, sanitary and safety codes, and other applicable laws, statutes,
regulations and ordinances, and Lessee shall secure all necessary permits for the same. Lessee
shall keep the Premises free from all liens in connection with any such work. All work performed
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by the Lessee shall be carried forward expeditiously, shall not interfere with Lessor’s work or the
work to be performed by or for other lessees, and shall be completed within a reasonable time.
Lessor or Lessor’s agents shall have the right at all reasonable times to inspect the quality and
progress of such work. Lessee shall promptly obtain and deliver to Lessor full and unconditional
lien releases and lien waivers from all contractors, subcontractors, material men, suppliers and
others providing work, labor, materials and/or services to the Premises in the installation,
construction or the providing of improvements. or alterations for Lessee. All improvements,
alterations and other work performed on the Premises by either Lessor or Lessee shall be the
property of Lessor when installed, except for Lessee’s trade fixtures, and may not be removed at
the expiration of this Lease unless the applicable Lessor’s consent specifically provides
otherwise, Notwithstanding Lessor’s consent to improvements or alterations by Lessee, all such
improvements, alterations and other work to be performed by Lessee shall be at the sole cost and
expense of Lessee.

11.  REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE:

(2) Subject to the terms of paragraph 6 above with respect to payment for
Lessor’s maintenance and repairs, the following shall be the responsibility of the Lessor, and
Lessor shall maintain all of the following in good condition and repair:

(1) Structural repairs and maintenance and repairs necessitated by
structural disrepair or defects. '

(i)  Repair and maintenance of the exterior walls, roof, gutters,

downspouts and foundation of the building in which the Premises are located. This shall not -

include maintenance of the operating condition of doors and windows or replacement of glass
nor maintenance of the storefront.

(iii)  Repair of interior walls, ceilings, dbors, windows, floors and floor
coverings when such repairs are made necessary by the faiture of Lessor to keep the structure in
repair as above provided in this subparagraph (a). '

(b) Notwithstanding the above, any repairs or maintenance necessitated by the

- negligent or intentional acts of Lessee, its employees or invitees or by the Lessee’s breach of this
‘Lease shall be-at Lessee’s expenses.

(c) The following shall be the respon51b111ty of Lessee, and Lessee shall
maintain all of the followmg in good condition and repair:

1) Any interior redecorating.

(ii)  Any repairs to the Premises and the building in which the Premises
are situated necessitated by the negligence or intentional acts of Lessee, its agents, employees and
invitees or by the Lessee’s breach of this Lease.

(iii)  Maintenance and repair of the interior walls and floor coverings
(both hard surfaces and carpeting). :

8
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(iv)  Any repairs or alterations required under Lessee’s obligation to
comply with the laws and regulations as set forth in paragraph 9(b) above.

(v)  Maintenance and repair and replacement if necessary of the heating
and air conditioning systems and sprinkler systems, if any. In the event any HVAC or sprinkler

system is shared with other tenants, then lessee shall pay or reimburse Lessor for Lessee’s share:

of such maintenance, repair or replacement costs in proportion to Lessee’s rentable square
footage to the total rentable square footage serviced by the system.

(vi)  All other repairs and maintenance to the Premises which Lessor is
not specifically required to make under subparagraph (a) above which includes, without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, the replacement of all glass which may be broken, cracked or
damaged during the term hereof with glass of as good or better quality than that used at the
commencement of the term hereof, the store front, the interior wiring and plumbing and the drain
pipes to sewers. '

(d)  Lessee shall have the benefit of any construction and equipment guaranties
and warranties in favor of Lessor with respect to the Premises.

)

(¢)  Lessor shall have the right to inspect the Premises at any reasonable time or
times to determine the necessity of repair. Whether or not such inspection is made, the duty of
Lessor to make such repairs as outlined above in any area in Lessee’s possession and control
shall not mature until a reasonable time (30 days unless a different time is agreed to jointly) after
Lessor has received from Lessee written notice of the necessity of repairs, except in the event
emergency repairs may be required and in such event Lessee shall attempt to give Lessor
appropriate notice considering the circumstances.

@ All repairs, replacements, alterations or other work performed on or about
the Premises by Lessor shall be done in such a way as to interfere as little as reasonably possible
with the use of the Premises by Lessee. Lessee shall have no right to an abatement of rent,
except as provided in Section 19, nor any claim against Lessor for any inconvenience disturbance

~or damages resulting from Lessor’s performance of repairs and maintenance pursuant to this

paragraph.

{g) Lessor shall have the right to contract with a service company for the
regular maintenance and repair of any HVAC or sprinkler system, but shall not be obligated to do
so. If Lessor enters into a service contract for the maintenance and repair of the HVAC or
sprinkler- system, Lessee hall reimburse Lessor for its proportionate share of the costs of such
service on a monthly or other periodic basis. Lessor may require Lessee to directly contract and
pay for a service contract on the HVAC or sprinkler system with a service provider acceptable to
Lessor.

12.  LIENS: Lessee shall keep the Premises free from all liens, including construction
and mechanics liens, arising from any act or omission of Lessee or those claiming under Lessee.
Lessor shall have the right to post and maintain on the, Premises or, the building in which the
Premises are situated Such notices of nonresponsibility as are provided for under the lien laws of
Oregon. '
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13.  UTILITIES: Lessee shall promptly pay for all water and sewer services, gas and
electrical services, including heat and light, garbage collection, telephone, and all other utility
services used by Lessee during the term 6f this Lease. If the heating and air conditioning systems
or any other utility services are not on separate meters, Lessee shall pay its proportionate share of
such charges based upon the actual use of the heating and air conditioning or such other utility
services by Lessee and by the other lessees utilizing the same. Lessor makes no warranties or
representations as to the quantity, quality, availability, amount or duration of any of the utility
services referred to in this paragraph or servicing the Premises. Lessor shall not be liable for any
interruption in utility service. Lessee shall arrange for regular and prompt pick up of trash and
garbage. Lessor reserves the right to arrange for garbage collection on a cooperative basis for
Lessee and other tenants, and if Lessor elects to do so, Lessee’s proportionate share of the
garbage collection charges shall be paid by Lessee to' Lessor as a common area maintenance
charge.

14. ICE, SNOW AND DEBRIS: Lessee shall keep the walks adjacent to the Premises
free and clear of ice, snow, rubbish, debris and obstructions. Lessee shall indemnify, defend and
hold Lessor harmless from any injury whether to Lessor or Lessee’s property or to any other
person or property caused by Lessee’s failure to perform Lessee’s obligations under this
paragraph. Lessee’s obligations under this paragraph shall be performed at Lessee’s cost and
expense.

15. LIGHT AND AIR: This Lease does not grant any rights of accessto light or air
over any part of the real property described in Exhibit “A”.

16.  INDEMNITY OF LESSOR-INSURANCE:

(a)  Lessor shall not be liable for any injury to any person or for the loss of or
damage to any property, including damage to the property of Lessee, occurring in or about the
Premises from any cause whatsoever, other than the sole negligence or intentional misconduct of
Lessor. Lessee shall indemnify, defend and save harmless Lessor from any and all liability,

- damage, expense, attorney’s fees, causes of action, suits, claims or judgments, arising from injury
to person or damage to property arising out of or connected directly with Lessee’s use,

occupancy, management, or control of the Premises. Lessee shall at its own expense, defend any

and all suits which may be brought against Lessor either alone or in connection with others upon .

any such above-mentioned cause or claim, and shall satisfy, pay and discharge any and all
judgments that may be recovered against Lessor in any such action or-actions in which Lessor
may be a party defendant. Notwithstanding the aforementioned, Lessee shall have no duty to
indemnify Lessor for damages or costs caused by Lessor’s sole negligence or willful misconduct.

(b) - Lessee shall at its own expense during the term of this Lease carry in full
force and effect a comprehensive general or commercial liability insurance policy, with an
insurance carrier satisfactory to Lessor, naming Lessor as an additional insured, with limits not
less than $2,000,000.00 per person, $2,000,000.00 per occurrence, and $2,000,000.00 per
property damage, insuring against any and all liability of Lessee with respect to the Premises
including the common area or arising out of the, maintenance, use or occupancy thereof. Such
policies shall provide that the insurance shall not be cancelable or reduced without at least ten
days prior written notice to Lessor, and shall be deemed primary and noncontributing with any
insurance available to Lessor. Lessee shall furnish Lessor with a certificate or other acceptable
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evidence that such insurance is in effect.

_ (©) Lessee shall also maintain insurance to comply with Workmen’s
Compensation and Employer’s Liability Laws.

(d) Lessee shall also maintain at its own expense insurance covering its

furniture, fixtures, equipment and inventory and all improvements that it makes to the Premises

. in an amount not less than 100% of their full insurable value against fire and other perils as are

covered by a standard fire insurance policy with an extended coverage endorsement, mcludmg
sprinkler leakage insurance, if any.

17. WAIV ER OF SUBROGATION: Neither party shall be liable to the other or to .

any insurance company by way or subrogation or otherwise for any loss or damage caused by fire
or any of the risks enumerated in a standard fire insurance policy with an extended coverage
endorsement, including sprinkler leakage insurance, if any. All claims or rights of recovery for
any or all such loss or damage, however caused, are hereby waived. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, said absence of liability shall exist whether or not such loss or
damage is caused by the negligence of either Lessor or Lessee or by any of their respective
agents, servants or employees. Lessor and Lessee shall cause their respective insurance policies
to contain a waiver of subrogation clause. |

18.  INJURY TO LESSEE’S PROPERTY: Lessor shall not be liable for any injury to
the goods, stock, merchandise or other property of Lessee or to any person in or about the
Premises resulting from fire or collapse of the building in which the Premises are located or any
portion thereof or any other cause, including, but not limited to, damage by water, gas or steam,
or by reason of any electrical apparatus in or about the Premises.

19. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION:

(a) If the Premises shall be partially damaged by fire or other cause, and
subparagraph (a) below does not apply, the damage to the Premises shall be repaired by Lessor,
and the monthly rent until such repair shall be made shall be reduced according to the part of the
Premises which is usable by Lessee, except that if such damage occurs because of the fault of

‘Lessee, its employees, agents or invitees there shall be no reduction or abatement of rent. The

repairs shall be accomplished within a reasonable period of time. Lessor shall bear the cost of
such repairs unless the damage occurred from a risk which would not be covered by a standard
fire insurance policy with an endorsement for extended coverage, including sprinkler leakage,
and the damage was the fault of Lessee, its employees, agents or invitees, in which event Lessee
shall bear the expense of the repairs. Notwithstanding the above, if the damage to the Premises
occurred from a risk which would not be covered by a standard fire insurance policy with an
endorsement for extended coverage, including sprinkler leakage, and the damage was not the
fault of Lessee, Lessor may elect to terminate the Lease rather than repair the Premises.

(b) If the Premises is 65% or more destroyed during the term of this Lease by
any cause, Lessor may elect to terminate this Lease as of the date of damage or destruction by
notice given to the Lessee, in writing not more than 45 days following the date of damage. In the

i | Page 215




()

- absence of an election to terminate, Lessor shall proceed to restore the Premises (if damaged) to

substantially the same form as prior to the damage or destruction, so as to provide Lessee usable
space equivalent in quantity and character to that before the damage or destruction. Work shall be
commenced as soon as reasonably possible, and thereafter proceed without interruption, except
for work stoppages on account of matters beyond the reasonable control of Lessor. From the date
of damage until the Premises are restored or repaired, the monthly rent shall be abated or reduced
according to the part of the Premises usable by Lessee, unless the damage occurred because of
the fault of Lessee, its employees, agents or invitees. Lessor shall bear the cost of such repairs,
unless the damage occurred from a risk that would not be covered by a standard fire insurance
policy with an endorsement for extended coverage, including sprinkler leakage, and the damage
was the fault of Lessee, its employees, agents or invitees, in which event Lessee shall bear the
expense of the repairs. :

(©) If the Premises is repaired, Lessee shall be solely responsible for the repair
or replacement of its trade fixtures, leasehold improvements, personal property, furniture,
equipment and inventory.

20. EMINENT DOMAIN:

(@) If a portion of the Premises is condemned and neither subparagraph (b) nor
subparagraph (c) apply, the Lease shall continue in effect. Lessor shall be entitled to all the
proceeds of condemnation, and Lessee shall have no claim against Lessor as a result of
condemnation. Lessor shall proceed as soon as reasonably possible to make such repairs and
alterations to the Premises as are necessary to restore the remaining Premises to a condition as
comparative as reasonably practical to that existing at the time of condemnation. The monthly
rent shall be abated to the extent that the Premises are untenantable during a period of alteration
and repair. After the date on which title vests in the condemning authority, the monthly rent shall
be reduced commensurately with the reduction in value of the Leased Premises as an economic
unit on account of the partial taking.

(b) If a condemning authority takes a portion of the Premises and the
remainder of the Premises is unusable to Lessee in the Lessor’s commercially reasonable
judgment, the Lease shall, at the option of Lessor or Lessee, terminate as of the date title vests in

. the condemning authority. Lessor shall be entitled to all of the proceeds of condemnation, and

Lessee shall have no claim against Lessor as a result of the condemnation.

(©) If a condemning authority takes all of the Premises, the Lease shall
terminate as of the date title vests in the condemning authority. Lessor shall be entitled to all of
the proceeds of condemnation, and Lessee shall have no claim against Lessor as a result of the
condemnation.

(d) Sale of all or any part of the Premises to a purchaser with the power of
eminent domain in the face of a threat of probability of the exercise of the powers shall be treated
for the purposes of this Lease as a taking by condemnation.

(e) Lessee reserves all rights it may have against the condemnor in any
condemnation action, including, but not limited to, damages for Leasehold improvements or any
damage to.its business.
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21. 'BANKRUPTCY: Subject to paragraph 25, this Lease shall not be assigned or
transferred voluntarily or involuntarily by operation of law. This Lease may, at the option of
Lessor, be terminated if Lessee is adjudged bankrupt or insolvent, or makes an assignment for the
benefit of creditors, or files or is a party to the filing of a petition in bankruptcy, or a receiver or a
trustee is appointed to take charge of any of the assets of Lessee and such receiver or trustee is
not removed within 30 days after the date of his appointment. To the extent permitted by law,
this Lease or any sublease hereunder shall not be considered as an asset of a debtor-in-
possession, or an asset in bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or other judicial proceedings.

22, DEFAULT: The following shall be an event of default:

(@)  Failure of Lessee to pay any rent, additional rent or any other charge or
amount required hereunder within ten days after it is due.

(b)  Failure of Lessee to comply with any term or condition or fulfill any
obligation of this Lease, other than the payment of rent, additional rent or other charges, within
twenty days after written notice by Lessor specifying the nature of the default with reasonable
particularity. If the default is of such a nature that it cannot be completely remedied within the
20-day period, this subparagraph shall be complied with if Lessee begins correcting the default
within the 20-day period and thereafter proceeds with reasonable diligence and in good faith to
effect the remedy as soon as practicable. Lessor shall only be required to give Lessee one notice
during any calendar year for failure to comply with a particular term or condition of this Lease.

(¢)  The abandonment of the Premises by Lessee or the failure of Lessee for 30
days or more to occupy the Premises for one or more of the designated purposes of this Lease
unless such failure is excused under other provisions of this Lease.

(d)  The bankruptcy or insolvency of Lessee or the occurrence of other acts
specified in paragraph 21 of this Lease which give Lessor the option to terminate. '

(e)  Failure of Lessor to comply with any material term or condition or to
fulfill any material obligation of this Lease within 30 days after written notice by Lessee
specifying the nature of the default with reasonable particularity. If the default is of such a nature
that it cannot be completely remedied within the 30-day period, this subparagraph shall be
complied with if Lessor begins to cure the default within the 30-day period and thereafter
proceeds with reasonable diligence and in good faith to effect the remedy as soon as practicable.

23.  REMEDIES ON DEFAULT:

() In the event of a default by Lessee, Lessor may, at Lessor’s option,
exercise any one or more of the rights and remedies available to a landlord in the State of Oregon
to redress such default, consecutively or concurrently, including the following:

) Lessor may elect to terminate the Lessee’s right to possession of
the Premises or any portion thereof by written notice to Lessee. The Lessee’s liability to Lessor
for damages shall survive the termination of possession under the Lease. Following such notice,
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Lessor may reenter, take possession of the Premises and remove any persons or property by legal
action or self-help with the use of reasonable force and without liability for damages. To the
extent permitted by law, Lessor shall have the right to take possession of the personal property
belonging to Lessee which is on the Premises at the time of re-entry, or the right to such other
security interest therein as the law may permit, to secure all sums due or which become due to
Lessor under this Lease. Perfection of such security interest shall occur by taking possession of
such personal property or as otherwise provided by law. ‘

(i)  Following re-entry by Lessor, Lessor may re-let the Premises for a
term longer or shorter than the term of this Lease and, upon any reasonable terms including the
granting of rent concessions to the new lessee, Lessor may alter, refurbish or otherwise change
the character or use of the Premises in connection with such re-letting. Lessor shall not be
required to re-let for any use or purpose which Lessor may reasonably consider injurious to its
property or to its best use or to re-let to any lessee which Lessor may reasonably consider
objectionable. No such re-letting by Lessor following a default by Lessee shall be construed as an
acceptance of the surrender of the Premises or release the Lessee from damages. If rent received
upon such re-letting exceeds the rent reserved or due under this Lease, Lessee shall have no claim
to the excess.

(iii)  Following re-entry, Lessor shall have the right to recover from
Lessee the following damages: :

(A)All unpaid rent or other charges for the period prior to re-entry
plus interest thereon at eight per cent (8%) per annum.

(B) An amount equal to the rent and addltlonal rent lost during
which the Premises are not re-let. Lessor shall use reasonable efforts to re-let the Premises. If
Lessor lists the Premises with a real estate broker experienced in leasing commercial property in
the metropolitan area in which the Premises are located, such listing shall constitute the taking of
reasonable efforts to re-let the Premises.

(C)All costs incurred in re-letting or attempting to re-let the
Premises, including, without limitation, the cost of clean up, repair and alterations in preparation
for a new lessee, the cost of correcting any defaults or restoring any unauthorized alterations, the
amount of ary real estate commissions applicable to the unexpired term of the Lease and
advertising expenses.

(D) The difference between the rent and additions to rent reserved
under this Lease and the amount actually received by Lessor from re-letting, as such amounts
accrue.

(iv)  Lessor shall be entitled to its reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in
connection with the default, whether or not any litigation is commenced.

(v)  Lessor may sue periodically to recover damages as they accrue
throughout the term of .this Lease and no action for accrued damages shall be a bar to a later
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action for damages subsequently accruing. To avoid a multiplicity of actions, Léssor may obtain

a decree of specific performance requiring Lessee to pay the damages stated in subparagraph (iii)

above as they accrue, Alternatively, Lessor may bring an action to recover accrued damages plus

damages attributable to the remaining term of this Lease equal to the difference between the rent -
and additional rent due under this Lease and the reasonable rental value of the Premises for the
remainder of the term, discounted to the time of the judgment at a rate equal to the prime rate

charged by the US Bank or its successor, but not to exceed 6% per annum.

(vi) In the event that Lessee remains in possession following default
and Lessor does not elect to re-enter, Lessor may recover all back rent or other charges, together
with interest thereon at eight percent (8%) per annum from the date due, and shall have the right

“to cure any nonmonetary default and recover the cost of such cure from Lessee, plus interest from

the date of the expenditure at eight percent (8%) per annum. In addition, Lessor shall be entitled
to recover attorney’s fees reasonably incurred in connection with the default, whether or not
litigation is commenced. Lessor may sue to recover such amounts as they accrue, and no one
action for accrued damages shall bar a later action for damages subsequently accruing.

(vi)) In addition to all other remedies provided herein, if any rent or
other charge required hereunder is not received by Lessor within ten (10) days after it is due,
Lessor may impose a late charge equal to five percent (5%) of the amount of the delinquent rent
or other charge. The late charge may be assessed only once for each delinquent month’s rent.
Lessee shall pay any such late charge immediately upon being billed the charge by Lessor. The
imposition by Lessor and/or the payment by Lessee of any such late charge shall not waive or
cure Lessee’s default hereunder.

(viii) If Lessee shall fail to perform any of the covenants or obligations
to be performed by Lessee, Lessor, in addition to all other remedies provided herein, shall have
the option to cure such default after 20 days’ written notice to Lessee, unless Lessee’s
nonperformance possess an immediate danger to persons or property in which event Lessor is
only required to give 24 hours notice. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, it is
understood that Lessor’s right to cure defaults includes any failure by Lessee to perform repairs
and maintenance required of it under this Lease, to clean windows and other portions of the
storefront, and in general to keep the Premises and adjacent walks in a neat, clean and orderly
condition. Lessee shall reimburse all of Lessor’s expenditures incurred to correct the default upon
demand with interest at eight percent (8%) per annum from the date of expenditure by Lessor.
Lessor’s right to cure defaults is for the full protection of Lessor and the existence or exercise of
this right shall not release Lessee from the obligation to perform all of the covenants herein to be
performed by Lessee, or deprive Lessor of any other right, which Lessor may have by reason of
such default by Lessee.

(ix) The foregoing remedies shall not be exclusive but shall be in

'addmon to all other remedies and rights provided under applicable law, and no election to pursue

one right shall preclude resort to another consistent remedy.

(b) Any sums owing from Lessee to Lessor, including but not limited to
delinquent rent, shall bear interest at the rate of eight per cent (8%) per annum from the date due
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until paid.

(c) Inthe event of a default by Lessor, Lesseé’s sole remedy shall be a

separate claim for monetary damages. Lessee shall have no right of setoff, recoupment or rent

abatement, »
24.  SURRENDER AT EXPIRATION:

(a) Condition Of Premises. Upon expiration of the Lease term. or earlier
termmatmn on account of default, Lessee shall deliver all keys to Lessor and swrrender the
Premises broom clean and in the same conditioned as first leased, less ordinary wear and tear.
Improvements and alterations constructed by Lessee shall not be removed or restored to the
original condition unless the terms of Lessor’s consent provide otherwise or unless Lessor
requests Lessee to remove such improvements or alterations, in which event Léssee shall remove
the same and restore the Premises. Depreciation and wear from ordinary use for the purpose for
which the Premises were let need not be restored, but all repair for which Lessee is responsible
shall be completed to the latest practical date prior to such surrender.

®) Fixtures:

(1) All fixtures placed on the Premises by Lessee, excluding Lessee’s
trade fixtures, shall, at Lessor’s option, be the property of Lessor. Movable furniture, movable
decorations, curtains, drapes, blinds, furnishings and trade ﬁxtures shall remain the property of

" Lessee if placed on the Premises by Lessee.

‘ ~ (ii)  If Lessor so elects, Lessee shall remove any or all fixtures which
otherwise wouild remain the property of Lessor, and shall repair any physical damage resulting
from the removal. If Lessee fails to remove such fixtures, Lessor may do so and charge the cost
to Lessee with interest from the date of expenditure at eight percent (8%) per arrum. Lessee
shall remove all furnishings, furniture and trade fixtures which remain the property of Lessee. If
Lessee fails to do so, this shall be an abandonment of the property, and Lessor may retain the
property and all rights of Lessee with respect to it shall cease, or by notice in writing given to
Lessee within 20 days after removal was required, Lessor may elect to hold Lessee to its
obligation of removal. If Lessor elects to require Lessee to remove, Lessor may effect a removal
and place thé property in public or private storage for Lessee’s account. Lessee shall be liable to
Lessor for the cost of removal, transportation to storage, and storage, with interest on all such
expenses from the date of expenditure by Lessor at the rate of eight percent (8%) per annum.

(i)  The time for removal of any properry or fixtures which Lessee is
required to remove from the Premises upon termination shall be on or before the date the Lease
terminates because of expiration of the term or on the date Lessee’s right to possession

‘terminates because of a default.

(c) Holdover:

@ If Lessee does not vacate the Premises at the time required, Lessor

- shall have the option to treat Lessee as a holdover tenant on 2 month-to-month tenancy, subject to

all the provisions of this Lease, except that the provision for the term of this Lease shall not apply
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and the base rent shall be one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the base rent in efféct during the
last month of the Lease term. Failure of Lessee to remove fixtures, furniture, furnishings or trade
fixtures which Lessee is required to remove under this Lease shall constitute a failure to vacate,
and Lessee shall be deemed a holdover tenant subject to this subsection. '

(ify  If a month-to-month tenancy results from a holdover by Lessee
under this subparagraph (c), the tenancy shall be terminable at the end of any monthly rental
period on written notice from Lessor given not less than 30 days prior to the termination date
which shall be specified in the notice. Lessee waives any notice which would other wise be
provided by law with respect to a month- to- month tenancy.

25.  ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING: Lessee shall not assign this Lease or sublet
all or any part of the Premises without the written consent of Lessor. In the event that Lessor
shall consent to an assignment or sublease hereunder, Lessee shall pay Lessor’s reasonable fees
and costs, not to exceed $1,000 incurred in connection with the processing of documents
necessary to the giving of such consent. If Lessee is a corporation or a partnership, the transfer,
assignment or change in the ownership of any stock or partnership interest in the aggregate in
excess of 33% shall be deemed an assignment within the meaning of this paragraph. Lessee shall
remain primarily liable after any assignment or sublease for the payment of the rent and the
performance of all of Lessee’s obligations under this Lease, notwithstanding such-assignment or

- subletting by Lessee. If Lessee at any time desires to assign or sublet the Premises or any part

thereof, Lessee shall first notify Lessor in writing of its desire to do so and Lessee shall offer
Lessor the right to recapture, at the square foot rental for the space then applicable pursuant to
this Lease or the rental which Lessee proposed to obtain, whichever is lower, all or such part of
the Premises that Lessee desires to assign or sublet. Lessor shall have the option, to be exercised
within 15 days from the date of the giving of such notice, to require Leéssee to execute an
assignment to Lessor of this Lease or a sublease to Lessor of the Premises or such portion thereof
as Lessee desires to sublet, with the right of Lessor to sublet to others, or to anyone designated by
Lessor. If Lessor exercises such option and such assignment or sublease is at the rental specified
in this Lease, Lessee shall be released of all further liability hereunder, from and after the
effective date of such assignment or sublease, with respect to the Premises included therein. If
Lessor does not exercise such option within such time, Lessee may thereafter assign this Lease or
sublet the Premises designated in such notice, provided Lessor consents thereto, but at a tental

‘not less than that offered to Lessor in such notice and not later than 90 days after the giving of

such notice (unless a further notice is given).

- 26. SUBORDINATION: Lessee’s interest hereunder shall be subordinate to any
mortgage or trust deed placed on the Premises by Lessor, except that no assignment or transfer of
Lessor’s rights hereunder to a lending institution as collateral security in connection with such a
mortgage or trust deed and no foreclosure sale resulting from the default of Lessor in the
performance of Lessors obligations assumed in connection with such a mortgage or trust deed
shall affect Lessee’s right to possession, use and occupancy of the Premises so long as Lessee
shall not be in default under any of the terms and conditions of this Lease. If required by any
lender to which Lessor applies for financing, Lessee agrees to execute and acknowledge an
instrument in recordable form that expressly subordinates Lessee’s interest hereunder to the
interests of the lender.
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27.  ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE; Lessee shall from time to time, upon not less than 5
days’ prior notice, submit to Lessor, or to any person designated by Lessor, a statement in writing
certifying that this Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect (or if there have been
modifications, identifying the same by the date thereof and specifying the nature thereof), that to
the knowledge of Lessee no uncured default exists hereunder (or if such uncured default does
exist, specifying the same), the dates to which the rental and other sums and charges payable
hereunder have been paid, and that Lessee has no claims against Lessor and no defenses or
offsets to rental except for the continuing obligations under this Lease (or if Lessee has any such
claims, defenses or offsets, specifying the same). The estoppel certificate shall be in such form as
Lessor may request or such form as any lender, finarcial institution or prospective purchaser may
require of Lessor.

» 28. PERFORMANCE BY LESSOR: Lessor shall not be deemed in default for the
nonperformance or for any interruption or delay in performance of any of the terms, covenants
and conditions of this Lease if the same shall be due to any labor dispute, strike, lock-out; civil
commotion or like operation, invasion, rebellion, hostilities, military or usurped power, sabotage,
governmental regulations or controls, inability to obtain labor, services or materials, or through
act of God or causes beyond the reasonable control of Lessor.

29.. INSPECTION: Lessor, Lessor’s agents and representatives, shall have the right to
enter upon the Premises at reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting the same, for the
purpose of making repairs or improvements to the Premises or the building in which the
Premises are located or for any lawful purpose with at least one week notice for Inajor repairs or
1rnprovements that may affect Lessees clientele or business.

30. FOR SALE AND FOR RENT SIGNS: During the period of 120 days prior to the
date. for the termination of this Lease, Lessor may post on the Premises or the windows thereof
signs of moderate size notifying the public that the Premises are “for sale” or “for rent” or “for
lease”.

31 NON-WAIVER: The acceptance by Lessor of any rental or other benefits under
this Lease shall not constitute a waiver of any default. Any waiver by Lessor of the strict
performance of any of the provisions of this Lease shall not be deemed to be a waiver of
subsequent breaches of the same character or of a different character, occurring either before or
subsequent to such waiver, and shall not prejudice Lessors right to require strict performance of
the same provisions in the future or of any other provision of this Lease.

32, ATTORNEY S FEES: If suit, arbitration or action is instituted in connection with
any controversy arising out of this Lease, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover in

~ addition to costs such sums as the trial court may adjudge reasonable as attorney’s fees, and in

the event any appeal is taken from a judgment or decree i in such suit or action, the losing party
shall pay the prevailing party in the appeal its reasonable attorney’s fees and costs arising from
such litigation and appeal. '

33, NOTICES: Any notice required or permitted under this Lease shall be in writing
and shall be given when actually delivered or three days after being deposited in United States
mail as follows:
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To Lessor: WARZ Investments L.L.C. PO BOX 88 Hillsboro, Oregon 97123
To Lessee: Columbia Community Bank 314 E. Main Hillsboro, Oregon 97123

or to such other addresses as may be specified from time to time by either of the parties in the
manner above provided for the giving of notice

34.  RECORDING: This Lease shall not be recorded.

35. MISCELLANEOUS:

{a) Interpretation. In interpreting or construing this Lease, it is understood that
Lessee may be more than one person, that if the context so requires, the singular pronoun shall be
taken to mean and include the plural, and that generally all grammatical changes shall be made,
assumed and implied to make the provisions hereof apply equally to corporations, partnershxps
and individuals.

(b) = Headings. The marginal headings or titles to the paragraphs of this Lease
are for convenience and sha.ll have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any part of
this Lease.

(c) Modifications. It is understood that there are no oral agreements between
the parties hereto affecting this Lease and that this Lease supersedes and cancels any and all
previous negotiations, arrangements, brochures, advertising, agreements and understandings, if
any, between the parties hereto or their agents '_or by or through any broker with respect to this
Lease and the subject matter thereof. This instrument contains all of the agreements made
between the parties to this Lease and may not be modified or amended orally or in any other
manner than by an agreement in writing signed by all of the parties to the Lease or their
respective successors in interest.

(d) Tir‘ne of the Essence. Time is of the essence of each provision of this
Lease. ' ‘

&) Succession. Subject to the restrictions on assignment or transfer of
Lessee’s interest as set forth in this Lease, this Lease shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the parties, and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns.

63 Representations.  Lessor makes no representations or warranties thh‘

respect to the Premises except as may be expressly set forth in this Lease.

(g)  Severability. If any portion of this Lease or the application thereof to any
party or person or circumstance shall be invalid or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of
this Lease and the application of such provisions to either party or to other persons or
circumstances shall not be affected thereby and shall be enforced to the greatest extent permitted
by law.
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36. EXHIBITS AND ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS: Exhibits “A”, “B”, “C”, “D”,
“E”, “F” and “G” which are referred to in this Lease are attached hereto and by this reference
incorporated herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have executed this Lease in duplicate the
day and year first herein written, any corporate signature being by the authority of the Board of
Directors. '

LESSOR:

WARZ Investments L.L.C.

By: Dol Peoe—
Name: Ted Rose

Tts:
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Order No. 794352

EXHIBIT A"

PARCEL 1.

The North 99.9 feet of Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4, REIDT'S SUBDIVISION OF LOTS.1 AND 2, and Part of Lots 7 and
8, Block 18, HILLSBORO, in the Clty of Hilisboro, County of Washington and State of Oregon.

PARCEL II:

That portion of Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4, REIDT'S SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 1 AND 2, and part of Lots 7 and 8, Biock
18, HILLSBOHO in the Clty of Hmsboro County of Washington and State of Oregon, described as follows:

Beginning at a point 09.9 fest South of the Northwest corner of Lot 1; thence East parallel to the South ling
of Main Street 198 feet to a point on the East line of Lot 4; thence South 49.1 feet to the Northeast corner
of that cantain tract of land conveyed to Carl O. Peterson by Deed recorded October 29, 1529 in Book 142,
page 518; thence West along the North line of said Peterson Tract, 198 feet to the Easterly line of 3rd
Avenue; thence North to the place of beginning.

TOGETHER WITH a perpetual easement over, across and upon the following described tract;

Beginning at a point on the Sotith line of Main Street in the City of Hillsboro, Oregon, at the Northeast corner
of Lot 4, in REIDT'S ADDITION TO THE CITY OF HILLSBORO, as shown by the duly recorded map and plat
thereof; which polint Is further described as being 198 feet East of the Northwest comer of Block 19, and
running thence South to the Northeast corner of the above described property; thence West 10 feet; thence
North to the South line of Main Street; thence East 10 feet to the place of beginning.
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EXHIBIT D

LESSOR'S WORK

Lessee responsible for any tenant improvements.
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EXHIBIT E

OPTION TO RENEW: Lessee shall have the option to renew this Lease for one additional 5 year
term if the Lease is not then in default as follows:

1. . The renewal term shall commence March [, 2008.

2. The option may be exercised by written notice to Lessor given not less than 180
days prior to the last day of the term of the Lease. The giving of such notice shall be sufficient to

make the Lease binding for the renewal term without further act of the parties, who shall then be

bound to take the steps required in connection with the determination of rent as specified below.

3. The terms and conditions of the Lease for the renewal term shall be identical with
the previous term except for the Lease term and the base rent. The Lease term shall be the
renewal term specified above. The base rent shall be determined as follows:

The base rent for the first year of the renewal term shall be the greater of (a) the monthly
base rent for the final month of the original Lease term plus three per cent (3%) or (b) the fair
rental value of the Premises at the time of the commencement of the renewal term. If the parties
do not agree upon the amount of the base rent within 60 days after notice of election to renew,
the fair renta] value of the Premises shall be determined by a commercial real estate broker or
agent, experienced in leasing similar properties in the Portland area, and mutually agreed upon by
the parties (the “Arbitrator”). The parties shall equally share the costs of the Arbitrator. The
decision of the Arbitrator as to fair rental value shall be binding upon the parties. Lessor shall
notify Lessee, within 15 days of receipt of the Arbitrator’s decision whether the base rent for the
first year of the option period will be the monthly base rent for the final month of the original

" Lease term plus 3% or the fair rental value determined by the Arbitrator. The base rent shall

increase 3% annually during the renewal term. The rent adjustment of 3% will be made each
anniversary of the commencement of the renewal term.
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EXHIBIT F

RENT SCHEDULE

MONTHLY RENT DURING THE TERM OF THIS LEASE SHALL BE:

MARCH 1, 2004 thru APRIL 30, 2005

$3,000.00 + CAM charges, taxes ( or certificate of exemption ), water /sewer and insurance
APRIL 1, 2005 thru MARCH 31, 2008

$3,080.00 + CAM charges, taxes ( or certificate of exemption ), water/sewer and insurance
APRIL 1, 2008 thru MARCH 31, 2007 |

$3,183.00 + CAM charges, taxes ( or certificate of exemption ), water/sewer and insurance
APRIL 1, 2007 thru MARCH 31, 2008

$3,278.00 + CAM charges, taxes ( or certificate of exemption ), water/sewer and insurance

Current CAM charges $224.25 per month

Current insurance charges $57.50 per month

Current water/sewer charges $479.17 per month
Current taxes $297.08 per month

TOTAL CURRENT CHARGES $1,058.00 PER MONTH
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EXHIBIT A

Lease ‘
Between
Paul W. and Linda L. Moody
As Landlord,

And

Columbia Community Bank

As Tenant,

Dated as of August 5, 2002,

Exhibit 6.11
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LEASE

LEASE, made as of the 5th day of August, 2002 by Paul W. Moody & Linda L.
Moody, (Landlord) and Columbia Corpmunity Bank, (Tenant).

WITNESSETH:

In consideration of the representations, covenants and agreeiments herein
contained, the parties covenant and agree as follows:

1. PREMISES
1.01  Landlord’s Authority.

Landlord represents and warrants that it is the sole owner of the land deseribed on
Exhibit A attached hereto, together with all buildings, improvements, facilitics and
fixtures located on the land, and any easements, rights of access and other property rights
allowing Tenant unobstructed use and occupancy of the foregoing (the “Premises”).
Landlord represents and warrants that it has full right and anthority to lease the Premises
to Tenant and to otherwise enter into this Lease on the terms and conditions set forth
berein, and that the provisions of this Lease do not conflict with or violate the provisions
of existing agreements between the Landlord and third parties.

1.02  Lease of Premises.

Landlord does hereby lease the Premises to Tenant, and Tenant does hereby lease
the Premises from Landlord, The Premiscs are leased to Tenant together with all singular
appurtenances, rights and privileges in or otherwise pertaining thereto,

1.03  Landiord’s Access.

After reasonable notice to Tenant, Landlord and Landlord’s agents shall have the
right to enter the Premises at reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting the same,
showing the Premises to prospective purchasers, lenders, or lessees, and making such
alterations, repairs, improvements or additions to the Premises as Landlord may deem
nccessary or desirable. In the event of any emergency that is a threat of damage or injury
to life or property, Landlord may enter the Premises without notice.

2. TERM
2.01 Lease Commencement.

The “Cotamencement Date” shall be August 5%, 2002,
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2.02  Initial Term,

The initial tem of this Lease (the “Initial Term”™) shall be five years, commencing
on the Cornmencement Date. (“Term” shall refer to the [nitial Term and any extension
thereof)

2.03  Extension Term.

Tenant may, by written notice to Landlord not less than 60 days’ prior to the end
of the Initial Term, or first extension term if previously extended, extend the Term of this
Lease for up to two additional five year extension terms.

3. RENT
‘3. ¢! Rent

Base Rent (“Base Rent™) under this Lease shall be $10,351.75 per month, due and
payable on the 5™ day of each month. (Refer to Addendum A)

3.02 Late Rent.

Base Rent payments are due on the 5™ day of each month and shall be considered
late if received after the 20™ day of the month. In the event that Tenant fails to make any
rent payments on or before the 207 of the month, Tenant shall pay a late charge in the
amount of 5% of the rent amount due. Except as may otherwise be provided in this
Lease, Basc Rent payments are due without notice of démand and without setoff or
deduction.

" 3.03 Lease Renewal Rate.

The renewal option for the 5 year terms (ie beginning the 6 and 11% year of the
original lease) will be based upon the original Base Rent plus any increase in the

Portland, C.P.L index, beyond the rate of the 1% day of the preceding lcase term.

4. TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS

4.01 Payment of Taxes by T'enant,

All real estate, property taxes or taxes related to property ownership, to be paid by
Tenant. Tenant shall pay all personal propetty taxes, transaction, privilege, excise or
sales taxes, special improvement and other assessments (ordinary and extraordinary), and
all other taxes, duties, charges, fees and payments imposed by any govermmental or
public authority which shall be imposed, assessed or levied upon, or arising in connection
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with the ownership, use, occupancy, possession or rental (excluding general income
taxes) of the Premises or any part thereof during the Term (all of which ate herein called
*“Taxes”). Tenant shall deliver to Landlord evidence of timely payment of Taxes. Taxes
for the tax year in which the term shall commence or expire shall be apportioned
according to the numbers of days during which each part shall be in possession during
such tax year. All taxes and fees pertaining to Tenant’s operation at the Premises to be
paid by tenant. :

5. SERVICES AND UTILITIES
5.01  Contractual Arrangements. |

Tenant shall be responsible for making arrangements for delivery to the Premises
of any gas, electrical power, water, sewer, telephone and other utility services and any
cleaning, trash and snow removal and maintenance services as Tenant deems necessary
or desirable for its operation during the Term. Landlord represents that the foregoing
services and utilities are installed and readily available at the Premises without any
material installation costs to Tenant,

5.02  Payment of Charges.

Tenant shall promptly pay all charges for utility and other services contracted by
Tenant to be delivered to or used upon the Premises during the Term and shall provide
such security depasits, bonds or assurances as may be necessary to procure such services.
5.03  Transition.

Landlotd and Tenant shall each reasonably assist the other in transition of

payments for and control of services and utilities at thc commencement and termination
of this Lease.

6. MAINTENANCE AND REPATR

6.0] Present Condition,

Tenant accepts the Premises as is in their present condition. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Landlord will, prior to the commencement of the term, put the building
systems, including, without limitation, plumbing and electrical lines and equipment,
heating, ventilation and air conditioning systems, boilers and elevators, if any, in good
repair and condition, and Landlord covenants and agrees that at the Commencement Date
these systems will be in good mechanica) and operating condition. Landlord represents
and warrants that it has no knowledge of any conditions which have existed or presently
exist which could materially adversely affect Tenant’s business or contemplated use of
Premises.
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6.02 Maintenance QObligations.

Tenant, at its own cost and expense, shall keep and maintain the Premises in their
present condition, subject to reasonable wear and tear. Tenant shall promptly make or
cause to be made all non-structural repairs veeded to meet such obligation. Landlord
shall be obligated to raake all structural and non-routine mechanical repairs and
replacements to the Premises, which shall include keeping the roof and Premises free of
leaks, repairs to the plumibing and drainage systems, electrical systems, and the exterior
and interior structural elements of the building (including, without limitation, the roof,
exterior and bearing walls of the building, support
bearus, foundations, colunns and lateral supports, normal wear and tear of the parking
lot, not to include parking lot signage or striping).

7. USE: COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

7.0]  Permitted Uses.

Tenant may use and occupy the Premises for gencral office and financial services.

8. ALTERATIONS
8.0]  General,

Tenant may make non-structural alterations, improvements and additions
(“Alterations™) on the Premises of up to $10,000.00 per project without obtaining
Landlord’s prior consent or approval, Tenant shall have the right to make other
Alterations to the Premises, provided, however, Tenant shall obtain Landlord’s prior
consent or approval, which consent or approval shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or denied, before making any other Alterations. All Alterations made by
Tenant shall be made at Tenant’s sole cost and expense (including all expenses for
obtaining any required govemmental permits and approvals).

8.02  Cooperation.
Landlord will cooperate with Tenant’s cfforts to obtain any governmental permits
or approvals required therefor, Tenant may perform all Alterations with contractors and

subcontractors of Tenant's own choosing, Landlord shall not be entitled to impose upon
Tenant any charges or fees of any kind in connection with any Alterations.
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Tenant, at its expense and subject to its obtaining any required govemmental
permits and approvals, may placc, maintain, repair and replace signage on Premises.
Landlord shall cooperate with Tenant’s efforts to obtain any permit or approval required
or desirable in connection with the installation of any sign.

10. TENANT’S PROPERTY

For purposes of this Lease, the Term “Tenant's Property” shall mean al] office
furniture and equipment, movable partitions, communications equipment and other
articles of movable personal property owned or leased by Tenant and located in the
Premises. All Tenant’s Property
shall be and remain the property of the Tenant throughout the Term of this Lease and
may be removed by Tenant at any time during the Term. Upon the expiration of this
Lease (or within 30 days after the sooner termination hereof), Tenant shall remove all
Tenant’s Property from the Premises without leaving any noticeable damage to the
Premises. In the event that Tenant shall leave noticeable damage as a result of Tenant’s
removal of Tcnant’s Property, Landlord shall give Tensnt 15 days written notice to
remove or repair such damage, after which time, Landlord may repair such damage and
Landlord shall be reimbursed for all costs and expenses of repairing such damage at
Landlord’s reasonable and actual cost.

11 QUIET ENJOYMENT

Landlord covenants and agrees that Tenant shall and may, at all times during the
Term, peaceably and quietly have, hold, occupy and enjoy the Premises.

12, LIENS
12.01 Tenant's Liens,

Tenant covenants and agrees that Tenant shall not allow any materialman’s or
mechanic’s liens or any other liens, deeds of trust, mortgages, or other encumbrances to
be placed on the whole or any portion of the Premises during the term of this Lease by
any action or failure to act of Tenant.

13. INSURANCE
13.01 Building Insurance.
(2) Tenant, throughout the Term at Tenant’s expensc, shall keep the buildings

and improvements included in the Premises insured for the “full replacement value”
thercof against loss or damage by perils customarily included under standard “all-risk™
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policies. Landlord’s name shall appear on all such policies as an “additional insured” and
“loss payee”, On written request by Landlord, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord
certificates of insurance, showing that the insurance required to be maintained pursuant to
the foregoing provisions of this Section 13.01 (a) is in force and will not be modified or
cancelled without thirty days’ prior notice being furnished to Landlord. Thereafter,
certificates showing renewal of, or substitution for, policies which expire or are
terminated shall be furnished no less than thirty days® prior to the expiration or
termination of each such policy. Each policy of insurance maintained by Tenant pursuant
to the foregoing provisions of this Section 13.01 (2) shall provide that the same will not
be cancelled without at least thirty days’ prior written notice to Landlord,

(b)  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the foregoing
provision of this Section 13.01, Tenant shall have the right to cause the insurance to be
maintained by Tenant pursuant to this Section 13.01 to be effected either by blanket or
umbrella policies, with deductibles not to exceed $250,000.00

13.02 Tenant’s Liability Insurance,

(a)  Tenant, throughout the Term, shall maintain commercial general liability
insurance, including a contractual liability endorsement, and personal injury liability
coverage, in respect of the Premises and conduct or operation of business therein, with
Landlord as an additional insured, with limits of not less than $1,000,000.00 combined
single limit for bodily injury and property damage liability in any one occurrence.

Tenant shall not be entitled to self-insure any portion of such liabiljty coverage other than

“a deductible not to exceed $250,000.00.

()  Each policy of insurance maintajned by Tenant pursuant to the foregoing
provisions of this Section 13.02 shall provide that the same will not be cancelled without
at least 30 days’ prior written notice to Landlord (as an additional insured thereunder).
On written request by Landlord, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord certificates of
insurance, showing that the insurance required to be maintained pursuant to the foregoing
provisions of this Section 13.02 is in force and will not be modified or cancelled without
30 days’ prior notice being furnished to Landlord. Thereafter, certificates showing
renewal of, or substitution for, policics which expire or are terminated shall be furnished
not less than 30 days’ prior to the expiration or termination of each such policy.

(¢)  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the foregoing
provisions of this Section 13.02, Tenaut shall have the right to cause the insurance
required by this Section 13.02 to be maintained through blanket or umbrella policies.

13.03 Walver of Subrogation.
Neither Landlord or Tenant, nor their respective officers, directors, employees,
agents or invitees, nor Tenant’s permitted subtenants, shall be liable to the other party or

to any insurance company (by way of subrogation or otherwise) insuring the other party
for any loss or damage to any building, structure or other tangible property, when such

9
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loss is caused by any of the perils which are or could be insured against under a standard
policy of full replacement cost insurance for fire, theft and all risk coverags, or loss under
workers’ compensation laws and benefits, even though such loss or damage might have
been occasioned by the negligence of such party, its agents or employees (this clause
shall not apply, however, to any damage cansed by intentionally wrongful actions or
omissions),

If by reason of foregoing waiver, however, either party shall be unable to obtain
any such insurance, such waiver shall be deemed not to have been made by such party
and, provided, further, that if cither party shall be unable to obtain any such insurance
without the payment of an additional premium therefore, then, unless the party claiming
the benefit of such a waiver shall agree to pay such party for the cost of such additional
premiwm within thirty (30) days after notice setting forth such requirement and the
amount of the additional premium, such waiver

shall be of no force and effect between such party and such claiming patty. Each party
shall use reasonable efforts to obtain such insurance from a company that does not charge
an additional premium or, if that is not possible, one that charges the lowest additional
premimm. Each party shall give the other party notice at any time when it is unable to
obtain insurance with such a waiver of subrogation without the payment of an additional
premium and the foregoing waiver shall be effective until thirty (30) days after notice is
given. Each party represents that its current insurance policies allow such waiver.

Neither Landlord nor Tenant shall obtain or accept any insurance policy which,
would be invalidated by or which would conflict with this paragraph.

14. INDEMNIFICATION

Except as may otherwise be provide in this Lease, Tenant shall indenmify and
hold harmless Landlord, its partners, directors, officers, agents and employees from and
against any and all third-party claims arising from or in connection with: (i) the conduet
or management of the Premises or of any business therein, or any work or thing
whatsoever done, or any condition created in or about the Premises during the Term of
this Lease; (ii) any act, omission or negligence of Tenant or any of its subtenants or
licensees or its or their partners, directors, officers, agents, employees, invitees or
contractors; (iif) any accident, injury or damage whatever occurring in, at or upon the
Premises.

In connection with this indemnification, Tenant shall have the right to assume the
defense with counsel, reasonably acceptable to Landlord, chiosen by the Tenant or by

Tenant’s insurance company. Tenant shall not be responsible for the fees of any separate
counsel employed by the Landlord.

10
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15. CO EMNATION
15,01 Notice.

Landlord and Tenant shall each notify the other if it becomes aware that there will
or might occur a taking (cach, a “Taking") of any portion of the Premiscs by
condemnation proceedings or by exercisc of any right of eminent domain,

15.02 Termination of Lease.

In the event of the Taking of the entire Premises, this Lease shall terminate as of
the date of such Taking. If there occurs a Taking of a portion of the Premises such that
the rerpainder of the Premises shall not, in Tenant’s reasonable opinion, be adequate and
suitable fore the conduct of Tenant’s busmess, then Tenant may, at its option, terminate
this Lease.

15.03 Continuation of Lease.

In any case that there occurs a Taking of a portion of the Building or Premises and
this Lease is not terminated pursuant to Section 15.02 hereof, then this Lease shall remain
in full force and effect, except that appropriate adjustments shall be made to, and in
respect of, the Premises and Rent, and Landlord shall proceed with due diligence to

* perform any work necessary to restore the remaining portions of the Premises to the

condition that they were in immediately pnor to the Taking, or as near thereto as
possible.

15.04 Condemnation Award.

Any award resulting from any Taking of the Premises for Tenant's personal
property, fixtures, relocation costs or loss of goodwill shall be the property of the Tenant.
All of any award resulting from any such Taking not specifically reserved to Tenant shall
be the property of the Landlord.

16. UNTENANTABILITY

Notwithstanding any othcr provision of this Lease, if the Premises (or any portion
thereof) shall be rendered untenantable as a result of any breach of, or default under, this
Lease by Landlord, then:

(i) in any case that such untenantability resulting from a cause
described above in this Article 16 shall continue for a period of five
consecutive days afier Tenant notifies Landlord in writing thereof, all Rent
shall abate for the period that the Pretnises remain untenantable (or, in the

11
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event that only a portion of the Premises are rendered untenaatable, Rent
shall abate for such period with respect to the portion of the Premises that
is rendered untenantable or unfit); and

(if)  in any case that any such untenantability resulting from a cause
described above in this Article 16 shall continue for a period of 30
consecutive days after Tenant notifies Landlord in writing thereof, Tenant
shall have the right to terminate this Lease at any time after the expiration
of such 30 day period by serving written notice to Landlord thereof, of
Tenant, at its election, shall have the right to cure same and deduct the cost
from the Base Rent.

17. NOTICES

All notices required hereunder shall be in writing and shall be effective when
delivered to the address sct forth below (or to such other addresses as either party may
subsequently designate).

17.0] Tenant.

Columbia Community Bank
P.0O. Box 725
Hillsboro, OR 97123

17.02 Landlord.

Paul W. Moody

9811 NE 114® Circle
Vancouver, WA 98662
Phone: (360) 855-1490
Fax: (360) 855-7629

Email: pwmbtidge@attbi.com

18. DEFAULT BY TENANT

18.01 Events of Defaull,

1t shall constitute an Event of Default {f Tenant shall fail to perform or comply
with any term of this Lease and such failure shall continue for a period of 30 days (15
days for a failure to pay rent) after Tcnant’s receipt of written notice thereof from

12
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Landlord specifying such failure and requiring it to be remedied; provided however, that
if any such failure other than the failute to pay Rent, cannot with due diligence be
remedied by Tenant within a period of 30 days, if Tenant commences to remedy such
failure within such 30 days and thereafter prosecutes the remedying of such failure with
reasonable diligence, the period of time after the receipt of such notice by Tenant within
which such failure may be remedied shall be extended as long as Tenant prosecutes the
remedying of such failure with reasonable diligence.

18.02 Termination Remedies.

Following the ocourrence of any Event of Default, Landlord may terminate this
Lease and have immediate possession of the Premises, in addition to any other remedies
allowed by law.

19. SURRENDER: HOLDOVER

At the end of the Term or upon termination, Tenant agrees to quit and surrender
possession of the Premises to Landlord vacant and broom clean. If Tenant remains in
possession of the Premises after the end of the Term, then Tenant shall be deemed to be a
tenant from month to month only, under all of the same terms and conditions of this
Lease then in effect, except that

Base Rent during any holdover period shall be 100% of Base Rent in effect at the end of
the Term.

20. BROKERAGE
Landlord and Tenant each represent and warrants to the other that it had no

conversations ot negotiations with any broker or finder concenying the consummation of
this Lease. Landlord and Tenant each hereby indemnifies and hold harmless the other

* from and against any claims for brokerage commissions or finder’s fees (together all

related expenses, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting from
or arising out of any conversations or negotiations had by it with any broker or finder ix
coonection with this Lease.

21. ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

21.01 Definitions.

“Environment’ means soil, surface waters, groundwater, land, stream sediments,
surface or subsurface sirata and ambient air.

"Environmental Condition" mcans any condition with respect to the Environment
on. or off the Property, whether or not yet discovered, which could or does result in any
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Environmental Damages, including any condition resulting from the operation of any
business that is or was conducted by Landlord (or Landlord’s lessees, sublessees or
occupants other than Tenant under this Lease) on the Property, or that of any other
property owner or operator in the vicinity of the Property or any activity or eperation
formerly conducted by any person or entity on ot off the Property.

“Environmental Laws " means all statutes, regulations and ordinances adopted
pursuant thereto (“Statutes”) relating to the protection of huwman health or the
Environment, including:

21.02 Indemnities.

Landlord shall indemnify Tenant against Environmental Damages arising from an
event occurring or condition existing on or before the date hereof or cansed by Landlord.
Tenant shall indemnify Landlord against Environmental Damages caused by Tenant or
arising out of or related to the presence, use, handling, discharge, release or disposal of
Hazardous Substances on, in to or from the Premises introduced by Tenant into the
Premises.

22, ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

Except as set forth herein, Tenant shall be able to assign or sublet this Lease with
the Landlord’s prior written consent, which consent, however, shall not be unreasonably
withbeld nor dclayed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant may, without the
Landlord’s consent assign or sublet this Lease to any entity or affiliate more than 50%
owned or controlled by Tenant, or to any entity which owns or control more than a 50%
interest in Tenant.

23. MISCELLANEOUS

23.01 Governing Law.

This Lease shall be governed by and constued in accordance with the Jaws of the
State of Oregon.

23.02 Consents & Approvals.
If, pursuant to any provision of this Lease, the consent or approval of either party
is required to be obtained by the other party, thern, unless otherwise provided herein, the

party whose consent or approval is required shall not unreasonably withhold, condition or
delay such consent or approval.

23.03 Rights & Remedies.
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All rights and remedies of either party expressly set forth herein are intended to be
cumulative and not in limitation of any other right or remedy set forth herein or otherwise
available to such party at law or in equity. Notwithstanding the foregoing, or any other
provisions hereof to the contrary, in no event shall either party be liable to the other for
consequential or punitive damages.

23.04 No Waiver.

The failure of either party hereto to seek redress for a breach of, or to insist upon
the strict performance of any covenant or condition of this Lease, shall not prevent a
subscquent act which would have originally constituted a breach. from having all the
force and effect of an original breach. The receipt by Landlord of rent with knowledge of
the breach of any covenant of this lease shall not be deemed a waiver of such breach and
no provision of this Leass shall be deemed to have been waived by Landlord wiless such
waiver be in writing signed by Landlord. The payment by Tenant of rent with knowledge
of the breach of any covenant of this Lease shall not be deemed a waiver of such breach
and no provision of this Lease shall be deemed to have been waived by Tenant unless
such waiver be in writing signed by Tenant.

23.05 Successors & Assigns.

Each and all of the terms and agrecments herein contained shall be binding upon
and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs, personal and legal
representatives, successors and assigns. Any sale or transfer of the Premises by Landlord
during the term of the lease shall be made by an instrument that expressly refers to this
lease as burdening the Premises. Following a sale or transfer of the Premises, the selling
or transferring Landlord shall be released from all obligations under this lease accruing
after such sale or transfer, other than those under Section 21.02, so long as the buyer or
transferee expressly assumes all of Landlord’s obligatiops under this Lease, including
those under Section 21.02, in writing,

23.06 Recording,

The Tenant may record a memorandum of this Lease. Landlord will cooperate
with Tenant in the execution and delivery of such memorandum to effectuate the
foregoing in accordance with the requirements, customs and practices of the State of
Oregon,

23.07 Attorney’s Fees.

In the event of any litigation over the terms or performance of this lease, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of its reasonable attorneys’ fee and costs.

23.08 Entire Agreement: Modifications.
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This instrument contains the entire agreement between the parties, supersedes any
prior lease between the partics covering the Premises and may not be modified orally or
in any manner other than by an agreement in writing signed by all the parties hereto or
their respective successors in interest.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Lease ag of the

day and year first above written.
; % iORD

Paul W. Moody

i /’%

ick A. Roby - Prcmdch

State of D [QE_Q;QQ )

) ss.
CmmwofM#%ﬁmmwma > it
' The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 2 -~
day of
Lusr 2002 by Poue w.omopey & Aick 1 RogY
Witness my hand and ofﬁmal seal.
(SEAL) »
~ ) ‘
(-/73/5/3 A SIS
[4 /4
t i}
UNFDFI‘;U'BLI% EOQEGSON _ Notary Public ) . )
uv%mmswvl EXPFF!%JE!?AZ; 2008 Address: 3/ Y & ALY AN~
I/ lpo) L.
My commission expires; / -'022,@9
16
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EXHIBIT A

Amberglen Business Center No. 2, Lot 8, Tax Map and Lot IN225CD-00400.

Commonly referred to as 19415 N.W. Amberwood Drive, Beaverton, Oregon 97000.

ADDENDUM A
Reference 3.01
Initial rent payment for first 12 montbs of leasc will be $6,685.00 plus triple net

expense beginning September 1, 2002. After 12 month Jease will return to otiginal
agreed Base Rent and terms (ic $10,351.75 per month).

ADDENDUM ACCEPTANCE:

-

Paul W, Moody : Rick A. Roby — Presid
' Columbia Communj
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- Exhibit 6.12 S ——

FORM No. 812 = LEASE « BUZINESS PROPERTY. o COFYRIQKT 1802 STEVENE:NEES AN PUBLIBHING CO. FORTLAND. OR 07204

NABE N
THISINDENTURE OF LEASE; entered into this . .EifLeenth .. dayof ..F.ahr.uar.y.g ............. , 2003

between....2ene D & Sue A Horton N

hereinattor called the Jossor, a1 v SOLUNREA. LOBRUR r:y e o

vens heté'ina! ter caljed the lessee,

WITNESSETH: In consideration of the covenants herein, the lessor hersby leases unto the lessee those

certain premises, as is, situated jn the City of ~Rorest. Grove...., County of JHashington....... and Stats
of ..... QE.?.&..O.P .................... , hereinafter called the premises, descrxbed as follows:

Commercial building at 2811 19th Avenue

Sulte Al it

To Have and to Hold the remxsea commencing with the ... 1.8% ... day of April 2002

and ending at midnight on the . 3lst ..day of Mareh - 2005 for a rental of 558 6—80 OO
for the whols tecxn, which lessee agrees o pay, at. %.B..l.l....l.Q.th AVAnUE., SHLEe . LB i rraramaeies ,
City of Forest Grove , State of _,Qx,agon .., at the following times and in the following amounts, to-wit:

$1630.00 per month on the lst of each month
April 1, zooz, morn commencing

In consideration of the leasing of the premises and of the rmutual agreements herein contained, the perifes
agree as follows:

Page 247




O

LEasRES S (1) The lesses actspts thiz letting and agress io pay fo the drdar of the lessor the monthiy rantais above stated for tha
Q!?DLWE full tarm of thiy Jeass, in advanes, af the timea and i the manmer atorsseid,
E’SE OXFSES (2a) The leasse shall use the premises daring tho term of thiy lonse for the tonduct of the following business:

et Banking and or any other legitimate commercial entelDIiSSsmmm

and Zar no other purpose whstsnever without legzor's writton conzeit.

(2b) The lsssss will not make any unlawiul, irnproper or offsngive use of the pramises; the lessee will not sutfor any sirip or waste
thereot; the lessee will not permit any objectionable noise or odor to eseape or fo be emitted fromt the premisas or do anything. or parmit
anything to be done upon or sbou? the premises in eny way tending to erodte & nwisanca; ihe Jevses will net sell or permiit to be sold any
product, substance or strvice upon or about the premises, sxcapiing such as loszoe may ba lizsnscd by law to sell and as may be' borein
sxpressly psrmitisd, .

(2c) The lessee will not silow the pramisss at any tirae to frll info =uch a efate of rapair or disorder ss fo {ncresse the fire hngard
thoreon; the lossee W/l not install any powor machinery o4 {ho preznises except under the supervigion and with weitfen consent of the lesgor;
the losave will not stets gasolina or other highly combugtible materiala on the premises at any time; the lesses will not use ths premisms in
such a way oc for such a purposa that the fire insurance rate on the improvements on the premises iy thersby ineregsod or that would
prevent the lessor frem taking advantage of any rulings of any sgency of the state jt which the precylses sre witwated, or which would
allow the leasor to obtain réduced premium ratos for long terme £ire insurancs policiss. '

(3d) The Jerses shall comply at Jesgen's own expense with all laws and regulations of any municips!, county, state, fedarsi or other’
public authosity respecting the usa of the premizes. These inciude, without limitaifon, all laws, regulationn and ordinamcas partaining to
alr and water quality, Hazardoua Matorials as herein detfined, waste disposal, airf eminsiong, end other envirootnonta! matiers. As nssd

" harain, Hazardous Muterin] means any hazardous or foxic subsiance, rmaterial, or waite, imsluding bué not Jimited to thoss subsiances,

matertels, and waste listed in tha U.S. Dapartment of Transporiation Hasardous Malerialy Table or by the U.5. Envitonmental Protection
Agency as hasardous substances and emendmients thersto, petroleura products, or such cther substancee, materials, errd wasta that are or
become ragulated under any applicable local, siate, or lederal law. . .

‘ {2e) The lesses shall ragulsrly ocoupy and uge the premines for the conduct of Jerseo's business, and shall not abendon or vacate the
premises for mors than ten days without writtert approvel of lessor.

(2t) Leasaa shell not cause or pocmit any Hasscdeus Maotarial to be brought upen, kept or used in or aboui the promises by
lesses, itg agents, employees, confracivrs, or invitess without the peior weitten consent of legeor, which consent will not be unressonabl
withheld so long ez lesses demonsérates fo lessor's ressonsble gatisiaction that such Haserdoun Matarial is neceszary or useful to lossee's
busineaz and will be used, kept, and séored in & rnarstier that will comply at all Hizmas with-all lawe ragulating any such Hazacrdous Materinl

. so brought upon or ussd or kept on or about the promiscs

VRILICIES - (3) The Josses shrll pay for all Beat, light, water, power, and. othar sarvices or utilities used in the premises during the

termof thisjease.  Prorated at 39% of utilityubills from N.W Natural & City of F.G.

BEPAIRS AND (48} Tho Inssor shall not be requirad fo wmake sty repairs, alterstions, additions or improvemsnip to or upon ths pram.
TMPBOVEMENYS  joog” during tho torm of this lease, sxcept only those hereinafter specitieally- provided fors the leasse hereby agrees to
mainfsin and keap the premisss, inclading all interior and exterior walls end doors, heating, ventilating and cooling systents, interior wiring,
plurnbing and drain pipes to sewers ot swptio tank, in gobd order ond repair during the entire ter of this leaze, st Jesses's own cost and
exponse, and (o repléce all gless which may be brokesn or damaged during the torm hereo! in the windows and doars of the premdses with
dlass of as good or hottor quality as that now Jn use; 1t Ja further agrend that the lossce will maka no alterations, additions or iprovetnents
to or upon tho promites withoud the written consant of the lessor first being ebtnined,

{4b) The lessar agross fo make &ll necessary giructural repairs to the building, including exterior walls, foundation, renf, gutters and
Jownsmouts, and the abutting sidewalka. The lesaor reserves and at eny and all times ohall have tha right to alter, repair or impreve the
building of which the premisen aro & part, or to add thereto, and for that purposa at any tizto may srect scaffolding and all other nacessary
slrqcturas sbaut and upon the premises and lesvor end Jasgrors's ropresonintives, contrectors and workers tor that puirpose may snber in or
sboud the pramigag with such materialy ae lossor may desm nacsssary therofor, and Jessee waived any claim o damages, inoluding loss of
Brsginess reauléing therefrom.

LESsOR'S (5) I¢ chall be lawtul for the leasos, ths lessad's adentts ad representatives, at any reasonabls time to entar into or apon
%‘;&9 the promisss for the purpose of examining into tho condition therest, or for any other lawful purpose.

nxo?'r opr (6) The leasae will not assign, transfer; pledge, hypothecate, surrander or disposa of thip laare, or any intarest hersin,
ABOIGHMENT sublet, or permuit any ofhar perdont or persons whomsoever 0 oceupy the premiyeg witheut the wiitten consent of the

lessor beingd Hrst oblained in writing; this lonse iz personal to lassoo; lessss's Interests, in whole or in part, cannet bs
aold, assignnd, irnnaterred, seized or taken by operatian at law, or under or by virtus of any exscution or legal provess, attachinent or pro.
coadings instituted against the lassse, or under or by viriue of any bankruptcy or insolvency procsadings had in regard to the lessss, or in
any othar manner, excopt a5 above mentioned,

LIENS - (7) The lossee will niot permit any lien of any kind, type or description to be placed or impossd upen the Iméi"ovemmts
it which the premises are situsted, or any part tharagt, or the land on which they siand.

%CE E]?gowv' (8) Ii the premisss are located at sireat loval, then at all timea lnsseo shall keep the sidewaiks in front of the premises
EBR. irce and clear of ice, sniow, rubbish, debrie and obstruction; and if tha Josses occupies the entirs building, the leszes will

. not permit rubbish, debrds, {sa or snow fo actumulate sn the roof of tho bullding so as ty stop up or obstruet gutters ar
downspeuts or cause damage to the roof, and will save harmlusy and profect the lessor mgainst atty injury whether to lessor or fo lessor'a
property or fo any other persen ¢r property caused By lossee's faifure in that redard. ' [

8%%%‘2”’3 © (8) Tho Jeasma will ot vverlosd the Hoord of the premires In ruch & way ‘as ko eaurd any undus. o¢ seriou siress or
RS strain upon the building in which the pramiess ave lovried, or any part thorsof, and the lezxbr shall have the rdght, as
Lo ar1y Hino, to call upen ony competant saglossr o architéct whom the Jessor may ohooss, to decide whather or not the
tlocrs of the prewiises, or any purt thereol, ars being overionded so ag 1o csuse any undile or sofious aéress or girain on the bullding, or any
part thersod and the decivion of the enginnor or architect shell be iinal and binding upon the lossee; and fa 'the cvent that It is tha
opinfon of the angineer or architact thet fhe strass or strain is auch as to endangst or injura tha building, or any.part therwof, then and
in that svert the lsveeo adrecy itnmeadiatoly to relisve the stress or strein, eifther by reinforcing the building er by lightening the load which
ases auch stress or siraln, Int a menner satisfactory to tho lessor.

. g&ﬁﬂwmmﬂ (10} Tho lesses WiI not use the outeido walls of the premises, or allow signy or devices of any kind to be affachsd

therots o suspended theralrom, for advartising or displaying the name or businest of the lesses or for any purpcae

.éf Voxzlii whatsosver withoul the written corwent of the lossar; bowever, ihe lustee wmy make use of the windows of the premises

-displap lessre's nawne and buriness whan the workmenshlp of such signs shall be of jood quality and permanent nature; provided further
zhat the lessee may not susperd or place within swid windows or paint thuceon uny banners, signe, sign-boards ar other devices in violation
ot the intent and mesning of thia saction,
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LIAB‘LI%%E * (11) At all tizen during the terrs heceof, the Jessce will, at the Issees's own expanse, keep in effect and deliver to the

INBURAR losser liability insurancs policics in form, and with an insurer, satisiactory lo the leasor, Such pelicies shall insure both
the lessar and the lessee against all Hability for damage to persens of property in, upon, or about the precaiss, The atnount ot such lnsur-

ance ahall be rot less than §...... e fOF Ijury #o one person, not laes than § : s : for injutics

to all persond erising out of amy single incidom, and ot less [T L I TR — e $08 daznags to property, or a combined
simngle lizmit of not lass th. revorene . It shall he the reeponaibility of lassor to purchase casunity insurance with
oxtinded coverage so as t:’:nium any sfructire on the premises ageinst dsmage caused by fire or the stiociz of fire (amoke, -""‘?‘/ means
of extinguishment, eta.), or eny othsr moans od Toes, Tt ahail be she runpomrbility 'o! tha leases fo insure all of the Ingyse's helongings upon
the premisee, of whatsoovar nature, against the same. With respact to thees policies, lassae shall caure the leasor (o be named 23 an addin
tional insured party, Lessss agrews to and shall [ndemnity aud Bbold lossar hermless against any and all claims and domanfia arizing from
the mogligence of the lesses, loswes's officers, agents, inviiees and/or ceployess, 8s gvel] as those arising iroes lessec's failure to comply
with ary covenant of this feass on | 's pars te ba parfortnad, and shell at lesses’s own expense defend the lessor adainst any and ail
#uity or actions arising out of such negligencs, actusl or alloged, and all appeals therelrom amd whall satinfy and discharge any judgment
which may be swardod agduinst lessor in any such suit or notion

PIXTURES 12) ANl pariitions, plumbing, electrical wiring, edditions to or improvements upon the pramizms, whotlor installed by
the leaser or Ie"eef,;m" be and 'bea;u;w a part of the building inr which the presises are located ae soon as {natalled end ¢he property of
the Jessor unless otherwiss harain prowvided. N

x.xcm;m (13) Thia Jeasa doer nat drant any rights of gecass to light and air over tho promises or any adjecent praparty,
DAMAGE BY '14¢) In the event of the desiruction of the immrovermants in whicli the pramises are locsied by fira or other asuaity,
ri‘i;sg AN%Y' gjth)ﬂ party hereto may tarminate this lease a9 of the date ol fire or casualty, provided, howsver, that in the svant
DUTY TO of damage to the improvesents by tire or other casralty fo the axient of ..uuuceemieien PO CONE OF more of fhe sound

valus fhareof, the lessor may or may not elost o repair the same; written notice of lagsor’s election shall be diven lessas within ifteen
days atter the vecurrancs of the damage; it notiee iz not so given, losser conciusively shall be destod fo have slectod not to repair; in the
ovent lessor elects not to repair, then and in that event this leass shall lerminate with the date of the damage; but if the improvaments,
in which the pramiccs are located be bui partially destroyed and the damago so occasionad ahall not ameunt te the extont indicated above,
or i growter than said eetent and leaser slacts to ropair, na aforosaid. then the Jussoc shall repair the samg with all convenient speed and
shall have the right to take possession of and oecupy, to ths exclusion of the laasee, all or any purt thereot in order to make tho nsco3sEry
repairs, and the Jossee hereby sgrees to vacats upon requess, ell or any pest thereof which the lessor may requice for the purpose of making
nacesasry repairs, end for the period of time between the day of such demsge and uniil such rapairy have beon subaiantially campleted
there ahall be such an abatemsnt of rexntt &8 the natare of the injury or damede and its interferance with the ocuparcy of the premises by
tho lessae shall warrant; howsver, it the premises be but slightly injurad and the d2xnede so ocersioned ahall not cause any material inter-
feroncs with the oceupation of the premisas by lestes, then there shall b no sbatement of ront and #he lemsor shall repair the damiage

with dll convenient speed,

WAIVER OF 75) Neither tho lossar rmor the Josses shall be Jiable to the othor for lose arising out of damnge ¢o or destruciion of
%,‘{éﬁ‘é’g ATION {he)ﬁrcuﬁses, ot tha bullding or improvement of which the premises are a par? or with which they are conmsoted, of
the cosfents of any thereof, when such loss is causaed by any of the porils which ars or ¢ouid be sncluded within or.ine

sursd aguinst by a standard form of fire insurance with extandod coversde, including sprinkler leskage insurancs, if any, All such claims
for any and all loss, however caused, hereby arc waived, Such absence of Igﬂblﬂb’ ehall axist whather or not tho damage or dsstruction is
caused by the negligence of either leszor or lossee oc by any of their rospective agents, sarvantz or employver, It is the intention and adres-
mon? of the Jesane and the legsoe that the rendale ressrved by this lease have been lfixed in confemplation that both parties shall fully
provide their own lasuratwe profection at dhsir pwn expesns, and that both partiss shall look to thalr respective insurance carriers for
reimbursomont of any guch less, and furcher, that the insurance sarriord invelved shall not be entitled to ¢ubrogation under anp. circum-
stances against mny party to this Jeane, Neitier the Jomsor nor the leasoe ahall have any intersat ov ¢lalm in tha other's Insursnes poficy or

polivias, or the proceds theraot, uniess specitieally covered thorain ay a joint esguzrad,

gmNnm‘ (16) In case of the condsmnation or purchasa of @il or any substantial pari of the premises by any publis or private
oMATN oorporation with the powor of sendemnation thig lenss may ba terminated, eifestive on tho date possssaion {s tnkea, by
sithor party herefo on written nofice to the oéber and in that ogss the lesses shall nof ba llabie for ary rant after the termination date,

Lessca ghall not ko entitled o ard hereby ecxpressly watvos any right to sny part of the condemnation award or purchase prica. .

FOR SALE 17) Darittd the period of 30 .. deys prior to tha date above fixed for the formination of this leasa, ti lossor
1‘}3’,‘3' ENT I(zere.'n may post 5,, ths premises or in the windowa thereo! signa of moderate size notifying the public that the premisas
SIGN. are “for rale" or “for leses." B .

DILIVERING UF  (18) At the expiration of the Jeass farm or upon any sconer feemination thereol, the Tessee will quit and defiver up
;g‘mﬂxmﬁaﬂ%’g@ the premiseg and 8ll futare erections or additions to or UpoOn the asms, broom-clasn, to ths logsor or Lthose heving lessor's
.eatate in the premises, peaceably, guintly, and in as good order and condition, reasonable uss and wegr thersol, damade

by tire, unavoidable casualiy and the elements alone excspied, as the ssme arc now in or horeatter may be puf in by the lesser,
ABDITIONAL (29) The lessee agrees to pay for all tenant improvements. The
lesaor agrees to offer the lessee the option to renew the lease
for a 2nd three year period with & 7.5% 'increese in rentrahd a
3rxd three vear period, if applicable, with en additional 7.5%
increase in rent. '

EXTEPT I.ONB

1f the lessee opts not to renew for the 2nd term, thellessor will :«

' repay the lessee half of the cost of the originasl tenant
improvements (not to exceed $245000.00). Iftthe lessee opts
not to renew after the 2nd three year term, the legssor will
repay 20% of the tenant improvements (not to exceed $9600.00)
Lesgee shall provide for their own phone, data, security and
garbage services as needed.
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* any corpgration signature being by authority of its Board of D:’pe’;tors.
V.

2t sasnses

ATTACEMENT = PROVIDED, ALWAYS, and these presents are upon these conditions, that (1) it ihe lesase shell Be in arreart in the
gﬁ%‘&‘; T payment of rent fop a period of ten days sféer the same becomas dus, or (2) if the Jessee shall fail or nogiect to periorm

or obaerve any af the covenantr and agreements contained hersin on leswoe's part to be done, kept, prrtormed and ob-

sarved and guoh defsult shall continue for ten days or more after writton notice of sueh failura or neglsct shall be given
fo Jessee, or (3) if the lessme shall be declared bankrupt or Insoivnt socording fo law, or (4) it any assignenert of lossse's property shall by
made for the bonatit 6f creditors, or 5) i on the axpiration of this lease lessos ialls to surrender possmssion of the prermises, the lessor or
those Raving lassor's satafe in the premisss, mey terminate thia lease and, lawtuily, at Jessor's option immediately .or at &ty tims thereatter,
without domand ar notics, enter into end upon the premises and every pert thersol ard reposses the sans, and exps! jesses and thoss
claiming by, through snd under lesses snd remove lessee's aflacts at lssses's expense, lorcibly it nocsseary and store the same, all withoud
being deemad guilty of trospass and without prajudics fo any remedy which otherwiso might ko used lor erréars of remt or preceding
treach of covenant. . - ‘ .

Naithar the tarmingdion of thig lessa by forfsiture nor tha taking or recovery of possession of the prormises shail deprive lessor of
any other aotion, right, or remedy against lsesee for possession, rent or damages, nor shall ary owission by lsssor 10 wrforve any forfeiture,
right ar remedy to which lessor may be entitled be desmed a waiver by lessor of the tight to anforce the performance of all termy and
conditions of this lease by lessne. , '

In the event of amy re-entéry by lassor, Jeagor may lasss aor relet the premises in whole or in part to any tenant or tenanta who may
bo satisfactery fo lessor, for any duration, and for the best! rent, terms and condfifons as lessor may reasonably obtain, Lessor ahell spoly
the rent recsived from any such tenant first 2o the coa? of refaking and ruletting the premisss, including remodeling required ko obtain any
sueh fopant, and then o any arrears of rant and futurs rant payable under thiz isase and any other damages fo which lessor may ba entitled
hereunder, ' . )

Any proporty which {sssce Joaves on the promeises after abandonmant or expiration of the Jasge, or for twore than ten days after any
tarmination of the leass By [andlord, shall be decrncd to favs bsen sbandened, and Izsaar may recwve ard soll the proporty at pudlic or
private sals ay Iessor ssed fit, without being lable for any prosscution therefor or for darnages by reszon tharsol, and the naf procasds of
any such sale shall be applisd lowsrd the axpensas of Jandlard and ront ps aforesaid, and the balance of such amounts, it any, ehall bs
hnld for and paid fo the lesaee,

HOLDING In the event the Jessee for any reason shall hold aver riter the expiration of this lesss, guch bkelding over shall pol be
OVER desmed i operaie as a renewal or extension of thiz lears, but shall only create a tanamcy dt sufferance which awmy
bo torarinated at will ab any time by tho Isssor,

AETOIKNN%Y In cass suit or activn fv instiivted to ordorce evmpliances with any of the terma, covenants or conditions of this Joass,
COURT COSTE or to collact the remin) which may becowme dus bacstindar, or any portion tharsol, the Josing party agrees to pay the pro-
vailing party's rassenable attornoy fesy Ineuread throughout such procssding, including at trial, on agpeal, and for posis
judgmene coilaatien. Tho leassc agracs to pay snd dischargde zll laseor's costs and exponses, inaluding Jasesr's reasonablo
attorney’s foss that shall srise from enforcing any proviefon or coveniants of this leaws sven though no auit or actian i instituted,

Should the lesses be or becoms the debtar in any bankrupicy proceeding, volutitarily, involuntarily or otharwise, either during the
period this lesse iz in ottect or whils thers axists any outvtanding obligation of the Jesson crented by this leass in favor of the lessor, the
lossme ngroes to pay ths lossor's reascnable atfornsy faes and costs which tho Iessor may ineur ag the remul? of loswer’'s participation in
such hankrupicy procesdings. It iz understood and sgreed by both partiss that applicable federal bankruptcy law or rules of procedurs

may atfoct, alter, reduce or mullify the atornsy fee and coat awsrds montionnd in tha preceding sentence, .

WALVER Any waiver by the Ivssor of any breach of any vovenant hersin contained 20 be kept atd performoed Ly the leeses shell
not ba deamed or cons/dered as a continuingd wafver, and shall net oparate to bar or provent the lessor from declaring
a forfaftures for any succeeding hreach, sithar of tha samc condition or covenant ar otherwise.

NOTICES Any notice requlsed by tha terms of this leass fo be given by one parly harcie to the utber or désitod so fo bo given,
shril be sufficlent if in writing, conteinad in a sealed envelope, and sent Hieat olass mall, with postago tully prepaid, and

if intended for the lesror herais, thep jt $ddrossod to the lossor at 2 81 1 1 9 t'-'h ﬁy,e,;m_e > Quite. 'B!
i RO L B8 L GRON L, QR 97116 and it intanded for ths lessse, thon M addrossed to the
oassont... 314 E Main, Hillsboro, QR 97123 Avy such
notico shall be deemed conclusively to have been deliverad fo-the nddresses loriyp-sight hours siier the depésit thereof int the U.S, Mail,
HERS AND All rights, romsdics and labilities herein given fo ot imposod upon either of the parties herete shall axtend to, inure
to the begaift of and bind, ag the circurnsiances may requirs, the heirs, sudcessors, personal represantativas and so far
&s this Josse iz assignabla by tha terms hersof, to the assigns of such parties. o i
TIn copstruing thie leass, it is understood that the lessor or tha [osser rny be rnore then ore person; that {f the cortext so roguires,

the singular pronsurt shall Bo taken ¢o mean snd include the plural, and that gdorerally all drammatical changes shall be mods, assumed
and jmplied to make the provisions herool apply equally to eorporations and to individuals.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partjes have axecuted this 73@ and year |

st herein written,
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The publisher strongly recommends fhat both the legsor and the lopses becomea famillar with the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990, Publle Laws 101-336. Tha Act may impose certain duties and raspons(bilities upon either or both parties to this lanse, Thase
duiies and responsibliities may include but nol ka limitad to the remeoval of cartain architectural barriers and ensuring that disabled
persons ars not denied the oppartunity to benefit from the same goods and sarvices as those availabie {o persens without dizablif~
ties. Under lhe Aect, probibilion against discrimination applies to any persan whe Is the awner, operatar, lesssr, or lessee of a plage
of public accommodatien. i
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Exhibit 6.13

Bank Stock Control Loan

REVOLVING CREDIT AGREEMENT

This Revolving Credit Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and
enteréd into as of the date set forth below by and between the undersigned
borrower (the "Borrower") and U.S. Bank, N.A. (the "Bank").

ARTICLE | DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definitions. Except as otherwise provided, all accounting terms
will be coristrued in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
consistently applied and consistent with those applied in the preparation of the
financial statements referred to in paragraph 4.14, and financial data submitted
pursuant to this Agreement will be prepared in accordance with such principles.
As used herein:

(a) "Assets" means the sum of all assets including Loan Loss
Reserves of the Subsidiary Bank determined in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles applicable to banks,
consistently applied.

(b)  “Adjusted Assets" means the sum of all assets excluding Loan
LLoss Reserve and intangibles of the Subsidiary Bank determined in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
applicable to banks, consistently applied.

(¢)  "Loan Ldss Reserves" means the loan loss reserves of the
Subsidiary Bank as reported in the most recent call reports of the
Subsidiary Bank.

(d)  "Debt Service Coverage Ratio" means (b) “Debt Service

Coverage Ratio” means, for any period of determination, the ratio
of (i) the consolidated net income of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries, plus goodwill amortization expense of the Borrower
and its Subsidiaries, plus interest expense of the Borrower, minus
cash dividends of the Borrower; to (ii) interest expense of the
Borrower, plus all required principal payments in respect of the
indebtedness of the Borrower, and in each case as calculated in
accordarice with generally accepted accounting principles.
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(9)

(1

"Nonperforming Loans" means the sum of (i) those loans 90 days
or more past due (either principal or interest) and (ii) those loans
classified as "non-accrual” or "renegotiated” as reported in the
most recent call reports of the Subsidiary Bank less the portion of
(i) and (ii) guaranteed by the U.S. Small Business Administration.

"Other Real Estate" means the value of all real estate owned by
the Subsidiary Bank and (i) classified as such by the examiners of
any Regulatory Authority as reported in the most recent
examination reports of the Subsidiary Bank or (ii) listed as such in
the most recent report to any Regulatory Authority, whichever is
most current.

"Primary Capital" means the sum of Total T'angible Equity and -
Loan Loss Reserves,

"Regulatory Authority" means any state, federal or other
authority, agency or instrumentality including, without limitation, the
Comptroller of the Currency, Federal Deposit Insurance
Carporation, Federal Reserve Board and Office of Thrift
Supervision, responsible for examination and oversight of the
Borrower or any Subsidiary.

"Regulatory Capital" means (i) Tier 1 leverage, (ii) Tier 1 risk-

based and (iii) total risk-based capital, each as defined in the
applicable regulations.

"Subsidiary" or "Subsidiaries" means the Subsidiary Bank and
any entity of which the Borrower owns, directly or through another
Subsidiary, at the date of determination, more than 50% of the
outstanding stock having ordinary voting power for the election of
directers, irrespective of whether or not at such time stock of any
other class or classes might have voting power by reason of the
happening of any contingency.

"Subsidiary Bank" or "SubS|d|arv Banks" means, whether one or
more, now owned or subsequently acquired -
Columb:a Community Bank.

"Total Loans" means the aggregate outstanding principal amount
of all loans shown as Assets of the Subsidiary Bank as reported in
the most recent call reperts of the Subsidiary Bank.

"Total Tangible Equity" means the total amount of the capital
stock, surplus and undivided profits accounts less intangibles, all
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of which will be determined in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles applicable to banks, consistently applied.

ARTICLE I LOANS

2.1 Revolving Credit Facility. From time to time prior to 03/31/09 or
the earlier termination hereof pursuant to Article VI, the Borrower may borrow
from the Bank up to the aggregate principal amount outstanding at any one time
of up to $1,500,000.00. All revolving loans hereunder will be evidenced by a
single promissory note of the Borrower payable to the order of the Bank in the
principal amount of $1,500,000.00 (the "Note"). Although the Note will be

expressed-te-be-payable-in-the-ameount-of-$1-506,000-00-the-Berrowerwill-be
obligated to pay only the amount of loans actually disbursed hereunder, together
with accrued interest on the outstanding balance at the rates and on the dates
specified therein and such other charges provided for herein.

The Loan Amount will be automatically reduced by $150,000.00
beginning June 15, 2007 and continuing on the same date of each twelfth month
thereafter until the Maturity Date, when the remaining principal balance and
interest, if any, will be due. On any date that the outstanding principal balance
on the Note exceeds the then Available Loan Amount, the Borrower shall
immediately, without request, make a payment to reduce the principal balance of
the Note to the Available Loan Amount. ‘

2.2 Advances and Paying Procedure. The Bank is authorized and
directéd to credit any of the Borrower's accounts with the Bank (or to the account
the Borrower designates in writing) for all loans made hereunder, and the Bank
is authorized to debit such account or any other account of the Borrower with the
Bank for the amount of any principal or interest due under the Note or other
amounts due hereunder on the due date with respect thereto.

2.3 Closing Fee. The Borrower will pay a one-time closing fee of
$3,750.00 contemporaneously with execution of this Agreement.

~ARTICLE lil. CONDITIONS TO BORROWING

3.1 Conditions to Borrowing. The Bank will not be obligated to make
(or continue to make) advances hereunder unless (i) the Bank has received
executed originals of the Note and all other documents or agreements applicable
to the lcans described herein, including but not limited to the documents
specified in Article V (collectively with this Agreement the "Loan Documents”),
in form and content satisfactory to the Bank; (ii) the Bank has received
confirmation satisfactory to it that the Bank has a properly perfected security
interest, mortgage or lien, with the proper priority; (iii) the Bank has received
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certified copy of a resolution or authorization in form and content satisfactory to
the Bank authorizing the loan and all acts contemplated by this Agreement and
all related documents, and confirmation of proper.authorization of all guaranties
and other acts of third parties contemplated hereunder; (v) if required by the
Bank, the Bank has been provided with an opinion of the Borrower's counsel in
form and content satisfactory to the Bank confirming the matters outiined in
Section 4.2 and such other matters as the Bank requests; (vi) ho default exists’
under this Agreement or under any other Loan Documents, or under any other
agreements by and between the Borrower and the Bank; and (vii) all
proceedings taken in connection with the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement and all instruments, authorizations and other documents applicable
thereto, will be satisfactory to the Bank and its counsel.

4 3.2  Security. The loans provided for hereunder will be secured by all
of the common and preferred stock of each Subsidiary Bank now owned or
hereafter acquired by the Borrower, except directors qualifying shares, if any
("Director Shares").

ARTICLE IV. WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS

During the term of this Agreement, and while any part of the credit
granted the Borrower is available or any obligations under any of the Loan
Documeénts are unpaid or outstanding, the Borrower warrants and agrees as
follows:

4.1 Accuracy of Information. All information, certificate or statements
given to the Bank pursuant to this Agreement and the other Loan Documents will
be true and complete when given.

- 42 Organization and Authority. This Agreement and the other Loan
Documents are the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Borrower,

griforceable against the Borrower in accordance with their terms The execution,

delivery and perfarmance of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents

(i) are within the Borrower's power; (ii) have been duly authorized by proper
corporate action; (iii) do not require the approval of any Regulatory Authority or
other governmental agency; and (iv) will not violate any law, agreement or
restriction by which the Borrower is bound. The Borrower is a validly existing
corporation in good standing under the laws of its state of organization, and has
all requisite power and authority, corporate or otherwise, and possesses all
licenses necessary, to conduct its business and own its properties.

43 Subsidiaries.
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(a)  The Borrower has Subsidiaries consisting of the Subs&diary Bank,
Columbia Community Bank.

(b)  Columbia Community Bank (i) has issued an outstanding 470,904
shares of common stock, par value $ per share, which are
duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, of
which the Borrower owns 470,904 shares, free and clear of any
liens, charges, encumbrances, rights of redemption, preemptive
rights or rights of first refusal of any kind or nature whatsoever,
except liens in faver of the Bank; and (ii) has no shares of capital
stock {common or preferred), or securities or other obligations
convertible intc any of the foregoing, authorized or outstanding and
has no outstanding offers, subscriptions, warrants, rights or other
agreements or commitments obligating it to issue or sell any of the
foregoing.

4.4  Litigation and Compliance with Laws. The Borrower and the
Subsidiaries have complied in all material respects with and will continue to
comply with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations: (i) that
regulate or are concerned in any way with its or their banking and trust business,
including without limitation those laws and regulations relating to the investment
of funds, lending of money, collection of interest, extension of credit, and
location and operation of banking facilities; or (i) otherwise relate to or affect the
business or assets of Borrower or any of the Subsidiaries or the assets owned,
used or occupied by them. Except to the extent previously disclosed to Bank,
there are no claims, actions, suits, or proceedings pending, or to the best
knowledge of Borrower, threatened or contemplated against or affecting

. Borrower or any of the Subsidiaries, at law or in equity, or before any Regulatory
Authority, or before any arbitrator or arbitration panel, whether by contract or

otherwise, and there is no decree, judgment or order of any kind in existence
against or restraining Borrower or any of the Subsidiaries, or any of their
officers, employees or directors, from taking any action of any kind in connection
with the business of Borrower or any of the Subsidiaries. Except to the extent
previously disclosed to the Bank, neither Borrower nor any of the Subsidiaries
has (i) received from any Regulatory Authority any criticisms, recommendations
or suggestions of a material nature, and Borrower has no reason to believe that
any such is contemplated, concerning the capital structure of any of the
Subsidiaries, loan policies or portfolio, or other banking and business practices
of any of the Subsidiaries that have not been resolved to the satisfaction of such
Regulatory Authorities or (ii) entered into any memorandum of understanding or
similar arrangement with any Regulatory Authority relating to any unsound or
unsafe banking practice or conduct or any violation of law respecting the
operations of the Borrower or the operations of any of the Subsidiaries.
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_ assets,

4.5 F.D.LC. insurance. Each Subsidiary Bank is insured as to
deposits by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and nc act has occurred
which could adversely affect the status of any Subsidiary Bank as an insured
bank.

4.6 Corporate Existence; Business Activities; Assets. The
Borrower will and will cause each Subsidiary to (i) preserve its corporate
existence, rights and franchises; (ii) not make any material change in the nature
or manner of its business activities; (iii) not liquidate, dissolve, merge or
consolidate with or into another entity or change its form of organization; and
(iv) not sell, lease, transfer or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its

4.7 Use of Proceeds: Marain Stock; Speculation . Advances by the
Bank hereunder will be used by the Borrower:

(i) for general corporate purposes;

(ii) to inject capital into one or more existing Subsidiary Banks;
The Borrower will not use any of the loan proceeds to purchase or carry "margin”
stock (as defined in Regulation U of the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System). No part of any of the proceeds will be used for speculative
investment purposes, including, without limitation, speculating or hedging in the
commodities and/or futures market.

4.8 Environmental Matters. Except as disclosed in a written schedule
attached to this Agreement (if no schedule is attached, there are no exceptions),
there exists no uncorrected violation by the Borrower of any federal, state or
local laws (including statutes, regulations, ordinances or other governmental
restrictions and requirements) relating to the discharge of air pollutants, water
pollutants or process waste water or otherwise relating to the environment or
Hazardous Substances as hereinafter defined, whether such laws currently exist
or are enacted in the future (collectively “Environmental Laws"). The term
"Hazardous Substances" will mean any hazardous or toxic wastes, chemicals
or other substances, the generation, possession or existence of which is
prohibited or governed by any Environmental Laws. The Borrower is not subject
to any judgment, decree, order or citation, or a party to (or threatened with) any
litigation or administrative proceeding, which asserts that the Borrower (i) has
violated any Environmental Laws; (ii) is required to clean up, remove or take
remedial or other action with respect to any Hazardous Substances (collectively
"Remedial Action™); or (iii) is required to pay all or a portion of the cost of any
Remedial Action, as a potentially responsible party. Except as disclosed on the
Borrower's environmental questionnaire provided to the Bank, there are not now,
nor to the Borrower's knowledge after reasonable investigation have there ever
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been, any Hazardous Substances (or tanks or other facilities for the storage of
Hazardous Substances) stored, deposited, recycled or disposed of on, under or
at any real estate owned or occupied by the Borrower during the periods that the
Borrower owned or occupied such real estate, which if present on the real estate
or in soils or ground water, could require Remedial Action. To the Borrower's
knowledge, there are no proposed or pending changes in Environmental Laws
which would adversely affect the Borrower or its business, and there are no
conditions existing currently or likely to exist while the Loan Documents are in
effect which would subject the Borrower to Remedial Action or other liability.
The Borrower currently complies with and will continue to timely comply with all
applicable Environmental Laws; and will provide the Bank, immediately upon

receipt, copies of any correspondence, notice, complaint, order or other

~ document from any source asserting or alleging any circumstance or condition

which requires or may require a financial contribution by the Borrower or
Remedial Action or other response by or on the part of the Borrower under
Environmental Laws, or which seeks damages or civil, criminal or punitive
penalties from the Borrower for an alleged violation of Environmental Laws.

4.9 Restriction on Indebtedness. The Borrower will not and will not
permit any of the Subsidiaries to create, incur, assume or have outstanding any
indebtedness for borrowed money (including capitalized leases) except

(i) indebtedness under the Note issued under this Agreement; (ii) other

indebtedness to the Bank; (iii) fed funds transactions in the ordinary course of
business; (iv) indebtedness owing to any Federal Home Loan Bank (or any
successor thereto); and (v) any other indebtedness outstanding on the date
hereof, and shown on the Borrower's financial statements delivered to the Bank
prior to the date hereof, provided such other indebtedness shall not be renewed
extended or increased.

410 Restriction on Liens. The Borrower will not and will not permit
any of the Subsidiaries to create, incur, assume or permit to exist any mortgage,
pledge, encumbrance or other lien or levy upon or security interest in any of the
Borrower's property now owned or hereafter acquired, except (i) taxes and
assessments which are either not delinguent or which are being contested in
good faith with adequate reserves provided; (ii) easements, restrictions and
minor title irregularities which do not, as a practical matter, have an adverse
effect upon the ownership and use of the affected property; (iii) liens in favor of
the Bank or its affiliates; and (iv) other liens disclosed in writing to the Bank prior
to the date hereof.

411 Restriction on Continaent Liabilities. The Borrower will not and
will not permit any of the Subsidiaries to guarantee or become a surety or
otherwise contingently liable for any obligations of others, except pursuant to the
deposit and collection of checks, the issuance or confirmation of letters of credit
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by any Subsidiary Bank and similar matters in the ordinary course of banking

business.

4.12 Insurance. The Borrower will maintain and cause each Subsidiary
to maintain insurance to such extent, covering such risks and with such insurers
as is usual and customary for businesses operating similar properties, and as is
satisfactory to the Bank, including insurance for fire and other risks insured
against by extended coverage, public liability insurance and workers'
compensation insurance.

4.13 Taxes and Other Liabilities. The Borrower will pay and
discharge, and cause each Subsidiary to pay and discharge when due, all of its
taxes, agsessments and other liabilities, except when the payment thereof is
being contested in good faith by appropriate procedures which will avoid
foreclosure of liens securing such items, and with adequate reserves provided
therefor.

4.14 Financial Statements and Reporting. The financial statements
and other information previously provided to the Bank or provided to the Bank in
the future are or will be complete and accurate and prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. There has been no material adverse
change in the Borrower's financial condition since such information was provided
to the Bank. The-Borrower will, and will cause each Subsidiary to (i) maintain
accounting records in accordance with generally recognized and accepted
principlés of accounting consistently applied throughout the accounting periods
invalved; (ii) provide the Bank with such information concerning its business - -
affairs and financial condition (including insurance coverage) as the Bank may
reasonably request; and (iii) without request, provide the Bank with the following
information: ‘

(a)  Assoon as available, and in any event within 90 days after the end
of each fiscal year of the Borrower, the Borrower's annual financial
statements in form and substance acceptable to the Bank; and

(b)  Within 45 days of the end of each quarter, quarterly call reports
prepared on FFIEC forms, or any successors thereto, of each
Subsidiary Bank prepared in accordance with the guidelines of any
Regulatory Authority that regulates each Subsidiary Bank; and

(¢  Within 45 days of the end of each quarter, a compliance certificate
in form and substance acceptable to the Bank, certifying
compliance with the financial covenants contained herein;

(d)  As soon as available, copies of all reports or materials submitted or
distributed to shareholders of the Borrower or filed with the SEC or
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(e)

AR

(h)

other Regulatory Authority or with any national securities
exchange; and form FRY-9C or form FRY-8P, as appropriate,
which are the financial statements of the Borrower as delivered to
the Federal Reserve System,;

Promptly after the furnishing thereof, copies of any statement or
report furnished to any other holder of obligations of the Borrower
or any Subsidiary pursuant to the terms of any indenture, loan or
similar agreement and not otherwise required to be furnished to the
Bank pursuant to any other clause of this paragraph 4.14; and

E,rompt.fy, and in any event within 10 days, after the Borrowerhas

knowledge thereof, a statement of the chief financial officer of the
Borrower describing: (i) any event which, either of itself or with the
lapse of time or the giving of notice or both, would constitute a
default hereunder or under any other material agreement to which
the Borrower or any Subsidiary is a party, together with a
statement of the actions which the Borrower proposes to take with
réspect thereto; and (ii) any pending or threatened litigation or
administrative proceeding of the type described in paragraph 4.4;
and

Notice of any memorandum of understanding or any other
agreement with any banking regulatory agencies, or cease and
desist order, immediately after entered into by or issued against
Borrower or any Subsidiary; and

Promptly after request therefor, any other information concerning
the business affairs and financial condition of the Borrower or any
Subsidiary as the Bank may reasonably reguest.

4.15 Information. The Borrower will make available for review by the
Bank, promptly upon Bank's request, financial statements, call reports and any
other records or documents of the Borrower or the Subsidiary Bank. The
Borrower and the Subsidiaries will obtain the consent of any person or
Regulatory Authority which it deems necessary or appropriate for disclosure of
the information described above.

4.16 Financial Covenants. The Borrower will:

(a)

cause each Subsidiary Bank to be "well capitalized", as defined in
12 C.F. R. 325,103(b)(2), at all times
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(b)  cause each Subsidiary Bank to maintain at all times the following
covenants, measured quarterly as of the last day of each fiscal
quarter

(i) the total of Non-performing Loans plus Other Real Estate at
equal to or less than 15% of Primary Capital

4,17 Inspectionof Properties and Records; Fiscal Year. The
Borrower will permit representatives of the Bank to visit and inspect any of the
properties and examine any books and records of the Borrower and the
SuBsidiaries including without limitation the stock transfer records of the .
Subsidiary Bank, at any reasonable time and as often as the Bank may
reasonably desire. The Borrower will not change its fiscal year.

4.18 Issuance of Stock. The Borrower will not permit any Subsidiary
Bank to issue any additional shares of common or preferred stock, or any
options, warrants or other common stock equivalents, or sell or issue securities
or obligations convertible into such ("New Stock™), whether in the form of stock
dividends or stock splits or otherwise, unless such New Stock will be issued to
the Borrower and delivered by the Borrower to the Bank, together with any
additional documents required by the Bank, as additional collateral to secure the
foan provided for hereunder.

4.19 Acquisitions and Investments. Neither the Borrower nor any of
the Subsidiaries will acquire any other business or make any loan, advance or
extension of credit to, or investment in, any other person, corporation or other
entity, including investments acquired in exchange for stock or other securities
or obligations of any nature of the Borrower or any Subsidiary, or create or
participate in the creation of any Subsidiary or joint venture, except:

(a) investments in (i) bank repurchase agreements; (ii) savings
accounts or certificates of deposit in a financial institution of
recognized standing; (iii) obligations issued or fully guaranteed by
the United States; and (iv) prime commercial paper maturing within
90 days of the date of acquisition by the Borrower cr a Subsidiary;

(b) loans and advances made to employees and agents in the ordinary
course of business, such as travel and entertainment advances
and similar items;

(c)  investments in the Borrower by a Subsidiary;
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(d)  investments shown on the most recent financial statements of the
Borrower provided to the Bank, provided that such investments will
not be increased; and :

(e)  with respect to a Subsidiary, investments or loans made in the
ordinary course of banking business of such Subsidiary.

4,20 Dividends. The Borrower will not, without the prior written consent
of the Bank, pay any dividends or make any other distribution on account of any
shares of any class of its stock or redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire,
directly or indirectly any shares of its stock.

ARTICLE V. COLLATERAL

5.1 - Collatéral. This Agreement and the Note are secured by a
Collateral Pledge Agreement dated .. The information in this Article V is
for information only and the omission of any reference to an agreement will not
affect the validity or enforceability thereof. The rights and remedies of the Bank
outlined in this Agreement and the documents identified above are intended to
be cumulative.

5.2 Credit Balances; Setoff. As additional security for the payment of-

the obligations described in the Loan Documents and any other obligations of
the Borrower to the Bank of any nature whatsoever (collectively the
"Obligations"), the Borrower hereby grants to the Bank a security interest in, a
lien on and an express contractual right to set off against all depository account
balances, cash and any other property of the Borrower now or hereafter in the
possession of the Bank and the right to refuse to allow withdrawals from any
account (collectively "Setoff'). The Bank may, at any time upon the occurrence
of a default hereunder (notwithstanding any notice requirements or grace/cure
periods under this or other agreements between the Borrower and the Bank)
Setoﬁ‘ against the Obligations whether or not the Obligations (including
future installments) are then due or have been accelerated, all without any
advance or contemporaneous hotice or demand of any kind to the
Borrower, such notice and demand being expressly waived.

5.3 Guaranties. This Agreement and the Note are-guaranteed by
each and every guaranty now or hereafter in existence guarantying the
indebtedness of the Borrower to the Bank (except for any guaranty expressly
limited in its terms to a specific separate obligation of the Borrower to the Bank)
including, without limitation, the following: the Continuing Guaranty (Unlimited) of

dated
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The information contained in this Article V is for information only and the
omission of any reference to an agreement will not affect the validity or
enforceability thereof. The rights and remedies of the Bank outlined in this
Agreement and the documents identified above are intended to be cumulative.

6.1

ARTICLE VI. DEFAULTS

Defaults. Notwithstanding any cure periods described below,

the Borrower will immediately notify the Bank in writing when the Borrower

_obtains knowledge of the occurrence of any default specified below.

Regardless of whether the Borrower has given the required notice, the
occurrence of one or more of the following will constitute a default:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Nonpayment. The Borrower shall fail to pay (i) any interest due
on the Note or any fees, charges, costs or expenses under the
Loan Documents by 5 days after the same becomes due; or (ii) any
principal amount of the Note when due.

Nonperformance. The Borrower or any guarantor of Borrower's
Obligations to the Bank ("Guarantor") shall fail to perform or
observe any agreement, term, provision, condition, or covenant
(other than a default occurring under (a), (c), (d), (&), (f) or (g) of
this paragraph 6.1) required to be performed or observed by the
Borrower or any Guarantor hereunder or under any other Loan
Document or other agreement with or in favor of the Bank.

Misrepresentation. Any financial information, statement,
certificate, representation or warranty given to the Bank by the
Borrower or any Guarantor (or any of their representatives) in
connection with entering into this Agreement or the other Loan
Documents and/or any borrowing thereunder, or required to be
furnished under the terms thereof, shall prove untrue or misleading
in any material respect (as determined by the Bank in the exercise
of its judgment) as of the time when given. :

Default on Other Obligations. The Borrower, any Guarantor or
any Subsidiary shall be in default under the terms of any [oan
agreement, promissory note, lease, conditional sale contract or
other agreement, document or instrument evidencing, governing or
securing any indebtedness owing by the Borrower, any Guarantor
or any Subsidiary to the Bank or any indebtedness in excess of
$10,000 owing by the Borrower to any third party, and the period of
grace, if any, to cure said default shall have passed.
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(g)

6.2

Judgments. Any judgment shall be obtained against the
Borrower, any Guarantor or any Subsidiary which, together with all
other outstanding unsatisfied judgments against the Borrower (or
such Guarantor or Subsidiary), exceeds the sum of $10,000 and
shall remain unvacated, unbonded or unstayed for a period of 30
days following the date of entry thereof.

Inability to Perform; Bankruptcy/insolvency. (i) the Borrower,
any Guarantor or any Subsidiary shall die or cease to exist; or (ii)
any Guarantor shall attempt to revoke any guaranty of the
Obligations described herein, or any guaranty becomes
unenforceable in whole or in part for any reason; or (iii) any
bankruptcy, insclvency or receivership proceedings, or an
assignment for the benefit of creditors, shall be commenced under
any Federal or state law by or against the Borrower, any Guaranter
or any Subsidiary; or (iv) the Borrower, any Guarantor or any
Subsidiary shall become the subject of any out-of-court settlement
with its creditors; or (v) the Borrower, any Guarantor or any
Subsidiary is unable or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts
as they mature; or (vi) the Borrower or any Subsidiary is closed or
taken over by a Regulatory Authority.

Adverse Change; Insecurity. (l) There is a material adverse
change in the business, properties, financial condition or affairs of
the Borrower, any Guarantor or any Subsidiary, or in any collaterai
securing the Obligations; or (ii) the Bank in good faith deems itself
insecure.

Regulatory Orders. The Borrower or any Subsidiary enters into
any memorandum of understanding or other agreement with any
banking Regulatory Authority relating to any unsound or unsafe
banking practice or conduct or any violation of [aw respecting the
operation of Borrower or such Subsidiary; or Borrower or any
Subsidiary or any of their officers, employees, or directors become
the subject of a judicial or administrative determination restraining
any of them from taking any actions of any kind in connection with
the business of Borrower or such Subsidiary, assessing a civil
penalty, finding that any criminal offense occurred in connection
with the cperations of Borrower or such Subsidiary, or suspending
or removing any officer or director of Borrower or such Subsidiary.

Termination of Loans; Additional Bank Rights. Upon the

occurrence of any of the events identified in paragraph 6.1, the Bank may at any
time (notwithstanding any notice requirements or grace/cure periods under this
or other agreements between the Borrower and the Bank) (i) immediately
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terminate its obligation, if any, o make additional loans to the Borrower,; (ii)
Setoff; and/or (iii) take such other steps to protect or preserve the Bank's interest
in any collateral, including without limitation, notifying account debtors to make
payments directly to the Bank, advancing funds to protect any collateral and
insuring collateral at the Borrower's expense; all without demand or notice of any
kind, all of which are hereby waived. -

6.3  Acceleration of Obligations. Upon the occurrence of any of the
events identified in paragraphs 6.1(a) through 6.1(e) and 8.1(g) and 6.1(h), and
the passage of any applicable cure periods, the Bank may at any time thereafter,
(i) by written notice to the Borrower, declare the unpaid principal balance of any
Obligations, together with the interest accrued thereon and other amounts
accrued hereunder and under the other Loan Documents, to be immediately due
and payable; and the unpaid balance will thereupon be due and payable, all
without presentation, demand, protest or further notice of any kind, all of which
are hereby waived, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or
in any of the other Loan Documents; and (ii) requiré the Borrower to cause each

~ Subsidiary Bank to appoint an independent transfer agent for the purpose of

registering and transferring ownership of the capital stock of such Subsidiary
Bank. Upon the occurrence of any event under paragraph 6.1(f), the unpaid
principal balance of any Obligations, together with all interest accrued thereon
and other amounts accrued hereunder and under the other Loan Documents, will
thereupon be immediately due and payable, all without presentation, demand,
protest or noticé of any kind, all of which are hereby waived, and notwithstanding
anything to the contrary contained herein or in any of the other Loan Documents.
Nothing contained in paragraph 6.1, paragraph 6.2 or this section will limit
the Bank's right to Setoff as provided in paragraph 5.2 or otherwise in this
Agreement.

6.4 Other Remedies. Nothing in this Article VI is intended to restrict
the Bank's rights under any of the Loan Documents or at law, and the Bank may
exercise all such rights and remedies as and when they are available.

ARTICLE VII. MISCELLANEOUS

7.1  Delay; Cumulative Remedies. No delay on the part of the Bank
in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder or under any of the other
Loan Documents will operate as a waiver thereof, nor will any single or partial
exercise of any right, power or privilege hereunder preclude other or further
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. The rights
and remedies herein specified are cumulative and are not exclusive of any rights
or remedies which the Bank would otherwise have.
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7.2  Relationship to Other Documents. The warranties, covenants
and other obligations of the Borrower (and the rights and remedies of the Bank)
that are outlined in this Agreement and the other Loan Documents are intended
to supplement each other. In the event of any inconsistencies in any of the
ferms in the Loan Documents, all terms will be cumulative so as to give the Bank
the most favorable rights set forth in the conflicting documents, except that if
there is a direct conflict between any preprinted terms and specifically
negotiated terms (whether included in an addendum or otherwise), the
specifically negotiated terms will control.

7.3  Participations; Guarantors. The Bank may, at its option, sell all
or any interests in the Note and other Loan Documents to other financial
institutions (the "Participant") and in connection with such sales (and
thereafter), the Bank may disclose any financial information the Bank may have
concerning the Borrower to any such Participant or potential Participant. From
time to time, the Bank may, in its discretion and without obligation to the
Borrower, any guarantor or any other third party, disclose information about the
Borrower and the loan to any Guarantor, surety or other accommodation party.
This provision does not obligate the Bank to supply any information or release
the Borrower from its obligation to provide such information, and the Borrower
agrees to keep all Guarantors advised of its financial condition and other matters
which may be relevant to the Guarantors’ obligations to the Bank.

7.4  Expenses and Attorneys' Fees. The Borrower will reimburse the
Bank and any Participant for all attorneys' fees and all other costs, fees and out-
of-pocket disbursements incurred by the Bank or any Participant in connection
with the preparation, execution, delivery, administration, defense and
enforcement of this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents, including
attorneys' fees and all other costs and fees (a) incurred before or after
commencement of litigation or at trial, on appeal or in any other proceeding, (b)
incurred in any bankruptcy proceeding and (c) related to any waivers or
amendments with respect thereto (examples of costs and fees include but are
not limited to fees and costs for: filing, perfecting or confirming the priority of the
Bank's lien, title searches or insurance, appraisals, environmental audits and
other reviews related to the Borrower, any collateral or the loans, if requested by
the Bank). The Borrower will also reimburse the Bank and any Participant for all
costs of collection including all attorney's fees before and after judgment, and
the costs of preservation and/or liquidation of any collateral. .

7.5  Successors. The rights, options, powers and remedies granted in
this Agreement and the other Loan Documents will extend to the Bank and to its
successors and assigns, will be binding upon the Borrower and its successors
and assigns and will be applicable hergto and to all renewals and/or extensions
hereof.
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7.6 Indemnification. Except for harm arising from the Bank's willful
misconduct, the Borrower hereby indemnifies and agrees to defend and hold the
Bank harmless from any and all losses, costs, damages, claims and expenses of
any kind suffered by or asserted against the Bank relating to claims by third
parties arising out of the financing provided under the Loan Documents or
related to any collateral (including, without limitation, the Borrower's failure to
perform its obligations relating to Environmental Matters described in Section 4.8
above. This indemnification and hold harmless provision will survive the
termination of the Loan Documents and the satisfaction of the Obligations due

the Bank.

7.7  Notice of Claims Against Bank; Limitation of Certain Damages.
in order to allow the Bank to mitigate any damages to the Borrower from the
Bank's alleged breach of its duties under the Loan Documents or any other duty,
if any, to the Borrower, the Borrower agrees to give the Bank immediate written
notice of any claim or defense it has against the Bank, whether in tort or
contract, relating to any action or inaction by the Bank under the Loan
Documents, or the transactions related thereto, or. of any defense to payment of
the Obligations for any reason. The requirement of providing timely notice to the
Bank represents the parties' agreed-to standard of performance regarding
claims against the Bank. Notwithstanding any claim that the Borrower may have
against the Bank, and regardless of any notice the Borrower may have given the
Bank, the Bank will not be liable to the Borrower for consequential and/or
special damages arising therefrom, except those damages arising from the
Bank's willful misconduct.

7.8  Notices., Notice of any record shall be deemed given when the
record has been (a) deposited in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, (b)
received by overnight delivery service, (c) received by telex (d) received by
facsimile, (e) received through the internet, or (f) when personally delivered.

7.9 Payments. Payments due under the Note and other Loan
Documents will be made in lawful money of the United States. All payments may
be applied by the Bank to principal, interest and other amounts due under the
Loan Documents in-any order which the Bank elects.

7.10 Applicable Law and Jurisdiction; Interpretation; Joint Liability.
This Agreement and all other Loan Documents will be governed by and
interpreted in accordance with the internal laws of the state where the Bank's
branch originating this loan is located, except to the extent superseded by
Federal law. Invalidity of any provisions of this Agreement will not affect any
other provision. THE BORROWER HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE EXCLUSIVE
JURISDICTION OF ANY STATE OR FEDERAL COURT SITUATED IN THE
COUNTY OR FEDERAL JURISDICTION.OF THE BANK'S OFFICE WHERE
THE LOAN WAS ORIGINATED, AND WAIVES ANY OBJECTION BASED ON
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FORUM NON CONVENIENS, WITH REGARD TO ANY ACTIONS, CLAIMS,
DISPUTES OR PROCEEDINGS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE
NOTE, THE COLLATERAL, ANY OTHER LOAN DOCUMENT, OR ANY
TRANSACTIONS ARISING THEREFROM, OR ENFORCEMENT AND/OR
INTERPRETATION OF ANY OF THE FOREGOING. Nothing herein will affect
the Bank's rights to serve process in any manner permitted by law, or limit the
Bank's right to bring proceedings against the Berrower in the competent courts

“of any other jurisdiction or jurisdictions. This Agreement, the other Loan

Documents and any amendments hereto (regardiess of when executed) will be
deemed effective and accepted only at the Bank's offices, and only upon the
Bank's receipt of the executed originals thereof, If there is more than one
Borrower, the liability of the Borrowers will be joint and several, and the
reference to "Borrower" will be deémed to refer to all Borrowers.

7.11  Waiver of Jury Trial. THE BORROWER AND THE BANK
HEREBY JOINTLY AND SEVERALLY WAIVE ANY AND ALL RIGHT TO
TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING RELATING TO ANY OF
THE LOAN DOCUMENTS, THE OBLIGATIONS THEREUNDER, ANY
COLLATERAL SECURING THE OBLIGATIONS, OR ANY TRANSACTION
ARISING THEREFROM OR CONNECTED THERETO. THE BORROWER AND
THE BANK EACH REPRESENTS TO THE OTHER THAT THIS WAIVER IS
KNOWINGLY, WILLINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY GIVEN.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this REVOLVING
CREDIT AGREEMENT as of March 18, 2004.

Columbia Commercial Bancorp

an Oreaon Corporatiorf
(Individual Borrower)

By |
Borrower Name Name and Title Rick RolSy. CEO

By -
Borrower Namé Name and Title
U.S. Bank N.A.
By -
Name and Title Heath Finn, Vice President
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MOSS-ADAMS LLP @

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Exhibit 10.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We hereby agree to the use in the Offering Circular constituting part of this Offering
Statement filed under the Regulation A exemption from registration under the Securities Act of
1933, of our report dated March 2, 2004, on the consolidated balance sheet of Columbia
Commercial Bancorp as of December 31, 2003, and the related consolidated statements of
income, changes in stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003, which appear in the Offering
Circular.

W) (Gl LLF

Portland, Oregon
September &, 2004

A member of
Moores Rowland International

an association of independent
accounting firms throughout Page 268
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EXHIBIT 10.3

Consent and Certification by Underwriter

1. The undersigned, acting as placement agent on a best efforts basis, hereby consents to being
named as underwriter in an offering statement filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission by Columbia Commercial Bancorp, pursuant to Regulation A in connection with a
proposed offering of Columbia Commercial Bancorp common stock, no par value per share, to
the public.

2. The undersigned hereby certifies that it furnished the statements and information set forth in
the offering statement with respect to the undersigned, its directors and officers or partners, that
such statements and information are accurate, complete and fully responsive to the requirements
of Parts I, II and III of the offering statement thereto, and do not omit any information required to
be stated therein with respect to any such persons, or necessary to make the statements and
information therein with respect to any of them not misleading.

3. If Preliminary Offering Circulars are distributed, the undersigned hereby undertakes to keep
an accurate and complete record of the name and address of each person furnished a Preliminary
Offering Circular and, if such Preliminary Offering Circular is inaccurate or inadequate in any
material respect, to furnish a revised Preliminary Offering Circular of a Final Offering Circular
to all persons to whom the securities are to be sold at least 48 hours prior to the mailing of any
confirmation of sale to such person, or to send such a circular to such persons under
circumstances that it would normally be received by them 48 hours prior to their receipt of
confirmation of the sale.

D.A. DAVIDSON & CO.
By: Daren J. Sh/%
Its: Managing Director

Date: September 8, 2004
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Exhlblt 13 1

COLUMBIA

COoOMMUNITY BANK

July 9, 2004

Dear Shareholder,

Your Board of Directors has decided tp raise additional equity capital through a sale of
common stock. The additional equity capital will be used to further expand the bank and
retire a capital loan. We plan to offer shares to existing shareholders and customers
before we open the sale to others. Before we offer the shares, we will provide, by means
of a written prospectus, additional detailed information about the offering, including the
offering price, use of proceeds and risks associated with.an investment in additional

shares. At this time we are simply asking you to indicate your investment interest in this
offering knowing that you have no commitment to actually buy additional shares. You

may call us at 503-693-7500, email Linda@columbiacommumnitybank.com, or mail in

your level of interest. The offering will only be made by means of a prospectus, which is
not anticipated to be available until late July. This letter does not constitute an offer to
sell securities or a solicitation of an offer to purchase securities. ‘We will not offer or sell
shares in any jurisdiction in which such offer or sale may not be legally made.

Rick A. Roby President- CEO

Receiving & praspectizs when it becotues available I (we) would consider inVestiug. 1
(we) understand wg are under no obligation to invest in the proposed offering.

Name I (We) would be interested in investing $

Mnin Streci, Sufce A o Hillaborn, Ovegon 97123 » 503-693.7500 ¢« Fax, 503.%40.9528
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Exhibit 13.2

COLUMBIA

COMMUNITY BANK

Tuly 9, 2004

Dear Customer,

The  Board of Directors of your Barik has decided to raise additiona! equity capital
through a sale of common stoek.  The additional equity capital will be used to further
expand the bank and rstire 2 capital Joan. We plan to oﬁ"er shares to existing
shareholders and customers before we open the sale to othets. Before we.offer the
shares, we will provide, by meaps of a written prospectus, additional detailed information
about the otfermg, including the offering price, use of proceeds and rigks associated with
an investment in additional shares, At this time we are simply asking you to indicate

.your investment intexest in this offering knowing that you bave no commitment to

actually buy additional shares. You may call'us at 503-693-7500, email

Linda@columbiacommunitvbank, com, or mail in your level of interest. The offering will
only be made by means of o proapectus, which is ot anticipated to be available until late
July. This letter does not constitute an offer to sell securities or a solicitation of an offst
to purchase securities. We will not offer or sell shares i any jurisdiction in which such

offer or sale may not be legally made.

L L T e T

Receiving a prospectus when it becomes available I (we) would consider investing. 1
{we) uaderstand we are under no obligation to invest in the proposed offering,

Name I (We) would be interested i investing $

Mnin Screnr, Buicte A ¢ Hillsborn, Oregon 97123 & 503-693.7500 « [nax: 503-846.93128
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SIGNATURES

The Issuer has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Hillsboro, State of Oregon, on September __, 2004.

Rle A Roby,
Chief Execyt

Each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Rick A. Roby, Donald Kane,
Frederick S. Johnson, and each of them, with full power to act alone without the other, his or her true and lawful
attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her
name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Offering Statement, and
to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and any applicable state agency, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each
of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to fully
to all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, thereby ratifying and confirming all that said
attormeys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done
by virtue hereof.

In accordance with the requirements of Regulation A, this offering statement has been signed by the
following persons in the capacities indicated on September __, 2004.

Capacity

i’resident, Chief Executive Officer and
Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

/ 7 "i/ Chief Financial Officer and Vice President

Rgndy v, Blhke Columbia Community Bank

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
%7 % J Director

Anita M. Sharman
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Donald B. Kane

Martin D. Quandt

Y, 4k

Toth C. RicHafds

Joseph T. Rose

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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